Embedded Support Partner User Guide

Document Number 007-4065-002

Contributors

Written by Darrin Goss Illustrated by Dan Young Edited by Cindi Leiser Production by Amy Swenson Engineering contributions by the System and Site Support Tools Group

© 1999 Silicon Graphics, Inc. — All Rights Reserved

This document contains proprietary and confidential information of SGI. The contents of this document may not be disclosed to third parties, copied, or duplicated in any form, in whole or in part, without the prior written permission of SGI.

Restricted Rights Legend

Use, duplication, or disclosure of the technical data contained in this document by the Government is subject to restrictions as set forth in subdivision (c) (1) (ii) of the Rights in Technical Data and Computer Software clause at DFARS 52.227-7013 and/or in similar or successor clauses in the FAR, or in the DOD or NASA FAR Supplement. Unpublished rights reserved under the Copyright Laws of the United States. Contractor/manufacturer is SGI, 1600 Amphitheatre Parkway, Mountain View, CA 94043-1351.

Challenge, InPerson, IRIX, Key-O-Matic, O2, Octane, Onyx, and Silicon Graphics are registered trademarks, and CASEVision, Onyx2, Origin, Performance Co-Pilot, SGI, and Supportfolio are trademarks of Silicon Graphics, Inc.

U.S.Robotics and Sportster are trademarks of 3Com Corporation. Netscape is a trademark of Netscape Communications Corporation. UNIX is a registered trademark and X Window System is a trademark of The Open Group. All other trademarks are the property of their respective owners.

Embedded Support Partner User Guide Document Number 007-4065-002

What's New in this Document

This revision makes the following changes to this document:

- Information about viewing the diagnostic results information has been added to Chapters 4, 6, and 9.
- Minor editorial and technical changes have been throughout the document.

Contents

What's New in this Document iii List of Figures xiii List of Tables xxvii About this Guide xxxi Conventions Used in this Document xxxii Introduction 1 1. About Embedded Support Partner 1 What are Events? 1 What are Actions? 2 What are Notifications? 2 About the Embedded Support Partner User Interfaces 3 Required Software 5 Related Information 5 Single System Manager Mode 7 2. Starting Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode 8 Using an ASCII Interface 8 Using a Graphical Interface 9 Using the Embedded_Support_Partner Icon 10 Using the launchESPartner Command 16 Configuring Single System Manger Mode 20 Manipulating the Database that Single System Manager Mode Uses 21 Archiving a Database 21 Deleting a Database Archive 21

3.	Using the ASCII Interface to Set Up Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode 25
	Setting Up Global Parameters in Single System Manager Mode 25
	Setting Up the Web Server Parameters 26
	Allowing Access to Embedded Support Partner 28
	Changing the User Name and Password 30
	Setting the Global Configuration Parameters 31
	Setting Up Events in Single System Manager Mode 33
	Viewing the Current Event Setup 34
	Using the View Event Option 34
	Using the View Event List Option 37
	Using the View Classes Option 40
	Updating an Event 42
	Adding an Event 45
	Deleting an Event 48
	Using the Show All Custom Events Link 49
	Using the Show Custom Events for Selected Class Link 52
	Setting Up Actions in Single System Manager Mode 55
	Viewing the Current Action Setup 55
	Using the View Action Setup Option 56
	Using the View Available Actions List Option 59
	Updating an Action 60
	Adding an Action 62
	Deleting an Action 65

	Setting up the Paging Parameters in Single System Manager Mode 68
	Viewing the Current Paging Setup 69
	Adding/Updating a Modem 70
	Modifying the QPage Parameters 71
	Adding/Updating a Paging Service 73
	Adding/Updating a Pager 75
	Example Configuration 77
	Deleting a Pager 79
	Deleting a Paging Service 80
	Deleting a Modem 82
	Setting Up the Availability Monitor in Single System Manager Mode 84
	Viewing the Current Availability Monitoring Setup 84
	Configuring the Availability Monitor 85
	Setting Up the Availability Monitor E-mail Lists 88
	Setting Up the Performance Monitor in Single System Manager Mode 90
	Viewing the Current Performance Monitoring Setup 90
	Configuring the Performance Monitor 91
4.	Using the ASCII Interface to View Information about a System in Single System Manager Mode 93
	Viewing the Hardware Configuration for a Specific Date 93
	Viewing the Software Configuration for a Specific Date 96
	Viewing the System Changes between a Range of Dates 99
	Viewing the Part Changes Information 104
	Viewing the Events that Have Been Registered 107
	Using the All System Events Option 108
	Using the Specific System Event Option 110
	System Events by Class Option 114
	Viewing Information about the Actions Taken 119
	Using the All Actions Taken Option 120
	Using the Actions Taken for a Specific Event Option 123
	Viewing the Diagnostic Results 127

Viewing the Availability Information 130 Using the Overall Availability Option 131 Using the Availability Events List Option 136 5. Using the Graphical Interface to Set Up Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode 141 Setting Up Global Parameters in Single System Manager Mode 141 Setting Up the Web Server Parameters 141 Allowing Access to Embedded Support Partner 144 Changing the User Name and Password 145 Setting the Global Configuration Parameters 146 Setting Up Events in Single System Manager Mode 148 Viewing the Current Event Setup 149 Using the View Event Option 149 Using the View Event List Option 152 Using the View Classes Option 155 Updating an Event 157 Updating Event/Action Assignments 160 Selecting an Event/Action Assignment by Choosing an Action 161 Selecting an Event/Action Assignment by Choosing an Event 163 Adding an Event 165 Deleting an Event or an Event Class 169 Deleting a Event 169 Deleting an Event Class 171 Setting Up Actions in Single System Manager Mode 172 Viewing the Current Action Setup 172 Using the View Action Setup Option 173 Using the View Available Actions List Option 175 Updating an Action 176 Adding an Action 179 Deleting an Action 181

Setting up the Paging Parameters in Single System Manager Mode 184 Viewing the Current Paging Setup 185 Adding/Updating a Modem 186 Modifying the QPage Parameters 188 Adding/Updating a Paging Service 189 Adding/Updating a Pager 191 Example Configuration 193 Deleting a Pager 194 Deleting a Paging Service 195 Deleting a Modem 197 Setting Up the Availability Monitor in Single System Manager Mode 198 Viewing the Current Availability Monitoring Setup 199 Configuring the Availability Monitor 200 Setting Up the Availability Monitor E-mail Lists 202 Setting Up the Performance Monitor in Single System Manager Mode 205 Viewing the Current Performance Monitoring Setup 205 Configuring the Performance Monitor 206 Using the Graphical Interface to View Information about a System in Single System 6. Manager Mode 209 Viewing the Hardware Configuration for a Specific Date 209 Viewing the Software Configuration for a Specific Date 212 Viewing the System Changes between a Range of Dates 215 Viewing the Part Changes Information 220 Viewing the Events that Have Been Registered 223 Using the All System Events Option 224 Using the Specific System Event Option 226 System Events by Class Option 230 Viewing Information about the Actions Taken 234 Using the All Actions Taken Option 235 Using the Actions Taken for a Specific Event Option 237 Viewing the Diagnostic Results 242

Contents

	Using the Overall Availability Option 246
	Using the Availability Events List Option 251
7.	System Group Manager Mode 255
	Starting Embedded Support Partner in System Group Manager Mode 258
	Using the Embedded_Support_Partner Icon 258
	Using the launchESPartner Command 264
	Configuring System Group Manager Mode 268
	Manipulating the Database that System Group Manager Mode Uses 269
	Archiving a Database 269
	Deleting a Database Archive 269
8.	Setting Up Embedded Support Partner in System Group Manager Mode 271
	Setting Up Global Parameters 271
	Setting Up the Web Server Parameters 271
	Allowing Access to Embedded Support Partner 273
	Changing the User Name and Password 276
	Setting the Global Configuration Parameters 277
	Setting Up Events in System Group Manager Mode 279
	Viewing the Current Event Setup 279
	Using the View Event List Option 280
	Using the View Classes Option 282
	Updating an Event 284
	Subscribing Events from Other Systems 287
	Unsubscribing Events from Other Systems 291
	Setting Up Actions in System Group Manager Mode 294
	Viewing the Current Action Setup 294
	Using the View Action Setup Option 295
	Using the View Available Actions List Option 296
	Updating an Action 298
	Adding an Action 300
	Deleting an Action 303

Viewing the Availability Information 245

Setting up the Paging Parameters 305 Viewing the Current Paging Setup 306 Adding/Updating a Modem 307 Modifying the QPage Parameters 309 Adding/Updating a Paging Service 310 Adding/Updating a Pager 312 Example Configuration 314 Deleting a Pager 315 Deleting a Paging Service 316 Deleting a Modem 318 Setting Up the Availability Monitor 319 Viewing the Current Availability Monitoring Setup 320 Configuring the Availability Monitor 321 Setting Up the Availability Monitor E-mail Lists 323 Setting Up System Monitoring 326 Viewing the Current System Monitoring Setup 326 Adding a Service to Monitor 327 Updating/Deleting Services 328 Specifying the Services to Monitor on a Host System 329 Setting Up Performance Monitoring 331 Viewing the Current Performance Monitoring Setup 331 Configuring the Performance Monitor 332 9. Using Embedded Support Partner in System Group Manager Mode to View Information about the Systems 335 Viewing the Hardware Configuration for a Specific Date 335 Viewing the Software Configuration for a Specific Date 338 Viewing the System Changes between a Range of Dates 341 Viewing the Part Changes Information 346 Viewing the Events that Have Been Registered 349 Using the All Group System Events Option 350 Using the Specific System Event Option 353

System Events by Class Option 357

Contents

Viewing Information about the Actions Taken 361 Using the All Actions Taken Option 362 Using the Actions Taken for a Specific Event Option 365 Viewing the Diagnostic Results 369 Viewing the Availability Information 372 Using the Site Level Overall Availability Summary Option 374 Using the Availability Summary List for Individual Hosts Option 383 10. Sending Notifications 391 About the espnotify Tool 391 Command Line Options for Displaying a Message on the Console 391 Displaying a Message on an X Window System Display 392 Sending an E-mail Message 394 Sending a Page 395 Invoking espnotify from Embedded Support Partner 396 Example 1: Creating an Action to Send an E-mail 396 Example 2: Creating an Action to Send a Page 399 11. Logging Events from Applications and Scripts 403 Event Classification and Sequence Numbers 403 Using the eventmon API 404 Using the esplogger Tool 407 Example 1 408 Example 2 408

List of Figures

Figure 1-1	Example of the Graphical Interface 4
Figure 1-2	Example of the ACSII Interface 5
Figure 2-1	Embedded Support Partner Opening Page (ASCII Interface) 9
Figure 2-2	Toolchest Menu 10
Figure 2-3	Icon Catalog 11
Figure 2-4	Embedded Support Partner Opening Page (Graphical Interface) 12
Figure 2-5	Connecting to Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode on the Local System (Graphical Interface) 13
Figure 2-6	Connecting to Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode on a Remote System (Graphical Interface) 14
Figure 2-7	Single System Manager Mode Graphical Interface 15
Figure 2-8	Embedded Support Partner Opening Page (Graphical Interface) 16
Figure 2-9	Connecting to Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode on the Local System (Graphical Interface) 17
Figure 2-10	Connecting to Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode on a Remote System (Graphical Interface) 18
Figure 2-11	Single System Manager Mode Graphical Interface 19
Figure 2-12	Archiving a Database in Single System Manager Mode (Graphical Interface) 22
Figure 2-13	Archiving a Database in Single System Manager Mode (ASCII Interface) 23
Figure 3-1	Web Server Configuration Page (ASCII Interface) 26
Figure 3-2	Web Server Access Permissions Page (ASCII Interface) 27
Figure 3-3	Web Server User Name and Password Page (ASCII Interface) 28
Figure 3-4	Global Configuration Parameters Page (ASCII Interface) 32
Figure 3-4 Figure 3-5	Global Configuration Parameters Page (ASCII Interface)32View Current Event Setup Options (ASCII Interface)34
Figure 3-4 Figure 3-5 Figure 3-6	Global Configuration Parameters Page (ASCII Interface)32View Current Event Setup Options (ASCII Interface)34Using the View Event Option (Page 1 [ASCII Interface])35

Figure 3-8	Using the View Event Option (Page 3 [ASCII Interface]) 36
Figure 3-9	Using the View Event Option (Page 4 [ASCII Interface]) 37
Figure 3-10	Using the View Event List Option (Page 1 [ASCII Interface]) 38
Figure 3-11	Using the View Event List Option (Page 2 [ASCII Interface]) 39
Figure 3-12	Using the View Classes Option (Page 1 [ASCII Interface]) 40
Figure 3-13	Using the View Classes Option (Page 2 [ASCII Interface]) 41
Figure 3-14	Updating an Event (Page 1 [ASCII Interface]) 42
Figure 3-15	Updating an Event (Page 2 [ASCII Interface]) 43
Figure 3-16	Updating an Event (Page 3 [ASCII Interface]) 44
Figure 3-17	Adding an Event (Page 1 [ASCII Interface]) 46
Figure 3-18	Adding an Event (Page 3 [ASCII Interface]) 47
Figure 3-19	Deleting an Event (ASCII Interface) 49
Figure 3-20	Using the Show All Custom Events Link to Delete an Event (Page 1 [ASCII Interface]) 50
Figure 3-21	Using the Show All Custom Events Link to Delete an Event (Page 2 [ASCII Interface]) 51
Figure 3-22	Using the Show All Custom Events Link to Delete an Event (Page 3 [ASCII Interface]) 51
Figure 3-23	Using the Show Custom Events for Selected Class Link to Delete an Event (Page 1 [ASCII Interface]) 52
Figure 3-24	Using the Show Custom Events for Selected Class Link to Delete an Event (Page 2 [ASCII Interface]) 53
Figure 3-25	Using the Show Custom Events for Selected Class Link to Delete an Event (Page 3 [ASCII Interface]) 54
Figure 3-26	Using the Show Custom Events for Selected Class Link to Delete an Event (Page 4 [ASCII Interface]) 54
Figure 3-27	Options for Viewing the Current Action Setup (ASCII Interface) 55
Figure 3-28	Using the View Action Setup Option (Page 1 [ASCII Interface]) 56
Figure 3-29	Using the View Action Setup Option (Page 2 [ASCII Interface]) 57
Figure 3-30	Using the View Action Setup Option (Page 3 [ASCII Interface]) 58
Figure 3-31	Using the View Available Actions List Option (Page 1 [ASCII Interface]) 59
Figure 3-32	Using the View Available Actions List Option (Page 2 [ASCII Interface]) 60
Figure 3-33	Updating an Action (Page 1 [ASCII Interface]) 61

Figure 3-34	Updating an Action (Page 2 [ASCII Interface]) 61
Figure 3-35	Adding an Action (Page 1 [ASCII Interface]) 63
Figure 3-36	Adding an Action (Page 2 [ASCII Interface]) 64
Figure 3-37	Deleting an Action (Page 1 [ASCII Interface]) 66
Figure 3-38	Deleting an Action (Page 2 [ASCII Interface]) 67
Figure 3-39	Confirmation Message for Proceeding with Deletion of an Action (ASCII Interface) 67
Figure 3-40	Process for Sending a Page 68
Figure 3-41	Viewing the Current Paging Setup (ASCII Interface) 69
Figure 3-42	Setting Up a Modem (Page 1 [ASCII Interface]) 70
Figure 3-43	Setting Up a Modem (Page 2 [ASCII Interface]) 71
Figure 3-44	Modifying the QPage Parameters (Page 1 [ASCII Interface]) 72
Figure 3-45	Modifying the QPage Parameters (Page 2 [ASCII Interface]) 72
Figure 3-46	Adding/Updating a Paging Service (Page 1 [ASCII Interface]) 73
Figure 3-47	Adding/Updating a Paging Service (Page 2 [ASCII Interface]) 75
Figure 3-48	Setting Up a Pager (Page 1 [ASCII Interface]) 76
Figure 3-49	Setting Up a Pager (Page 2 [ASCII Interface]) 77
Figure 3-50	Example Paging Configuration (ASCII Interface) 78
Figure 3-51	Deleting a Pager (Page 1 [ASCII Interface]) 79
Figure 3-52	Deleting a Pager (Page 2 [ASCII Interface]) 80
Figure 3-53	Deleting a Paging Service (Page 1 [ASCII Interface]) 81
Figure 3-54	Deleting a Paging Service (Page 2 [ASCII Interface]) 82
Figure 3-55	Deleting a Modem (Page 1 [ASCII Interface]) 83
Figure 3-56	Deleting a Modem (Page 2 [ASCII Interface]) 83
Figure 3-57	Viewing the Current Availability Monitor Setup Page (ASCII Interface) 85
Figure 3-58	Configuring the Availability Monitor (ASCII Interface) 86
Figure 3-59	Setting Up the Availability Monitor E-mail Lists (ASCII Interface) 89
Figure 3-60	Viewing the Current Performance Monitoring Setup (ASCII Interface) 91
Figure 3-61	Configuring the Performance Monitor (ASCII Interface) 92
Figure 4-1	Viewing the Hardware System Information (Page 1 [ASCII Interface]) 94

Figure 4-2	Viewing the Hardware System Information (Page 2 [ASCII Interface]) 95
Figure 4-3	Viewing the Software System Information (Page 1 [ASCII Interface]) 97
Figure 4-4	Viewing the Software System Information (Page 2 [ASCII Interface]) 98
Figure 4-5	Viewing the System Changes Information (Page 1 [ASCII Interface]) 100
Figure 4-6	Viewing the System Changes Information (Page 2 [ASCII Interface]) 101
Figure 4-7	Viewing the Part Changes Information (Page 1 [ASCII Interface]) 105
Figure 4-8	Viewing the Part Changes Information (Page 2 [ASCII Interface]) 106
Figure 4-9	Options for Viewing Events that Have Been Registered (ASCII Interface) 107
Figure 4-10	Using the All System Events Option (Page 1 [ASCII Interface]) 108
Figure 4-11	Using the All System Events Option (Page 2 [ASCII Interface]) 109
Figure 4-12	Using the Specific System Event Option (Page 1 [ASCII Interface]) 111
Figure 4-13	Using the Specific System Event Option (Page 2 [ASCII Interface]) 112
Figure 4-14	Using the Specific System Event Option (Page 3 [ASCII Interface]) 112
Figure 4-15	Using the Specific System Event Option (Page 4 [ASCII Interface]) 113
Figure 4-16	Using the System Events by Class Option (Page 1 [ASCII Interface]) 115
Figure 4-17	Using the System Events by Class Option (Page 2 [ASCII Interface]) 116
Figure 4-18	Using the System Events by Class Option (Page 3 [ASCII Interface]) 117
Figure 4-19	Options for Viewing the Actions that Have Been Taken (ASCII Interface) 119
Figure 4-20	Using the All Actions Taken Option (Page 1 [ASCII Interface]) 120
Figure 4-21	Using the All Actions Taken Option (Page 2 [ASCII Interface]) 121
Figure 4-22	Using the Actions Taken for a Specific Event Option (Page 1 [ASCII Interface]) 123
Figure 4-23	Using the Actions Taken for a Specific Event Option (Page 2 [ASCII Interface]) 124
Figure 4-24	Using the Actions Taken for a Specific Event Option (Page 3 [ASCII Interface]) 124
Figure 4-25	Using the Actions Taken for a Specific Event Option (Page 4 [ASCII Interface]) 125
Figure 4-26	Viewing the Diagnostic Results (Page 1 [ASCII Interface]) 127
Figure 4-27	Viewing the Diagnostic Results (Page 2 [ASCII Interface]) 128

Figure 4-28	Options for Viewing System Availability Information (ASCII Interface) 130
Figure 4-29	Using the Overall Availability Option (Page 1 [ASCII Interface]) 131
Figure 4-30	Using the Overall Availability Option (Page 2 [ASCII Interface]) 132
Figure 4-31	Using the Overall Availability Option (Page 3 [ASCII Interface]) 134
Figure 4-32	Using the Overall Availability Option (Page 4 [ASCII Interface]) 136
Figure 4-33	Using the Availability Events List Option (Page 1 [ASCII Interface]) 137
Figure 4-34	Using the Availability Events List Option (Page 2 [ASCII Interface]) 138
Figure 4-35	Using the Availability Events List Option (Page 3 [ASCII Interface]) 140
Figure 5-1	Web Server Configuration Page (Graphical Interface) 142
Figure 5-2	Web Server Access Permissions Page (Graphical Interface) 142
Figure 5-3	Web Server User Name and Password Page (Graphical Interface) 143
Figure 5-4	Global Configuration Parameters Page (Graphical Interface) 147
Figure 5-5	View Current Event Setup Options (Graphical Interface) 149
Figure 5-6	Using the View Event Option (Page 1 [Graphical Interface]) 150
Figure 5-7	Using the View Event Option (Page 2 [Graphical Interface]) 151
Figure 5-8	Using the View Event Option (Page 3 [Graphical Interface]) 151
Figure 5-9	Using the View Event Option (Page 4 [Graphical Interface]) 152
Figure 5-10	Using the View Event List Option (Page 1 [Graphical Interface]) 153
Figure 5-11	Using the View Event List Option (Page 2 [Graphical Interface]) 154
Figure 5-12	Using the View Classes Option (Page 1 [Graphical Interface]) 155
Figure 5-13	Using the View Classes Option (Page 2 [Graphical Interface]) 156
Figure 5-14	Updating an Event (Page 1 [Graphical Interface]) 157
Figure 5-15	Updating an Event (Page 2 [Graphical Interface]) 158
Figure 5-16	Updating an Event (Page 3 [Graphical Interface]) 159
Figure 5-17	Updating an Event/Action Assignment by Choosing an Action (Page 1 [Graphical Interface]) 161
Figure 5-18	Updating an Event/Action Assignment by Choosing an Action (Page 2 [Graphical Interface]) 162
Figure 5-19	Updating an Event/Action Assignment by Choosing an Event (Page 1 [Graphical Interface]) 163
Figure 5-20	Updating an Event/Action Assignment by Choosing an Event (Page 2 [Graphical Interface]) 164

Figure 5-21	Updating an Event/Action Assignment by Choosing an Event (Page 3, Graphical Interface) 165
Figure 5-22	Adding an Event (Page 1 [Graphical Interface]) 166
Figure 5-23	Adding an Event (Page 2 [Graphical Interface) 167
Figure 5-24	Adding an Event (Page 3 [Graphical Interface]) 168
Figure 5-25	Deleting an Event (Page 1 [Graphical Interface]) 169
Figure 5-26	Deleting an Event (Page 2 [Graphical Interface]) 170
Figure 5-27	Deleting an Event (Page 3 [Graphical Interface]) 170
Figure 5-28	Deleting an Event Class (Page 1 [Graphical Interface]) 171
Figure 5-29	Deleting an Event Class (Page 2 [Graphical Interface]) 171
Figure 5-30	Options for Viewing the Current Action Setup (Graphical Interface) 172
Figure 5-31	Using the View Action Setup Option (Page 1 [Graphical Interface]) 173
Figure 5-32	Using the View Action Setup Option (Page 2 [Graphical Interface]) 174
Figure 5-33	Using the View Action Setup Option (Page 3 [Graphical Interface]) 174
Figure 5-34	Using the View Available Actions List Option (Page 1 [Graphical Interface]) 175
Figure 5-35	Using the View Available Actions List Option (Page 2 [Graphical Interface]) 175
Figure 5-36	Updating an Action (Page 1 [Graphical Interface]) 176
Figure 5-37	Updating an Action (Page 2 [Graphical Interface]) 177
Figure 5-38	Updating an Action (Page 3 [Graphical Interface]) 178
Figure 5-39	Adding an Action (Page 1 [Graphical Interface]) 179
Figure 5-40	Adding an Action (Page 2 [Graphical Interface]) 181
Figure 5-41	Deleting an Action (Page 1 [Graphical Interface]) 182
Figure 5-42	Deleting an Action (Page 2 [Graphical Interface]) 183
Figure 5-43	Confirmation Message for Proceeding with Deletion of an Action (Graphical Interface) 183
Figure 5-44	Confirmation Message for Canceling Deletion of an Action (Graphical Interface) 183
Figure 5-45	Process for Sending a Page 184
Figure 5-46	Viewing the Current Paging Setup (Graphical Interface) 185
Figure 5-47	Setting Up a Modem (Page 1 [Graphical Interface]) 187
Figure 5-48	Setting Up a Modem (Page 2 [Graphical Interface]) 187

Figure 5-49	Modifying the QPage Parameters (Page 1 [Graphical Interface]) 188
Figure 5-50	Modifying the QPage Parameters (Page 2 [Graphical Interface]) 188
Figure 5-51	Adding/Updating a Paging Service (Page 1 [Graphical Interface]) 189
Figure 5-52	Adding/Updating a Paging Service (Page 2 [Graphical Interface]) 191
Figure 5-53	Setting Up a Pager (Page 1 [Graphical Interface]) 192
Figure 5-54	Setting Up a Pager (Page 2 [Graphical Interface]) 192
Figure 5-55	Example Paging Configuration (Graphical Interface) 193
Figure 5-56	Deleting a Pager (Page 1 [Graphical Interface]) 194
Figure 5-57	Deleting a Pager (Page 2 [Graphical Interface]) 195
Figure 5-58	Deleting a Paging Service (Page 1 [Graphical Interface]) 196
Figure 5-59	Deleting a Paging Service (Page 2 [Graphical Interface]) 196
Figure 5-60	Deleting a Modem (Page 1 [Graphical Interface]) 197
Figure 5-61	Deleting a Modem (Page 2 [Graphical Interface]) 197
Figure 5-62	Viewing the Current Availability Monitor Setup Page (Graphical Interface) 199
Figure 5-63	Configuring the Availability Monitor (Graphical Interface) 200
Figure 5-64	Setting Up the Availability Monitor E-mail Lists (Graphical Interface) 204
Figure 5-65	Viewing the Current Performance Monitoring Setup (Graphical Interface) 206
Figure 5-66	Configuring the Performance Monitor (Graphical Interface) 207
Figure 6-1	Viewing the Hardware System Information (Page 1[Graphical Interface]) 210
Figure 6-2	Viewing the Hardware System Information (Page 2 [Graphical Interface]) 211
Figure 6-3	Hardware System Information (Page 2 with Rows Expanded [Graphical Interface]) 212
Figure 6-4	Viewing the Software System Information (Page 1 [Graphical Interface]) 213
Figure 6-5	Viewing the Software System Information (Page 2 [Graphical Interface]) 214
Figure 6-6	Viewing the System Changes Information (Page 1 [Graphical Interface]) 216
Figure 6-7	Viewing the System Changes Information (Page 2 [Graphical Interface]) 217

Figure 6-8	Viewing the Part Changes Information (Page 1 [Graphical Interface]) 221	
Figure 6-9	Viewing the Part Changes Information (Page 2 [Graphical Interface]) 222	
Figure 6-10	Options for Viewing Events that Have Been Registered (Graphical Interface) 223	
Figure 6-11	Using the All System Events Option (Page 1 [Graphical Interface])	224
Figure 6-12	Using the All System Events Option (Page 2 [Graphical Interface])	225
Figure 6-13	Using the Specific System Event Option (Page 1 [Graphical Interface]) 227	
Figure 6-14	Using the Specific System Event Option (Page 2 [Graphical Interface]) 228	
Figure 6-15	Using the Specific System Event Option (Page 3 [Graphical Interface]) 228	
Figure 6-16	Using the Specific System Event Option (Page 4 [Graphical Interface]) 229	
Figure 6-17	Using the System Events by Class Option (Page 1 [Graphical Interface]) 231	
Figure 6-18	Using the System Events by Class Option (Page 2 [Graphical Interface]) 232	
Figure 6-19	Using the System Events by Class Option (Page 3 [Graphical Interface]) 233	
Figure 6-20	Options for Viewing the Actions that Have Been Taken (Graphical Interface) 234	
Figure 6-21	Using the All Actions Taken Option (Page 1 [Graphical Interface])	235
Figure 6-22	Using the All Actions Taken Option (Page 2 [Graphical Interface])	236
Figure 6-23	Using the Actions Taken for a Specific Event Option (Page 1 [Graphical Interface]) 238	
Figure 6-24	Using the Actions Taken for a Specific Event Option (Page 2 [Graphical Interface]) 238	
Figure 6-25	Using the Actions Taken for a Specific Event Option (Page 3 [Graphical Interface]) 239	
Figure 6-26	Using the Actions Taken for a Specific Event Option (Page 4 [Graphical Interface]) 240	
Figure 6-27	Viewing the Diagnostic Results (Graphical Interface) 242	
Figure 6-28	Viewing the Diagnostic Results (Page 2 [Graphical Interface]) 243	

Figure 6-29	Options for Viewing System Availability Information (Graphical Interface) 245
Figure 6-30	Using the Overall Availability Option (Page 1 [Graphical Interface]) 246
Figure 6-31	Using the Overall Availability Option (Page 2 [Graphical Interface]) 247
Figure 6-32	Using the Overall Availability Option (Page 3 [Graphical Interface]) 249
Figure 6-33	Using the Overall Availability Option (Page 4 [Graphical Interface]) 251
Figure 6-34	Using the Availability Events List Option (Page 1 [Graphical Interface]) 252
Figure 6-35	Using the Availability Events List Option (Page 2 [Graphical Interface]) 253
Figure 6-36	Using the Availability Events List Option (Page 3 [Graphical Interface]) 254
Figure 7-1	Embedded Support Partner in System Group Manager Mode (Block Diagram) 256
Figure 7-2	Toolchest Menu 258
Figure 7-3	Icon Catalog 259
Figure 7-4	Embedded Support Partner Graphical Interface Opening Page 260
Figure 7-5	Connecting to System Group Manager Mode on the Local System 261
Figure 7-6	Connecting to System Group Manager Mode on a Remote System 262
Figure 7-7	System Group Manager Mode Interface 263
Figure 7-8	Embedded Support Partner Graphical Interface Opening Page 264
Figure 7-9	Connecting to System Group Manager Mode on the Local System 265
Figure 7-10	Connecting to System Group Manager Mode on a Remote System 266
Figure 7-11	System Group Manager Interface 267
Figure 7-12	Archiving a Database (Graphical Interface) 270
Figure 8-1	Web Server Configuration Page 272
Figure 8-2	Web Server Access Permissions Page 272
Figure 8-3	Web Server User Name and Password Page 273
Figure 8-4	Global Configuration Parameters Page 277
Figure 8-5	View Current Event Setup Options 279
Figure 8-6	Using the View Event List Option (Page 1) 280

Figure 8-7	Using the View Event List Option (Page 2) 281
Figure 8-8	Using the View Classes Option (Page 1) 282
Figure 8-9	Using the View Classes Option (Page 2) 283
Figure 8-10	Updating an Event (Page 2) 284
Figure 8-11	Updating an Event (Page 2) 285
Figure 8-12	Updating an Event (Page 3) 285
Figure 8-13	Updating an Event (Page 4) 286
Figure 8-14	Subscribing Events (Page 1) 288
Figure 8-15	Subscribing Events (Page 2) 289
Figure 8-16	Subscribing Events (Page 3) 290
Figure 8-17	Subscribing Events (Page 4) 290
Figure 8-18	Unsubscribing Events (Page 1) 291
Figure 8-19	Unsubscribing Events (Page 2) 292
Figure 8-20	Unsubscribing Events (Page 3) 293
Figure 8-21	Unsubscribing Events (Page 4) 293
Figure 8-22	Options for Viewing the Current Action Setup 294
Figure 8-23	Using the View Action Setup Option (Page 1) 295
Figure 8-24	Using the View Action Setup Option (Page 2) 296
Figure 8-25	Using the View Action Setup Option (Page 3) 296
Figure 8-26	Using the View Available Actions List Option (Page 1) 297
Figure 8-27	Using the View Available Actions List Option (Page 2) 297
Figure 8-28	Updating an Action (Page 1) 298
Figure 8-29	Updating an Action (Page 2) 299
Figure 8-30	Adding an Action (Page 1) 301
Figure 8-31	Adding an Action (Page 2) 302
Figure 8-32	Deleting an Action (Page 1) 303
Figure 8-33	Deleting an Event (Page 2) 304
Figure 8-34	Confirmation Message for Proceeding with Deletion of an Action 304
Figure 8-35	Confirmation Message for Canceling Deletion of an Action 304
Figure 8-36	Process for Sending a Page 305
Figure 8-37	Viewing the Current Paging Setup 306
Figure 8-38	Setting Up a Modem (Page 1) 308
Figure 8-39	Setting Up a Modem (Page 2) 308

Figure 8-40	Modifying the QPage Parameters (Page 1) 309
Figure 8-41	Modifying the QPage Parameters (Page 2) 309
Figure 8-42	Adding/Updating a Paging Service (Page 1) 310
Figure 8-43	Adding/Updating a Paging Service (Page 2) 312
Figure 8-44	Setting Up a Pager (Page 1) 313
Figure 8-45	Setting Up a Pager (Page 2) 313
Figure 8-46	Example Paging Configuration 314
Figure 8-47	Deleting a Pager (Page 1) 315
Figure 8-48	Deleting a Pager (Page 2) 316
Figure 8-49	Deleting a Paging Service (Page 1) 317
Figure 8-50	Deleting a Paging Service (Page 2) 317
Figure 8-51	Deleting a Modem (Page 1) 318
Figure 8-52	Deleting a Modem (Page 2) 319
Figure 8-53	Viewing the Current Availability Monitor Setup Page 320
Figure 8-54	Configuring the Availability Monitor 321
Figure 8-55	Setting Up the Availability Monitor E-mail Lists 324
Figure 8-56	Viewing the Current System Monitoring Setup 327
Figure 8-57	Adding a Service to Monitor 328
Figure 8-58	Updating/Deleting a Service 329
Figure 8-59	Specifying the Services to Monitor on a Host System 330
Figure 8-60	Viewing the Current Performance Monitoring Setup 332
Figure 8-61	Configuring the Performance Monitor 333
Figure 9-1	Viewing the Hardware System Information (Page 1) 336
Figure 9-2	Viewing the Hardware System Information (Page 2) 337
Figure 9-3	Hardware System Information (Page 2 with Rows Expanded) 338
Figure 9-4	Viewing the Software System Information (Page 1) 339
Figure 9-5	Viewing the Software System Information (Page 2) 340
Figure 9-6	Viewing the System Changes Information (Page 1) 342
Figure 9-7	Viewing the System Changes Information (Page 2) 343
Figure 9-8	Viewing the Part Changes Information (Page 1) 347
Figure 9-9	Viewing the Part Changes Information (Page 2) 348
Figure 9-10	Options for Viewing Events that Have Been Registered 349
Figure 9-11	Using the All System Events Option (Page 1) 351

Figure 9-12	Using the All System Events Option (Page 2) 352
Figure 9-13	Using the Specific System Event Option (Page 1) 354
Figure 9-14	Using the Specific System Event Option (Page 2) 355
Figure 9-15	Using the Specific System Event Option (Page 3) 355
Figure 9-16	Using the Specific System Event Option (Page 4) 356
Figure 9-17	Using the System Events by Class Option (Page 1) 358
Figure 9-18	Using the System Events by Class Option (Page 2) 359
Figure 9-19	Using the System Events by Class Option (Page 3) 360
Figure 9-20	Options for Viewing the Actions that Have Been Taken 362
Figure 9-21	Using the All Actions Taken Option (Page 1) 363
Figure 9-22	Using the All Actions Taken Option (Page 2) 364
Figure 9-23	Using the Actions Taken for a Specific Event Option (Page 1) 366
Figure 9-24	Using the Actions Taken for a Specific Event Option (Page 2) 367
Figure 9-25	Using the Actions Taken for a Specific Event Option (Page 3) 367
Figure 9-26	Using the Actions Taken for a Specific Event Option (Page 4) 368
Figure 9-27	Viewing the Diagnostic Results (Graphical Interface) 370
Figure 9-28	Viewing the Diagnostic Results (Page 2 [Graphical Interface]) 371
Figure 9-29	Options for Viewing System Availability Information 373
Figure 9-30	Using the Site Level Overall Availability Summary Option (Page 1) 375
Figure 9-31	Using the Site Level Overall Availability Summary Option (Page 2) 376
Figure 9-32	Using the Site Level Overall Availability Summary Option (Page 3) 378
Figure 9-33	Using the Site Level Overall Availability Summary Option (Page 4) 379
Figure 9-34	Using the Site Level Overall Availability Summary Option (Page 5) 381
Figure 9-35	Using the Site Level Overall Availability Summary Option (Page 6) 383
Figure 9-36	Using the Availability Summary List for Individual Hosts Option (Page 1) 384
Figure 9-37	Using the Availability Summary List for Individual Hosts Option (Page 2) 385
Figure 9-38	Using the Availability Summary List for Individual Hosts Option (Page 3) 386
Figure 9-39	Using the Availability Summary List for Individual Hosts Option (Page 4) 388
Figure 9-40	Using the Availability Summary List for Individual Hosts Option (Page 5) 389

Figure 10-1	Displaying a Message in the Console Window 392
Figure 10-2	Displaying a Message on an X Window System Display 393
Figure 10-3	Sending an E-mail Message 395
Figure 10-4	Example Action Parameters for Sending an E-mail Message 398
Figure 10-5	Example Confirmation Message for Sending an E-mail Message Action 398
Figure 10-6	Paging Configuration for Sending a Message to a Pager Example 399
Figure 10-7	Example Action Parameters for Sending a Message to a Pager 401
Figure 10-8	Example Confirmation Message for Sending a Message to a Pager Action 401

List of Tables

Table 3-1	Event List Elements 39
Table 3-2	Event Class List Elements 41
Table 3-3	Parameters for Updating an Event 44
Table 3-4	Event Parameters for Adding a New Event 47
Table 3-5	Action List Elements 60
Table 3-6	Parameters for Updating an Action 62
Table 3-7	Parameters for Adding a New Action 63
Table 3-8	Parameters for Adding/Updating a Paging Service 74
Table 3-9	Availability Monitor Parameters 87
Table 3-10	E-mail Address Parameters for Availability Reports 89
Table 3-11	E-mail Address Parameters for Diagnostic Reports 90
Table 4-1	Hardware Configuration Table Contents 96
Table 4-2	Software Configuration Table Contents 98
Table 4-3	Software Changes Table Contents 102
Table 4-4	Hardware Changes Table Contents 102
Table 4-5	System Changes Table Contents 103
Table 4-6	Part Changes Table Contents 106
Table 4-7	Table Contents for the All System Events Option 110
Table 4-8	Table Contents for the Specific System Event Option 113
Table 4-9	Table Contents for the System Events by Class Option118
Table 4-10	Table Contents for the All Actions Taken Option 122
Table 4-11	Table Contents for the Actions Taken for a Specific Event Option126
Table 4-12	Diagnostic Results Table Contents 129
Table 4-13	Overall Availability Information 133
Table 4-14	Availability Event Information for the Overall Availability Option 135
Table 4-15	Availability Event Information for the Availability Events List Option 139

Table 5-1	Event List Elements 154
Table 5-2	Event Class List Elements 156
Table 5-3	Parameters for Updating an Event 159
Table 5-4	Event Parameters for Adding a New Event 168
Table 5-5	Action List Elements 176
Table 5-6	Parameters for Updating an Action 178
Table 5-7	Parameters for Adding a New Action 180
Table 5-8	Parameters for Adding/Updating a Paging Service 190
Table 5-9	Availability Monitor Parameters 201
Table 5-10	E-mail Address Parameters for Availability Reports 204
Table 5-11	E-mail Address Parameters for Diagnostic Reports 205
Table 6-1	Hardware Configuration Table Contents 211
Table 6-2	Software Configuration Table Contents 214
Table 6-3	Software Changes Table Contents 218
Table 6-4	Hardware Changes Table Contents 218
Table 6-5	System Changes Table Contents 219
Table 6-6	Part Changes Table Contents 222
Table 6-7	Table Contents for the All System Events Option226
Table 6-8	Table Contents for the Specific System Event Option229
Table 6-9	Table Contents for the System Events by Class Option233
Table 6-10	Table Contents for the All Actions Taken Option236
Table 6-11	Table Contents for the Actions Taken for a Specific Event Option240
Table 6-12	Diagnostic Results Table Contents 243
Table 6-13	Overall Availability Information 248
Table 6-14	Availability Event Information for the Overall Availability Option 250
Table 6-15	Availability Event Information for the Availability Events List Option 254
Table 8-1	Event List Elements 281
Table 8-2	Event Class List Elements 283
Table 8-3	Parameters for Updating an Event 287
Table 8-4	Action List Elements 298
Table 8-5	Parameters for Updating an Action 299
Table 8-6	Parameters for Adding a New Action 301

xxviii

Table 8-7	Parameters for Adding/Updating a Paging Service 311
Table 8-8	Availability Monitor Parameters 322
Table 8-9	E-mail Address Parameters for Availability Reports 325
Table 8-10	E-mail Address Parameters for Diagnostic Reports 325
Table 8-11	Default System Monitoring Services 330
Table 9-1	Hardware Configuration Table Contents 337
Table 9-2	Software Configuration Table Contents 341
Table 9-3	Software Changes Table Contents 343
Table 9-4	Hardware Changes Table Contents 344
Table 9-5	System Changes Table Contents 344
Table 9-6	Part Changes Table Contents 348
Table 9-7	Table Contents for the All System Events Option352
Table 9-8	Table Contents for the Specific System Event Option356
Table 9-9	Table Contents for the System Events by Class Option360
Table 9-10	Table Contents for the All Actions Taken Option 364
Table 9-11	Table Contents for the Actions Taken for a Specific Event Option 368
Table 9-12	Diagnostic Results Table Contents 371
Table 9-13	Site Level Overall Availability Summary Information 377
Table 9-14	Availability Summary Information for All Hosts 378
Table 9-15	Overall Availability Information 380
Table 9-16	Event Summary Information 382
Table 9-17	Availability Summary Information for All Hosts 385
Table 9-18	Overall Availability Information 387
Table 9-19	Availability Event Information for the a Specific System 389
Table 10-1	Example Action Parameters for Sending an E-mail Notification 397
Table 10-2	Example Action Parameters for Sending a Message to a Pager 400

About this Guide

The *Embedded Support Partner User Guide* provides information about using the Embedded Support Partner software suite.

It includes the following information:

- Part 1: Introduction
 - Chapter 1, "Introduction," provides a brief introduction to Embedded Support Partner and the interfaces that you can use to control it.
- Part 2: Using the Single System Manager
 - Chapter 2, "Single System Manager Mode," describes Single System Manager mode, how to start Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager mode, and how to create database archives and manage them from Single System Manager mode.
 - Chapter 3, "Using the ASCII Interface to Set Up Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode," describes how to use the ASCII interface to set up Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager mode.
 - Chapter 4, "Using the ASCII Interface to View Information about a System in Single System Manager Mode," describes how to use the ASCII interface to view information from the system that is running Embedded Support Partner.
 - Chapter 5, "Using the Graphical Interface to Set Up Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode," describes how to use the graphical interface to set up Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager mode.
 - Chapter 6, "Using the Graphical Interface to View Information about a System in Single System Manager Mode," describes how to use the graphical interface to view information from the system that is running Embedded Support Partner.

- Part 3: Using the System Group Manager
 - Chapter 7, "System Group Manager Mode," describes System Group Manager mode, how to start Embedded Support Partner in System Group Manager mode and how to create database archives, and manage them from System Group Manager mode.
 - Chapter 8, "Setting Up Embedded Support Partner in System Group Manager Mode," describes how to set up Embedded Support Partner in System Group Manager mode.
 - Chapter 9, "Using Embedded Support Partner in System Group Manager Mode to View Information about the Systems," describes how to view information about the systems that Embedded Support Partner is monitoring in System Group Manager mode.
- Part 4: Additional Information
 - Chapter 10, "Sending Notifications," describes the espnotify tool that you can
 use to send notifications and how to set up Embedded Support Partner actions
 that use the espnotify tool.
 - Chapter 11, "Logging Events from Applications and Scripts," describes how to send events from your local applications and scripts to Embedded Support Partner.

This document corresponds to the version of Embedded Support Partner that is included in the IRIX 6.5.6 operating system release. The document is written for SGI customers.

Conventions Used in this Document

This document uses the following conventions:

Italics	Document and CD titles
Courier	Program names, file names, and commands
Courier Italics	
	Variables within command descriptions

Chapter 1

Introduction

About Embedded Support Partner

Embedded Support Partner is a suite of software applications that monitors events on one or more systems and performs actions in response to any events that it detects. It runs in two modes: Single System Manager mode and System Group Manager mode.

What are Events?

Events are identifiable conditions on a system. Examples of events include:

- Configuration events
 - Installing a hardware component
 - Installing a software application
- Availability events
 - System power cycles
 - System panics
- Performance events
 - High aggregate system call rates
 - High average processor utilization
- System-level events
 - SCSI controller initialization failure
 - SCSI bus reset

Embedded Support Partner monitors hundreds of default events. You may also configure Embedded Support Partner to monitor custom events that are specific to your site.

What are Actions?

Actions are responses to events. Examples of actions include:

- Sending a notification to the system administrator
- Forwarding events to a System Group Manager

Embedded Support Partner includes one default action (Notify sysadmin on console). You can configure Embedded Support Partner to perform additional custom actions.

What are Notifications?

Notifications are messages that Embedded Support Partner sends through actions in response to events. Examples of notifications are:

- Sending an e-mail message
- Sending an alphanumeric page
- Displaying a popup window with error interpretation

About the Embedded Support Partner User Interfaces

You interact with Embedded Support Partner by using a Web browser to connect to the Configurable Web Server that is included in the Embedded Support Partner suite. You can access Embedded Support Partner through a graphical interface or an ASCII interface (in Single System Manager mode only).

The graphical interface is split into three frames:

- The top frame shows the title banner for Embedded Support Partner and the tabs to select the category that you want to use (Overview, System Information, Setup, and Archive Database). The title banner indicates whether you are running Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager mode (with the single system label) or System Group Manager mode (with the group of systems label).
- The left frame contains the command buttons that you can use. (This frame is available for the System Information and Setup categories.)
- The right frame contains information specific to the last command that you selected from the left frame. You will use this frame to select specific options that are related to the command and view output from the command.

Figure 1-1 shows an example of the graphical interface.






Figure 1-2 shows an example of the ASCII interface.

Figure 1-2Example of the ACSII Interface

Required Software

You need to install the IRIX operating system version 6.5.5 or a later release to use Embedded Support Partner. All of the software that you need to start using Embedded Support Partner is installed by default.

Related Information

For more information about Embedded Support Partner and its components, refer to the *Embedded Support Partner Overview*, publication number 007-4064-002.

Chapter 2

Single System Manager Mode

Single System Manager mode enables you to configure all Embedded Support Partner parameters and view information collected from a single system. Use it to perform the following activities on a single system:

- Set up Embedded Support Partner, including the following parameters:
 - Global parameters
 - Event parameters
 - Action parameters
 - Notification parameters
 - Availability monitoring parameters
 - Performance monitoring parameters
- View the following information about the system:
 - The hardware that is installed on the system at a specific date and time
 - The software that is installed on the system at a specific date and time
 - Any system changes that occurred within a specified time period
 - Any system events that have occurred
 - Any system actions that have been taken
 - System availability information
- Archive a database to conserve disk space and delete database archives that you no longer need

Starting Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode

You can use Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager mode with either an ASCII interface or a graphical interface. This section describes how to start Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager mode with each type of interface.

Note: The ASCII interface is provided for systems that do not have graphics capability. If your system has graphics hardware, use the graphical interface.

Using an ASCII Interface

Perform the following procedure to start Embedded Support Partner with an ASCII interface in Single System Manager mode:

- 1. Set the width of your terminal window to a minimum of 80 characters.
- 2. Enter launchESPartner -1 to start Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager mode with an ASCII interface on the local host.

Note: If you want to access a remote system, use the -host command line option. (For example, enter launchESPartner -l -host euphoria.csd.sgi.com to start Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager mode on the remote system named euphoria.csd.sgi.com.)

Lynx displays the Embedded Support Partner ASCII interface. (Refer to Figure 2-1.)



Figure 2-1 Embedded Support Partner Opening Page (ASCII Interface)

Use this interface to:

- Set up Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager mode (Refer to Chapter 3, "Using the ASCII Interface to Set Up Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode.")
- View information from the system (Refer to Chapter 4, "Using the ASCII Interface to View Information about a System in Single System Manager Mode.")

Using a Graphical Interface

You can start Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager mode with a graphical interface two ways:

- By using the Embedded_Support_Partner icon
- By using the launchESPartner command

Using the Embedded_Support_Partner Icon

Perform the following procedure to start the Embedded Support Partner graphical interface in Single System Manager mode with the Embedded_Support_Partner icon:

1. Choose Find -> Support Tools in the Toolchest menu. (Refer to Figure 2-2.)



Figure 2-2 Toolchest Menu

The Icon Catalog application opens to the SupportTools category. (Refer to Figure 2-3.)



Figure 2-3 Icon Catalog

2. Double-click on the Embedded_Support_Partner icon.

Netscape displays the Embedded Support Partner opening page. (Refer to Figure 2-4.)



 Figure 2-4
 Embedded Support Partner Opening Page (Graphical Interface)

3. Choose single system for the Select the type of system manager option.

- 4. Specify the system that you want to access:
 - Click on the Local System check box to connect to the local host (the system on which you started Embedded Support Partner). (Refer to Figure 2-5)

📥 Netsa	ape: S	GI Embe	edded Sup	port Part	ner – ve	er.1.0			•
Eile Edit	t <u>V</u> iev	v <u>G</u> o	<u>C</u> ommunic	ator					<u>H</u> elp
1 di -	<u>ک</u>	3	俭	e	Þ	4	í.	3	soi
Back F	orward	Reload	Home	Search	Guide	Print	Security	Stop	~6,
🛛 🖋 🖌 Boo	okmark	is 🦑 Lo	cation: h	ttp://	locall	nost:555	55/index	.html	Ŧ
Em	nbec	ldec	l Supp	oort	Par	tner			sgi™
			_			_	_	_	
		Sel	ect the type (of system i	manager:	Single S	/stem 🛥]	
		Sel	ect which sy:	stem you'c	l like to co	innect to:			
		Loc	al System:		۲	localhost			
		Re	mote System		$\langle \! \! \! \! \! \! \! \! \! \! \! \! \! \! \! \! \! \! \!$				
						Accept]		

Figure 2-5Connecting to Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode on the
Local System (Graphical Interface)

• Click on the Remote System check box to connect to a remote system. Enter the name of the system or IP address of the system in the field. (Refer to Figure 2-6.)

Netscape: SGI Embedded Support Partner – ver.1.0	•
File Edit View Go Communicator	<u>H</u> elp
	sơi
Back Forward Reload Home Search Guide Print Security Stop	~6`
🕊 Bookmarks 🖑 Location: http://localhost:5555/index.html	Ŧ
Embaddad Support Dartaan	รด์เ™
	၁ဠၬ
Select the time of quetern menoger	
Select which system you'd like to connect to:	
l ocal System 🖉 localhost	
Domate Sustam	
Accept	

Figure 2-6 Connecting to Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode on a Remote System (Graphical Interface)

5. Click on Accept.

The Embedded Support Partner graphical interface appears in Single System Manager mode. (Refer to Figure 2-7.) Use this interface to:

- Set up Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager mode (Refer to Chapter 5, "Using the Graphical Interface to Set Up Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode.")
- View information from the system (Refer to Chapter 6, "Using the Graphical Interface to View Information about a System in Single System Manager Mode.")

Netscape: SGI Embedded Support Partner: SEM - ver.1.0	•
File Edit View Go Communicator	<u>H</u> elp
a and a second	sgi
Bookmarks & Location: http://localhost:5555/index_sem.html	v
Embedded Support Partner	sgi™
Overview System Information Setup Archive Database	l.
single system	
Overview	
This session is connected to the Single System Manager that is running on <i>lobos.csd.sgi.com</i> .	
The Single System Manager controls the Embedded Support Partner for one system. It enables you to c parameters and view information collected from the system. Use the Single System Manager to perform the following functions on <i>lobos.csd.sgi.com</i> :	onfigure all
 Set up the SGI Embedded Support Partner software, including the following parameters: 	
 Global parameters Event parameters 	
Action parameters Notification parameters	
Availability monitoring parameters	
 View the following information about the system: 	
 The hardware that is installed on the system at a specific date and time The software that is installed on the system at a specific date and time 	
 Any system changes that occurred within a specified time period 	
 Any system events that have occurred Any system actions that have been taken 	
 System availability information Arabina database to a service and delate database available to a service that you no longer needs 	A
Anchive a database to conserve disk space and delete database archives that you no longer nee	u
100%	. d¤ 🖬 🖋

Figure 2-7Single System Manager Mode Graphical Interface

Using the launchESPartner Command

Perform the following procedure to start the Embedded Support Partner graphical interface in Single System Manager mode with the launchESPartner command:

1. Enter the launchESPartner command.

Netscape displays the Embedded Support Partner opening page. (Refer to Figure 2-8.)

Netscape: SGI	Embedded Support Partner – ver.1.0	•
<u>File Edit V</u> iew	Go <u>C</u> ommunicator	<u>H</u> elp
	3 4 2 12 3 6 3	søi
Back Forward Re	load Home Search Guide Print Security Stop	-0-
📗 🦋 Bookmarks 🍳	Location: http://localhost:5555/index.html	Ŧ
Embedd	ed Support Partner	sgi™
	Select the type of system manager: Single System 😑	
	Select which system you'd like to connect to:	
	Local System 🔇 localhost	
	Remote System 4	
	Accept	



2. Choose single system for the Select the type of system manager option.

- 3. Specify the system that you want to access:
 - Click on the Local System check box to connect to the local host (the system on which you started Embedded Support Partner). (Refer to Figure 2-9.)

Netscape: SGI Embedded Support Partner - ver.1.0	•
File Edit View Go Communicator	<u>H</u> elp
Conference of Dataset Harris Conference Conference Construction	sgi
Back Folward Reload Home Search Guide Finn Security Sup	0
BOOKMARKS & Location: http://localhost:5555/index.html	Ŧ
Embedded Support Partner	sgi™
	0
Select the type of system manager: Single System 😑	
Select which system you'd like to connect to:	
Local System 🐠 localhost	
Remote System 🔍	
Accept	

Figure 2-9Connecting to Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode on the
Local System (Graphical Interface)

• Click on the Remote System check box to connect to a remote system. Enter the name of the system or IP address of the system in the field. (Refer to Figure 2-10.)

📥 Ne	tscape: S	GI Embe	edded Supp	port Part	tner – ve	er.1.0			•
<u>F</u> ile <u>F</u>	∃dit <u>V</u> iev	v <u>G</u> o	<u>C</u> ommunic	ator					<u>H</u> elp
Ĭ 4	s.	3	企	æ	÷.	4	í,	3	soi
Back	Forward	Reload	Home	Search	Guide	Print	Security	Stop	56
Í ₩E E	300k mark	is 🦑 Lo	ocation: ht	tp://	localł	nost:555	55/index	.html	v
E	mbec	ldec	l Supp	oort	Part	tner			sgi™
			_			_	_		
								_	
		Sel	ect the type c	of system i	manager:	Single S	ystem 🛥		
		Sel	ect which sys	stem you'd	d like to co	innect to:			
		Loo	cal System		$\langle \! \langle \! \rangle$	localhost			
		Re	mote System		۲	lobos.csd	.sgi.com		
						Accept			

Figure 2-10 Connecting to Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode on a Remote System (Graphical Interface)

4. Click on Accept.

The Embedded Support Partner graphical interface appears in Single System Manager mode. (Refer to Figure 2-11.) Use this interface to:

- Set up Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager mode (Refer to Chapter 5, "Using the Graphical Interface to Set Up Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode.")
- View information from the system (Refer to Chapter 6, "Using the Graphical Interface to View Information about a System in Single System Manager Mode.")

Netscape: SGI Embedded Support Partner: SEM – ver.1.0	•
File Edit View Go Communicator	<u>H</u> elp
A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A	sgi
Bookmarks & Location: http://localhost:5555/index_sem.html	¥
Embedded Support Partner	sgi™
Overview System Information Setup Archive Database	l
single system	
Overview	
This session is connected to the Single System Manager that is running on <i>lobos.csd.sgi.com</i> .	
The Single System Manager controls the Embedded Support Partner for one system. It enables you to c parameters and view information collected from the system.	onfigure all
Use the Single System Manager to perform the following functions on <i>lobos.csd.sgi.com</i> .	
 Set up the SGI Embedded Support Partner software, including the following parameters: Global parameters Event parameters 	
Action parameters Action parameters	
Availability monitoring parameters Defaultion of the parameters	
 View the following information about the system: The bardware table is installed on the system: 	
 The natiwate that is installed on the system at a specific date and time The software that is installed on the system at a specific date and time 	
 Any system changes that occurred within a specified time period Any system events that have occurred 	
 Any system actions that have been taken System availability information 	
 Archive a database to conserve disk space and delete database archives that you no longer need 	d
I 100%	. dP 🖬 🌿

 Figure 2-11
 Single System Manager Mode Graphical Interface

Configuring Single System Manger Mode

All components of Embedded Support Partner are installed on your system by default; however, you should perform the following procedure the first time that you use Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager mode to configure it:

- Start Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager mode. (Refer to Section, "Starting Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode.")
- Change the user name and/or password to prevent unauthorized access to your system. (Refer to Section, "Changing the User Name and Password" and Section, "Changing the User Name and Password.")
 - The default user name is administrator.
 - The default password is partner.
- 3. Set up the access list to enable systems to connect to the Configurable Web Server that Embedded Support Partner uses. By default, the Configurable Web Server is configured to allow connections from all IP addresses. (Refer to Section , "Allowing Access to Embedded Support Partner" and Section , "Allowing Access to Embedded Support Partner.")
- Modify and/or add actions. (Refer to Section, "Setting Up Actions in Single System Manager Mode" and Section, "Setting Up Actions in Single System Manager Mode.")
- Modify and/or add events and assign actions to events. (Refer to Section, "Setting Up Events in Single System Manager Mode" and Section, "Setting Up Events in Single System Manager Mode.")

Manipulating the Database that Single System Manager Mode Uses

Embedded Support Partner logs data in a database on the system as it registers events and performs actions. You can archive the current database to reduce the amount of disk space used on the system.

Archiving a Database

Use the esparchive command at a UNIX prompt to archive the current database that Embedded Support Partner is using on a system. The esparchive command shuts down Embedded Support Partner momentarily, compresses the current database to save space, opens a new database to receive data from Embedded Support Partner, and restarts Embedded Support Partner.

You must use the root account to execute the esparchive command; this command archives the current database only if it is 10 MB or larger.

Note: Click on the Archive Database tab on the graphical interface or select the Archive Database link on the ASCII interface to view a description of this process.

Deleting a Database Archive

You can delete database archives that you no longer need.

Warning: When you delete a database archive, the information in the database archive is permanently lost. You will not be able to view any system information that was stored in the database archive.

Perform the following procedure to delete a database archive:

- 1. Click on the Archive Database tab on the graphical interface, or select the Archive Database Link on the ASCII interface.
- 2. Choose the database archive that you want to delete. (Refer to Figure 2-12 and Figure 2-13.)

Archive Database
Help
The database archival option saves disk space by compressing the data in the database. The compressed data remains accessible for reading or for displaying system information. The archiving must be done from the command line to preserve data integrity. The archiving program will shutdown the Embedded Support Partner for a brief period of time and restart after the archiving is complete. The archiving can be run as root only. To archive the database, run the command esparchive. The archiving will be done only if the database size is equal to or greater than 10 megabytes.
The remove database option deletes a previously archived database that was stored. The data in the deleted database is no longer available for display.
Choose the database to be deleted: Database Archive Name(s) 😑
Delete Database





Figure 2-13 Archiving a Database in Single System Manager Mode (ASCII Interface)

3. Click on the Delete Database button on the graphical interface, or select the Delete Database link on the ASCII interface.

Chapter 3

Using the ASCII Interface to Set Up Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode

Use the commands in SETUP section of the ASCII interface to set up the following components of Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager mode:

- Global parameters
- Events
- Actions
- Paging
- Availability monitoring
- Performance monitoring

The ASCII interface is provided for systems that do not have graphics capability. If your system has graphics hardware, use the graphical interface. Refer to Chapter 5, "Using the Graphical Interface to Set Up Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode" for more information about using the graphical interface to set up Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager mode.

Setting Up Global Parameters in Single System Manager Mode

Several global parameters are available for you to customize Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode. The global parameters are organized into two categories:

- Web server parameters
- Global configuration parameters

Setting Up the Web Server Parameters

The Web server parameters configure the Configurable Web Server that Embedded Support Partner uses. You can use these parameters to control permission to access Embedded Support Partner, including the user name and password combination and host privileges. (All IP addresses are allowed connections to the Web server by default.)

Figure 3-1 shows the interface page that you use to access the Web server parameters. Figure 3-2 shows the interface page that you use to specify which systems are allowed or denied access to the Configurable Web Server. Figure 3-3 shows the interface page that you use to modify the user name and associated password.



Figure 3-1 Web Server Configuration Page (ASCII Interface)

xwsh 🛛 🖓
SGI Embedded Support Partner - ver.1.0
SETUP > Global > Server > Server Access Permissions Help
<u>Warning:</u> All changes take effect immediately.
Enable access to the systems with the following IP addresses:
Delete Selected IP address
Enter new IP Address: Add new IP address
Restrict access to the systems with the following IP addresses:
Delete Selected IP address
Enter new IP Address: Add new IP address
Return to Server Setup page
[(NURMAL LINK) Use right-arrow or <return> to activate. Arrow keys: Up and Down to move. Right to follow a link; Left to go back. H)elp O)ptions P)rint G)o M)ain screen Q)uit /=search [delete]=history list □</return>

Figure 3-2 Web Server Access Permissions Page (ASCII Interface)

Chapter 3: Using the ASCII Interface to Set Up Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode

xwsh		
	SGI Embedded Support Partr	ner – ver.1.0
SETUP > GTODAT > Server	r > Username and Password Unange	нетр
<u>Warning</u> : All changes ta	ake effect immediatly.	
<u>Change</u> <u>username</u>		
Enter old username :		
Linter new user name .		
	Change Username Clear	
Change password		
Enter new password :		
Re-enter new password:		
	Change Password Clear	
(NORMAL LINK) Use right-	-arrow or <return> to activate.</return>	no book
H)elp O)ptions P)rint G)o	b M)ain screen Q)uit /=search [delete]=his	story list 🗌

Figure 3-3 Web Server User Name and Password Page (ASCII Interface)

Allowing Access to Embedded Support Partner

You can modify access privileges that specify which systems have access rights to Embedded Support Partner. If you want to restrict access to Embedded Support Partner, you must set up a "restrict access" list and an "enable access" list. (If you do not set up a "restrict access" list, all IP addresses can connect to Embedded Support Partner regardless of the "enable access" list settings because the default configuration allows connections from all IP addresses if no "restrict access" list exists.)

The most secure configuration is to set the "restrict access" list to all hosts (*.*.*) and set the "enable access" list to the hosts that you want to have access to Embedded Support Partner. (For example, set the "enable access" list to 197.*.* and the "restrict access" list to *.*.* if you want only the systems with IP addresses that begin with 197 to have access to Embedded Support Partner.)

Caution: All changes that you make to the "restrict access" and "enable access" lists immediately take effect. Ensure that you do not set up access lists that prevent your administration system from connecting to Embedded Support Partner.

Perform the following procedure to add a system to the "enable access" list (refer to Figure 3-2):

- 1. Select the Global link in the SETUP category.
- 2. Select the Server link in the Global category.
- 3. Select the Server Access Permissions link.
- 4. In the Enter new IP Address field, enter the IP address of the system that you want to add to the list.

Note: Entering * . * . * . * indicates that all systems can access the Embedded Support Partner Web-based interface. You can wildcard any portion of the IP address with an asterisk (for example, 197.*.*.2 and 197.20.2.*).

5. Select the Add new IP Address link.

Perform the following procedure to remove a system from the "enable access" list (refer to Figure 3-2):

- 1. Select the Global link in the SETUP category.
- 2. Select the Server link in the Global category.
- 3. Select the Server Access Permissions link.
- 4. Set the checkmark next to the IP address that you want to remove from the list.
- 5. Select the Delete Selected IP address link.

Perform the following procedure to add a system to the "restrict access" list (refer to Figure 3-2):

- 1. Select the Global link in the SETUP category.
- 2. Select the Server link in the Global category.
- 3. Select the Server Access Permissions link.
- 4. In the Enter new IP Address field, enter the IP address of the system that you want to add to the list.

Note: Entering * . * . * . * indicates that all systems (except the systems in the "allow access" list) cannot access the Embedded Support Partner Web-based interface. You can wildcard any portion of the IP address with an asterisk (for example, 197.*.*.2 and 197.20.2.*).

Perform the following procedure to remove a system from the "restrict access" list (refer to Figure 3-2):

- 1. Select the Global link in the SETUP category.
- 2. Select the Server link in the Global category.
- 3. Select the Server Access Permissions link.
- 4. Set the checkmark next to the IP address that you want to remove from the list.
- 5. Select the Delete Selected IP address link.

Changing the User Name and Password

Embedded Support Partner requires that you enter a user name and password to access several features. This protocol ensures that Embedded Support Partner is secure from unauthorized access.

The default user name is **administrator**, and the default password is **partner**. Be sure to change one or both of these settings the first time that you use Embedded Support Partner to prevent unauthorized access to your system.

Perform the following procedure to change the user name (refer to Figure 3-3):

- 1. Select the Global link in the SETUP category.
- 2. Select the Username & Password Change link.
- 3. Enter the old user name that you want to change in the Enter old username field.
- 4. Enter the new user name that you want to use in the Enter new username field.
- 5. Select the Change Username link.

Perform the following procedure to change the password (refer to Figure 3-3):

- 1. Select the Global link in the SETUP category.
- 2. Select the Username & Password Change link.
- 3. Enter the old password that you want to change in the Enter old password field.
- 4. Enter the new password that you want to use in the Enter new password field.
- 5. Re-enter the new password in the Re-enter new password field. (You need to enter the password twice to ensure that it was typed correctly.)
- 6. Select the Change Password link.

Setting the Global Configuration Parameters

The global configuration parameters enable you to globally modify how Embedded Support Partner handles events and actions. You can specify whether it should log all events in the database, whether it should require events to occur several times before they are registered, and whether it should perform actions in response to events.

Figure 3-4 shows the interface page that you can use to set up the global configuration parameters.

Chapter 3: Using the ASCII Interface to Set Up Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode



Figure 3-4 Global Configuration Parameters Page (ASCII Interface)

Perform the following procedure to set up the global configuration parameters (refer to Figure 3-4):

- 1. Select the Global link in the SETUP category.
- 2. Select the Global Configuration link in the Global category.
- 3. Specify whether Embedded Support Partner should log events.
 - Select the Log Events checkmark if you want to log events in the Embedded Support Partner database.
 - Deselect the Log Events checkmark if you do not want to log any events in the Embedded Support Partner database.

- 4. Specify whether Embedded Support Partner should wait for a specific number of events to occur before it registers an event.
 - Select the Throttle Events checkmark to require that a specific number of events must occur before the event is registered in the Embedded Support Partner database.
 - Deselect the Throttle Events checkmark to register every event in the Embedded System Partner database.
- 5. Specify whether Embedded Support Partner should perform actions when it registers events.
 - Select the Act on Events checkmark to specify that Embedded Support Partner should perform actions in response to all events that occur.
 - Deselect the Act on Events checkmark to specify that Embedded Support Partner should not respond to events that occur.
- 6. Select the Accept link.

Setting Up Events in Single System Manager Mode

Events are conditions that Embedded Support Partner monitors. Embedded Support Partner includes many default events, and you can also add custom events. Example events include parity errors, disk full conditions, and nonmaskable interrupts (NMI). Events are organized into event classes, which allows you to quickly view and update similar events. Example event classes include availability, system configuration, and performance.

You can perform the following activities to set up events:

- Viewing the current event setup
- Updating an existing event
- Adding a new event
- Deleting an event

Viewing the Current Event Setup

The current event setup defines the events and event classes that are currently configured in Embedded Support Partner on your system.

To view the current event setup, select the Events link in the SETUP category, and then select the View Current Setup link in the Events category. Figure 3-5 shows the interface page that you should use to view the current event setup.

xwsh				•	
SETUP > Events > View Current Setup	SGI Embedded	Support	Partner H	- ver.1 elp	.0
Choose the setup to view:					
View Event					
View Event List					
View Classes					

Figure 3-5 View Current Event Setup Options (ASCII Interface)

Using the View Event Option

The View Event option displays the configuration parameters for a single event. Use this option to verify that a specific event is configured correctly.

Perform the following procedure to view the current setup of a specific event.

- 1. Select the Events link in the SETUP category.
- 2. Select the View Current Setup link in the Events category.
- 3. Select the View Event link. (Refer to Figure 3-6.)



Figure 3-6 Using the View Event Option (Page 1 [ASCII Interface])

4. Select the event class that contains the event. (Refer to Figure 3-7.)



Figure 3-7 Using the View Event Option (Page 2 [ASCII Interface])

- 5. Select the Accept link.
- 6. Choose the event that you want to view. (Refer to Figure 3-8.)



Figure 3-8 Using the View Event Option (Page 3 [ASCII Interface])

7. Select the Accept link.

Figure 3-9 shows the current setup of the Live event event.

xwsh 🔹
SGI Embedded Support Partner - ver.1.0
SEIUP > Events > View Current Setup
Event Description : Live event
Event Class : Availability
Event Registration : enabled
Number of events that must : 1 occur before registration
Actions for this event : No actions
Return to <mark>SETUP</mark> page
Commands: Use arrow keys to move, '?' for help, 'q' to quit, '<-' to go back.
H)elp O)ptions P)rint G)o M)ain screen Q)uit /=search [delete]=history list

Figure 3-9 Using the View Event Option (Page 4 [ASCII Interface])

Using the View Event List Option

The View Event List option lists all of the events that are currently configured in Embedded Support Partner on your system. Use this option to determine which events are currently available.

Perform the following procedure to view the current event list:

- 1. Select the Events link in the SETUP category.
- 2. Select the View Current Setup link in the Events category.
- 3. Select the View Event List link. (Refer to Figure 3-10.)

Chapter 3: Using the ASCII Interface to Set Up Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode



Figure 3-10 Using the View Event List Option (Page 1 [ASCII Interface])

The interface displays a table that lists all available events. (Refer to Figure 3-11; Table 3-1 describes the information that the table contains.)

xwsh							
S	GI Embedded Support Partner - ver.1.0 (p1 of 21)						
SETUP > Events > View Current Setup							
No. Class Description	Event Description						
0 Performance	High directory name cache miss rate						
2 Performance	High 1-minute load average						
3 Performance	High aggregate sustem call rate						
4 Performance	Busu executing in sustem mode						
5 Performance	High average processor utilization						
6 Performance	CrayLink checkbit errors on Origin node						
7 Performance	CrayLink checkbit errors on Origin route						
8 Performance	Low buffer cache read hit ratio						
9 Performance	File system is filling up						
10 Performance	Severe demand for real memory						
11 Performance	Low free swap space						
12 Performance	Serious demand for network buffers						
13 Performance	High collision rate in packet sends						
14 Performance	High network interface error rate						
15 Performance	High network interface packet transfers						
15 Performance	High network interface utilization						
17 Performance	High ratio of IUP connections dropped						
10 Performance	High number of ILP packet retransmission						
20 Performance	IPPC server response is slow						
- proce space for payt page							
Arrow keys: Up and Down to mo	L ve Right to follow a link. Left to go back						
H)elp O)ptions P)rint G)o M)ai	n screen Q)uit /=search [delete]=historu list						

Figure 3-11 Using the View Event List Option (Page 2 [ASCII Interface])

Fable 3-1 Event List Elements	Table 3-1	Event List Elements
---------------------------------------	-----------	---------------------

Column	Description			
No.	Index number in the table			
Class Description	Class that contains the event			
Event Description	Description of the event			

You can navigate through the table as follows:

- Use the space bar or down arrow to move to the next page.
- Use the up arrow to move to the previous page.

Using the View Classes Option

The View Classes option lists all event classes that are currently defined in Embedded Support Partner. (Event classes organize the individual events into related groups, which enables you to quickly locate events and easily assign actions to multiple events at the same time.)

Perform the following procedure to view the current list of event classes:

- 1. Select the Events link in the SETUP category.
- 2. Select the View Current Configuration link in the Events category.
- 3. Select the View Classes link. (Refer to Figure 3-12.)

xwsh					•
	SGI	Embedded	Support	Partner	- ver.1.0
SETUP > Events > View Current Setup					Нејр
Choose the setup to view:					
View Event					
View Event List					
View Classes					

Figure 3-12 Using the View Classes Option (Page 1 [ASCII Interface])
The interface displays a table that lists all available event classes. (Refer to Figure 3-13; Table 3-2 describes the information that the table contains.)

	xwsh			•	
			SGI Embedded Support Partner – ver.1.0 (p1	of	3)
	SETUR	> Events	s > View Current Setup		
	No.	Class ID	Class Description		
	 0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 22 23 24 22 23 24 22 23 24 22 23 24 22 23 24 22 23 24 22 23 24 22 23 24 22 23 24 22 23 24 22 23 24 22 23 24 22 23 24 22 23 24 22 23 24 22 23 24 22 23 24 24 22 23 24 24 24 25 26 26 27 26 27 26 27 28 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20 20	1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 117 18 20 21 22 24 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22 22	SCSI I/O Peripheral Power Supply Memory Parity Memory ECC System Error System Board NMI File System OS AS OS VM OS PROC OS PROC OS PDA OS NUMA OS SYSCALL OS Memory Kernel Module Kernel Module Kernel Tock Kernel Clock Kernel Fork Kernel Fork Kernel Fork Kernel File System Kernel File System Kernel File System Kernel File System Kernel IFSWITCH Net Kernel IFSWITCH		
	pres: Arrow	s space fo keus: Un	or next page	<.	
$\mathbf{\nabla}$	H)elp ()ptions (P)rint G)o M)ain screen Q)uit /=search [delete]=history 1	ist	

Figure 3-13 Using the View Classes Option (Page 2 [ASCII Interface])

Table 3-2Event Class List Elements

Column		Description
No.		Index number in the table
Class	ID	Identification number for the class
Class	Description	Description of the class

You can navigate through the table as follows:

- Use the space bar or down arrow to move to the next page.
- Use the up arrow to move to the previous page.

Updating an Event

Perform the following procedure to update the information about an event that Embedded Support Partner should monitor:

- 1. Select the Events link in the SETUP category.
- 2. Select the Update link in the Events category.
- 3. Choose the event class that contains the event. (Refer to Figure 3-14.)

xwsh	•
	System Support Software – ver.1.0
SETUP > Events > Update	Нејр
Choose a class of event(s) the	nat you want to update:
+*****	****+
* Venice Resource	*
 * Venice Validity 	*
 Venice Command 	*
* MGRAS Command	*
* MGRAS Timeout	*
* MGRAS Validity	*
* Newport limeout	*
* Newport Lommand	*
* Newport validity	*

*********	• • • • • •

Figure 3-14 Updating an Event (Page 1 [ASCII Interface])

- 4. Select the Accept link.
- 5. Choose the event that you want to update. (Refer to Figure 3-15.)



Figure 3-15 Updating an Event (Page 2 [ASCII Interface])

- 6. Select the Accept link.
- 7. Update the parameters for the event. (Refer to Figure 3-16; Table 3-3 describes the parameters that are available.)



Figure 3-16 Updating an Event (Page 3 [ASCII Interface])

Table 3-3	Parameters f	or Updating	an Event
-----------	--------------	-------------	----------

Parameter	Description	
Set checkmark to enable the registration of this event with SGI	Specifies whether Embedded Support Partner registers an event	
Embedded Support Partner	If you disable event monitoring on the SETUP > Global Configuration page, that setting overrides this setting	
Enter the number of events that must occur before registration begins	Specifies the number of times the event must occur before Embedded Support Partner registers the event	

8. Select the Change Actions Settings link to choose one or more actions that you want Embedded Support Partner to perform when it registers the event, and then select the Accept link.

Note: If the action list does not contain the action that you want to use, use the SETUP > Actions > Add command to add a new action.

9. Select the Accept link.

Adding an Event

You can add your own events to Embedded Support Partner on your system to have it monitor and register events that are specific to your system.

Perform the following procedure to add a custom event:

- 1. Select the Events link in the SETUP category.
- 2. Select the Add link in the Events category.

	xwsh	• □
	SETUP > Events > Add	SGI Embedded Support Partner - ver.1.0 Help
	Select a class for the new event OR	[System Configuration]
	Set checkmark, if you want to create a new class	[]
	AND	
	Enter a new class name Leave this field blank if you want to add event into an existing class	
	Enter a new event name	my new sysconfig event
	Set checkmark to enable the registration of this event with SGI Embedded Support Partner	[X]
	Enter the number of events that must occur before registration begins	1
		Accept Clear
C	Text entry field) Enter text. Use UP o	r DOWN arrows or tab to move off.
-		[Backsnace] to delete a character

Figure 3-17 Adding an Event (Page 1 [ASCII Interface])

- 3. Specify an event class:
 - If you want to add an event to an existing event class, choose the class.
 - If you want to create a new event class, set the checkmark and enter the name of the class in the Enter a new class name field.
- 4. Enter a unique name for the new event. Embedded Support Partner uses this name to identify the event on other pages of the interface.
- 5. Set up the remaining parameters. (Table 3-4 describes the parameters.)

Parameter	Description
Set the checkmark to enable registration of this event with SGI	Specifies whether Embedded Support Partner registers the event
Embedded Support Partner	If you disable event monitoring on the SETUP > Global > Global Configuration page, that setting overrides this setting
Enter the number of events that must occur before registration begins	Specifies the number of times the event must occur before Embedded Support Partner registers the event

Table 3-4Event Parameters for Adding a New Event

6. Select the Accept link.

The interface displays a confirmation message. (Refer to Figure 3-18.)

xwsh		• _
		SGI Embedded Support Partner – ver.1.0
SETUP > Events > Add		
The following event has been	succ	essfully created:
Event Description		my new sysconfig event
Event Class		System Configuration
Event Registration		1
Number of events that must occur before registration		1
Return to SETUP page		

Figure 3-18 Adding an Event (Page 3 [ASCII Interface])

Deleting an Event

You can delete any custom events that you added to Embedded Support Partner.

Warning: Deleting an event removes all records that are associated with the event from the database. After you delete an event, you will not be able to retrieve information about any occurrences of that event on your system.

Figure 3-19 shows the page that you can use to delete events. You can delete events:

- By selecting an event from the list of all events in the system (Use the Show all custom events link.)
- By selecting an event from a list of all events in a class (Use the Show custom events for selected class link.

xwsh 🔹 🗌
SGI Embedded Support Partner - ver.1.0
SETUP > Events > Delete Custom Events Help
<pre>Warning: You can delete only custom class and/or custom events If you delete an event, the system will be affected in the following way: * all actions will be removed from this event. * all registration records for this event will be removed. * If there is no events left in the custom class, this custom class will be removed.</pre>
Show all custom events
Select Class containing custom events:
[My New Class]
Show custom events for selected class
Return to SETUP page
(NORMAL LINK) lise right-arrow or (return) to activate
Arrow keys: Up and Down to move. Right to follow a link; Left to go back. H)elp D)ptions P)rint G)o M)ain screen Q)uit /=search [delete]=history list

Figure 3-19 Deleting an Event (ASCII Interface)

Using the Show All Custom Events Link

Perform the following procedure to use the ${\tt Show}$ all custom events link to delete custom events:

- 1. Select the Events link in the SETUP category.
- 2. Select the Delete link in the Events category.
- 3. Select the Show all custom events link. (Refer to Figure 3-20.)



Figure 3-20 Using the Show All Custom Events Link to Delete an Event (Page 1 [ASCII Interface])

4. Select the checkmark next to the each event that you want to delete. (Refer to Figure 3-21.)



Figure 3-21 Using the Show All Custom Events Link to Delete an Event (Page 2 [ASCII Interface])

5. Select the Delete Selected Events link.

The interface displays a confirmation message; refer to Figure 3-22.



Figure 3-22 Using the Show All Custom Events Link to Delete an Event (Page 3 [ASCII Interface])

Using the Show Custom Events for Selected Class Link

Perform the following procedure to use the Show custom events for selected class link to delete custom events:

- 1. Select the Events link in the SETUP category.
- 2. Select the Delete link in the Events category.
- 3. Choose the class that contains the event. (Refer to Figure 3-23.)

	xwsh 🔹 🗋			
	SGI Embedded Support Partner – ver.1.0			
	SETUP > Events > Delete Custom Events Help			
	<pre>Warning: You can delete only custom class and/or custom events If you delete an event, the system will be affected in the following way: * all actions will be removed from this event. * all registration records for this event will be removed. * If there is no events left in the custom class, this custom class will be removed.</pre>			
	* * *ts for selected class			
	* *			
	* * *page			
	* *			
	* *			
	* *			
	* +**********			
	(Option list) Hit return and use arrow keys and return to select option. Arrow keys: Up and Down to move. Right to follow a link; Left to go back. Walm Outiers Plaint for White across Outit (recent foldetal-bitary list			
	Help Uptions Pyrint Go Myain screen Quit /=search [delete]=history list			

Figure 3-23 Using the Show Custom Events for Selected Class Link to Delete an Event (Page 1 [ASCII Interface])

4. Select the Show custom events for selected class link. (Refer to Figure 3-24.)



Figure 3-24 Using the Show Custom Events for Selected Class Link to Delete an Event (Page 2 [ASCII Interface])

5. Set the checkmark next to the each event that you want to delete. (Refer to Figure 3-25.)



Figure 3-25 Using the Show Custom Events for Selected Class Link to Delete an Event (Page 3 [ASCII Interface])

6. Select the Delete Selected Events link.

The interface displays a confirmation message; refer to Figure 3-26.



Figure 3-26 Using the Show Custom Events for Selected Class Link to Delete an Event (Page 4 [ASCII Interface])

Setting Up Actions in Single System Manager Mode

Actions are commands that Embedded Support Partner performs in response to events if you set up event/action assignments. An event/action assignment specifies the action that Embedded Support Partner should perform for a specific event when it registers a specific number of events. Example actions include sending an e-mail message and sending a page.

You can perform the following operations to set up actions:

- Viewing the current action setup
- Updating an action
- Adding a new action
- Deleting an action

Viewing the Current Action Setup

The current action setup defines the actions that are currently configured in Embedded Support Partner on your system.

To view the current action setup, select the Actions link in the SETUP category, and then select the View Current Setup link in the Actions category. Figure 3-27 shows the interface page that you use to view the current action setup.



Figure 3-27 Options for Viewing the Current Action Setup (ASCII Interface)

Using the View Action Setup Option

The View Action Setup option displays the configuration parameters for a single action. Use this option to verify that a specific action is configured correctly.

Perform the following procedure to view the current setup of a specific action:

- 1. Select the Actions link in the SETUP category.
- 2. Select the View Current Setup link in the Actions category.
- 3. Select the View Action Setup link. (Refer to Figure 3-28.)



Figure 3-28 Using the View Action Setup Option (Page 1 [ASCII Interface])

6	-	xwsh	• D
		SGI Embedded Supp	ort Partner - ver.1.0
	I	SETUP > Actions > View Current Settings	Нејр
	l	Choose an action those settings you would like to revie	ω:
		+*******************************	
		* Notify sysadmin on console	
		* *	
		* *	
		* *	
		* *	
		* *	
		+*******	

4. Choose the action. (Refer to Figure 3-29.)

Figure 3-29 Using the View Action Setup Option (Page 2 [ASCII Interface])

5. Select the Accept link. (The interface shows the current configuration of the action that you selected; refer to Figure 3-30.)

	xwsh	• 🗋
		SGI Embedded Support Partner – ver.1.0
	SETUP > Actions > View Curr	ent Settings
	Action description	: Notify sysadmin on console
	Action command string	: /usr/bin/ssnotify -A
	Execute this action as	: root
	Action timeout	: 10
	Number of times the event must be registered before an action will be taken	: 1
	Retry times	: 0
	Return to <u>SETUP</u> page Commands: Use arrow keys to mo	ve, '?' for help, 'q' to quit, '<-' to go back.
V	Arrow keys: Up and Down to m H)elp O)ptions P)rint G)o M)a	ove. Right to follow a link; Left to go back. in screen Q)uit /=search [delete]=history list 🛛

Figure 3-30 Using the View Action Setup Option (Page 3 [ASCII Interface])

Using the View Available Actions List Option

The View Available Actions List option lists all of the actions that are currently configured in Embedded Support Partner on your system.

Perform the following procedure to determine the actions that are currently available:

- 1. Select the Actions link in the SETUP category.
- 2. Select the View Current Setup link in the Actions category.
- 3. Select the View Available Actions List link. (Refer to Figure 3-31.)



Figure 3-31 Using the View Available Actions List Option (Page 1 [ASCII Interface])

The interface displays a table of all actions that are currently available. (Refer to Figure 3-32; Table 3-5 describes the information that the table contains.)

xwsh			•
		SGI Embedded Support Partner – v	er.1.0
SETU	P > Actions > View Curren	t Settings Help	
No.	Action Description	Action Command String 	
0	Notify sysadmin on conso	/usr/bin/ssnotify -A	
Retu	rn to SETUP page		

Figure 3-32 Using the View Available Actions List Option (Page 2 [ASCII Interface])

Table 3-5	Action List Elements

Column	Description	
No.	Index number in the table	
Action Description	Description of the action	
Action Command String	Command that the action executes	

Updating an Action

Perform the following procedure to update the parameters for an action:

- 1. Select the Actions link in the SETUP category.
- 2. Select the Update link in the Actions category.
- 3. Choose the action that you want to update. (Refer to Figure 3-33.)



Figure 3-33 Updating an Action (Page 1 [ASCII Interface])

- 4. Select the Accept link.
- 5. Update the parameters. (Refer to Figure 3-34. Table 3-6 describes the parameters.)

[=	-	xwsh	•
		SGI SETUP > Actions > Update	Embedded Support Partner - ver.1.0
		Action description	Notify sysadmin on console
		Actual action command string	/usr/bin/ssnotify -A
		Enter username to execute this action as (default - root)	root
		Enter action timeout (multiple of 5)	10 secs
	l	Enter the number of times an event must be registered before the action will be taken	1
		Enter the number of retry times (up to 23, more then 3-4 not recommended)	0
			Accept
		Return to SETUP page	

Figure 3-34 Updating an Action (Page 2 [ASCII Interface])

Parameter	Description
Action description	Provides a description of the action
Actual action command string	Specifies the actual command that the action executes
Enter username to execute the action (default - root)	Specifies the user account that Embedded Support uses to execute the command
Enter action timeout (multiple of 5)	Specifies the maximum amount of time allowed for the action to execute (in seconds)
	If the action does not complete within the specified period of time, Embedded Support Partner kills the action
Enter the number of times an event must be registered before the action will be taken	Specifies the number of times the event must be registered before Embedded Support Partner performs this action
Enter the number of retry times (up to 23, more than 3-4 not recommended)	Specifies the number of times that Embedded Support Partner attempts to execute the action before it stops

Table 3-6Parameters for Updating an Action

6. Select the Accept link.

Adding an Action

You can customize Embedded Support Partner by adding new actions.

Perform the following procedure to add a custom action:

- 1. Select the Actions link in the SETUP category.
- 2. Select the Add link in the Actions category.
- 3. Update the parameters. (Refer to Figure 3-35; Table 3-7 describes the parameters.)

_	xwsh	•
*	SGI	Embedded Support Partner – ver.1.0
	SETUP > Actions > Add	Help
	Enter action description (eg. page to Tom)	E-mail Darrin
	Enter action command string (eg. /usr/bin/espnotify -p 1234567)	/usr/bin/espnotify -E dtg@sg
	Enter username to execute this action as (default - root)	root
	Enter action timeout (multiple of 5)	10 secs
	Enter the number of times an event must be registered before the action will be taken	1
	Enter the number of retry times	4
	(up to 23, more then 3-4 not recommended,	Accept Clear

Figure 3-35 Adding an Action (Page 1 [ASCII Interface])

Table 3-7	Parameters	for Adding	g a N	lew A	Action
-----------	------------	------------	-------	-------	--------

Field	Description
Enter action description	Provides a brief description of the action (for example, Send a page to the system administrator)
Enter action command string	Specifies the actual command that the action executes
Enter username to execute this action as (default - root)	Specifies the user account that executes the command
Enter action timeout (multiple of 5)	Specifies the maximum amount of time allowed for the action to execute (in seconds)
	If the action does not complete within the specified period of time, Embedded Support Partner kills the action

Field	Description
Enter the number of times an event must be registered before the action will be taken	Specifies the number of times the event must be registered before Embedded Support Partner performs this action
Enter the number of retry times (up to 23, more than 3-4 not recommended)	Specifies the number of times that Embedded Support Partner attempts to execute the action before it stops

Table 3-7Parameters for Adding a New Action

4. Select the Accept link. (The interface displays a confirmation message; refer to Figure 3-36.)

	2	xwsh	
			SGI Embedded Support Partner – ver.1.0
		${\tt SETUP} \ {\tt > Actions} \ {\tt > Add}$	
		The following action has bee	n successfully added:
		Action description	: E-mail Darrin
	t	Action command string just registered.'	: /usr/bin/espnotify -E dtg©sgi.com -m 'An even
		Execute this action as	: root
		Action timeout	: 10
		Number of times the event must be registered before an action will be taken	: 1
		Retry times	: 4
		Return to <mark>SETUP</mark> page	

Figure 3-36 Adding an Action (Page 2 [ASCII Interface])

Deleting an Action

You can delete any custom actions that you add to Embedded Support Partner on your system.

Note: When you delete an action, it is removed from all events to which it is assigned. If you need to assign a different action to an event, use the SETUP > Events > Update command.

Perform the following procedure to delete an action:

- 1. Select the Actions link in the SETUP category.
- 2. Select the Delete link in the Actions category.
- 3. Choose the action that you want to delete. (Refer to Figure 3-37.)



Figure 3-37 Deleting an Action (Page 1 [ASCII Interface])

4. Select the Accept link.

Embedded Support Partner displays a list of all events to which the action is assigned (Refer to Figure 3-38.)

- Select Yes to delete the action. (The interface displays a confirmation message; refer to Figure 3-39.)
- Press the left arrow to abort the deletion; the action is not deleted.

xwsh		•
	SGI Embedded Support Partner – ver	.1.0
SETUP > Actions > Delete		
The following events will	be affected by this operation:	
Class Description	Event Description	
Diagnostic	SVP start	
Diagnostic	SVP end	
Diagnostic	Stress start	
Diagnostic	Diagnostic start	
Diagnostic	Diagnostic fail	
Diagnostic	Diagnostic end	
Would uou like to delete	this action? Yes	
	<pre>xwsh SETUP > Actions > Delete The following events will Class Description Diagnostic Diagnostic Diagnostic Diagnostic Diagnostic Diagnostic Would you like to delete</pre>	xwsh SGI Embedded Support Partner - ver SETUP > Actions > Delete

Figure 3-38 Deleting an Action (Page 2 [ASCII Interface])

_	xwsh	•
<u></u>	SGI Embedded Support Partner - ver.	.1.0
	SETUP > Actions > Delete	
	Specified action has been succesfully deleted.	
	Return to SETUP > Actions > Delete page	
	Return to SETUP page	

Figure 3-39 Confirmation Message for Proceeding with Deletion of an Action (ASCII Interface)

Setting up the Paging Parameters in Single System Manager Mode

QuickPage (QPage) is a third-party client/server application that Embedded Support Partner uses to send messages to an alphanumeric pager. QPage uses a modem to send an IXO/TAP-protocol message to a telephone number that is connected to a paging service. QPage is integrated in the Embedded Support Partner software suite, and its services are accessed through the /usr/bin/espnotify application. (Refer to Figure 3-40.)





QPage is installed on your system by default and is chkconfig'ed off. Perform the following procedure to set up and enable it:

1. Enter the following command to turn QPage on:

chkconfig quickpage on

2. Enter the following command to start the QPage server:

/etc/init.d/qpageserver start

Note: The QPage server is automatically restarted whenever you reboot the system.

- 3. Use the Paging category of the Embedded Support Partner interface to set up the following paging parameters:
 - Modem parameters: specify the modem that QPage should use to connect to the paging service provider.
 - Paging service provider parameters: provide information about the paging service provider and how to contact it.
 - Pager parameters: provide information about the pager to use.

The following sections describe how to set up these parameters.

Viewing the Current Paging Setup

The current paging setup defines the QPage settings, modems, paging services, and pagers that Embedded Support Partner is currently using.

To view the current paging setup, select the Paging link in the SETUP category and then select the View Current Setup link in the Paging category of the SETUP section. Figure 3-41 shows an example of the information that this command displays.



Figure 3-41 Viewing the Current Paging Setup (ASCII Interface)

Adding/Updating a Modem

A modem must be connected to the system that is running Embedded Support Partner so that the software can send pages when events occur. You must specify the device to which the modem is connected and the modem initialization command. (Embedded Support Partner has been tested with the U. S. Robotics Sportster fax modem with X2.)

Perform the following procedure to add or update a modem configuration:

- 1. Select the Paging link in the SETUP category.
- 2. Select the Modem/admin link in the Paging category.
- 3. Enter a modem name (do not include blank spaces), the device to which the modem is connected, and the initialization command for the modem. (Refer to Figure 3-42.)

Be aware of the following information when you configure the initialization command:

- The initialization command is specific to the modem that you are using. Refer to your modem user manual for specific details about the initialization command.
- The initialization command can vary, based on requirements from your paging service provider. For example, many paging services require you to turn off error correction on your modem. (This can be done on the U. S. Robotics Sportster fax modem with X2 with the &AO&KO&MO initialization command.) Contact your paging service provider to determine any special requirements.

xwsh	•
SGI Embedded Support Partner -	ver.1.0
SETUP > Notification > Modem/Admin He	lp
	_
Modem setup:	
Enter modem name: USRobotics-Sportster	
Enter modem device (e.g. /dev/ttya): /dev/ttyd2	
Enter modem initialization command: ATE1F1V1M0 (please check your modem manual)	
Add/Update Delete Clear	

Figure 3-42 Setting Up a Modem (Page 1 [ASCII Interface])

- 4. Select the Add/Update link:
 - If the name that you entered has not been entered before, Embedded Support Partner adds a new modem.
 - If the name that you entered has been entered before, Embedded Support Partner updates the existing parameters for that modem.

The interface displays a confirmation message; refer to Figure 3-43.

[-	xwsh				• 🔲
4		Embedded	Support	Partner	- ver.1.0
	SETUP > Paging > Modem/Admin				
	The fellowing Meder is Added/Undeted				
	Name :USRobotics-	Sportster			
	Device :/dev/ttyd2 Initialization_command :ATE1E1V1M0				
	Intelatization command . HTEI 14100				

Figure 3-43 Setting Up a Modem (Page 2 [ASCII Interface])

Modifying the QPage Parameters

The QPage parameters specify the e-mail address that Embedded Support Partner should contact if it cannot deliver a page successfully and the number of seconds it should wait for a reply before it aborts identification queries.

Perform the following procedure to set up the QPage parameters:

- 1. Select the Paging link in the SETUP category.
- 2. Select the Modem/admin link in the Paging category.
- 3. Specify the e-mail address that Embedded Support Partner should contact if it cannot deliver a page successfully. (Refer to Figure 3-44.)
- 4. Specify the number of seconds Embedded Support Partner should wait for a reply before it aborts identification queries. (Refer to Figure 3-44.)
- 5. Select the Accept link.

	xwsh
<u></u>	SGI Embedded Support Partner – ver.1.0 SETUP > Notification > Modem/Admin Help
	Modem setup:
	Enter modem name:
	Enter modem device (e.g. /dev/ttya):
	Enter modem initialization command:
	Add/Update Delete Clear
	Qpage Administration Setup:
	Enter administrator's e-mail address: dtg@sgi.com (to notify in case if a pager is failed)
	Enter time interval for retrying: 5 secs (stop dial after)
	Accept Clear

Figure 3-44 Modifying the QPage Parameters (Page 1 [ASCII Interface])

The interface displays a confirmation message; refer to Figure 3-45.



Figure 3-45 Modifying the QPage Parameters (Page 2 [ASCII Interface])

Adding/Updating a Paging Service

You need to provide Embedded Support Partner with information about the paging service that you use so it can properly contact your pager.

Perform the following procedure to add or update a description of a paging service:

- 1. Select the Paging link in the SETUP category.
- 2. Select the Service link in the Paging category.
- 3. Update the parameters. (Refer to Figure 3-46; Table 3-8 describes the parameters.)

-	xwsh	•				
	SGI Embedded Support Partn	er – ver.1.0				
	SETUP > Notification > Service	Help				
	Tip: You can add as many services as you want by repeating this step. A service with a new service name will be treated as a new one. If an existing service name is entered with new settings, the existing service is updated. To delete a service you need to enter only the name of the service you want to delete.					
	<u>Service</u> <u>Setup:</u>					
	Service name: PageNet					
	Device (for example, /dev/ttyd): [USRobotics-Sportster]					
	Maximum number of retries (must be at least 6): 6					
	Maximum length of the message (consult your service provider): 150					
	Phone number of the paging service (no spaces): 914084289729					
	<u>Tip:</u> If you cannot find a modem that you need in the list above, add it by using SETUP: Notification: Modem/admin.					
	Add/Update Delete Clear					
V	(Form submit button) Use right-arrow or <return> to submit. Arrow keys: Up and Down to move. Right to follow a link; Left to H)elp D)ptions P)rint G)o M)ain screen Q)uit /=search [delete]=his</return>	go back. tory list 🏾				

Figure 3-46 Adding/Updating a Paging Service (Page 1 [ASCII Interface])

Parameter	Description
Service name	Specifies the name of the service The interface displays this name on other pages to identify the paging service (Do not include blank spaces)
Device	Specifies the modem to use Select the modem from the menu If the modem that you want to use is not in the menu, use the SETUP > Notification > Modem/admin command to add it
Maximum number of retries (must be at least 6)	Specifies the number of times that Embedded Support Partner should attempt to contact this paging service
Maximum length of the message (consult your service provider)	Specifies the maximum number of characters that this service will accept Contact your paging service provider for this information
Phone number of the paging service (no spaces)	Specifies the telephone number that Embedded Support Partner should dial to contact the paging service (Do not include blank spaces)

Table 3-8Parameters for Adding/Updating a Paging Service

4. Select the Add/Update link.

- If the name that you entered has not been entered before, Embedded Support Partner adds a new paging service.
- If the name that you entered has been entered before, Embedded Support Partner updates the existing parameters for that paging service.

The interface displays a confirmation message; refer to Figure 3-47.



Figure 3-47 Adding/Updating a Paging Service (Page 2 [ASCII Interface])

Adding/Updating a Pager

Perform the following procedure to add/update a pager:

- 1. Select the Paging link in the SETUP category.
- 2. Select the Pager link in the Paging category.
- 3. Enter a unique name for the pager. (Do not include blank spaces.) Embedded Support Partner uses this name on other interface pages to identify the pager. (Refer to Figure 3-48.)
- 4. Enter the pager identification number. (Refer to Figure 3-48.)

Your paging service provider assigns a unique pager identification number to each individual pager. This number could differ from the telephone number that you dial to access the pager. Contact your paging service provider to determine the pager identification number of your pager.

	xwsh	•		
	SGI Embedded Support Partner	- ver.	1.0	
	SETUP > Notification > Pager +	lelp		
<u>Tip:</u> You can add as many pagers as you want by repeating this step. Entering a new pager name creates a new pager. Entering an existing pager name updates the configuration of the existing pager. To delete a pager you need to enter the Pager Name only. If you cannot find a service that you need in the list above, add it by using SETUP: Notification: Service.				
	Pager Name : Darrin_Goss			
	Pager ID : 8151992			
	Service Name : [PageNet]			
	Add/Update Delete Clear			

Figure 3-48 Setting Up a Pager (Page 1 [ASCII Interface])

- 5. Select the Add/Update link.
 - If the name that you entered has not been entered before, Embedded Support Partner adds a new pager.
 - If the name that you entered has been entered before, Embedded Support Partner updates the existing parameters for that pager.

The interface displays a confirmation message; refer to Figure 3-49.


Figure 3-49 Setting Up a Pager (Page 2 [ASCII Interface])

Example Configuration

Figure 3-50 shows the example paging configuration that the settings in the previous procedures created. (The SETUP > Paging > View Current Setup command was used to display this information.)

Chapter 3: Using the ASCII Interface to Set Up Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode

	xwsh
	System Support Software – ver.1.0
	SETUP > Events > View Current Setup Help
	QuickPage Administration Variables
	Administrator's E-mail address : dtg@sgi.com
	Number of seconds to wait for a reply : 5 secs before giving up on queries
	Modem Setup
	Modem 1 Name :USRobotics-Sportster Device :/dev/ttyd2 Initialization command :ATE1F1VIM0
	<u>Services Setup</u> Service 1 Name : PageNet Modem Name : USRobotics-Sportster Maximum number of retries : 6 Maximum length of message : 150 Phone Number of Paging Service: 914084289729
	Pager Setup Pager 1 Name : Darrin_Goss Service : PageNet Pager ID: 8151992
-	Commands: Use arrow keys to move, '?' for help, 'q' to quit, '<-' to go back. Arrow keys: Up and Down to move. Right to follow a link; Left to go back.

 Figure 3-50
 Example Paging Configuration (ASCII Interface)

Deleting a Pager

Perform the following procedure to delete a pager:

- 1. Select the Paging link in the SETUP category.
- 2. Select the Pager link in the Paging category.
- 3. Enter the name of the pager that you want to delete. If you cannot remember the name of the pager, use the SETUP > Paging > View Current Setup command to view it. (Refer to Figure 3-51.)

xwsh	•	
SGI Embedded Support Partner	- ver.1	.0
SETUP > Notification > Pager	Нејр	
Tip: You can add as many pagers as you want by repeating this step. Entering a new pager name creates a new pager. Entering an existing pager name updates the configuration of the existing pager. To delete a pager you need to enter the Pager Name only. If you cannot find a service that you need in the list above, add it by using SETUP: Notification: Service.		
Pager Name : Darrin_Goss Pager ID : Service Name : [Service Name List]		
Add/Update <mark>Delete</mark> Clear		
(Form submit button) Use right-arrow or <return> to submit.</return>	book	
(Form submit button) Use right-arrow or <return> to submit. Arrow keys: Up and Down to move. Right to follow a link; Left to go H)elp O)ptions P)rint G)o M)ain screen Q)uit /=search [delete]=histo</return>	back. Dry lis	t

Figure 3-51 Deleting a Pager (Page 1 [ASCII Interface])

Chapter 3: Using the ASCII Interface to Set Up Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode

4. Select the Delete link. (The interface displays a confirmation message; refer to Figure 3-52.)



Figure 3-52 Deleting a Pager (Page 2 [ASCII Interface])

Deleting a Paging Service

Perform the following procedure to delete a paging service:

- 1. Select the Paging link in the SETUP category.
- 2. Select the Service link in the Paging category.
- 3. Enter the name of the paging service that you want to delete. If you cannot remember the name of the paging service, use the SETUP > Paging > View Current Setup command to view it. (Refer to Figure 3-53.)

Warning: Deleting a paging service automatically removes all pagers that are associated with the paging service.

xwsh
SGI Embedded Support Partner - ver.1.0
SETUP > Notification > Service Help
<u>Tip:</u> You can add as many services as you want by repeating this step. A service with a new service name will be treated as a new one. If an existing service name is entered with new settings, the existing service is updated. To delete a service you need to enter only the name of the service you want to delete.
<u>Service</u> <u>Setup:</u>
Service name: PageNet
Device (for example, /dev/ttyd): [Select Modems]
Maximum number of retries (must be at least 6):
Maximum length of the message (consult your service provider):
Phone number of the paging service
<u>Tip:</u> If you cannot find a modem that you need in the list above, add it by using SETUP: Notification: Modem/admin.
Add/Update Delete Clear
(Form submit button) Use right-arrow or <return> to submit. Arrow keys: Up and Down to move. Right to follow a link; Left to go back. H)elp O)ptions P)rint G)o M)ain screen Q)uit /=search [delete]=history list</return>

Figure 3-53 Deleting a Paging Service (Page 1 [ASCII Interface])

4. Select the Delete link. (The interface displays a confirmation message; refer to Figure 3-54.)

Chapter 3: Using the ASCII Interface to Set Up Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode



Figure 3-54 Deleting a Paging Service (Page 2 [ASCII Interface])

Deleting a Modem

Perform the following procedure to delete a modem:

- 1. Select the Paging link in the SETUP category.
- 2. Select the Modem/admin link in the Paging category.
- 3. Enter the name of the modem that you want to delete. If you cannot remember the name of the modem, use the SETUP > Paging > View Current Setup command to view it. (Refer to Figure 3-55.)

Warning: Deleting a modem automatically removes all paging services (and related pagers) that are associated with it.

F	-	xwsh		•
		SGI	Embedded Support Partner – ve	er.1.0
		SETUP > Notification > Modem/Admin	Help	
	l	Modem setup:		
		Enter modem name:	USRobotics-Sportster	
		Enter modem device (e.g. /dev/ttya):		
	L	Enter modem initialization command: (please check your modem manual)		
	L	Add/Update <mark>Delete</mark> Clear		
	L	Qpage Administration Setup:		
	l	Enter administrator's e-mail address: (to notify in case if a pager is failed)	
	l	Enter time interval for retrying: (stop dial after)	secs	
		Accept Clear		

Figure 3-55 Deleting a Modem (Page 1 [ASCII Interface])

4. Select the Delete link. (The interface displays a confirmation message; refer to Figure 3-56.)



Figure 3-56 Deleting a Modem (Page 2 [ASCII Interface])

Setting Up the Availability Monitor in Single System Manager Mode

The availability monitor portion of Embedded Support Partner (availmon) monitors and reports the availability of systems and also reports the diagnosis of system crashes. The availability monitor identifies the cause of any system interrupts by gathering information from diagnostic programs such as ICRASH, FRU Analyzer, and SYSLOG. It also gathers hardware and software configuration details from configmon.

The availability monitor is embedded in the system boot and shutdown processes. It differentiates between controlled shutdowns, system panics, and system hangs. On high-end systems (such as IP19, IP21, IP25, IP27, etc.), it differentiates between nonmaskable interrupts (NMIs), power cycles, and power failures. The availability monitor also monitors the uptime of a system at regular intervals. This uptime monitoring feature can be used to send status updates for a system. The uptime monitoring is done through eventmond.

Embedded Support Partner can send data that the availability monitor gathers in a report format to e-mail addresses that you specify. You can also view the data gathered on a system by using the SYSTEM INFORMATION > Availability command.

The following sections describe how to set up the availability monitor.

Viewing the Current Availability Monitoring Setup

The current availability monitoring setup defines all of the availability monitor parameters that are currently configured on your system.

To view the current availability monitoring setup, select the Availability Monitoring link in the SETUP category, and then select the View Current Setup link in the Availability Monitoring category. Figure 3-57 shows an example page.



Figure 3-57 Viewing the Current Availability Monitor Setup Page (ASCII Interface)

Configuring the Availability Monitor

Perform the following procedure to configure the availability monitor:

- 1. Select the Availability Monitoring link in the SETUP category.
- 2. Select the Configuration link in the Availability Monitoring category.
- 3. Set up the parameters. (Refer to Figure 3-58; Table 3-9 describes the parameters.)

Chapter 3: Using the ASCII Interface to Set Up Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode

⇒ xwsh							•	
SETUP > Availmon Monitor > C	Er onfiguration	nbe	dded	Support	Par	tner – Hel	ver. p	1.0
- Automatic e-mail distributio	n	:	()	Enable	(*)	Disabl	e	
Display reason for shutdown			(*)	Enable	()	Disabl	е	
Include HINV information in	the e-mail		(*)	Yes	()	No		
Start uptime daemon			(*)	Yes	()	No		
Number of days between statu (0 – 300)	s updates		60_	_ days				
Interval in seconds between (default - 300 seconds)	uptime checks		300_	_ second:	3			
<u>Tip:</u> If the automatic e-mai you must complete SETU	l option is enal > > Availabilitų	ole J M	d, onito	or > E−ma	aill	List.		
Accept Clear								

Figure 3-58 Configuring the Availability Monitor (ASCII Interface)

4. Select the Accept link.

Parameter	Possible Values	Description
Automatic e-mail distribution	Enable or Disable	Specifies whether the availability monitor should automatically distribute reports by e-mail
		Any changes to this parameter cause a confirmation report to be sent to all configured e-mail addresses (except the e-mail addresses that are configured to receive pager reports)
Display reason for shutdown	Enable or Disable	Specifies whether the availability monitor should display the reason for a shutdown If this parameter is enabled when you perform a controlled shutdown, the availability monitor prompts you to explain why you are rebooting the system or why you are bringing the system down to single-user mode
Include HINV information in the e-mail	Yes or No	Specifies whether the availability monitor should include HINV information/changes in the e-mail messages that it generates
Start uptime daemon	Yes or No	Specifies whether the availability monitor should start uptime monitoring
		If you set this parameter to Yes, it enables eventmond to monitor uptime at regular intervals
		You can set the interval with the Interval in seconds between uptime checks parameter
Number of days between status updates (0 - 300)	0 - 300	Specifies the number of days after which the availability monitor should send a notification to the configured e-mail addresses that the system is still running This parameter is relevant only when uptime
		monitoring is enabled
Interval in seconds between uptime checks (default -	0 - 300	Specifies the number of seconds that the availability monitor should wait before it performs the next uptime check on the system
300 seconds)		This parameter is relevant only when uptime monitoring is enabled

 Table 3-9
 Availability Monitor Parameters

Setting Up the Availability Monitor E-mail Lists

You can configure Embedded Support Partner to send e-mail messages with reports that are generated from the availability data. Embedded Support Partner can send three types of reports: availability, diagnosis, and pager reports.

- Availability reports include the system start time, an event code for the availability event that occurred, the approximate time that the event occurred, the start time, and a summary of the reason for the crash (when relevant).
- Diagnosis reports include all of the data from the availability reports. They may also contain the crash analysis report, FRU Analyzer result, important SYSLOG messages, and system hardware and software configurations (if they changed since the previous reboot).
- Pager reports contain the hostname, event code description, and summary.

You can set up the availability monitor e-mail lists for each type of report. You can also specify whether the reports need to be encrypted or compressed. Reports are sent only if you set the Automatic e-mail distribution parameter to Enable (refer to Table 3-9).

The recommended configuration is to send the diagnosis report in compressed and encrypted format to SGI at the availmon@csd.sgi.com e-mail address for entry in SGI's database. Other possibilities include sending the availability reports to the system administrator and sending diagnosis reports to SGI service personnel.

Perform the following procedure to set up the e-mail lists:

- 1. Select the Availability Monitoring link in the SETUP category.
- Select the Availability MailList link in the Availability Monitoring category.
- 3. Set up the e-mail addresses for the availability report. (Refer to Figure 3-59; Table 3-10 describes the parameters.)

Note: A confirmation message is sent to the e-mail addresses of any users that you add or remove from this list.

4. Set up the e-mail addresses for the diagnostic report. (Refer to Figure 3-59; Table 3-11 describes the parameters.)

Note: A confirmation message is sent to the e-mail addresses of any users that you add or remove from this list.

-	-	xwsh	
		Embedded Support Partner - ver.1.0	ð
	l	SETUP > Availability Monitoring > MailList Help	
		<u>E-mail list for availability report:</u>	
	l	Enter e-mail addresses that receive availability report in text form : in compressed form : in compressed encrypted form :	
		<u>E-mail list for diagnostic report:</u>	
	l	Enter e-mail addresses that receive diagnostic report in text form :	
		<u>E-mail list for chatty pager</u>	
		Enter email addresses for chatty pager:	
		Accept Clear	

Figure 3-59 Setting Up the Availability Monitor E-mail Lists (ASCII Interface)

 Table 3-10
 E-mail Address Parameters for Availability Reports

Parameter	Description
Enter e-mail addresses that receive availability report in text form	Specifies the e-mail addresses that will receive the availability report in text format
Enter e-mail addresses that receive availability report in compressed form	Specifies the e-mail addresses that will receive the availability report in compressed format
Enter e-mail addresses that receive availability report in compressed encrypted form	Specifies the e-mail addresses that will receive the availability report in compressed (encrypted) format

Parameter	Description
Enter e-mail addresses that receive diagnostic report in text form	Specifies the e-mail addresses that will receive the diagnostic report in text format
Enter e-mail addresses that receive diagnostic report in compressed form	Specifies the e-mail addresses that will receive the diagnostic report in compressed format
Enter e-mail addresses that receive diagnostic report in compressed encrypted form	Specifies the e-mail addresses that will receive the diagnostic report in compressed (encrypted) format

Table 3-11 E-mail Address Parameters for Diagnostic Reports

- 5. Set up the e-mail addresses that will receive the pager reports through a chatty pager.
- 6. Select the Accept link.

Setting Up the Performance Monitor in Single System Manager Mode

The performance monitor component of Embedded Support Partner monitors system performance by evaluating a set of performance rules at specified time intervals.

Viewing the Current Performance Monitoring Setup

The current performance monitoring indicates which performance rules are currently being monitored. (An Enabled status indicates that Embedded Support Partner is monitoring the rule; a Disabled status indicates that Embedded Support Partner is not monitoring the rule.)

To view the current performance monitoring setup, select the Performance Monitoring link in the SETUP category, and then select the View Current Setup link in the Performance Monitoring category. Figure 3-60 shows an example page.

xwsh		•
	GI Embedded Support Partner – ver.1.0	(p1 of 2)
SETUP > Performance Monitorin	ng > PMIE Configuration H	lelp
Automated performance monitor	ring: <u>Enabled</u>	
Automated performance monitor perfomance rules take effect.	ring must be enabled in order to enable	d
Current status of automated F	MIE monitoring rules:	
PMIE Rule Description	PMIE Rule	Status
High aggregate context switch ra Possible high floating point exc High 1-minute load average Low average processor utilizatio High aggregate system call rate Busy executing in system mode High average processor utilizati CrayLink checkbit errors on Orig CrayLink checkbit errors on Orig System Group Manager service pro Low buffer cache read hit ratio High directory name cache miss r File system is filling up Severe demand for real memory Low free swap space Serious demand for network buffe High number of TCP packet retrar High number of TCP packet retrar High perses space	te cpu.context_switch ception rate cpu.excess_fpe cpu.load_average on cpu.low_util cpu.syscall cpu.system ion cpu.util gin node craylink.node_cb_errs gin router craylink.router_cb_errs pe response espping.response bbe failure espping.response bbe failure espping.response bbe failure espping.response bbe failure espsing.response bbe failure espsing.response filesys.buffer_cache rate filesys.dnlc_miss filesys.filling memory.exhausted memory.exhausted memory.ewap_low ers network.buffers ropped network.tcp_retransmit e per_cpu.context_switch	Disabled Disabled Disabled Enabled Enabled Disabled Disabled Disabled Disabled Disabled Disabled Disabled Disabled Disabled Enabled Enabled
Arrow keys: Up and Down to mov H)elp O)ptions P)rint G)o M)air	/e. Right to follow a link; Left to go h screen Q)uit /=search [delete]=histon	back. y list 🛛

Figure 3-60 Viewing the Current Performance Monitoring Setup (ASCII Interface)

Configuring the Performance Monitor

Perform the following procedure to configure the performance monitor:

- 1. Select the Performance Monitoring link in the SETUP category.
- 2. Select the Configuration link in the Performance Monitoring category.
- 3. Specify the rules that you want to monitor: Select the Enabled radio button to start monitoring a rule; select the Disabled radio button to stop monitoring a rule. (Refer to Figure 3-61; refer to the *Performance Co-Pilot IRIX Base Software Administrator's Guide*, publication number 007-3964-001, for more information about the rules.)

Chapter 3: Using the ASCII Interface to Set Up Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode

 Figure 3-61
 Configuring the Performance Monitor (ASCII Interface)

4. Select the Accept link.

Chapter 4

Using the ASCII Interface to View Information about a System in Single System Manager Mode

Use the commands in the SYSTEM INFORMATION category of the ASCII interface to view the following types of information from the system that is running Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager mode:

- Hardware configuration
- Software configuration
- System changes
- Part changes
- Events registered
- Actions taken
- Diagnostic results
- System availability

The ASCII interface is provided for systems that do not have graphics capability. If your system has graphics hardware, use the graphical interface. Refer to Chapter 6, "Using the Graphical Interface to View Information about a System in Single System Manager Mode" for more information about using the graphical interface to view information about a system in Single System Manager mode.

Viewing the Hardware Configuration for a Specific Date

Perform the following procedure to view the hardware configuration information for a specific date and time:

- 1. Select the Hardware link in the SYSTEM INFORMATION category.
- 2. Specify the date in the Date field. If you do not specify a date, the current hardware configuration information is displayed. (Refer to Figure 4-1.)

Chapter 4: Using the ASCII Interface to View Information about a System in Single System Manager Mode

- 3. Specify the time in the Time field. If you do not specify a time, the latest hardware configuration information that is available for the specified date is displayed. (Refer to Figure 4-1.)
- 4. Set the radio button next to the database that you want to use. Be sure to select the database that contains the data for the date that you have selected. (Refer to Figure 4-1.)

ſ		xwsh
	<u></u>	SGI Embedded Support Partner - ver.1.0
		SYSTEM INFORMATION > Hardware Help
		System name : miramar.csd.sgi.com System ID : B0009935 System serial number : K000935 IP type : IP27 System IP address : 150.166.5.88
		Display hardware configuration information for the following date and time:
		Date: 06/19/1999 (mm/dd/yyyy) Time: 08:00:00 (hh:mm:ss)
		Choose a database for a selected date:
		Database Name Start Date End Date
		(*) Active Database 06/14/1999 Current
		Accept Clear
-		(Form submit button) Use right-arrow or <return> to submit. Arrow keys: Up and Down to move. Right to follow a link; Left to go back.</return>
	Y	Heip Uptions Pjrint Gjo Mjain screen Qjuit /=search [delete]=history list

Figure 4-1 Viewing the Hardware System Information (Page 1 [ASCII Interface])

5. Select the Accept link.

The interface displays a table that contains the hardware configuration that existed on the date and at the time that you specified. (Refer to Figure 4-2; Table 4-1 describes the information that the table contains.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Hardware 	
System name : miramar.csd.sgi.com System ID : B0009935 System serial number : K0009935	
IP type : IP27 System IP address : 150.166.5.88	
Name Location Part Number Serial Number Revisi	on
[-]]1 NA NA K0009935 NA [-]4P165_MPLN NA 013-1839-001 DNA019 E [+]1P27 n2 030-0733-003 DAM399 P [+]1P27 n1 030-0733-003 DAM7042 P [-]6E14-4 io4 030-1129-002 EZC646 F RM7 io4 RM7 RM7 RM7 RM7 io4 030-1054-001 EDW463 F TM7-64 io4 030-1054-001 EDW278 E RM7 io4 030-1054-001 DMM599 E TM7-64 io4 030-1054-001 DMM599 E TM7-64 io4 030-1053-001 EDW278 E MENET io5 030-0873-003 HPS474 J MENET io5 030-0873-003 HPS474 J HENET io1 030-073-002 DV2750 B	

Figure 4-2 Viewing the Hardware System Information (Page 2 [ASCII Interface])

Column Heading	Description
NAME	Name of the part
LOCATION	Location where the part is currently installed
PART_NUMBER	Part number for the part
SERIAL_NUMBER	Serial number of the part Tip: Use the serial number with the SYSTEM INFORMATION > Part Changes command to determine all of the locations in which a specific part has been installed
REVISION	Revision level of the part

 Table 4-1
 Hardware Configuration Table Contents

The first column provides links to expand rows in the table to provide more information about subcomponents of a part. The [+] link expands the rows to show the subcomponents related to the part. The [-] link collapses the rows for the subcomponents.

Note: Embedded Support Partner gathers hardware configuration data from only the following types of systems: SGI Origin 200, Origin 2000, and Challenge servers; and Silicon Graphics O2, Octane, Onyx, and Onyx2 workstations.

You can navigate through the table as follows:

- Use the space bar or down arrow to move to the next page.
- Use the up arrow to move to the previous page.

Viewing the Software Configuration for a Specific Date

Perform the following procedure to view the software configuration for a specific date and time:

- 1. Select the Software link in the SYSTEM INFORMATION category.
- 2. Specify the date in the Date field. If you do not specify a date, the current software configuration information is displayed. (Refer to Figure 4-3.)

- 3. Specify the time in the Time field. If you do not specify a time, the latest software configuration information that is available for the specified date is displayed. (Refer to Figure 4-3.)
- 4. Set the radio button next to the database that you want to use. Be sure to select the database that contains the data for the date that you have selected. (Refer to Figure 4-3.)

xwsh	•
SGI Embedded Support Partner - ver	r.1.0
SYSTEM INFORMATION > Software Help	
System name : hello.csd.sgi.com System ID : 69089ACA System serial number : 080069089ACA IP type : IP22 System IP address : 150.166.4.15	
Display software configuration information for the following date and time:	
Date: 06/09/1999 (mm/dd/yyyy) Time: 08:00:00 (hh:mm:ss)	
Choose a database for a selected date:	
Database Name Start Date End Date	
(*) Active Database 05/20/1999 Current	
Accept Clear	
(Form submit button) Use right-arrow or <return> to submit.</return>	
Arrow keys: Up and Down to move. Right to follow a link; Left to go back Help O)ptions P)rint G)o M)ain screen Q)uit /=search [delete]=history light	st []

Figure 4-3 Viewing the Software System Information (Page 1 [ASCII Interface])

5. Select the Accept link.

The interface displays a table that contains the software configuration that existed on the date and at the time that you specified. (Refer to Figure 4-4; Table 4-2 describes the information that the table contains.)

Chapter 4: Using the ASCII Interface to View Information about a System in Single System Manager Mode

xwsh		
Fmbaddad Sud	port Partner - V	Jon 1 0 (n1
SYSTEM INFORMATION > Software		rei. 1.0 (pi
System name : hello.csd.sgi.com System ID : 69089ACA System serial number : 080069089ACA IP type : IP22 System IP address : 150.166.4.15		
Name Description	Version	Install Date
4Dwm ADwm	1275625620	06/03/1999
i besktop window Manager, 0.3.3m		
CaseVision Environment, Version 2.6.5	1024068010	11/13/1998
CaseVision CASEVision Environment, Version 2.6.5 CASEVision Environmen	1024068010 1274627333	11/13/1998 11/13/1998 11/13/1998
Desktop Window Window , 0.3.3m 	1024068010 1274627333 1274627333 1.2.1	11/13/1998 11/13/1998 11/13/1998 11/13/1998
CaseVision CASEVision Environment, Version 2.6.5 InPerson InPerson Desktop Conferencing, 2.2.1 PeoplePages PeoplePages – The Indigo Magic Phonebook, Register On-Line Registration, 1.6	1024068010 1274627333 1274627333 1.2.1 1275625620	11/13/1998 11/13/1998 11/13/1998 11/13/1998 06/03/1999

Figure 4-4 Viewing the Software System Information (Page 2 [ASCII Interface])

 Table 4-2
 Software Configuration Table Contents

Column Heading	Description
Name Description	Name of the software application (first line) and brief description of the software application (second line)
Version	Version number of the software application
Install Date	Date on which the software application was installed

Each page displays ten items. Use the symbols at the bottom of the page to navigate through the pages as follows:

- Use the numbers at the bottom of that page to select the corresponding pages.
- Use the > link to move to the next group of pages.
- Use the >> link to move to the last group of pages.
- Use the < link to move to the previous group of pages.
- Use the << link to move to the first group of pages.
- Use the space bar or down arrow to move to the next screen.
- Use the up arrow to move to the previous screen.

Viewing the System Changes between a Range of Dates

You can view a log of all system changes (hardware and software changes) within a range of dates.

Perform the following procedure to view the system changes information:

- 1. Select the System Changes link in the SYSTEM INFORMATION category.
- Specify the starting date (in the From field) and ending date (in the To field) of the range of dates for which you want to view system change information. (Refer to Figure 4-5.)

Note: To view all system changes on a specific day, enter that date in both fields.

3. Set the radio button next to the database that you want to use. Be sure to select the database that contains the data for the date that you have selected. (Refer to Figure 4-5.)

Chapter 4: Using the ASCII Interface to View Information about a System in Single System Manager Mode

xwsh	a	
	System Support Software – ver.	.0
SYSTEM	M INFORMATION > System Changes Help	
System System System IP typ System	m name : hello.csd.sgi.com m ID : 69089ACA m serial number : 080069089ACA pe : IP22 m IP address : 150.166.4.15	
Displa From: To:	ay information of system configuration changes: 06/01/1999 (mm/dd/yyyy) 06/10/1999 (mm/dd/yyyy)	
<u>Tip:</u>	To see changes for one specific day, enter the same date in both text boxes. If you do not specify a date, all system configuration changes are displayed.	
Choose	e a database for specified period of time:	
 	Database Name Start Date End Date	
(*)	Active Database 05/20/1999 Current	
Accept	t Clear	
(Form sub Arrow k ▼ H)elp 0)	bmit button) Use right-arrow or ≺return> to submit ('x' for no cache) keys: Up and Down to move. Right to follow a link; Left to go back.)ptions P)rint G)o M)ain screen Q)uit /=search [delete]=history list	

Figure 4-5 Viewing the System Changes Information (Page 1 [ASCII Interface])

4. Select the Accept link.

The interface displays up to three tables that show all software changes, hardware changes, and system changes that occurred between the range of dates that you specified. (Refer to Figure 4-6; Table 4-3, Table 4-4, and Table 4-5 describe the information that the system changes tables contain.)

xwsh				
	Embedded	d Support Pa	rtner – Ver. 1.0) (p1 o
SYSTEM INFORMATION >	System Changes			
System name : System ID : System serial number : IP type : System IP address : All Changes since 06/0	hello.csd.sgi.c 69089ACA 080069089ACA 1P22 150.166.4.15 1/1999	com		
SOFTWARE CHANGES				
Name Description	Version	Install Da	te Deinstall	Date
4Dwm Desktop Window Manage	1275616120 r, 6.5.5m	06/01/1999	Installed	 I
Register On-Line Registration,	1275616120 1.6	06/01/1999	Installed	1
ViewKit_dev ViewKit Development E	1275616120 nvironment, Vers	06/01/1999 sion 1.5.3	Installed	1
ViewKit_eoe ViewKit Execution Env	1275616120 ironment, Versic	06/01/1999 on 1.5.3	Installec	1
ViewKit_noship ViewKit_NOSHIP_files,	1275616120 Version 1.5.3 a	06/01/1999 and 2.1.0	Installed	1
 desktop_base IRIX Interactive Desk - press space for next p	1275616120 top Base Softwar age	06/01/1999 re, 6.5.5m	Installed	8
Arrow keys: Up and Down	to move. Right	to follow a	link; Left to g	jo back

Figure 4-6 Viewing the System Changes Information (Page 2 [ASCII Interface])

Description
Name of the software application (first line) and brief description of the software application (second line)
Version number of the software application
Date on which the software application was installed
Date that the software application was removed from the system
This column displays Installed if the software application has not been deinstalled

Table 4-3Software Changes Table Contents

Table 4-4 Hardware Changes Table Contents

Column Name	Description
NAME	Name of the part
LOCATION	Location where the part is currently installed
PART_NUMBER	Part number for the part
SERIAL_NUMBER	Serial number of the part Tip: Use the serial number with the SYSTEM INFORMATION > Part Changes command to determine all of the locations in which a specific part has been installed
REVISION	Revision level of the part
Install Time	The date on which the component was installed
Deinstall Time	The date on which the component was deinstalled

Column Name	Description
System Changes	A label that indicates the information is from the CURRENT SYSTEM or PREVIOUS SYSTEM
System Id	System identification number
System type	Processor that the system uses
System serial number	Serial number of the system
Hostname	Host name of the system
IP address	IP address of the system

 Table 4-5
 System Changes Table Contents

You can navigate through the tables as follows:

- Use the space bar or down arrow to move to the next page.
- Use the up arrow to move to the previous page.

Be aware of the following information when you view these tables:

- Embedded Support Partner gathers hardware configuration data from only the following types of systems: SGI Origin 200, Origin 2000, and Challenge servers; and Silicon Graphics O2, Octane, Onyx, and Onyx2 workstations.
- For SGI Challenge servers and Silicon Graphics Onyx workstations, detailed information about the boards that are installed is not available. This impacts the hardware changes table as follows:
 - If a board is replaced with the same type of board in the same slot, Embedded Support Partner does not detect the change.
 - If a board is moved to a new slot, Embedded Support Partner detects the change.
- When you deinstall a hardware component, Embedded Support Partner reports that all subcomponents of the part are deinstalled.
- If you replace a module with a new module that contains the boards from the previous module, Embedded Support Partner reports that the components were deinstalled and then installed again.

Chapter 4: Using the ASCII Interface to View Information about a System in Single System Manager Mode

- The software installation time is always shown as 12:00 midnight GMT (adjusted for the local time zone) of the day that the software was installed.
- Embedded Support Partner registers two events when hardware and software components are replaced. One event is for the deinstallation of the previous component, and the other event is for the installation of the new component.

Viewing the Part Changes Information

The part changes information shows all locations in which a specific part has been installed.

Perform the following procedure to view the part changes information:

- 1. Select the Part Changes link in the SYSTEM INFORMATION category.
- 2. Enter the serial number of the part in the field. (Refer to Figure 4-7.)
- 3. Set the radio button next to the database that you want to use. Be sure to select the database that contains the data for the date that you have selected. (Refer to Figure 4-7.)

xwsh	•
Embedded Support Partner - SYSTEM INFORMATION > Part Changes He	ver.1.0 lp
Enter the serial number of the part for which you would like to see changes (history):	
EZC646	
Choose a database:	
– Database Name Start Date End Date (*) Active Database 06/14/1999 Current	
Accept Clear	
Tip: For part serial number information please refer to the SYSTEM INFORMATION: Hardware section.	
(Text entry field) Enter text. Use UP or DOWN arrows or tab to move of Enter text into the field by typing on the keyboard Ctrl-U to delete all text in field. (Backspace) to delete a charari	f.

 Figure 4-7
 Viewing the Part Changes Information (Page 1 [ASCII Interface])

4. Select the Accept link.

The interface displays a table that contains all locations in which the part has been installed. (Refer to Figure 4-8; Table 4-6 describes the information that the part changes table contains.)

	xwsh		•
	SYSTEM INFORMATION > P	Embedded Support Partner – Ver art Changes	. 1
	System name : System ID : System serial number : IP type : System IP address :	miramar.csd.sgi.com 80009935 K0009935 IP27 150.166.5.88	
l	Name Installed:	Location Part Number Serial Number Revision Deinstaled:	
	GE14-4 Installed: 06/14/1999	io4 030-1129-002 EZC646 F Deinstaled: 0	

Figure 4-8 Viewing the Part Changes Information (Page 2 [ASCII Interface])

Table 4-6Part Changes Table Contents

Column Heading	Description
Name Installed	Name of the part (first line) and date that the part was installed (second line)
Location Deinstalled	Location at which the part was installed (first line) and date that the part was deinstalled (second line [a 0 indicates that the part was not deinstalled])
Part Number	Part number for the part
Serial Number	Serial number of the part
Revision	Revision level of the part

You can navigate through the table as follows:

- Use the space bar or down arrow to move to the next page.
- Use the up arrow to move to the previous page.

Viewing the Events that Have Been Registered

Embedded Support Partner logs all of the events that it registers. To view this information, select the Events Registered link in the SYSTEM INFORMATION category. Figure 4-9 shows the page that you use to view the information about registered events.

	dawn dawn					
	Embedded Suppo	rt Partner - ver.1.0				
_	SYSTEM INFORMATION > Events Registered	Help				
	The information below pertains to a historical records of events that occured on the system. If you need current event setup information, refer to SETUP: Events: View Current Setup.					
	Enter the date(s) for which you want system events information:					
	From: To: (mm/dd/yyyy) (mm/dd/yyyy)					
	Choose the event information to view:					
	(*) All System Events displays all events tha on the system within th selected dates.	t have occured e range of the				
	() Specific System Event displays selected event occured on the system w of the selected dates.	s that have ithin the range				
	() System Events by Class displays events in the that have occured on th the range of the select	selected class e system within ed dates.				
	Accept Clear					
	(NORMAL LINK) Use right-arrow or <return> to activate. Arrow keys: Up and Down to move. Right to follow a link: Left to po back.</return>					
V	H)elp O)ptions P)rint G)o M)ain screen Q)uit /=search [del	ete]=history list 🏾				

Figure 4-9 Options for Viewing Events that Have Been Registered (ASCII Interface)

Using the All System Events Option

The All System Events option displays all events that have been registered within the range of dates that you specify.

Perform the following procedure to use the All System Events option:

- 1. Select the Events Registered link in the SYSTEM INFORMATION category.
- 2. Specify the range of dates that you want to view. (Refer to Figure 4-10.)
- 3. Set the radio button next to the All System Events option. (Refer to Figure 4-10.)



Figure 4-10 Using the All System Events Option (Page 1 [ASCII Interface])

4. Select the Accept link.

The interface displays a table of all events that have been registered within the range of dates that you specified. (Refer to Figure 4-11; Table 4-7 describes the information that the table contains.)

xwsh			•
	Embedde	ed Support Partner – ver.1.0 (p1	of
SYSTE	M INFORMATION > Events Registered	> All System Events	
Syste Syste Syste Syste Syste	m name : hello.csd.sgi.co m ID : 69089ACA m serial number : 080069089ACA m IP type : IP22 m IP address : 150.166.4.15	m	
Class of Event : All events			
Page	1 of 4		
No.	Event Class Event Description	First Occurrence Event ID Last Occurrence Count	
 1 	System Configuration Configmon init	05/20/1999 22:23:23 0x200100 05/20/1999 22:23:23 1	
 2 	Availability Controlled shutdown (3)	05/20/1999 22:23:39 0x200020 05/20/1999 22:23:39 1	
 3 	User Process killed [limit exceeded]	05/22/1999 21:24:28 0x6DA 05/22/1999 21:24:28 1	
4 System Configuration 05/24/1999 16:25:54 0x200104 Software installed 05/24/1999 16:25:54			
5 	System Configuration Software de-installed	05/24/1999 16:25:54 0x200105 05/24/1999 16:25:54 1	
 6 	Availability Controlled shutdown (1)	05/24/1999 16:26:14 0x20001E 05/24/1999 16:26:14 1	
 - press Arrow H)elp_O	space for next page	to follow a link; Left to go bac)uit /=search [delete]=history l	k. is

Figure 4-11 Using the All System Events Option (Page 2 [ASCII Interface])

Column Heading	Description
No.	Index number within the table
Event Class Event Description	The class in which the event belongs (first line) and a brief description of the event (second line)
Event	Unique identification number for the event
First Occurrence Last Occurrence	Date and time at which the event was first registered (first line) and date and time at which the event was last registered (second line)
Event ID Count	Identification number of the event (first line) and number of times that the event occurred (second line)

Table 4-7 Table Contents for the All System Events Option

Each page displays ten items. Use the symbols at the bottom of the page to navigate through the pages as follows:

- Use the numbers at the bottom of that page to select the corresponding pages.
- Use the > link to move to the next group of pages.
- Use the >> link to move to the last group of pages.
- Use the < link to move to the previous group of pages.
- Use the << link to move to the first group of pages.
- Use the space bar or down arrow to move to the next screen.
- Use the up arrow to move to the previous screen.

Using the Specific System Event Option

The Specific System Event option displays all event registrations for a specific event within the range of dates that you specify.

Perform the following procedure to use the Specific System Event option:

- 1. Select the Events Registered link in the SYSTEM INFORMATION category.
- 2. Specify the range of dates that you want to view. (Refer to Figure 4-12.)

3. Set the radio button next to the Specific System Event option. (Refer to Figure 4-12.)



Figure 4-12 Using the Specific System Event Option (Page 1 [ASCII Interface])

4. Choose the class that contains the event that you want to view. (Refer to Figure 4-13.)

Chapter 4: Using the ASCII Interface to View Information about a System in Single System Manager Mode



Figure 4-13 Using the Specific System Event Option (Page 2 [ASCII Interface])

- 5. Select the Accept link.
- 6. Choose the event that you want to view. (Refer to Figure 4-14.)



Figure 4-14 Using the Specific System Event Option (Page 3 [ASCII Interface])

7. Select the Accept link.

The interface displays a table that shows all registrations of the event within the range of dates that you specified. (Refer to Figure 4-15; Table 4-8 describes the information that the table contains.)
xwsh	
Embedded Support Partner - ver.1.0 (p1 of	2)
SYSTEM INFORMATION > Events Registered > Specific System Event	
System name : hello.csd.sgi.com System ID : 69089ACA System serial number : 080069089ACA System IP type : IP22 System IP address : 150.166.4.15 Class of Event : Availability Event Description : Controlled shutdown (1) Event ID : 8x20001E	
Page 1 of 2 No. First Event Occurrence Last Event Occurrence Event Count	
 1 05/24/1999 16:26:14 05/24/1999 16:26:14 1	
2 05/26/1999 09:22:51 05/26/1999 09:22:51 1	
3 05/27/1999 11:26:39 05/27/1999 11:26:39 1	
4 05/27/1999 15:55:29 05/27/1999 15:55:29 1	
5 05/28/1999 14:03:24 05/28/1999 14:03:24 1	
6 05/28/1999 15:25:56 05/28/1999 15:25:56 1	
7 06/01/1999 15:54:23 06/01/1999 15:54:23 1	
8 06/01/1999 16:12:32 06/01/1999 16:12:32 1	
9 06/01/1999 16:28:22 06/01/1999 16:28:22 1 - press space for next page] Arrow keys: Up and Down to move. Right to follow a link; Left to go back. Hyelp O)ptions P)rint G)o M)ain screen Q)uit /=search [delete]=history list	

Figure 4-15 Using the Specific System Event Option (Page 4 [ASCII Interface])

Table 4-8 Table Contents for the Specific System Event Option

Column Heading	Description
No.	Index number within the table
First Event Occurrence	Date and time at which the event was first registered
Last Event Occurrence	Date and time at which the event was last registered
Event Count	Number of times that event occurred for that registration

- Use the numbers at the bottom of that page to select the corresponding pages.
- Use the > link to move to the next group of pages.
- Use the >> link to move to the last group of pages.
- Use the < link to move to the previous group of pages.
- Use the << link to move to the first group of pages.
- Use the space bar or down arrow to move to the next screen.
- Use the up arrow to move to the previous screen.

System Events by Class Option

The System Events by Class option displays all registrations of events in a specific class.

Perform the following procedure to use the System Events by Class option:.

- 1. Select the Events Registered link in the SYSTEM INFORMATION category.
- 2. Specify the range of dates that you want to view. (Refer to Figure 4-16.)
- 3. Set the radio button next to the System Events by Class option. (Refer to Figure 4-16.)

xwsh	•
	Embedded Support Partner – ver.1.0
SYSTEM INFORMATION > Events Regi	stered Help
The information below pertains t that occured on the system. If y information, refer to SETUP: Eve	o a historical records of events ou need current event setup nts: View Current Setup.
Enter the date(s) for which you	want system events information:
From: 06/01/1999 To: 06/10/1 (mm/dd/yyyy) (mm/dd/y	999 Yyy)
Choose the event information to	view:
() All System Events	displays all events that have occured on the system within the range of the selected dates.
() Specific System Event	displays selected events that have occured on the system within the range of the selected dates.
(*) System Events by Class	displays events in the selected class that have occured on the system within the range of the selected dates.
Accept Clear	
(Form submit button) Use right-arro	ω or <return> to submit.</return>
Arrow keys: Up and Down to move. H)elp O)ptions P)rint G)o M)ain sc	Right to follow a link; Left to go back. reen Q)uit /=search [delete]=history list 🛛 🗌

Figure 4-16 Using the System Events by Class Option (Page 1 [ASCII Interface])

- 4. Select the Accept link.
- 5. Choose the event class. (Refer to Figure 4-17.)

Chapter 4: Using the ASCII Interface to View Information about a System in Single System Manager Mode



Figure 4-17 Using the System Events by Class Option (Page 2 [ASCII Interface])

6. Select the Accept link.

The interface displays information about all events from the selected class that were registered between the dates that you specified. (Refer to Figure 4-18; Table 4-9 describes the information that the table contains.)

	xwsh	•
	Embedded Support Partner – ve	r.1.0
	SYSTEM INFORMATION > Events Registered > System Events by Class	
	System name : hello.csd.sgi.com System ID : 69089ACA System serial number : 080069089ACA System IP type : IP22 System IP address : 150.166.4.15	
	Class of Event : Availability	
	Page 1 of 1	
	No. Event Description Event ID First Event Occurrence Last Event Occurrence Event Count	
	1 Controlled shutdown (1) 0x20001E 06/01/1999 15:54:23 06/01/1999 15:54:23 1	
	2 Controlled shutdown (1) 0x20001E 06/01/1999 16:12:32 06/01/1999 16:12:32 1	
	3 Controlled shutdown (1) 0x20001E 06/01/1999 16:28:22 06/01/1999 16:28:22 1	
	4 Controlled shutdown (1) 0x20001E 06/01/1999 16:44:27 06/01/1999 16:44:27 1	
	5 Controlled shutdown (1) 0x20001E 06/03/1999 14:36:04 06/03/1999 14:36:04 1	
[Return on Main Page Commands: Use arrow keys to move, '?' for help, 'q' to quit, '<-' to go ba Arrow keys: Up and Down to move. Right to follow a link; Left to go back	ck.

Figure 4-18 Using the System Events by Class Option (Page 3 [ASCII Interface])

Column Heading	Description
No.	Index number in the table
Event Description First Occurrence	Brief description of the event (first row) and the date and time at which the event was first registered (second row)
Last Occurrence	Date and time at which the event was last registered
Event ID Event Count	Unique identification number for the event (first row) and the number of times that the event occurred (second row)

- Use the numbers at the bottom of that page to select the corresponding pages.
- Use the > link to move to the next group of pages.
- Use the >> link to move to the last group of pages.
- Use the < link to move to the previous group of pages.
- Use the << link to move to the first group of pages.
- Use the space bar or down arrow to move to the next screen.
- Use the up arrow to move to the previous screen.

Viewing Information about the Actions Taken

Embedded Support Partner logs all of the actions that it performs. To view this information, select the Actions Taken link in the SYSTEM INFORMATION category. Figure 4-19 shows the page that you use to view the information about actions taken.

[_	xwsh
	Embedded Support Partner - ver.1.0
	SYSTEM INFORMATION > Actions Taken Help
	Enter the date(s) for which you want system events information:
	From: To: (mm/dd/yyyy) (mm/dd/yyyy)
	Choose the type of actions taken information:
	(*) All Actions Taken displays all actions that were taken on the system and events that triggered these actions.
	() Actions Taken for Specific Event displays actions taken for a selected event onlu.
	Accept Clear
V	(NORMAL LINK) Use right-arrow or <return> to activate. Arrow keys: Up and Down to move. Right to follow a link; Left to go back. H)elp O)ptions P)rint G)o M)ain screen Q)uit /=search [delete]=history list</return>

Figure 4-19 Options for Viewing the Actions that Have Been Taken (ASCII Interface)

Using the All Actions Taken Option

The All Actions Taken option displays all actions that have been taken within the range of dates that you specified and the events that caused the actions to occur.

Perform the following procedure to use the All Actions Taken option:

- 1. Select the Actions Taken link in the SYSTEM INFORMATION category.
- 2. Specify the range of dates that you want to view. (Refer to Figure 4-20.)
- 3. Set the radio button next to the All Actions Taken option. (Refer to Figure 4-20.)



Figure 4-20 Using the All Actions Taken Option (Page 1 [ASCII Interface])

4. Select the Accept link.

The interface displays a table that contains information about all of the actions that were taken between the dates that you specified. (Refer to Figure 4-21; Table 4-10 describes the information that the table contains.)

	xwsh			•	
	SGI Embedded Support Partner	- ver.1.0	(p1	of	2)
	SYSTEM INFORMATION $>$ Actions Taken $>$ All Actions Taken				
	System name : hello.csd.sgi.com System ID : 69089ACA System serial number : 080069089ACA System IP type : IP22 System IP address : 150.166.4.15				
	Class of Reports : All Actions				
	Page 1 of 1				
		Event	ID		
	 1 05/22/1999 21:24:28 User Process killed [limit exceeded] Notify sysadmin on console	0×6DA			
	/usr/bin/ssnotify -A "ALERT: Process [sschttpd] pid 4286	killed:	proc		
	2 05/24/1999 16:26:13 System Configuration Software installed Notify sysadmin on console /usr/bin/ssnotify -A	0×2001	04		
	3 05/24/1999 16:26:14 System Configuration Software de-installed Notify sysadmin on console / /usr/bin/ssnotify -A	0×2001	05		
-	- press space for next page] Arrow keys: Up and Down to move. Right to follow a link; L H)elp O)ptions P)rint G)o M)ain screen Q)uit /=search [dele	eft to go te]=histo	bac bac	k. ist	

Figure 4-21 Using the All Actions Taken Option (Page 2 [ASCII Interface])

Label	Description
No.	Index number in the table
Time of Action	Time and date at which the action was taken
Event Class	Class of the event to which the action is assigned
Event Description	Description of the event to which the actions is assigned
Event ID	Identification number of the event to which the action is assigned
Action Description	Description of the action that was taken
Action Taken	Description of the command that the action performed

 Table 4-10
 Table Contents for the All Actions Taken Option

- Use the numbers at the bottom of that page to select the corresponding pages.
- Use the > link to move to the next group of pages.
- Use the >> link to move to the last group of pages.
- Use the < link to move to the previous group of pages.
- Use the << link to move to the first group of pages.
- Use the space bar or down arrow to move to the next screen.
- Use the up arrow to move to the previous screen.

Using the Actions Taken for a Specific Event Option

The Actions Taken for a Specific Event option displays all actions that were taken for a specific event within the range of dates that you specify.

Perform the following procedure to use the Actions Taken for a Specific Event option:

- 1. Select the Actions Taken link in the SYSTEM INFORMATION category.
- 2. Specify the range of dates that you want to view. (Refer to Figure 4-22.)
- 3. Set the radio button next to the Actions Taken for a Specific Event option. (Refer to Figure 4-22.)

	xwsh	
<u></u>		Embedded Support Partner – ver.1.0
	SYSTEM INFORMATION > Actions Taken	Help
	Enter the date(s) for which you want su	ystem events information:
	From: 05/20/1999 To: 06/10/1999 (mm/dd/yyyy) (mm/dd/yyyy)	
	Choose the type of actions taken inform	nation:
	() All Actions Taken	displays all actions that were taken on the system and events that triggered these actions.
	(*) Actions Taken for Specific Event	displays actions taken for a selected event onlu.
	Accept Clear	

Figure 4-22 Using the Actions Taken for a Specific Event Option (Page 1 [ASCII Interface])

4. Choose the class that contains the event that you want to view. (Refer to Figure 4-23.)

Chapter 4: Using the ASCII Interface to View Information about a System in Single System Manager Mode





- 5. Select the Accept link.
- 6. Choose the event. (Refer to Figure 4-24.)



Figure 4-24 Using the Actions Taken for a Specific Event Option (Page 3 [ASCII Interface])

7. Select the Accept link.

The interface displays a table that lists all of the actions taken for the event between the dates that you specified. (Refer to Figure 4-25; Table 4-11 describes the information that the table contains.)

Figure 4-25 Using the Actions Taken for a Specific Event Option (Page 4 [ASCII Interface])

Label	Description
No.	Index number in the table
Time of Action	Time and date at which the action was taken
Event Class	Class of the event to which the action is assigned
Event Description	Description of the event to which the action is assigned
Event ID	Identification number of the event to which the action is assigned
Action Description	Description of the action that was taken
Action Taken	Description of the command that the action performed

 Table 4-11
 Table Contents for the Actions Taken for a Specific Event Option

- Use the numbers at the bottom of that page to select the corresponding pages.
- Use the > link to move to the next group of pages.
- Use the >> link to move to the last group of pages.
- Use the < link to move to the previous group of pages.
- Use the << link to move to the first group of pages.
- Use the space bar or down arrow to move to the next screen.
- Use the up arrow to move to the previous screen.

Viewing the Diagnostic Results

If you use the diagnostics that are included in the *Internal Support Tools* 2.0 or later releases, Embedded Support Partner monitors the diagnostics that you run on a system.

Perform the following procedure to view a report of the diagnostic results:

- 1. Select the Diagnostics Results link in the SYSTEM INFORMATION category.
- 2. Specify the starting date (in the From field) and ending date (in the To field) of the range of dates for which you want to view diagnostic results. (Refer to Figure 4-26.)

xwsh	• 🗋
Embedded Suppor	t Partner
SYSTEM INFORMATION > Diagnostics Results	elp
Display diagnostics results for diagnostics ran:	
Enter the date(s) for which you want diagnostics results informatio	n:
From: 08/01/1999 To: 09/13/1999 (mm/dd/yyyy) (mm/dd/yyyy)	
Accept Clear	
(Form submit button) Use right-arrow or <return> to submit. Arrow keys: Up and Down to move. Pickt to follow a link: Left to go</return>	back
H)elp O)ptions P)rint G)o M)ain screen Q)uit /=search [delete]=histor	y list [

Figure 4-26 Viewing the Diagnostic Results (Page 1 [ASCII Interface])

3. Select the Accept link.

The interface displays a table that contains information about all diagnostics that ran during the range of time that you specified. (Refer to Figure 4-27; Table 4-12 describes the information that the table contains.)

-	-	xwsh										•
									Embedded	Support	Par	tner
	l	SYSTEM	INFORMATION >	Di	iagnostics Res	սյ	ts					
		System System System System System	name ID serial number IP type IP address		annushka.csd. 6902FB7E 08006902FB7E IP32 150.166.1.59	sg	i.com					
	l	Time pe	eriod		08/01/1999 -	Ø9,	/13/1999					
	L	Page 1	of 1								_1	
	L	No.	Diagnostic Nam	me		I	Result		Diagnostic	Time		
	L	1	SVP (9)				PASS		08/17/1999	09:58:09		
	L											
		Deturn	Main Dava									
	L	Return	on Main Page									
	L											
	L											
	3											
	L											
	L											
	L											
	C	Commands: Appow	Use arrow keys	s t	to move, '?' fo	or	help, 'q to follow	, , ,	to quit, '<∙ link: left	-' to go	baci ck	k.
		H)elp 0)p	otions P)rint (G)c	M)ain screen	Q)uit /=se	ar	ch [delete]	=history	lis	t 🛛

Figure 4-27 Viewing the Diagnostic Results (Page 2 [ASCII Interface])

Column Heading	Description
No.	Index number within the table
Diagnostic Name	Name of the diagnostic When one or more tests run as a group under one program (for example, SVP), the total number of tests run is shown in parentheses next to the diagnostic name; for example: SVP (86) indicates that 86 tests ran under SVP
Result	Result of the diagnostic: PASS, FAIL, or COMPLETE PASS indicates that the diagnostic completed successfully FAIL indicates that the diagnostic failed COMPLETE indicates that multiple tests ran and one or more of them failed and the others passed
Diagnostic Time	Time at which the diagnostic completed testing When multiple tests run under one diagnostic (for example, SVP), this column indicates the time at which all tests completed

 Table 4-12
 Diagnostic Results Table Contents

- Use the numbers at the bottom of that page to select the corresponding pages.
- Use the > link to move to the next group of pages.
- Use the >> link to move to the last group of pages.
- Use the < link to move to the previous group of pages.
- Use the << link to move to the first group of pages.
- Use the space bar or down arrow to move to the next screen.
- Use the up arrow to move to the previous screen.

Viewing the Availability Information

The availmon component of Embedded Support Partner tracks system availability. To view this information, select the Availability link in the SYSTEM INFORMATION category.

Figure 4-28 shows the page that you use to view the information about system availability. This page displays the total availability (in percent) of the system and the mean time between interrupts (MTBI) in minutes and enables you to select which type of availability information to view.



Figure 4-28 Options for Viewing System Availability Information (ASCII Interface)

Using the Overall Availability Option

The Overall Availability option provides general availability information for the system.

Perform the following procedure to use the Overall Availability option:

- 1. Select the Availability link in the SYSTEM INFORMATION category.
- 2. Specify the range of dates that you want to view. (Refer to Figure 4-29.)
- 3. Set the radio button next to the Overall Availability option. (Refer to Figure 4-29.)

-	xwsh 🔹 🗋
*	Embedded Support Partner - ver.1.0
	SYSTEM INFORMATION > Availability Help
	Total Availability (%) = 99.78 MTBI (min) = 2304
	Enter the time period for which you want availability information:
	From: 06/01/1999_ To: 06/10/1999_ (mm/dd/yyyy) (mm/dd/yyyy)
	(*) Overall Availability displays all statistical availability information for the localhost, such as MTBI, Average Uptime etc. This is a detailed summary on the availability of the system.
	() Availability Events List displays detailed information of all availability events. Selection of each event is also allowed if more detail is required.
	Accept Clear

Figure 4-29 Using the Overall Availability Option (Page 1 [ASCII Interface])

4. Select the Accept link.

The interface displays a table that contains the overall availability information for the system. (Refer to Figure 4-30; Table 4-13 describes the information that the table contains.)

Chapter 4: Using the ASCII Interface to View Information about a System in Single System Manager Mode

	⇒ xws	h								•	'n
4					S	GI Embedd	ed Suppor	t Partner	- Ver	1	.0
	SY	STEM INFORMATI()N > 4	availabili	ty > 0\	verall Ava	ilability				
	Sy Da Nu Da Da	stem name tabase mber of records ta start time ta end time	: H : s : T : T	nello.csd. ssdb jue Jun 1 Tue Jun 3	sgi.com 15:50: 14:32:	:15 1999 :59 1999					
					Count	Downtime (min)	MTBI (min)	Availab (%)	ility		
	Se	rvice action			5	1	372	0	99.94		
	ad	ministrative: r	reboot		5	1	3 372	0			
	To	tal			5	1	3 372	0	99.94		
	A M A L M	verage uptime east uptime bst uptime verage downtime east downtime ogging started ast boot at ystem has been	e at up fo	2751 min 13 minu: 5784 min 968 min 2 minut 2 minut Fri May Thu Jun or 10012 m	nutes (tes nutes (utes (1 es es 28 15: 3 14: inutes	(1 day 21 (4 days 24 (6 hrs 8 m (25:32 199 (6 days 2	nrs 51 mi mins) ins) 3 3 2 hrs 52	ns) mins)			
	Ev	ent Availabili nds: Use arrow	ty Inf	formation	'?' for	heln, 'a	' to quit	. '<-' to	an h:	ack.	
	Arr H)el	ow keys: Up and p 0)ptions <u>P)r</u>	d Dowr int G)	n to move.)o M)ain s	Right creen (to follow))uit /=se	a link; arch [del	Left to g ete]=hist	o back ory li	<. ist	

Figure 4-30 Using the Overall Availability Option (Page 2 [ASCII Interface])

Row	Description
Service Action	Information about each service action performed on the system
	The following information is displayed for each service action: count, downtime caused by the service action (in minutes), mean time between interrupts (in minutes), and availability percentage
Total	Information about the total downtime for service actions on the system
	A total is displayed for the following categories: count, downtime (in minutes) caused by the action, mean time between interrupts (in minutes), and availability percentage
Average uptime	Average uptime between availability events
Least uptime	Shortest uptime between availability events
Most uptime	Longest uptime between availability events
Average downtime	Average downtime
Most downtime	Longest downtime
Least downtime	Shortest downtime
Logging started at	Date and time when availability monitoring started
Last boot at	Date and time of the last system boot
System has been up for	Amount of time that the system has been up since the last boot (in minutes)

 Table 4-13
 Overall Availability Information

Select the Event Availability Information link at the bottom of the page to display a list of all availability events that occurred between the dates that you specified. (Refer to Figure 4-31; Table 4-14 describes the information that the table contains.)

[-	xwsh	۵	
	SGI Emb	oedded Support Partner - Ver. 1	.0
	SYSTEM INFORMATION > Availability > Event Av	vailability Information	
	- System name : hello.csd.sgi.com Database : ssdb Number of records : 5 Data start time : Tue Jun 1 15:50:15 199 Data end time : Thu Jun 3 14:32:59 199	99 99	
	Page 1 of 1		
	Time Uptime Dow (min) (mi	unTime Reason in)	
	Start : Fri May 28 15:25:32 1999 5785 Incident: Tue Jun 1 15:50:15 1999	2 Controlled <mark>Summar</mark> 	y
	Start : Tue Jun 1 15:52:39 1999 18 Incident: Tue Jun 1 16:10:22 1999	2 Controlled Summar 	y
	Start : Tue Jun 1 16:12:12 1999 14 Incident: Tue Jun 1 16:26:01 1999	2 Controlled Summar 	y
	Start : Tue Jun 1 16:27:59 1999 14 Incident: Tue Jun 1 16:42:14 1999	2 Controlled Summar 	y
	Start : Tue Jun 1 16:44:03 1999 2749 Incident: Thu Jun 3 14:32:59 1999	2 Controlled Summar	y
	1		-1
V	Commands: Use arrow keys to move, '?' for help, Arrow keys: Up and Down to move. Right to fol H)elp D)ptions P)rint G)o M)ain screen Q)uit /	, 'q' to quit, '<-' to go back. llow a link; Left to go back. /=search [delete]=history list	

Figure 4-31 Using the Overall Availability Option (Page 3 [ASCII Interface])

Column	Description
Start Time	Specifies the time that the system was brought up before the incident occurred
Incident Time	Specifies the time at which the incident that caused the downtime occurred
Uptime (min)	Specifies the number of minutes that the system was up before the incident occurred
DownTime (min)	Specifies the number of minutes that the system was down because of the incident
Reason	Specifies the reason that the system was down
	Contains a link to summary information for the event (Refer to Figure 4-32)

 Table 4-14
 Availability Event Information for the Overall Availability Option

- Use the numbers at the bottom of that page to select the corresponding pages.
- Use the > link to move to the next group of pages.
- Use the >> link to move to the last group of pages.
- Use the < link to move to the previous group of pages.
- Use the << link to move to the first group of pages.
- Use the space bar or down arrow to move to the next screen.
- Use the up arrow to move to the previous screen.

Chapter 4: Using the ASCII Interface to View Information about a System in Single System Manager Mode



Figure 4-32 Using the Overall Availability Option (Page 4 [ASCII Interface])

Using the Availability Events List Option

The Availability Events List option provides detailed information about all availability events that occurred on the system between the dates that you specify.

Perform the following procedure to use the Overall Availability option:

- 1. Select the Availability link in the SYSTEM INFORMATION category.
- 2. Specify the range of dates that you want to view. (Refer to Figure 4-33.)
- 3. Set the radio button next to the Availability Events List option. (Refer to Figure 4-33.)

	xwsh
	Embedded Support Partner - ver.1.0
	SYSTEM INFORMATION > Availability Help
	Total Availability (%) = 99.78 MTBI (min) = 2305
	Enter the time period for which you want availability information:
	From: To: (mm/dd/yyyy) (mm/dd/yyyy)
	() Overall Availability displays all statistical availability information for the localhost, such as MTBI, Average Uptime etc. This is a detailed summary on the availability of the system.
	(*) Availability Events List displays detailed information of all availability events. Selection of each event is also allowed if more detail is required.
	Accept Clear
	(Form submit button) Use right-arrow or <return> to submit. Arrow keys: Un and Down to move. Bight to follow a link: left to go back</return>
$\overline{\mathbf{v}}$	H)elp O)ptions P)rint G)o M)ain screen Q)uit /=search [delete]=history list

Figure 4-33 Using the Availability Events List Option (Page 1 [ASCII Interface])

4. Select the Accept link.

The interface displays a list of all availability events that occurred during the range of dates that you specified. (Refer to Figure 4-34; Table 4-15 describes the information that the table contains.)

	xwsh				
	SGI En	nbedded S	Support Pa	artner - Ver. 1.0	(p1 of 2)
	SYSTEM INFORMATION > Availabilitų	y > Event	t Availab [.]	ility Information	
	System name : hello.csd.sg Database : ssdb Number of records : 13 Data start time : Wed Dec 31 Data end time : Thu Jun 3	gi.com 15:59:59 14:32:59	1969 1999		
	Page 1 of 2				
	Time	Uptime (min)	DownTime (min)	Reason	
	Start : Thu May 27 15:54:57 1999 Incident: Fri May 28 12:34:59 1999	1240	49	Interrupt	Summary
	Start : Thu May 20 18:08:36 1999 Incident: Thu May 20 22:18:39 1999	250	4	Controlled	Summary
	Start : Thu May 20 22:23:04 1999 Incident: Mon May 24 16:21:31 1999	5398 	4	Controlled	Summary
	Start : Mon May 24 16:25:34 1999 Incident: Wed May 26 09:17:46 1999	2452	4	Controlled	Summary
	Start : Wed May 26 09:22:08 1999 Incident: Thu May 27 11:21:34 1999	1559	4	Controlled	Summary
	Start : Thu May 27 11:25:59 1999 Incident: Thu May 27 15:50:38 1999	265	4	Controlled	Summary
	Start : Fri May 28 13:24:12 1999 Incident: Fri May 28 14:00:15 1999	36	3	Controlled	Summary
V	press space for next page Arrow keys: Up and Down to move. F H)elp O)ptions P)rint G)o M)ain scr	Right to reen Q)ur	follow a it /=searc	link; Left to go ch [delete]=histor	back. ry list [



Column	Description
Time	Specifies the time that the system was brought up before the incident occurred (Start) and the time at which the incident that caused the downtime occurred (Incident)
Uptime (min)	Specifies the number of minutes that the system was up before the incident occurred
DownTime (min)	Specifies the number of minutes that the system was down because of the incident
Reason	Specifies the reason that the system was down
	Contains a link to summary information for the event (Refer to Figure 4-35)

 Table 4-15
 Availability Event Information for the Availability Events List Option

- Use the numbers at the bottom of that page to select the corresponding pages.
- Use the > link to move to the next group of pages.
- Use the >> link to move to the last group of pages.
- Use the < link to move to the previous group of pages.
- Use the << link to move to the first group of pages.
- Use the space bar or down arrow to move to the next screen.
- Use the up arrow to move to the previous screen.

Chapter 4: Using the ASCII Interface to View Information about a System in Single System Manager Mode





Chapter 5

Using the Graphical Interface to Set Up Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode

Use the commands in the SETUP section of the graphical interface to set up the following components of Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager mode:

- Global parameters
- Events
- Actions
- Paging
- Availability monitoring
- Performance monitoring

Setting Up Global Parameters in Single System Manager Mode

Several global parameters are available for you to customize Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode. The global parameters are organized into two categories:

- Web server parameters
- Global configuration parameters

Setting Up the Web Server Parameters

The Web server parameters configure the Configurable Web Server that Embedded Support Partner uses. You can use these parameters to control permission to access Embedded Support Partner, including the user name and password combination and host privileges. (All IP addresses are allowed connections to the Web server by default.) Figure 5-1 shows the interface page that you use to access the Web server parameters. Figure 5-2 shows the interface page that you use to specify which systems are allowed or denied access to the Configurable Web Server. Figure 5-3 shows the interface page that you use to modify the user name and associated password.

SETUP > Global > Server	
	Help
Server identification : SGI Configurable Web Server Server version : 1.4 21:24:02 Jun 2 1999 Server port : 5555	
Server Access Permissions	
Username & Password Change	

Figure 5-1 Web Server Configuration Page (Graphical Interface)

SETUP > Global > Server > Server Access Perr	nissions Help
Warning: All changes take effect immediately. Enable access from the systems with the following IP addresses:	Restrict access to the systems with the following IP addresses:
Delete	Delete
Add	Add



SETUP > Global > Server > Us	sername & Password Change	
		Help
		L
Varning: All changes take effe	ect immediately.	
Change username		
Enter old username:		
Enter new username:		
Change U	sername	
Char	nge password	
Enter old password:		
Enter new password:		
Re–enter new password:		
Change P	assword	

Figure 5-3Web Server User Name and Password Page (Graphical Interface)

Allowing Access to Embedded Support Partner

You can modify access privileges that specify which systems have access rights to Embedded Support Partner. If you want to restrict access to Embedded Support Partner, you must set up a "restrict access" list and an "enable access" list. (If you do not set up a "restrict access" list, all IP addresses can connect to Embedded Support Partner regardless of the "enable access" list settings because the default configuration allows connections from all IP addresses if no "restrict access" list exists.)

The most secure configuration is to set the "restrict access" list to all hosts (*.*.*) and set the "enable access" list to the hosts that you want to have access to Embedded Support Partner. (For example, set the "enable access" list to 197.*.* and the "restrict access" list to *.*.* if you want only the systems with IP addresses that begin with 197 to have access to Embedded Support Partner.)

Caution: All changes that you make to the "restrict access" and "enable access" lists immediately take effect. Ensure that you do not set up access lists that prevent your administration system from connecting to Embedded Support Partner.

Perform the following procedure to add a system to the "enable access" list (refer to Figure 5-2):

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Server button in the Global category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Click on the Server Access Permissions link.
- 4. In the field on the left side of the page, enter the IP address of the system that you want to add to the list.

Note: Entering * . * . * . * indicates that all systems can access the Embedded Support Partner Web-based interface. You can wildcard any portion of the IP address with an asterisk (for example, 197. * . * . 2 and 197. 20. 2 . *).

5. Click on Add.

Perform the following procedure to remove a system from the "enable access" list (refer to Figure 5-2):

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Server button in the Global category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Click on the Server Access Permissions link.

- 4. In the list of IP addresses on the left side of the page, click on the IP address of the system that you want to remove from the list.
- 5. Click on Delete.

Perform the following procedure to add a system to the "restrict access" list (refer to Figure 5-2):

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Server button in the Global category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Click on the Server Access Permissions link.
- 4. In the field on the right side of the page, enter the IP address of the system that you want to add to the restricted access list.

Note: Entering * . * . * . * indicates that all systems (except the systems in the "allow access" list) cannot access the Embedded Support Partner Web-based interface. You can wildcard any portion of the IP address with an asterisk (for example, 197.*.*.2 and 197.20.2.*).

5. Click on Add.

Perform the following procedure to remove a system from the "restrict access" list (refer to Figure 5-2):

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Server button in the Global category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Click on the Server Access Permissions link.
- 4. In the list of IP addresses on the right side of the page, click on the IP address of the system that you want to remove from the restricted access list.
- 5. Click on Delete.

Changing the User Name and Password

Embedded Support Partner requires that you enter a user name and password to access several features. This protocol ensures that Embedded Support Partner is secure from unauthorized access.

The default user name is **administrator**, and the default password is **partner**. Be sure to change one or both of these settings the first time that you use Embedded Support Partner to prevent unauthorized access to your system.

Perform the following procedure to change the user name (refer to Figure 5-3):

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Server button in the Global category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Click on the Username & Password Change link.
- 4. Enter the old user name that you want to change in the Enter old username field.
- 5. Enter the new user name that you want to use in the Enter new username field.
- 6. Click on Change Username.

Perform the following procedure to change the password (refer to Figure 5-3):

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Server button in the Global category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Click on the Username & Password Change link.
- 4. Enter the old password that you want to change in the Enter old password field.
- 5. Enter the new password that you want to use in the Enter new password field.
- 6. Re-enter the new password in the Re-enter new password field. (You need to enter the password twice to ensure that it was typed correctly.)
- 7. Click on Change Password.

Setting the Global Configuration Parameters

The global configuration parameters enable you to globally modify how Embedded Support Partner handles events and actions. You can specify whether it should log all events in the database, whether it should require events to occur several times before they are registered, and whether it should perform actions in response to events.

Figure 5-4 shows the interface page that you can use to set up the global configuration parameters.

SETUP > Global > Global Co	onfiguration	
	[Help
Log events	♦ Yes	♦No
This parameter enables or d Embedded Support Partner Embedded Support Partner	isables global event logging. Select "Yes" to log events in the database. Select "No" if you do not want to log any events in database.	SGI
Throttle events	♦ Yes	♦ No
This parameter enables or d specific number of events m Support Partner database. S Partner database.	isables event throttling for all events. Select "Yes" to require 1 ust occur before the event is registered in the SGI Embeddec elect "No" to register every event in the SGI Embedded Syst	that a I em
Act on events	♦Yes	< ♦ No
This parameter enables or d events. Select "Yes" to spec response to all events that o should not respond to event	isables SGI Embedded Support Partner actions in response t cify that the SGI Embedded Support Partner should perform a cccur. Select "No" to specify that the SGI Embedded Support s that occur.	o ctions in Partner
	Ac	cept
igure 5-4 Globa	al Configuration Parameters Page (Graph	ical Interfa

Perform the following procedure to set up the global configuration parameters (refer to Figure 5-4):

1. Click on the Setup tab.

- 2. Click on the Global Configuration button in the Global category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Specify whether Embedded Support Partner should log events.
 - Set the Log events parameter to Yes to log events in the Embedded Support Partner database.
 - Set the Log events parameter to No if you do not want to log any events in ٠ Embedded Support Partner database.

Chapter 5: Using the Graphical Interface to Set Up Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode

- 4. Specify whether Embedded Support Partner should wait for a specific number of events to occur before it registers an event.
 - Set the Throttle events parameter to Yes to require that a specific number of events must occur before the event is registered in the Embedded Support Partner database.
 - Set the Throttle events parameter to No to register every event in the Embedded System Partner database.
- 5. Specify whether Embedded Support Partner should perform actions when it registers events.
 - Set the Act on events parameter to Yes to specify that Embedded Support Partner should perform actions in response to all events that occur.
 - Set the Act on events parameter to No to specify that Embedded Support Partner should not respond to events that occur.
- 6. Click on Accept.

Setting Up Events in Single System Manager Mode

Events are conditions that Embedded Support Partner monitors. Embedded Support Partner includes many default events, and you can also add custom events. Example events include parity errors, disk full conditions, and nonmaskable interrupts (NMI). Events are organized into event classes, which allows you to quickly view and update similar events. Example event classes include availability, system configuration, and performance.

You can perform the following activities to set up events:

- Viewing the current event setup
- Updating an existing event
- Updating the event/action assignments
- Adding a new event
- Deleting an event
Viewing the Current Event Setup

The current event setup defines the events and event classes that are currently configured in Embedded Support Partner on your system.

To view the current event setup, click on the Setup tab and then click on the View Current Setup button in the Events category of the SETUP section. Figure 5-5 shows the interface page that you should use to view the current event setup.

SETU	P > Events > View Cu	irrent Setup
		Help
Choos	e one of the following	options:
٨	View Event	Displays event parameters, such as filtering parameters and action(s) for this event.
\diamond	View Event List	Displays all events available on the system.
\diamond	View Classes	Displays all event classes available on the system.
Ac	cept	

Figure 5-5 View Current Event Setup Options (Graphical Interface)

Using the View Event Option

The View Event option displays the configuration parameters for a single event. Use this option to verify that a specific event is configured correctly.

Note: The example shown in this procedure displays the current setup for the System ID change event in the Availability event class.

Perform the following procedure to view the current setup of a specific event.

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the View Current Setup button in the Events category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Click on the radio button next to the View Event option. (Refer to Figure 5-6.)

SETU	P > Events > View Cu	rrent Setup	
		Help	
Choos	e one of the following (options:	
۲	View Event	Displays event parameters, such as filtering parameters and action(s) for this event.	
\diamond	View Event List	Displays all events available on the system.	
\diamond	View Classes	Displays all event classes available on the system.	
Accept			

Figure 5-6 Using the View Event Option (Page 1 [Graphical Interface])

- 4. Click on Accept.
- 5. Choose the event class that contains the event. (Refer to Figure 5-7.)

SETUP > Events > View Current Setup > View Event	
	Help
Choose a Class:	
Availability Diagnostic ESP Event Manager ESP Internal Events File System	
Accept	



- 6. Click on Accept.
- 7. Choose the event. (Refer to Figure 5-8.)

SETUP > Events > View Current Setup > View Event	
	Help
Choose an event from class Availability:	
Singleuser shutdown (4) Singleuser shutdown (5) Singleuser shutdown (6) Singleuser shutdown (unknown) Singleuser shutdown (unknown) Software error Status report System ID change System off System reset	
Accept	

Figure 5-8 Using the View Event Option (Page 3 [Graphical Interface])

8. Click on Accept.

Figure 5-9 shows the current setup of the System ID change event.

SETUP > Events > View Current Setup > View Event	
Event Class	: 4000, Availability
Event	: 2097153, System ID change
Event registration	: Enabled
Number of events that must occur before registration begins	: 1
Actions for this event	: Run Amformat

Figure 5-9 Using the View Event Option (Page 4 [Graphical Interface])

Using the View Event List Option

The View Event List option lists all of the events that are currently configured in Embedded Support Partner on your system. Use this option to determine which events are currently available.

Perform the following procedure to view the current event list:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the View Current Setup button in the Events category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Click on the radio button next to the View Event List option. (Refer to Figure 5-10.)

SETU	P > Events > View Cu	urrent Setup
		Help
Choos	e one of the following	options:
\diamond	View Event	Displays event parameters, such as filtering parameters and action(s) for this event.
۲	View Event List	Displays all events available on the system.
\diamond	View Classes	Displays all event classes available on the system.
Ac	cept	



4. Click on Accept.

The interface displays a table that lists all available events. (Refer to Figure 5-11; Table 5-1 describes the information that the table contains.)

Event Description	Class Description	No.
SCSI ctrl init failed	SCSI	1
SCSI command timed out	SCSI	2
SCSI hard error	SCSI	3
SCSI bus reset	SCSI	4
SCSI ctrl h/w (sram parity error)	SCSI	5
SCSI ctrl h/w (sram parity error bank0)	SCSI	6
SCSI ctrl h/w (sram parity error bank1)(SCSI	7
SCSI ctrl h/w (sram parity error bank1)(SCSI	8
SCSI bus error	SCSI	9
SCSI debug	SCSI	10

SETUP > Events > View Current Setup > View Event List

1 <u>2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10</u> 🕨 🕪

Figure 5-11 Using the View Event List Option (Page 2 [Graphical Interface])

Table 5-1Event List Elements		
Column	Description	
No.	Index number in the table	
Class Description	Class that contains the event	
Event Description	Description of the event	

Each page contains ten events. Use the symbols at the bottom of the page to navigate the pages as follows:

- Use the numbers at the bottom of the page to select the corresponding pages.
- Use the single-right-arrow icon to move to the next group of pages (pages 11 through 20 in this example).
- Use the double-right-arrow icon to move to the last group of pages (pages 41 through 48 in this example).

- Use the single-left-arrow icon to move to the previous group of pages.
- Use the double-left-arrow icon to move to the first group of pages.

Using the View Classes Option

The View Classes option lists all event classes that are currently defined in Embedded Support Partner. (Event classes organize the individual events into related groups, which enables you to quickly locate events and easily assign actions to multiple events at the same time.)

Perform the following procedure to view the current list of event classes:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the View Current Setup button in the Events category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Click on the radio button next to the View Classes option. (Refer to Figure 5-12.)

SETU	P > Events > View Cu	rrent Setup
		Help
Choos	e one of the following a	options:
٨	View Event	Displays event parameters, such as filtering parameters and action(s) for this event.
\diamond	View Event List	Displays all events available on the system.
۲	View Classes	Displays all event classes available on the system.
Acc	cept	

Figure 5-12 Using the View Classes Option (Page 1 [Graphical Interface])

4. Click on Accept.

The interface displays a table that lists all available event classes. (Refer to Figure 5-13; Table 5-2 describes the information that the table contains.)

		Page 1 of
No.	Class ID	Class Description
1	1	SCSI
2	2	1/0
3	3	Peripheral
4	4	Power Supply
5	5	Memory Parity
6	6	Memory ECC
7	7	System Error
8	8	System Board
9	9	NMI
10	10	File System

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

Figure 5-13 Using the View Classes Option (Page 2 [Graphical Interface])

Table 5-2Event Class List Elements

Column	Description
No.	Index number in the table
Class ID	Identification number for the class
Class Description	Description of the class

Each page contains ten event classes. Use the symbols at the bottom of the page to navigate the pages as follows:

- Use the numbers at the bottom of the page to select the corresponding pages.
- Use the single-right-arrow icon to move to the next group of pages.
- Use the double-right-arrow icon to move to the last group of pages.
- Use the single-left-arrow icon to move to the previous group of pages.
- Use the double-left-arrow icon to move to the first group of pages.

Updating an Event

Perform the following procedure to update the information about an event that Embedded Support Partner should monitor:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Update button in the Events category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Choose the event class that contains the event. (Refer to Figure 5-14.)

SETUP > Events > Update	
	Help
Choose a class to find event(s) that you want to update:	
Availability Diagnostic ESP Event Manager ESP Internal Events File System	
Accept	

Figure 5-14 Updating an Event (Page 1 [Graphical Interface])

- 4. Click on Accept.
- 5. Choose the event that you want to update. (Refer to Figure 5-15.)

SETUP > Events > Update	
	Help
Choose an event from class Availability:	
Controlled shutdown (timeout) Controlled shutdown (unknown) Deregistration Hardware error Interrupt Live event NMI No error Panic	
Accept	

Figure 5-15 Updating an Event (Page 2 [Graphical Interface])

- 6. Click on Accept.
- 7. Update the parameters for the event. (Refer to Figure 5-16; Table 5-3 describes the parameters that are available.)

SETUP > Events > Update
Help
Event class : Availability
Event : Live event
Choose if you want to register the event in the SGI 🛛 🚸 Register 🧄 Do not register Embedded Support Partner:
Enter the number of events that must occur before registration begins:
Choose the action(s) that will be taken as a result of this event:
Notify sysadmin on console
Tip: You can select several actions. If you cannot find an action that you need in the list above, use <u>SETUP: Actions: Add</u> to create a new action.
Accept Clear
Figure 5-16 Updating an Event (Page 3 [Graphical Interface])

Table 5-3Parameters for Updating an Event

Parameter	Description
Choose if you want to register the event in the SGI Embedded	Specifies whether Embedded Support Partner registers an event
Support Partner	If you disable event monitoring on the SETUP > Global Configuration page, that setting overrides this setting
Enter the number of events that must occur before registration begins	Specifies the number of times that an event must occur before Embedded Support Partner registers the event

8. Choose one or more actions that you want to occur when Embedded Support Partner registers the event.

Note: If the action list does not contain the action that you want to use, use the SETUP > Actions > Add command to add a new action.

9. Click on Accept.

Updating Event/Action Assignments

Event/action assignments specify the action(s) Embedded Support Partner should perform when a specific event is registered.

Perform the following procedure to update an event/action assignment:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Update Event Actions button in the Events category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Choose the event or action for which you want to modify the event/action assignment:
 - If you want to select the event/action assignment by selecting an action, refer to Section, "Selecting an Event/Action Assignment by Choosing an Action."
 - If you want to select the event/action assignment by selecting an event, refer to Section , "Selecting an Event/Action Assignment by Choosing an Event."

Selecting an Event/Action Assignment by Choosing an Action

1. Choose the action from the action list. (Refer to Figure 5-17; the action list area of the interface is enclosed in a box in the figure.)

SETUP > Events > Update Event Actions	
Help	
Use one of the following methods to locate existing event/action that you want to update:	
Choose an action from the following list to replace, delete, or supplement additional action(s) to the existing ones:	
Notify sysadmin on console	
Accept	

Choose a class/event from the following list to supplement additional action(s):

Availability Diagnostic ESP Event Manager ESP Internal Events File System		
Accept		

Figure 5-17 Updating an Event/Action Assignment by Choosing an Action (Page 1 [Graphical Interface])

- 2. Click on Accept.
- 3. Choose one or more event(s) for which you want to update the event/action assignment. (Refer to Figure 5-18.)

SETUP > Events > Update Event Actions
Help
Action Notify sysadmin on console applies to the events listed below. From the following list, select one or more events whose actions you want to replace, delete, or supplement with additional actions:
SCSI SCSI command timed out
SCSI SCSI hard error
SCSI SCSI bus reset
SCSI SCSI ctrl h/w (sram parity error)
SCSI SCSI ctrl h/w (sram parity error bank0)
SCSI SCSI ctrl h/w (sram parity error bank1)(1)
SCSI SCSI ctrl h/w (sram parity error bank1)(2)
SCSI SCSI bus error
SCSI SCSI debug
SCSI SCSI target or bus error
Replace Add Delete

- **Figure 5-18** Updating an Event/Action Assignment by Choosing an Action (Page 2 [Graphical Interface])
- 4. Click on the Replace, Add, or Delete button. These buttons perform the following functions:
 - The Replace button replaces the action that is currently assigned to the event with the new action that you have selected.
 - The Add button assigns the selected action to the event.
 - The Delete button removes the selected action assignment from the event.

For example, if you select the SCSI command timed out event in the example shown in Figure 5-18 and click on Replace or Add, Embedded Support Partner assigns the Notify sysadmin on console action to that event. Then, whenever Embedded Support Partner registers the SCSI command timed out event, it executes the command contained in the Notify sysadmin on console action.

Selecting an Event/Action Assignment by Choosing an Event

1. Choose the event class that contains the event. (Refer to Figure 5-19; the event class list area of the interface is enclosed in a box in the figure.)

SETUP > Events > Update Event Actions	
Help	
Use one of the following methods to locate existing event/action that you want to update:	
Choose an action from the following list to replace, delete, or supplement additional action(s) to the existing ones:	
Notify sysadmin on console	
Accept	
Choose a class/event from the following list to supplement additional action(s):	
Availability Diagnostic ESP Event Manager ESP Internal Events File System	
Accept	

Figure 5-19 Updating an Event/Action Assignment by Choosing an Event (Page 1 [Graphical Interface])

- 2. Click on Accept.
- 3. Choose one or more events to assign an action. (Refer to Figure 5-20.)

SETUP > Events > Update Event Actions > Add Actions to Events	
	Help
Choose an event from class Availability:	
Singleuser shutdown (2) Singleuser shutdown (3) Singleuser shutdown (4) Singleuser shutdown (6) Singleuser shutdown (unknown) Singleuser shutdown (1) Singleuser shutdown (1) Singleuser shutdown (2) Singleuser s	
Accept	

- **Figure 5-20** Updating an Event/Action Assignment by Choosing an Event (Page 2 [Graphical Interface])
- 4. Click on Accept.
- 5. Click on the action that you want to assign to the selected event(s). (Refer to Figure 5-21.)

SETUP > Events > Update Event Actions > Add Actions to Events	
	Help
Choose action(s) that you want to add to the selected event(s):	
Notify sysadmin on console	
Accept	



6. Click on Accept.

The example shown in Figure 5-19 through Figure 5-21 assigns the Notify sysadmin on console action to the Software error event.

Adding an Event

You can add your own events to Embedded Support Partner on your system to have it monitor and register events that are specific to your system.

Perform the following procedure to add a custom event:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Add button in the Events category of the SETUP section.

SETUP > Events > Add	
	Help
Either select a class name for the new event:	Saudit SCSI System Board System Configuration System Error
Or create a new class name for the new event:	
Enter a name for the new event:	my new sysconfig event
Accept	

Figure 5-22 Adding an Event (Page 1 [Graphical Interface])

- 3. Specify an event class:
 - If you want to add an event to an existing event class, choose the class.
 - If you want to create a new event class, enter the name of the class in the Or create a new class name for the new event field.
- 4. Enter a unique name for the new event. Embedded Support Partner uses this name to identify the event on other pages of the interface.
- 5. Click on Accept.

6. Set up the parameters. (Refer to Figure 5-23; Table 5-4 describes the parameters.)

SETUP > Events > Add
Нер
Class : 4002, System Configuration
Custom event : my new sysconfig event
Choose if you want to register the event in the SGI 🔹 🚯 Register 💧 Do not registe Embedded Support Partner:
Enter the number of events that must occur before registration begins:
Choose the action(s) that will be taken as a result of this event:
Notify sysadmin on console
Tip: Several actions can be selected. If you cannot find an action that you need in the list above, add it by using <u>SETUP: Actions:</u> <u>Add</u> .
Accept

Figure 5-23 Adding an Event (Page 2 [Graphical Interface)

Parameter	Description
Choose if you want to register the event in the SGI Embedded	Specifies whether Embedded Support Partner registers the event
Support Partner	If you disable event monitoring on the SETUP > Global > Global Configuration page, that setting overrides this setting
Enter the number of events that must occur before registration begins	Specifies the number of times that an event must occur before Embedded Support Partner registers the event

Table 5-4Event Parameters for Adding a New Event

- 7. If you want Embedded Support Partner to automatically perform an action when it registers the event, assign an action to the event. (This is optional.)
- 8. Click on Accept.

Embedded Support Partner automatically assigns a class and event number to the event (Refer to Figure 5-24.). Use the event number with your script/tool to log the event in the Embedded Support Partner framework through the eventmon API or esplogger tool. Refer to Chapter 11, "Logging Events from Applications and Scripts" for more information.

SETUP > Events > Add	
Event class	: 4002, System Configuration
Event	: 8400001, my new sysconfig event
Event registration with SGI Embedded Support Partner database	: Register
Number of events that must occur before registration	: 1
Actions for this event	: Notify sysadmin on console

Figure 5-24 Adding an Event (Page 3 [Graphical Interface])

Deleting an Event or an Event Class

You can delete custom events or event classes that you added to Embedded Support Partner.

Note: You cannot delete any default events or event classes; you can delete only custom events and event classes.

Warning: Deleting an event or event class removes all records that are associated with the event or event class from the database. After you delete an event or event class, you will not be able to retrieve information about any occurrences of the event(s) on your system.

Deleting a Event

Perform the following procedure to delete a custom event or event class:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Delete button in the Events category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Choose the event class that contains the event. (Refer to Figure 5-25.)

SETUP > Events > Delete	
	Help
Warning: You can delete only events or classes that you have created. All records and information associated with these classes/events will also be deleted. "Delete C deletes a class and all the events that are associated with it. "Delete Event" pro- screen where you can select an event or events that you want to delete.	¦lass" vides a
Choose a class:	
SCSI System Board System Configuration System Error User	
Delete Class Delete Event	

Figure 5-25 Deleting an Event (Page 1 [Graphical Interface])

- 4. Click on Delete Event.
- 5. Click on the event(s) that you want to delete. (Refer to Figure 5-26.)

SETUP > Events > Delete	
	Help
Choose event(s) from class System Configuration:	
my new sysconfig event	
Accept	

Figure 5-26 Deleting an Event (Page 2 [Graphical Interface])

6. Click on Accept. (The interface displays a confirmation message; refer to Figure 5-27.)

SETUP > Events > Delete	
The following events were deleted.	
• my new sysconfig event	

Figure 5-27 Deleting an Event (Page 3 [Graphical Interface])

Deleting an Event Class

Perform the following procedure to delete an entire class of custom events:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Delete button in the Events category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Choose the event class that you want to delete. (Refer to Figure 5-28.)

SETUP > Events > Delete
Help
Warning: You can delete only events or classes that you have created. All records and information associated with these classes/events will also be deleted. "Delete Class" deletes a class and all the events that are associated with it. "Delete Event" provides a screen where you can select an event or events that you want to delete.
Choose a class:
myNewClass Net Kernel IFSWITCH Net Kernel Internal
Net Kernel PS
Delete Class Delete Event

Figure 5-28 Deleting an Event Class (Page 1 [Graphical Interface])

4. Click on Delete Class. (The interface displays a confirmation message; refer to Figure 5-29.)

SETUP > Events > Delete
The class myNewClass along with associated events and data has been deleted.

Figure 5-29 Deleting an Event Class (Page 2 [Graphical Interface])

Setting Up Actions in Single System Manager Mode

Actions are commands that Embedded Support Partner performs in response to events if you set up event/action assignments. An event/action assignment specifies the action that Embedded Support Partner should perform for a specific event when it registers a specific number of events. Example actions include sending an e-mail message and sending a page.

You can perform the following operations to set up actions:

- Viewing the current action setup
- Updating an action
- Adding a new action
- Deleting an action

Viewing the Current Action Setup

The current action setup defines the actions that are currently configured in Embedded Support Partner on your system. To view the current action setup, click on the Setup tab and then click on the View Current Setup button in the Actions category of the SETUP section. Figure 5-30 shows the interface page that you use to view the current action setup.



Figure 5-30 Options for Viewing the Current Action Setup (Graphical Interface)

Using the View Action Setup Option

The View Action Setup option displays the configuration parameters for a single action. Use this option to verify that a specific action is configured correctly.

Perform the following procedure to view the current setup of a specific action:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the View Current Setup button in the Actions category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Click on the radio button next to the View Action Setup option. (Refer to Figure 5-31.)

SETU	P > Actions > View Current Setup	
		Help
Choos	e one of the following options:	
۲	View Action Setup	Displays the current action setup.
٨	View Available Actions List	Displays the current available actions list.
Act	cept	

Figure 5-31 Using the View Action Setup Option (Page 1 [Graphical Interface])

- 4. Click on Accept.
- 5. Choose the action. (Refer to Figure 5-32.)

SETUP > Actions > View Current Setup > View Action Setup	
	Help
Choose an action whose description you want to view:	
Notify sysadmin on console	
Accept	



6. Click on Accept. (The interface shows the current configuration of the action that you selected; refer to Figure 5-33.)

SETUP > Actions > View Current Setup > View Action Setup	
Action command string	: /usr/bin/ssnotify –A
Action description:	: Notify sysadmin on console
Execute this action as	: root
Action timeout	: 10 seconds
Number of times the event must be registered before an action will be taken	: 1
Retry times	: 0



Using the View Available Actions List Option

The View Available Actions List option lists all of the actions that are currently configured in Embedded Support Partner on your system.

Perform the following procedure to determine the actions that are currently available:

1. Click on the Setup tab.

- 2. Click on the View Current Setup button in the Actions category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Click on the radio button next to the View Available Actions List option. (Refer to Figure 5-34.)

SETUP :	Actions > View Current Setup	
		Help
Choose o	one of the following options:	
\diamond	View Action Setup	Displays the current action setup.
۲	View Available Actions List	Displays the current available actions list.
Acce	ot	

Figure 5-34 Using the View Available Actions List Option (Page 1 [Graphical Interface])

4. Click on Accept.

The interface displays a table of all actions that are currently available. (Refer to Figure 5-35; Table 5-5 describes the information that the table contains.)

SETUP > Actions > View Current Setup > View Available Actions List		
		Page 1 of 1
No.	Action Description	Action Command String
1	Notify sysadmin on console	/usr/bin/ssnotify –A

Figure 5-35 Using the View Available Actions List Option (Page 2 [Graphical Interface])

Table 5-5 Action List Elements	
Column	Description
No.	Index number in the table
Action Description	Description of the action
Action Command String	Command that the action executes

Updating an Action

Perform the following procedure to update the parameters for an action:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Update button in the Actions category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Choose the action that you want to update. (Refer to Figure 5-36.)

SETUP > Actions > Update	
	Help
Choose the action that you want to update:	
Notify sysadmin on console	
Accept	



- 4. Click on Accept.
- 5. Update the parameters. (Refer to Figure 5-37. Table 5-6 describes the parameters.)

SETUP > Actions > Update	
	Help
Action description:	Notify sysadmin on console
Actual action command string:	/usr/bin/espnotify –A %D
Enter a username to execute the action:	root
Enter action timeout (in multiples of 5)	10 seconds
Enter the number of times that the event must be registered before an action will be taken:	1
Enter the number of retry times (up to 23; more than 4 not recommended):	0
Accept	

Figure 5-37 Updating an Action (Page 2 [Graphical Interface])

Parameter	Description
Action description	Provides a description of the action
Actual action command string	Specifies the actual command that the action executes
Enter a username to execute the action	Specifies the user account that Embedded Support uses to execute the command
Enter action timeout (in multiples of 5)	Specifies the maximum amount of time allowed for the action to execute (in seconds)
	If the action does not complete within the specified period of time, Embedded Support Partner kills the action
Enter the number of times that the event must be registered before an action will be taken	Specifies the number of times the event must be registered before Embedded Support Partner performs this action
Enter the number of retry times (up to 23; more than 4 not recommended)	Specifies the number of times that Embedded Support Partner attempts to execute the action before stopping

Table 5-6Parameter	neters for Updating an Action
--------------------	-------------------------------

6. Click on Accept. (The interface shows the updated configuration of the action; refer to Figure 5-38.)

SETUP > Actions > Update	
Action description:	: Notify sysadmin on console
Action command string	: /usr/bin/espnotify –A %D
A username to execute the action	: root
Action timeout	: 10 seconds
Number of times the event must be registered before an action will be taken	: 1
Retry times	: 0

Figure 5-38 Updating an Action (Page 3 [Graphical Interface])

Adding an Action

You can customize Embedded Support Partner by adding new actions.

Perform the following procedure to add a custom action:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Add button in the Actions category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Update the parameters. (Refer to Figure 5-39; Table 5-7 describes the parameters.)

SETUP > Actions > Add	
	Help
Enter action command string:	tg@sgi.com –m 'An event just registered.'
Enter action description:	E-mail Darrin
Enter username to execute this action (default = root):	root
Enter action timeout (in multiples of 5 seconds):	10 seconds
Enter the number of times an event must be registered before the action will be taken:	1
Enter the number of retry times (up to 23; more then 4 not recommended):	4
Accept	

Figure 5-39 Adding an Action (Page 1 [Graphical Interface])

Field	Description	
Enter action command string	Specifies the actual command that the action executes	
Enter action description	Provides a brief description of the action (for example, Send a page to the system administrator)	
Enter username to execute this action (default = root)	Specifies the user account that executes the command	
Enter action timeout (in multiples of 5 seconds)	Specifies the maximum amount of time allowed for the action to execute (in seconds) If the action does complete within the specified period of	
	time, Embedded Support Partner kills the action.	
Enter the number of times that an event must be registered before an action will be taken	Specifies the number of times the event must be registered before Embedded Support Partner performs this action	
Enter the number of retry times (up to 23; more than 4 not recommended)	Specifies the number of times that Embedded Support Partner attempts to execute the action before stopping	

Table 5-7Parameters for Adding a New Action

4. Click on Accept. (The interface displays a confirmation message; refer to Figure 5-40.)

SETUP > Actions > Add	
Action description:	: E-mail Darrin
Action command string	: /usr/bin/espnotify –E dtg@sgi.com –m 'An event just registered.'
A username to execute the action	: root
Action timeout	: 10 seconds
Number of times the event must be registered before an action will be taken	: 1
Retry times	: 4

Figure 5-40 Adding an Action (Page 2 [Graphical Interface])

Deleting an Action

You can delete any custom actions that you add to Embedded Support Partner on your system.

Note: When you delete an action, it is removed from all events to which it is assigned. If you need to assign a different action to an event, use the SETUP > Events > Update Event Actions command.

Perform the following procedure to delete an action:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Delete button in the Actions category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Choose the action that you want to delete. (Refer to Figure 5-41.)

SETUP > Actions > Delete
Help
Tip: If you delete an action, the relationships between all events and this action will be deleted.
Choose the action you would like to delete:
E-mail Darrin
Accept

Figure 5-41 Deleting an Action (Page 1 [Graphical Interface])

4. Click on Accept.

Embedded Support Partner displays a list of all events to which the action is assigned (Refer to Figure 5-42.) Perform one of the following actions:

- Click on Proceed with deletion to delete the action. (The interface displays a confirmation message; refer to Figure 5-43.)
- Click on Stop deletion to abort the deletion; the action is not deleted. (The interface displays a confirmation message; refer to Figure 5-44.)

ETU	P > Actions > Delete	
		Help
he fo	llowing events will be a	ffected as a result of E–mail Darrin action deletion:
	Page 1 of	1
No	Event Description	
0	Diagnostic start	
1	Diagnostic fail	
2	Diagnostic end	
3	Stress start	
4	Stress end	
5	SVP start	
6	SVP end	
		di di seconda di second
/ould	you like to proceed wit	h the deletion?
Proc	ceed with deletion	Stop deletion



SETUP > Actions :	> Delete	
The following action	n has been deleted from the SGI Embedded Support Partner database:	
• E-mail Dan	in	
Figure 5-43	Confirmation Message for Proceeding with Deletion Interface)	of an Action (Graphical
SETUP > Acti	ons > Delete	
Request for de	etion cancelled.	

Figure 5-44 Confirmation Message for Canceling Deletion of an Action (Graphical Interface)

Setting up the Paging Parameters in Single System Manager Mode

QuickPage (QPage) is a third-party client/server application that Embedded Support Partner uses to send messages to an alphanumeric pager. QPage uses a modem to send an IXO/TAP-protocol message to a telephone number that is connected to a paging service. QPage is integrated in the Embedded Support Partner software suite, and its services are accessed through the /usr/bin/espnotify application. (Refer to Figure 5-45.)





QPage is installed on your system by default and is chkconfig'ed off. Perform the following procedure to set it up and enable it:

1. Enter the following command to turn QPage on:

chkconfig quickpage on

2. Enter the following command to start the QPage server:

/etc/init.d/qpageserver start

Note: The QPage server is automatically restarted whenever you reboot the system.
- 3. Use the Paging category of the Embedded Support Partner interface to set up the following paging parameters:
 - Modem parameters: specify the modem that QPage should use to connect to the paging service provider.
 - Paging service provider parameters: provide information about the paging service provider and how to contact it.
 - Pager parameters: provide information about the pager to use.

The following sections describe how to set up these parameters.

Viewing the Current Paging Setup

The current paging setup defines the QPage settings, modems, paging services, and pagers that Embedded Support Partner is currently using.

To view the current paging setup, click on the Setup tab and then click on the View Current Setup button in the Paging category of the SETUP section. Figure 5-46 shows an example of the information that this command displays.

SETUP > Paging > View Current Setup	
QuickPage Administration Variables	
Administrator's E-mail address	: dtg@sgi.com
Number of seconds to wait for a reply before giving up on queries	: 5 secs
Modem Setup	
No modems configured.	
Services Setup	
No Services configured.	
Pager Setup	
No Pagers configured.	

Figure 5-46 Viewing the Current Paging Setup (Graphical Interface)

Adding/Updating a Modem

A modem must be connected to the system that is running Embedded Support Partner so that the software can send pages when events occur. You must specify the device to which the modem is connected and specify the modem initialization command. (Embedded Support Partner has been tested with the U. S. Robotics Sportster fax modem with X2.)

Perform the following procedure to add or update a modem configuration:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Modem/Admin button in the Paging category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Enter a modem name (do not include blank spaces), the device to which the modem is connected, and the initialization command for the modem. (Refer to Figure 5-47.)

Be aware of the following information when you configure the initialization command:

- The initialization command is specific to the modem that you are using. Refer to your modem user manual for specific details about the initialization command.
- The initialization command can vary, based on requirements from your paging service provider. For example, many paging services require you to turn off error correction on your modem. (This can be done on the U. S. Robotics Sportster fax modem with X2 with the &A0&K0&M0 initialization command.) Contact your paging service provider to determine any special requirements.

SETUP > Paging > Modem/Admin	
	Help
Modem setup:	
Enter modem name:	USRobotics-Sportster
Enter modem device (e.g. /dev/ttya):	/dev/ttyd
Enter modem initialization command (please check your modem manual):	ATE1F1V1M0
Add/Update Delete Clear	

Figure 5-47 Setting Up a Modem (Page 1 [Graphical Interface])

- 4. Click on Add/Update:
 - If the name that you entered has not been entered before, Embedded Support Partner adds a new modem.
 - If the name that you entered has been entered before, Embedded Support Partner updates the existing parameters for that modem.

The interface displays a confirmation message; refer to Figure 5-48.

SETUP > Paging	> Modem/Admin	
The following M	odem is Added/Updated :	
Name	: USRobotics-Sportster	
Device	: /dev/ttyd	
Initialization co	mmand : ATE1F1V1M0	

Figure 5-48 Setting Up a Modem (Page 2 [Graphical Interface])

Modifying the QPage Parameters

The QPage parameters specify the e-mail address that Embedded Support Partner should contact if it cannot deliver a page successfully and the number of seconds it should wait for a reply before it aborts identification queries.

Perform the following procedure to set up the QPage parameters:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Modem/Admin button in the Paging category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Specify the e-mail address that Embedded Support Partner should contact if it cannot deliver a page successfully. (Refer to Figure 5-49.)
- 4. Specify the number of seconds Embedded Support Partner should wait for a reply before it aborts identification queries. (Refer to Figure 5-49.)
- 5. Click on Accept.

Qpage Administration Setup:	
Enter the administrator's e–mail address (for notification if paging fails):	dtg@sgi.com
Enter the number of seconds to wait for a reply before giving up on queries:	5 Secs
Accept Clear	

Figure 5-49 Modifying the QPage Parameters (Page 1 [Graphical Interface])

The interface displays a confirmation message; refer to Figure 5-50.

SETUP > Paging > Modem/Admin	
QuickPage Administration Variables	
Administrator's E-mail address	: dtg@sgi.com
Number of seconds to wait for a reply before giving up on queries	: 5 secs

Figure 5-50 Modifying the QPage Parameters (Page 2 [Graphical Interface])

Adding/Updating a Paging Service

You need to provide Embedded Support Partner with information about the paging service that you use so it can properly contact your pager.

Perform the following procedure to add or update a description of a paging service:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Service button in the Paging category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Update the parameters. (Refer to Figure 5-51; Table 5-8 describes the parameters.)

SETUP > Paging > Service	
	Help
Tip: You can add as many services as you want by repeating thi service name will be treated as a new one. If an existing ser settings, the existing service is updated. To delete a service name of the service you want to delete.	s step. A service with a new vice name is entered with new a you need to enter only the
Service Setup:	
Service name:	PageNet
Device (for example, /dev/ttyd):	USRobotics–Sportster 🛥
Maximum number of retries (must be at least 6):	6
Maximum length of the message (consult your service provider):	150
Phone number of the paging service (no spaces):	914084289729
Tip: If you cannot find a modem that you need in the list above, a Notification: Modem/admin.	add it by using <u>SETUP:</u>
Add/Update Delete Clear	

Figure 5-51 Adding/Updating a Paging Service (Page 1 [Graphical Interface])

Parameter	Description
Service name	Specifies the name of the service The interface displays this name on other pages to identify the paging service (Do not include blank spaces)
Device	Specifies the modem to use Select the modem from the menu If the modem that you want to use is not in the menu, use the SETUP > Notification > Modem/admin command to add it
Maximum number of retries (must be at least 6)	Specifies the number of times that Embedded Support Partner should attempt to contact this paging service
Maximum length of the message (consult your service provider)	Specifies the maximum number of characters that this service will accept Contact your paging service provider for this information
Phone number of the paging service (no spaces)	Specifies the phone number that Embedded Support Partner should dial to contact the paging service (Do not include blank spaces)

Table 5-8Parameters for Adding/Updating a Paging Service

4. Click on Add/Update.

- If the name that you entered has not been entered before, Embedded Support Partner adds a new paging service.
- If the name that you entered has been entered before, Embedded Support Partner updates the existing parameters for that paging service.

The interface displays a confirmation message; refer to Figure 5-52.

SETUP > Paging > Service		
The following Service is Added/Up	Updated :	
Name	: PageNet	
Modem Name	: USRobotics–Sportster	
Maximum number of retries	: 6	
Maximum length of message	: 150	
Phone Number of Paging Service	ce : 914084289729	



Adding/Updating a Pager

Perform the following procedure to add/update a pager:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Pager button in the Paging category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Enter a unique name for the pager. (Do not include blank spaces.) Embedded Support Partner uses this name on other interface pages to identify the pager. (Refer to Figure 5-53.)
- 4. Enter the pager identification number. (Refer to Figure 5-53.)

Your paging service provider assigns a unique pager identification number to each individual pager. This number could differ from the telephone number that you dial to access the pager. Contact your paging service provider to determine the pager identification number of your pager.

Chapter 5: Using the Graphical Interface to Set Up Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode

SETUP > Paging > Pager
Help
Tip: You can add as many pagers as you want by repeating this step. Entering a new pager name creates a new pager. Entering an existing pager name updates the configuration of the existing pager. To delete a pager you need to enter the Pager Name only.
Pager Setup
Pager Name: Darrin_Goss
Pager ID: 8151992
Service Name: PageNet 👄
Tip: If you cannot find a service that you need in the list above, add it by using <u>SETUP:</u> <u>Notification: Service</u> .
Add/Update Delete Clear



- 5. Click on Add/Update.
 - If the name that you entered has not been entered before, Embedded Support Partner adds a new pager.
 - If the name that you entered has been entered before, Embedded Support Partner updates the existing parameters for that pager.

The interface displays a confirmation message; refer to Figure 5-54.

SETUP > Pagir	1g >	Pa	iger
The following	Pag	er	is Added/Updated :
Name		:	Darrin_Goss
Service		:	PageNet
Pager ID		:	8151992

Figure 5-54 Setting Up a Pager (Page 2 [Graphical Interface])

Example Configuration

Figure 5-55 shows the example configuration that the settings in the previous procedures created. (The SETUP > Paging > View Current Setup command was used to display this information.)

SETUP > Paging > View Current Setup	
QuickPage Administration Variables	
Administrator's E-mail address	: dtg@sgi.com
Number of seconds to wait for a reply before giving up on queries	: 5 secs
Modem Setup	
Modem 1	
Name	: USRobotics-Sportster
Device	: /dev/ttyd
Initialization command	: ATE1F1V1M0
Services Setup	
Service t	
Name	: PageNet
Modem Name	: USRobotics–Sportster
Maximum number of retries	: 6
Maximum length of message	: 150
Phone Number of Paging Service	: 914084289729
Pager Setup	
Pager 1	
Name	: Darrin_Goss
Service	: PageNet
Pager ID	: 8151992

Figure 5-55 Example Paging Configuration (Graphical Interface)

Deleting a Pager

Perform the following procedure to delete a pager:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Pager button in the Paging category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Enter the name of the pager that you want to delete. If you cannot remember the name of the pager, use the SETUP > Paging> View Current Setup command to view it. (Refer to Figure 5-56.)

SETUP > Paging > Pager
Help
Tip: You can add as many pagers as you want by repeating this step. Entering a new pager name creates a new pager. Entering an existing pager name updates the configuration of the existing pager. To delete a pager you need to enter the Pager Name only.
Pager Setup
Pager Name: Darrin_Goss
Pager ID:
Service Name: Service Name List 🛥
Tip: If you cannot find a service that you need in the list above, add it by using <u>SETUP:</u> <u>Notification: Service</u> .
Add/Update Delete Clear

Figure 5-56 Deleting a Pager (Page 1 [Graphical Interface])

4. Click on Delete. (The interface displays a confirmation message; refer to Figure 5-57.)

SET	JP > Pag	jing > Pager			
The	following	g Pager is deleted :	:		
Na	ime	: Darrin_Goss			

Figure 5-57 Deleting a Pager (Page 2 [Graphical Interface])

Deleting a Paging Service

Perform the following procedure to delete a paging service:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Service button in the Paging category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Enter the name of the paging service that you want to delete. If you cannot remember the name of the paging service, use the SETUP > Paging > View Current Setup command to view it. (Refer to Figure 5-58.)

Warning: Deleting a paging service automatically removes all pagers that are associated with the paging service.

Chapter 5: Using the Graphical Interface to Set Up Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode

SETUP > Paging > Service	
	Help
Tip: You can add as many services as you want by repeating th service name will be treated as a new one. If an existing se settings, the existing service is updated. To delete a servic name of the service you want to delete.	is step. A service with a new rvice name is entered with new e you need to enter only the
Service Setup:	
Service name:	PageNet
Device (for example, /dev/ttyd):	Select Modems 📼
Maximum number of retries (must be at least 6):	
Maximum length of the message (consult your service provider):	
Phone number of the paging service (no spaces):	
Tip: If you cannot find a modern that you need in the list above, Notification: Modern/admin.	add it by using <u>SETUP:</u>
Add/Update Delete Clear	
Figure 5-58 Deleting a Paging Service (Paging Service)	age 1 [Graphical Interface

4. Click on Delete. (The interface displays a confirmation message; refer to Figure 5-59.)

SETUP > P	aging >	Service		
The followi	ng Ser	vice is deleted :		
Name	:	PageNet		

Figure 5-59 Deleting a Paging Service (Page 2 [Graphical Interface])

Deleting a Modem

Perform the following the procedure to delete a modem:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Modem/Admin button in the Paging category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Enter the name of the modem that you want to delete. If you cannot remember the name of the modem, use the SETUP > Paging > View Current Setup command to view it. (Refer to Figure 5-60.)

Warning: Deleting a modem automatically removes all paging services (and related pagers) that are associated with it.

SETUP > Paging > Modem/Admin	
	Help
Modem setup:	
Enter modem name:	USRobotics–Sportster
Enter modem device (e.g. /dev/ttya):	
Enter modem initialization command (please check your modem manual):	
Add/Update Delete Clear	

Figure 5-60 Deleting a Modem (Page 1 [Graphical Interface])

4. Click on Delete. (The interface displays a confirmation message; refer to Figure 5-61.)

SETUP > Paging > Modem/Admin	
The following Modem is deleted :	
Name : USRobotics–Sportster	

Figure 5-61 Deleting a Modem (Page 2 [Graphical Interface])

Setting Up the Availability Monitor in Single System Manager Mode

The availability monitor portion of Embedded Support Partner (availmon) monitors and reports the availability of systems and also reports the diagnosis of system crashes. The availability monitor identifies the cause of any system interrupts by gathering information from diagnostic programs such as ICRASH, FRU Analyzer, and SYSLOG. It also gathers hardware and software configuration details from configmon.

The availability monitor is embedded in the system boot and shutdown processes. It differentiates between controlled shutdowns, system panics, and system hangs. On high-end systems (such as IP19, IP21, IP25, IP27, etc.), it differentiates between nonmaskable interrupts (NMIs), power cycles, and power failures. The availability monitor also monitors the uptime of a system at regular intervals. This uptime monitoring feature can be used to send status updates for a system. The uptime monitoring is done through eventmond.

Embedded Support Partner can send data that the availability monitor gathers in a report format to e-mail addresses that you specify. You can also use the SYSTEM INFORMATION > Availability command to view the data gathered on the system.

The following sections describe how you can set up the availability monitor.

Viewing the Current Availability Monitoring Setup

The current availability monitoring setup defines all of the availability monitor parameters that are currently configured on your system.

To view the current availability monitoring setup, click on the Setup tab and then click on the View Current Setup button in the Availability Monitoring category of the SETUP section. Figure 5-62 shows an example page.

SETUP > Availability monitor > View Current Setup	
Automatic e-mail distribution	: Disabled
Display reason for shutdown	: Enabled
Include HINV information in the e–mail	: Yes
Start uptime daemon	: Yes
Number of days between status updates	: 60
Interval in seconds between uptime checks	: 300
Availmon Monitor E-mail list for availability report:	
E–mail addresses that receive availability report in text form	:
E-mail addresses that receive availability report in compressed form	:
E–mail addresses that receive availability report in compressed encrypted form	:
Availmon Monitor E-mail list for diagnostic report:	
E–mail addresses that receive diagnostic report in text form	:
E-mail addresses that receive diagnostic report in compressed form	:
E–mail addresses that receive diagnostic report in compressed encrypted form	: availmon@csd.sgi.com
E-mail list for chatty pager	
E-mail addresses for chatty pager	:

Figure 5-62 Viewing the Current Availability Monitor Setup Page (Graphical Interface)

Configuring the Availability Monitor

Perform the following procedure to configure the availability monitor:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Configuration button in the Availability Monitoring category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Set up the parameters. (Refer to Figure 5-63; Table 5-9 describes the parameters.)

SETUP > Availmon Monitor > Configuration				
				Help
Automatic e–mail distribution:	\diamond	Enable	۲	Disable
Display reason for shutdown:	۲	Enable	\diamond	Disable
Include HINV information in the e–mail:	۲	Yes	\diamond	No
Start uptime daemon:	۲	Yes	\diamond	No
Number of days between status updates (default = 60) (0 – 300):	60		days	
Interval in seconds between uptime checks (default = 300 seconds):	300		seconds	
Tip: If the automatic e–mail option is enabled, you must cor SETUP: Availability Monitor: Availability MailList.	nplete			
Accept				

Figure 5-63 Configuring the Availability Monitor (Graphical Interface)

Parameter	Possible Values	Description
Automatic e-mail distribution	Enable or Disable	Specifies whether the availability monitor should automatically distribute reports by e-mail
		Any changes to this parameter cause a confirmation report to be sent to all configured e-mail addresses (except the e-mail addresses that are configured to receive pager reports)
Display reason for shutdown	Enable or Disable	Specifies whether the availability monitor should display the reason for a shutdown
		If this parameter is enabled when you perform a controlled shutdown, the availability monitor prompts you to explain you are rebooting the system or why you are bringing the system down to single-user mode
Include HINV information in the e-mail	Yes or No	Specifies whether the availability monitor should include HINV information/changes in the e-mail messages that it generates
Start uptime daemon	Yes or No	Specifies whether the availability monitor should start uptime monitoring
		If you set this parameter to Yes, it enables eventmond to monitor uptime at regular intervals
		You can set the interval with the Interval in seconds between uptime checks parameter

 Table 5-9
 Availability Monitor Parameters

Chapter 5: Using the Graphical Interface to Set Up Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode

Parameter	Possible Values	Description
Number of days between status updates (default = 60) (0 - 300)	0 - 300	Specifies the number of days after which the availability monitor should send a notification to the configured e-mail addresses that the system is still running
		This parameter is relevant only when uptime monitoring is enabled
<pre>Interval in seconds between uptime checks (default = 300 seconds)</pre>	0 - 300	Specifies the number of seconds that the availability monitor should wait before it performs the next uptime check on the system This parameter is relevant only when uptime monitoring is enabled

Table 5-9	(continued))
-----------	-------------	---

d) Availability Monitor Parameters

4. Click on Accept.

Setting Up the Availability Monitor E-mail Lists

You can configure Embedded Support Partner to send e-mail messages with reports that are generated from the availability data. Embedded Support Partner can send three types of reports: availability, diagnosis, and pager reports.

- Availability reports include the system start time, an event code for the availability event that occurred, the approximate time that the event occurred, the start time, and a summary of the reason for the crash (when relevant).
- Diagnosis reports include all of the data from the availability reports. They may also contain the crash analysis report, FRU Analyzer result, important SYSLOG messages, and system hardware and software configurations (if they changed since the previous reboot).
- Pager reports contain the hostname, event code description, and summary.

You can set up the availability monitor e-mail lists for each type of report. You can also specify whether the reports need to be encrypted or compressed. Reports are sent only if you set the Automatic e-mail distribution parameter to Enable (refer to Table 5-9).

The recommended configuration is to send the diagnosis report in compressed and encrypted format to SGI at the availmon@csd.sgi.come-mail address for entry in SGI's database. Other possibilities include sending the availability reports to the system administrator and sending diagnosis reports to SGI service personnel.

Perform the following procedure to set up the e-mail lists:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Availability MailList button in the Availability Monitoring category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Set up the e-mail addresses for the availability report. (Refer to Figure 5-64; Table 5-10 describes the parameters.)

Note: A confirmation message is sent to the e-mail addresses of any users that you add or remove from this list.

4. Set up the e-mail addresses for the diagnostic report. (Refer to Figure 5-64; Table 5-11 describes the parameters.)

Note: A confirmation message is sent to the e-mail addresses of any users that you add or remove from this list.

Chapter 5: Using the Graphical Interface to Set Up Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode

SETUP > Availability Monitoring > Availability MailList	
	Help
E-mail list for availability report:	
Enter $\operatorname{e-mail}$ addresses that receive availability report in text form:	
Enter e-mail addresses that receive availability report in compressed form:	
Enter e-mail addresses that receive availability report in compressed encrypted form:	
E-mail list for diagnostic report:	
Enter e-mail addresses that receive diagnostic report in text form:	
Enter e-mail addresses that receive diagnostic report in compressed form:	
Enter e-mail addresses that receive diagnostic report in compressed encrypted form:	availmon@csd.sgi.com
E-mail list for chatty pager	
Enter email addresses for chatty pager:	
Accept	

Figure 5-64 Setting Up the Availability Monitor E-mail Lists (Graphical Interface)

 Table 5-10
 E-mail Address Parameters for Availability Reports

Parameter	Description
Enter e-mail addresses that receive availability report in text form	Specifies the e-mail addresses that will receive the availability report in text format
Enter e-mail addresses that receive availability report in compressed form	Specifies the e-mail addresses that will receive the availability report in compressed format
Enter e-mail addresses that receive availability report in compressed encrypted form	Specifies the e-mail addresses that will receive the availability report in compressed (encrypted) format

Table 5-11 E-mail Address Parameters for Diagnostic Reports

Parameter	Description
Enter e-mail addresses that receive diagnostic report in text form	Specifies the e-mail addresses that will receive the diagnostic report in text format
Enter e-mail addresses that receive diagnostic report in compressed form	Specifies the e-mail addresses that will receive the diagnostic report in compressed format
Enter e-mail addresses that receive diagnostic report in compressed encrypted form	Specifies the e-mail addresses that will receive the diagnostic report in compressed (encrypted) format

- 5. Set up the e-mail addresses that will receive the pager reports through a chatty pager.
- 6. Click on Accept.

Setting Up the Performance Monitor in Single System Manager Mode

The performance monitor component of Embedded Support Partner monitors system performance by evaluating a set of performance rules at specified time intervals.

Viewing the Current Performance Monitoring Setup

The current performance monitoring indicates which performance rules are currently being monitored. (An Enabled status indicates that Embedded Support Partner is monitoring the rule; a Disabled status indicates that Embedded Support Partner is not monitoring the rule.)

To view the current performance monitoring setup, click on the Setup tab and then click on the View Current Setup button in the Performance Monitoring category of the SETUP section. Figure 5-65 shows an example page. Chapter 5: Using the Graphical Interface to Set Up Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager Mode

SETUP > Performance Monitoring > View Performance

Automated performance monitoring: Enabled

Automated performance monitoring must be enabled for the enabled performance rules to take effect.

Current status of automated PMIE monitoring rules:

No.	PMIE Rule Description	PMIE Rule	Status
1	High aggregate context switch rate	cpu.context_switch	Disabled
2	Possible high floating point exception rate	cpu.excess_fpe	Disabled
3	High 1–minute load average	cpu.load_average	Disabled
4	Low average processor utilization	cpu.low_util	Disabled
5	High aggregate system call rate	cpu.syscall	Enabled
6	Busy executing in system mode	cpu.system	Enabled
7	High average processor utilization	cpu.util	Disabled
8	CrayLink checkbit errors on Origin node	craylink.node_cb_errs	Disabled
9	CrayLink checkbit errors on Origin router	craylink.router_cb_errs	Disabled
10	System Group Manager slow service response	espping.response	Disabled

Figure 5-65 Viewing the Current Performance Monitoring Setup (Graphical Interface)

Configuring the Performance Monitor

Perform the following procedure to configure the performance monitor:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Configuration button in the Performance Monitoring category of the SETUP section.

3. Specify the rules that you want to monitor: Click on the Enabled radio button to start monitoring a rule; click on the Disable radio button to stop monitoring a rule. (Refer to Figure 5-66; refer to the *Performance Co-Pilot IRIX Base Software Administrator's Guide*, publication number 007-3964-001, for more information about the rules.)

SETUP > Performance Monitoring > Config	guration	
		Help
Automated performance monitoring:	Enabled	♦ Disabled
Automated performance monitoring must b effect.	oe enabled for	the enabled performance rules to take
,		

Enable or disable automated PMIE monitoring for individual performance rules:

No.	PMIE Rule Description	Enabled	Disabled
1	High aggregate context switch rate	\$	۲
2	Possible high floating point exception rate	\$	۲
3	High 1–minute load average	\$	۲
4	Low average processor utilization	\$	۲
5	High aggregate system call rate	۲	\$
6	Busy executing in system mode	۲	\$
7	High average processor utilization	\$	۲
8	CrayLink checkbit errors on Origin node	\$	۲
9	CrayLink checkbit errors on Origin router	\$	۲
10	System Group Manager slow service response	\$	۲

Figure 5-66 Configuring the Performance Monitor (Graphical Interface)

4. Click on Accept.

Chapter 6

Using the Graphical Interface to View Information about a System in Single System Manager Mode

Use the commands in the SYSTEM INFORMATION section of the graphical interface to view the following types of information from the system that is running Embedded Support Partner in Single System Manager mode:

- Hardware configuration
- Software configuration
- System changes
- Part changes
- Events registered
- Diagnostic results
- Actions taken
- System availability

Viewing the Hardware Configuration for a Specific Date

Perform the following procedure to view the hardware configuration information for a specific date and time:

- 1. Click on the System Information tab.
- 2. Click on the Hardware button in the SYSTEM INFORMATION section.
- 3. Specify the date in the Date field. If you do not specify a date, the current hardware configuration information is displayed. (Refer to Figure 6-1.)
- Specify the time in the Time field. If you do not specify a time, the latest hardware configuration information available for the specified date is displayed. (Refer to Figure 6-1.)

Chapter 6: Using the Graphical Interface to View Information about a System in Single System Manager Mode

5. Click on the radio button next to the database that you want to use. Be sure to select the database that contains the data for the date that you have selected. (Refer to Figure 6-1.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION	> Hardware						
Help System name : overdrive.csd.sgi.com System ID : 80069058F4B System serial number : 69058F4B IP type : IP27 System IP address : 192.26.58.19							
Display hardware configura	tion informatio	n for the follov	wing date and time:				
Date	Time	9					
06/12/1999	23:59:59						
(mm/dd/yyyy)	(hh:mm	:ss)					
Choose a database for a se	Choose a database for a selected date:						
Database Name	Start Date	End Date					
Transformation Active Database 05/27/1999 Current							
Accept Clear							

Figure 6-1 Viewing the Hardware System Information (Page 1[Graphical Interface])

6. Click on Accept.

The interface displays a table that contains the hardware configuration on the date and at the time that you specified. (Refer to Figure 6-2; Table 6-1 describes the information that the table contains.)

S	SYSTEM INFORMATION > Hardware							
$\omega = \omega \omega \omega$	yste yste yste yste yste	em n em II em s be em II	ame D erial nun P addres	: ove : 8000 iber : 6902 : IP27 s : 1923	rdrive.csd.s 39058F4B 58F4B 7 26.58.19	gi.com		
	Name Location Part Number Serial Number Revision							
	₩	►	1	NA	NA	NA	NA	

Figure 6-2 Viewing the Hardware System Information (Page 2 [Graphical Interface])

Table 6-1	Hardware Configuration Table Contents
-----------	---------------------------------------

Column Heading	Description
NAME	Name of the part
LOCATION	Location where the part is currently installed
PART_NUMBER	Part number for the part
SERIAL_NUMBER	Serial number of the part Tip: Use the serial number with the SYSTEM INFORMATION > Part Changes command to determine all of the locations in which a specific part has been installed
REVISION	Revision level of the part

The first column provides buttons that expand rows in the table to provide more information about subcomponents of a part. The single arrow expands the rows to show the subcomponents related to the part. The double arrow expands all rows below the current row. The down arrow collapses a row.

Note: Embedded Support Partner gathers hardware configuration data from only the following types of systems: SGI Origin 200, Origin 2000, and Challenge servers; and Silicon Graphics O2, Octane, Onyx, and Onyx2 workstations.

Figure 6-3 shows a table with all of the rows expanded.

System name :	overdrive.csd.sgi.com
System ID :	80069058F4B
System serial number :	69058F4B
IP type :	IP27
System IP address :	192.26 <i>.5</i> 8.19

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Hardware

	Name	Location	Part Number	Serial Number	Revision
▼	1	NA	NA	NA	NA
▼	PIMM_2XT5_1MB	NA	013-1896-001	DJY958	E
▼	IP29	MotherBoard	030-1244-001	GFE634	Н
	MEMBANK_0	MotherBoard	NA	NA	NA
	MEMBANK_1	MotherBoard	NA	NA	NA
	MEMBANK_2	MotherBoard	NA	NA	NA
	MEMBANK_3	MotherBoard	NA	NA	NA
	R10000	MotherBoard	NA	NA	NA
	R10000	MotherBoard	NA	NA	NA
	BASEIO	NA	NA	NA	NA
▼	SCSI_CTLR_0	NA	NA	NA	NA
	DRIVE_1	NA	IBM DCHS04Y	6804B36BRAMSG052	5252
	DRIVE_2	NA	IBM DCHS04Y	68143260RAMSG052	5252
<u> </u>		NA	IRM DCHS04V	6000E004DAM9C052	5252

Figure 6-3 Hardware System Information (Page 2 with Rows Expanded [Graphical Interface])

Viewing the Software Configuration for a Specific Date

Perform the following procedure to view the software configuration for a specific date and time:

- 1. Click on the System Information tab.
- 2. Click on the Software button in the SYSTEM INFORMATION section.

- 3. Specify the date in the Date field. If you do not specify a date, the current software configuration information is displayed. (Refer to Figure 6-4.)
- 4. Specify the time in the Time field. If you do not specify a time, the latest software configuration information available for the specified date is displayed. (Refer to Figure 6-4.)
- 5. Click on the radio button next to the database that you want to use. Be sure to select the database that contains the data for the date that you have selected. (Refer to Figure 6-4.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION	l > Software					
System name : System ID : System serial number : IP type : System IP address :	hello.csd.sgi.c 69089ACA 080069089AC IP22 150.166.4.15	om A			Help	
Display software configura	ation informatio	n for the follo	wing date an	d time:		
Date	Tim	e				
06/11/1999	23:59:59					
(mm/dd/yyyy)	,(hh:mn	n:ss)				
Choose a database for a s	Choose a database for a selected date:					
Database Name	Start Date	End Date				
🚸 Active Database	05/20/1999	Current				
Accept Clear]					



6. Click on Accept.

The interface displays a table that contains the software configuration for the date and time that you specified. (Refer to Figure 6-6; Table 6-2 describes the information that the table contains.)

Chapter 6: Using the Graphical Interface to View Information about a System in Single System Manager Mode

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Software

			Page 1 of 12
Name	Version	Install Date	Description
4Dwm	1275625620	06/03/1999	Desktop Window Manager, 6.5.5m
CaseVision	1024068010	11/13/1998	CASEVision Environment, Version 2.6.5
InPerson	1274627333	11/13/1998	InPerson Desktop Conferencing, 2.2.1
PeoplePages	1274627333	11/13/1998	PeoplePages – The Indigo Magic Phonebook, 1.2.1
Register	1275625620	06/03/1999	On–Line Registration, 1.6

Figure 6-5 Viewing the Software System Information (Page 2 [Graphical Interface])

Table 6-2 Software Configuration Table Contents

Column Heading	Description
Name	Name of the software application
Version	Version number of the software application
Install Date	Date on which the software application was installed
Description	Brief description of the software

Each page contains ten items. Use the symbols at the bottom of the page to navigate through the pages as follows:

- Use the numbers at the bottom of the page to select the corresponding pages.
- Use the single-right-arrow icon to move to the next group of pages.
- Use the double-right-arrow icon to move to the last group of pages.
- Use the single-left-arrow icon to move to the previous group of pages.
- Use the double-left-arrow icon to move to the first group of pages.

Viewing the System Changes between a Range of Dates

You can view a log of all system changes within a range of dates.

Perform the following procedure to view the system changes information:

- 1. Click on the System Information tab.
- 2. Click on the System Changes button in the SYSTEM INFORMATION section.
- 3. Specify the starting date (in the From field) and ending date (in the To field) of the range of dates for which you want to view system change information. (Refer to Figure 6-6.)

Note: To view all system changes on a specific day, enter that date in both fields.

4. Click on the radio button next to the database that you want to use. Be sure to select the database that contains the data for the date that you have selected. (Refer to Figure 6-6.)

Chapter 6: Using the Graphical Interface to View Information about a System in Single System Manager Mode

SYSTEM INFORMATION > System Changes				
System name : h System ID : 6 System serial number : 0 IP type : If System IP address : 1:	ello.csd.sgi.co 9089ACA 80069089ACA 222 50.166.4.15	im A		Help
Display information of system configuration changes: From: 06/01/1999 To: 06/11/1999 (mm/dd/yyyy) (mm/dd/yyyy) Choose a database for selected dates:				
Database Name	Start Date	End Date		
🚸 🛛 Active Database	05/20/1999	Current		
Accept				



5. Click on Accept.

The interface displays up to three tables that show all software changes, hardware changes, and system changes that occurred between the range of dates that you specified. (Refer to Figure 6-7; Table 6-3, Table 6-4, and Table 6-5 describe the information that the tables contain.)

YSTEM INFORMA	\TION > System	n Changes		
ystem name ystem ID ystem serial numbe type ystem IP address rchive name: ssdb I Changes since 0	: hello.csd.s : 69083ACA er : 080069083 : IP22 : 150.166.4. 16/01/1999	sgi.com A 9ACA 15		
OFTWARE CHAN	GES			
Name	Version	Install Date	Deinstall Date	Description
4Dwm	1275616120	06/01/1999	0	Desktop Window Manager, 6.5.5m
Register	1275616120	06/01/1999	0	On–Line Registration, 1.6
ViewKit_dev	1275616120	06/01/1999	0	ViewKit Development Environmen Version 1.5.3
ViewKit_eoe	1275616120	06/01/1999	0	ViewKit Execution Environment, Version 1.5.3
ViewKit_noship	1275616120	06/01/1999	0	ViewKit NOSHIP files, Version 1.5 and 2.1.0
desktop_base	1275616120	06/01/1999	0	IRIX Interactive Desktop Base Software, 6.5.5m
desktop_eoe	1275616120	06/01/1999	0	IRIX Interactive Desktop, 6.5.5m
desktop_tools	1275616120	06/01/1999	0	Desktop Tools, 6.5.5m
dev	1275616120	06/01/1999	0	Development System, 7.2.1

Figure 6-7 Viewing the System Changes Information (Page 2 [Graphical Interface])

Description
Name of the software application
Brief description of the software application
Version number of the software application
Date on which the software application was installed
Date that the software application was removed from the system
This column displays Installed if the software application has not been deinstalled

 Table 6-3
 Software Changes Table Contents

Table 6-4 Hardware Changes Table Contents

Column Name	Description
NAME	Name of the part
LOCATION	Location where the part is currently installed
PART_NUMBER	Part number for the part
SERIAL_NUMBER	Serial number of the part
	Tip: Use the serial number with the SYSTEM INFORMATION > Part Changes command to identify all of the locations in which a specific part has been installed
REVISION	Revision level of the part
Install Time	The date on which the component was installed
Deinstall Time	The date on which the component was deinstalled

Column Name	Description
System Changes	A label that indicates the information is from the CURRENT SYSTEM or PREVIOUS SYSTEM
System Id	System identification number
System type	Processor that the system uses
System serial number	Serial number of the system
Hostname	Host name of the system
IP address	IP address of the system

 Table 6-5
 System Changes Table Contents

Be aware of the following information when you view these tables:

- Embedded Support Partner gathers hardware configuration data from only the following types of systems: SGI Origin 200, Origin 2000, and Challenge servers; and Silicon Graphics O2, Octane, Onyx, and Onyx2 workstations.
- For SGI Challenge servers and Silicon Graphics Onyx workstations, detailed information about the boards that are installed is not available. This impacts the hardware changes table as follows:
 - If a board is replaced with the same type of board in the same slot, Embedded Support Partner does not detect the change.
 - If a board is moved to a new slot, Embedded Support Partner detects the change.
- When you deinstall a hardware component, Embedded Support Partner reports that all subcomponents of the part are deinstalled.
- If you replace a module with a new module that contains the boards from the previous module, Embedded Support Partner reports that the components were deinstalled and then installed again.
- The software installation time is always shown as 12:00 midnight GMT (adjusted for the local time zone) of the day that the software was installed.
- Embedded Support Partner registers two events when hardware and software components are replaced. One event is for the deinstallation of the previous component, and the other event is for the installation of the new component.

Viewing the Part Changes Information

The part changes information shows all locations in which a specific part has been installed.

Perform the following procedure to view the part changes information:

- 1. Click on the System Information tab.
- 2. Click on the Part Changes button in the SYSTEM INFORMATION section.
- 3. Enter the serial number of the part in the field. (Refer to Figure 6-8.)
- 4. Click on the radio button next to the database that you want to use. Be sure to select the database that contains the data for the date that you have selected. (Refer to Figure 6-8.)
| SYSTEM INFORMATION | > Part Chang | es | | | |
|--|--|-----------------|-------------------|----------------|----------------------|
| System name : 1
System ID : 2
System serial number : 6
IP type : 1
System IP address : 1 | overdrive.csd.
30069058F4B
39058F4B
P27
192.26.58.19 | sgi.com | | | Help |
| | he nart for whi | eh vou would | like to see ch: | annes (history | λ. |
| | .16 parcior will | en you would | IIKE (U 366 GII | anges (motory | <i>ŀ</i> |
| DJY958 | | | | | |
| Tip: For part serial number | information, p | llease refer to | the <u>SYSTEM</u> | | <u>ON: Hardware.</u> |
| Choose a database: | | | | | |
| Database Name | Start Date | End Date | [| | |
| Active Database | 05/27/1999 | Current | | | |
| | | | 8 | | |

Figure 6-8Viewing the Part Changes Information (Page 1 [Graphical Interface])

5. Click on Accept.

The interface displays a table that contains all locations in which the part has been installed. (Refer to Figure 6-9; Table 6-6 describes the information that the table contains.)

~ ~	SYSTEM INFORMATION > Part Changes						
	System name: overdrive.csd.sgi.comSystem ID: 80069058F4BSystem serial number: 69058F4BIP type: IP27System IP address: 192.26.58.19						
	Name	Location	Part Number	Serial Number	Revision	Install Date	Deinstall Date
	PIMM_2XT5_1MB	NA	013-1896-001	DJY958	E	05/27/1999	0

Figure 6-9 Viewing the Part Changes Information (Page 2 [Graphical Interface])

Table 6-6Part Changes Table Contents

Column Heading	Description
Name	Name of the part
Location	Location at which the part was installed
Part Number	Part number for the part
Serial Number	Serial number of the part
Revision	Revision level of the part
Install Date	Date on which the part was installed in this location
Deinstall Date	Date on which the part was removed from this location

Viewing the Events that Have Been Registered

Embedded Support Partner logs all of the events that it registers. To view this information, click on the System Information tab and then click on the Events Registered button in the SYSTEM INFORMATION section. Figure 6-10 shows the page that you use to view the information about registered events.

SYSTEM INFORMATION > EV	rents Registered		
	Help		
The following information pertains to a historical record of events that occurred on the system. If you need current event setup information, refer to <u>SETUP: Events: View Current Setup</u> .			
Enter the date(s) for which you v	want system events information:		
From: 06/01/1999 To (mm/dd/yyyy)	: 06/11/1999 (mm/dd/yyyy)		
Choose one of the following opti	ons:		
All System Events	Displays all events that have occurred on the system within the range of the selected dates.		
Specific System Event	Displays selected events that have occurred on the system within the range of the selected dates.		
System Events by Class	Displays events in the selected class that have occurred on the system within the range of the selected dates.		
Accept			

Figure 6-10 Options for Viewing Events that Have Been Registered (Graphical Interface)

Using the All System Events Option

The All System Events option displays all events that have been registered within the range of dates that you specify.

Perform the following procedure to use the All System Events option:

- 1. Click on the System Information tab.
- 2. Click on the Events Registered button in the SYSTEM INFORMATION section.
- 3. Specify the range of dates that you want to view. (Refer to Figure 6-11.)
- 4. Click on the radio button next to the All System Events option. (Refer to Figure 6-11.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Events Registered				
	Help			
The following information pertains to a historical record of events that occurred on the system. If you need current event setup information, refer to <u>SETUP: Events: View Current Setup</u> .				
Enter the date(s) for which you v	vant system events information:			
From: 06/01/1999 To (mm/dd/yyyyy)	(mm/dd/yyyy)			
Choose one of the following opti	ons:			
🚸 All System Events	Displays all events that have occurred on the system within the range of the selected dates.			
Specific System Event	Displays selected events that have occurred on the system within the range of the selected dates.			
 System Events by Class 	Displays events in the selected class that have occurred on the system within the range of the selected dates.			
Accept Clear				

Figure 6-11 Using the All System Events Option (Page 1 [Graphical Interface])

5. Click on Accept.

The interface displays a table of all events that have been registered within the range of dates that you specified. (Refer to Figure 6-12; Table 6-7 describes the information that the table contains.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Events Registered > All System Events

Class of Event	: All events
System name	: hello.csd.sgi.com
System ID	: 69089ACA
System serial number	: 080069089ACA
System IP type	: IP22
System IP address	: 150.166.4.15

						Page 1 of 2
No.	Event Class	Event Description	Event ID	First Occurrence	Last Occurrence	Event Count
1	System Configuration	Software installed	0x200104	06/01/1999 15:54:04	06/01/1999 15:54:04	1
2	System Configuration	Software de–installed	0x200105	06/01/1999 15:54:04	06/01/1999 15:54:04	1
3	Availability	Controlled shutdown (1)	0x20001E	06/01/1999 15:54:23	06/01/1999 15:54:23	1
4	Availability	Controlled shutdown (1)	0x20001E	06/01/1999 16:12:32	06/01/1999 16:12:32	1
5	Availability	Controlled shutdown (1)	0x20001E	06/01/1999 16:28:22	06/01/1999 16:28:22	1
6	Availability	Controlled shutdown (1)	0x20001E	06/01/1999 16:44:27	06/01/1999 16:44:27	1
7	Performance	High collision rate in packet sends	0x20004E	06/03/1999 11:50:09	06/03/1999 11:50:09	1
8	Performance	High collision rate in packet sends	0x20004E	06/03/1999 12:24:13	06/03/1999 12:24:13	1

Figure 6-12 Using the All System Events Option (Page 2 [Graphical Interface])

Column Heading	Description
No.	Index number within the table
Event Class	The class in which the event belongs
Event Description	Brief description of the event
Event ID	Unique identification number for the event
First Occurrence	Date and time at which the event was first registered
Last Occurrence	Date and time at which the event was last registered
Event Count	Number of times that the event occurred

Table 6-7Table Contents for the All System Events Option

Each page contains ten registered events. Use the symbols at the bottom of the page to navigate through the pages as follows:

- Use the numbers at the bottom of the page to select the corresponding pages.
- Use the single-right-arrow icon to move to the next group of pages.
- Use the double-right-arrow icon to move to the last group of pages.
- Use the single-left-arrow icon to move to the previous group of pages.
- Use the double-left-arrow icon to move to the first group of pages.

Using the Specific System Event Option

The Specific System Event option displays all event registrations for a specific event within the range of dates that you specify.

Perform the following procedure to use the Specific System Event option:

- 1. Click on the System Information tab.
- 2. Click on the Events Registered button in the SYSTEM INFORMATION section.
- 3. Specify the range of dates that you want to view. (Refer to Figure 6-13.)

4. Click on the radio button next to the Specific System Event option. (Refer to Figure 6-13.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > E	vents Registered			
	Help			
The following information pertains to a historical record of events that occurred on the system. If you need current event setup information, refer to <u>SETUP: Events: View Current Setup</u> .				
Enter the date(s) for which you	want system events information:			
From: 06/01/1999 To (mm/dd/yyyy)	o: 06/11/1999 (mm/dd/yyyy)			
Choose one of the following options:				
🐗 All System Events	Displays all events that have occurred on the system within the range of the selected dates.			
🍕 Specific System Event	Displays selected events that have occurred on the system within the range of the selected dates.			
 System Events by Class 	Displays events in the selected class that have occurred on the system within the range of the selected dates.			
Accept Clear				

Figure 6-13 Using the Specific System Event Option (Page 1 [Graphical Interface])

Chapter 6: Using the Graphical Interface to View Information about a System in Single System Manager Mode

5. Choose the class that contains the event that you want to view. (Refer to Figure 6-14.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Events Registered > Specific System Event	
	Help
Choose an event class:	
Availability Diagnostic ESP Event Manager ESP Internal Events File System	
Accept	

Figure 6-14 Using the Specific System Event Option (Page 2 [Graphical Interface])

- 6. Click on Accept.
- 7. Choose the event that you want to view. (Refer to Figure 6-15.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Events Registered > Specific System Event	
	Help
Choose an event from class Availability :	
Controlled shutdown (2) Controlled shutdown (2) Controlled shutdown (3) Controlled shutdown (4) Controlled shutdown (6) Controlled shutdown (imeout) Controlled shutdown (unknown) Controlled shutdown (unknown) Deregistration	
Accept	



Using the Specific System Event Option (Page 3 [Graphical Interface])

8. Click on Accept.

The interface displays a table that shows all registrations of the event within the dates that you specified. (Refer to Figure 6-16; Table 6-8 describes the information that the table contains.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Events Registered > Specific System Event		
System name	: hello.csd.sgi.com	
System ID	: 69089ACA	
System serial number	: 080069089ACA	
System IP type	: IP22	
System IP address	: 150.166.4.15	
Class of Event	: Availability	
Event Description	: Controlled shutdown (1)	
Event ID	: 0x20001E	

			Page 1 of
No.	First Event Occurrence	Last Event Occurrence	Event Count
1	06/01/1999 15:54:23	06/01/1999 15:54:23	1
2	06/01/1999 16:12:32	06/01/1999 16:12:32	1
3	06/01/1999 16:28:22	06/01/1999 16:28:22	1
4	06/01/1999 16:44:27	06/01/1999 16:44:27	1
5	06/03/1999 14:36:04	06/03/1999 14:36:04	1

Figure 6-16 Using the Specific System Event Option (Page 4 [Graphical Interface])

Table 6-8Table Contents for the Specific System Event Option

Column Heading	Description
No.	Index number within the table
First Event Occurrence	Date and time at which the event was first registered
Last Event Occurrence	Date and time at which the event was last registered
Event Count	Number of times that event occurred for that registration

Each page contains ten registered events. Use the symbols at the bottom of the page to navigate through the pages as follows:

- Use the numbers at the bottom of the page to select the corresponding pages.
- Use the single-right-arrow icon to move to the next group of pages.
- Use the double-right-arrow icon to move to the last group of pages.
- Use the single-left-arrow icon to move to the previous group of pages.
- Use the double-left-arrow icon to move to the first group of pages.

System Events by Class Option

The System Events by Class option displays all registrations of events in a specific class.

Perform the following procedure to use the System Events by Class option:

- 1. Click on the System Information tab.
- 2. Click on the Events Registered button in the SYSTEM INFORMATION section.
- 3. Specify the range of dates that you want to view. (Refer to Figure 6-17.)
- 4. Click on the radio button next to the System Events by Class option. (Refer to Figure 6-17.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Events Registered						
	Help					
The following information perta need current event setup inform	The following information pertains to a historical record of events that occurred on the system. If you need current event setup information, refer to <u>SETUP: Events: View Current Setup</u> .					
Enter the date(s) for which you	Enter the date(s) for which you want system events information:					
From: 06/01/1999 Ta (mm/dd/yyyy)	o: 06/11/1999 (mm/dd/yyyy)					
Choose one of the following opt	tions:					
🐗 All System Events	Displays all events that have occurred on the system within the range of the selected dates.					
🌒 Specific System Event	Displays selected events that have occurred on the system within the range of the selected dates.					
System Events by Class	Displays events in the selected class that have occurred on the system within the range of the selected dates.					
Accept Clear						



Chapter 6: Using the Graphical Interface to View Information about a System in Single System Manager Mode

5. Choose the event class. (Refer to Figure 6-18.)





6. Click on Accept.

The interface displays information about all events from the selected class that were registered between the dates that you specified. (Refer to Figure 6-19; Table 6-9 describes the information that the table contains.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Events Registered > System Events by Class

System name	: hello.csd.sgi.com
System ID	: 69089ACA
System serial number	: 080069089ACA
System IP type	: IP22
System IP address	: 150.166.4.15

Class of Event : Availability

					Page 1 of
No.	Event Description	Event ID	First Event Occurrence	Last Event Occurrence	Event Count
1	Controlled shutdown (1)	0x20001E	06/01/1999 15:54:23	06/01/1999 15:54:23	1
2	Controlled shutdown (1)	0x20001E	06/01/1999 16:12:32	06/01/1999 16:12:32	1
3	Controlled shutdown (1)	0x20001E	06/01/1999 16:28:22	06/01/1999 16:28:22	1
4	Controlled shutdown (1)	0x20001E	06/01/1999 16:44:27	06/01/1999 16:44:27	1
5	Controlled shutdown (1)	0x20001E	06/03/1999 14:36:04	06/03/1999 14:36:04	1

Figure 6-19 Using the System Events by Class Option (Page 3 [Graphical Interface])

 Table 6-9
 Table Contents for the System Events by Class Option

Column Heading	Description
No.	Index number in the table
Event Description	Brief description of the event
Event ID	Unique identification number for the event
First Event Occurrence	Date and time that the event was first registered
Last Event Occurrence	Date and time that the event was last registered
Event Count	Number of times that the event occurred

Each page contains ten registered events. Use the symbols at the bottom of the page to navigate through the pages as follows:

- Use the numbers at the bottom of the page to select the corresponding pages.
- Use the single-right-arrow icon to move to the next group of pages.
- Use the double-right-arrow icon to move to the last group of pages.
- Use the single-left-arrow icon to move to the previous group of pages.
- Use the double-left-arrow icon to move to the first group of pages.

Viewing Information about the Actions Taken

Embedded Support Partner logs all of the actions that it performs. To view this information, click on the System Information tab and then click on the Actions Taken button in the SYSTEM INFORMATION section. Figure 6-20 shows the page that you use to view the information about actions taken.

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Actions Taken					
Help					
Enter the date(s) for which you want system events information:					
From: 06/01/1999 To: 06/11/1999 (mm/dd/yyyy) (mm/dd/yyyy)					
Choose one of the following options:					
All Actions Taken Displays all actions that were taken on the system and events that triggered these actions.					
Actions Taken for a Displays actions taken for a specific event only. Specific Event					
Accept Clear					



Using the All Actions Taken Option

The All Actions Taken option displays all actions that have been taken within the range of dates that you specify and the events that caused the actions to occur.

Perform the following procedure to use the All Actions Taken option:

- 1. Click on the System Information tab.
- 2. Click on the Actions Taken button in the SYSTEM INFORMATION section.
- 3. Specify the range of dates that you want to view. (Refer to Figure 6-21.)
- 4. Click on the radio button next to the All Actions Taken option. (Refer to Figure 6-21.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Actions Taken					
		Help			
Enter th	he date(s) for which you want sy	/stem events information:			
From:	05/20/1999 To: 06 (mm/dd/yyyy) (m	'11/1999 m/dd/yyyyy)			
Choose	e one of the following options:				
4	All Actions Taken	Displays all actions that were taken on the system and events that triggered these actions.			
4	Actions Taken for a Specific Event	Displays actions taken for a specific event only.			
Acc	Clear				

Figure 6-21 Using the All Actions Taken Option (Page 1 [Graphical Interface])

5. Click on Accept.

The interface displays a table that contains information about all of the actions that were taken between the dates that you specified. (Refer to Figure 6-22; Table 6-10 describes the information that the table contains.)

Chapter 6: Using the Graphical Interface to View Information about a System in Single System Manager Mode

SYSTE	MINFORMATI	ON > Actions I	aken > All At	ctions I aken		
Systen Systen Systen Systen Systen Class (n name n ID n serial number n IP type n IP address o f Reports	: hello.csd.sgi : 69089ACA : 080069089A : IP22 : 150.166.4.15 : All Actions	.com CA			
						Page 1 of
No.	Event Class	Event Description	Event ID	Action Description	Action Taken	Time of Action
1	User	Process killed [limit exceeded]	0x6DA	Notify sysadmin on console	/usr/bin/ssnotify _A "ALERT: Process [sschttpd] pid 4286 killed: process or stack limit exceeded"	05/22/1999 21:24:28
2	System Configuration	Software installed	0x200104	Notify sysadmin on console	/usr/bin/ssnotify –A	05/24/1999 16:26:13
3	System Configuration	Software de–installed	0x200105	Notify sysadmin on console	/usr/bin/ssnotify _A	05/24/1999 16:26:14

Figure 6-22 Using the All Actions Taken Option (Page 2 [Graphical Interface])

Table 6-10Table Contents for the All Actions Taken Option

Column	Description
No.	Index number in the table
Event Class	Class of the event to which the action is assigned
Event Description	Description of the event to which the action is assigned
Event ID	Identification number of the event to which the action is assigned
Action Description	Description of the action that was taken
Action Taken	Description of the command that the action performed
Time of Action	Date and time that the action was taken

Each page contains ten actions. Use the symbols at the bottom of the page to navigate through the pages as follows:

- Use the numbers at the bottom of the page to select the corresponding pages.
- Use the single-right-arrow icon to move to the next group of pages.
- Use the double-right-arrow icon to move to the last group of pages.
- Use the single-left-arrow icon to move to the previous group of pages.
- Use the double-left-arrow icon to move to the first group of pages.

Using the Actions Taken for a Specific Event Option

The Actions Taken for a Specific Event option displays all actions that were taken for a specific event within the range of dates that you specify.

Perform the following procedure to use the Actions Taken for a Specific Event option:

- 1. Click on the System Information tab.
- 2. Click on the Actions Taken button in the SYSTEM INFORMATION section.
- 3. Specify the range of dates that you want to view. (Refer to Figure 6-23.)
- 4. Click on the radio button next to the Actions Taken for a Specific Event option. (Refer to Figure 6-23.)

Chapter 6: Using the Graphical Interface to View Information about a System in Single System Manager Mode

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Actions Taken					
Help					
Enter the date(s) for which you want system events information:					
From: 05/20/1999 To: 06/11/1999 (mm/dd/yyyy) (mm/dd/yyyy)					
Choose one of the following options:					
 All Actions Taken Displays all actions that were taken on the system and events that triggered these actions. 					
 Actions Taken for a Displays actions taken for a specific event only. Specific Event 					
Accept					

Figure 6-23 Using the Actions Taken for a Specific Event Option (Page 1 [Graphical Interface])

5. Choose the class that contains the event that you want to view. (Refer to Figure 6-24.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Actions Taken > Actions Taken for Specific Event	
	Help
Choose an event class:	
System Configuration System Error User Venice Command Venice Resource	
Accept	



6. Click on Accept.

7. Choose the event. (Refer to Figure 6-25.)	
SYSTEM INFORMATION > Actions Taken > Actions Taken for Specific Event	
	Help
Choose an event from class System Configuration:	
Configmon init Hardware installed Harwdare de-installed Software installed Sysinfo changed System change	
Accept	



8. Click on Accept.

The interface displays a table that lists all of the actions taken for the event between the dates that you specified. (Refer to Figure 6-26; Table 6-11 describes the information that the table contains.)

Chapter 6: Using the Graphical Interface to View Information about a System in Single System Manager Mode

1	System Configuration	Software installed	0x200104	Notify sysadmin on console	/usr/bin/ssnotify _A	05/24/1999 16:26:13
No.	Event Class	Event Description	Event ID	Action Description	Action Taken	Time of Action
System Class c	n IP address	: 1722 : 150.166.4.15 : All Actions 1	Faken for Sp	pecific Event		Page 1 of
Systen Systen Systen	n name n ID n serial number	: hello.csd.sgi : 69089ACA : 080069089A	.com CA			
SYSTEM INFORMATION > Actions Taken > Actions Taken for Specific Event						

Figure 6-26 Using the Actions Taken for a Specific Event Option (Page 4 [Graphical Interface])

 Table 6-11
 Table Contents for the Actions Taken for a Specific Event Option

Description
Index number in the table
Class of the event to which the action is assigned
Description of the event to which the action is assigned
Identification number of the event to which the action is assigned
Description of the action that was taken
Description of the command that the action performed
Date and time that the action was taken

Each page contains ten actions. Use the symbols at the bottom of the page to navigate through the pages as follows:

- Use the numbers at the bottom of the page to select the corresponding pages.
- Use the single-right-arrow icon to move to the next group of pages.
- Use the double-right-arrow icon to move to the last group of pages.
- Use the single-left-arrow icon to move to the previous group of pages.
- Use the double-left-arrow icon to move to the first group of pages.

Viewing the Diagnostic Results

If you use the diagnostics that are included in the *Internal Support Tools* 2.0 or later releases, Embedded Support Partner monitors the diagnostics that you run on a system.

Perform the following procedure to view a report of the diagnostic results:

- 1. Click on the System Information tab.
- 2. Click on the Diagnostics Results button in the SYSTEM INFORMATION section.
- 3. Specify the starting date (in the From field) and ending date (in the To field) of the range of dates for which you want to view diagnostic results. (Refer to Figure 6-27.)

Note: To view diagnostic results from a specific day, enter that date in both fields.

4. Click on the radio button next to the database that you want to use. Be sure to select the database that contains the data for the date that you have selected. (Refer to Figure 6-27.)

SYSTEM INFORMATI	ON > Diagnostics Results	
System name System ID System serial number System IP type System IP address	: annushka.csd.sgi.com : 6902FB7E : 08006902FB7E : 1P32 : 150.166.1 <i>.</i> 59	Help
Display diagnostics res From: 08/07/1999 (mm/dd/yyyy)	To: 03/07/1999 (mm/dd/yyyy)	
Accept	ar	

Figure 6-27 Viewing the Diagnostic Results (Graphical Interface)

5. Click on Accept.

The interface displays a table that contains information about all diagnostics that ran during the range of time that you specified. (Refer to Figure 6-28; Table 6-12 describes the information that the table contains.)

SYSTE	SYSTEM INFORMATION > Diagnostics Results			
System System System System System	System name : annushka.csd.sgl.com System ID : 6902FB7E System serial number : 08006902FB7E System IP type : IP32 System IP address : 150.166.1.59			
Time pe	eriod	: 08/07/19	999 - 09/07/1999	
				Page 1 of 1
No.	Diagnostic	: Name	Diagnostic Result	Diagnostic Result Time
1	SVP (9)		PASS	08/17/1999 09:58:09

Figure 6-28 Viewing the Diagnostic Results (Page 2 [Graphical Interface])

Table 6-12	Diagnostic Results	Table Contents
	0	

Column Heading	Description	
No.	Index number within the table	
Diagnostic Name	Name of the diagnostic	
	When one or more tests run as a group under one program (for example, SVP), the total number of tests run is shown in parentheses next to the diagnostic name; for example:	
	SVP (86) indicates that 86 tests ran under SVP	
Diagnostic Result	Result of the diagnostic: PASS, FAIL, or COMPLETE	
	PASS indicates that the diagnostic completed successfully	
	FAIL indicates that the diagnostic failed	
	COMPLETE indicates that multiple tests ran and one or more of them failed and the others passed	
Diagnostic Result	Time at which the diagnostic completed testing	
Time	When multiple tests run under one diagnostic (for example, SVP), this column indicates the time at which all tests completed	

Each page contains ten items. Use the symbols at the bottom of the page to navigate through the pages as follows:

- Use the numbers at the bottom of the page to select the corresponding pages.
- Use the single-right-arrow icon to move to the next group of pages.
- Use the double-right-arrow icon to move to the last group of pages.
- Use the single-left-arrow icon to move to the previous group of pages.
- Use the double-left-arrow icon to move to the first group of pages.

Viewing the Availability Information

The availmon component of Embedded Support Partner tracks system availability. To view this information, click on the System Information tab and then click on the Availability button in the SYSTEM INFORMATION section.

Figure 6-29 shows the page that you use to view the information about system availability. This page displays the total availability (in percent) of the system and the mean time between interrupts (MTBI) in minutes and enables you to select which type of availability information to view.

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Availability
Help Total Availability (%) = 99.79 MTBI (min) = 2410
Enter the time period for which you want availability information:
From: To: 06/11/1999 (mm/dd/yyyyy) (mm/dd/yyyyy)
Choose one of the following options:
Overall Availability Displays all statistical availability information for the localhost, such as MTBI, Average Uptime etc. This is a detailed summary on the availability of the system.
Availability Events List Displays detailed information of all availability events. Selection of each event is also allowed if more detail is required.
Accept

Figure 6-29 Options for Viewing System Availability Information (Graphical Interface)

Using the Overall Availability Option

The Overall Availability option provides general availability information about the system.

Perform the following procedure to use the Overall Availability option:

- 1. Click on the System Information tab.
- 2. Click on the Availability button in the SYSTEM INFORMATION section.
- 3. Specify the range of dates that you want to view. (Refer to Figure 6-30.)
- 4. Click on the radio button next to the Overall Availability option. (Refer to Figure 6-30.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Availability			
Help Total Availability (%) = 99.79 MTBI (min) = 2410			
Enter the time period for which you want availability information:			
From: 05/20/1999 To: 06/11/1999 (mm/dd/yyyy) (mm/dd/yyyy)			
Choose one of the following options:			
Overall Availability Displays all statistical availability information for the localhost, such as MTBI, Average Uptime etc. This is a detailed summary on the availability of the system.			
 Availability Events List Displays detailed information of all availability events. Selection of each event is also allowed if more detail is required. 			
Accept			



5. Click on Accept.

The interface displays a table that contains the overall availability information about the system. (Refer to Figure 6-31; Table 6-13 describes the information that the table contains.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Availability > Overall Availability

System name : hell Database : ssd Number of records : 12 Data start time : Thu Data end time : Thu	o.csd.sgi.com b I May 20 22:18:39 1999 I Jun 3 14:32:59 1999
--	---

	Count	Downtime (min)	MTBI (min)	Availability %
Service action	12	39	2557	99.87
upgrade software	1	4	30689	
administrative: reboot	11	34	2790	
Total	12	39	2557	99.87
Average uptime	2554 minute	2554 minutes (1 day 18 hrs 34 mins)		
Least uptime	13 minutes	13 minutes		
Most uptime	5784 minute	5784 minutes (4 days 24 mins)		
Average downtime	3 minutes	3 minutes		
Least downtime	2 minutes	2 minutes		
Most downtime	4 minutes	4 minutes		
Logging started at	Thu May 20	Thu May 20 18:08:36 1999		
Last boot at	Thu Jun 3 14	Thu Jun 3 14:35:26 1999		
System has been up for	11386 minut	es (7 days 21 hi	s 46 mins)	

Event Availability Information

Figure 6-31 Using the Overall Availability Option (Page 2 [Graphical Interface])

Row	Description
Service Action	Information about each service action performed on the system
	The following information is displayed for each service action: count, downtime due to the service action (in minutes), mean time between interrupts (in minutes), and availability percentage
Total	Information about the total downtime for service actions on the system
	A total is displayed for the following categories: count, downtime (in minutes) due to the action, mean time between interrupts (in minutes), and availability percentage
Average uptime	Average uptime between availability events
Least uptime	Shortest uptime between availability events
Most uptime	Longest uptime between availability events
Average downtime	Average downtime
Most downtime	Longest downtime
Least downtime	Shortest downtime
Logging started at	Date and time when availability monitoring started
Last boot at	Date and time of the last system boot
System has been up for	Amount of time that the system has been up since the last boot (in minutes)

Table 6-13Overall Availability Information

Click on the Event Availability Information link at the bottom of the page to display a list of all availability events that occurred between the dates that you specified. (Refer to Figure 6-32; Table 6-14 describes the information that the table contains.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Availability > Event Availability Information

System name	: hello.csd.sgi.com
Database	: ssdb
Number of records	: 12
Data start time	: Thu May 20 22:18:39 1999
Data end time	: Thu Jun 3 14:32:59 1999

					Page 1 of 2
Start Time	Incident Time	Uptime (min)	DownTime (min)	Reason	
Thu May 20 18:08:36 1999	Thu May 20 22:18:39 1999	250	4	Controlled	<u>Event</u> <u>Summary</u>
Thu May 20 22:23:04 1999	Mon May 24 16:21:31 1999	5398	4	Controlled	<u>Event</u> <u>Summary</u>
Mon May 24 16:25:34 1999	Wed May 26 09:17:46 1999	2452	4	Controlled	<u>Event</u> <u>Summary</u>
Wed May 26 09:22:08 1999	Thu May 27 11:21:34 1999	1559	4	Controlled	<u>Event</u> <u>Summary</u>
Thu May 27 11:25:59 1999	Thu May 27 15:50:38 1999	265	4	Controlled	<u>Event</u> <u>Summary</u>
Fri May 28 13:24:12 1999	Fri May 28 14:00:15 1999	681	3	Controlled	<u>Event</u> <u>Summary</u>
Fri May 28 14:03:01 1999	Fri May 28 15:21:26 1999	78	4	Controlled	<u>Event</u> <u>Summary</u>
Fri May 28 15:25:32 1999	Tue Jun 1 15:50:15 1999	5785	2	Controlled	<u>Event</u> <u>Summary</u>
Tue Jun 1 15:52:39 1999	Tue Jun 1 16:10:22 1999	18	2	Controlled	<u>Event</u> <u>Summary</u>

Figure 6-32 Using the Overall Availability Option (Page 3 [Graphical Interface])

Column	Description
Start Time	Specifies the time that the system was brought up before the incident occurred
Incident Time	Specifies the time at which the incident that caused the downtime occurred
Uptime (min)	Specifies the number of minutes that the system was up before the incident occurred
DownTime (min)	Specifies the number of minutes that the system was down because of the incident
Reason	Specifies the reason that the system was down
	Contains a link to summary information for the event (Refer to Figure 6-33)

 Table 6-14
 Availability Event Information for the Overall Availability Option

Each page contains ten availability events. Use the symbols at the bottom of the page to navigate through the pages as follows:

- Use the numbers at the bottom of the page to select the corresponding pages.
- Use the single-right-arrow icon to move to the next group of pages.
- Use the double-right-arrow icon to move to the last group of pages.
- Use the single-left-arrow icon to move to the previous group of pages.
- Use the double-left-arrow icon to move to the first group of pages.

SYSTEM INFORMAT	ION > Availability > Event Summary Information
Internet address	: hello.csd.sgi.com
Reason for shutdown	: Controlled shutdown (3)
Start time	: Thu May 20 18:08:36 1999
Incident time	: Thu May 20 22:18:39 1999
Re–start time	: Thu May 20 22:23:04 1999
Uptime	: 250 minutes (4 hrs 10 mins)
Downtime	: 4 minutes

Figure 6-33 Using the Overall Availability Option (Page 4 [Graphical Interface])

Using the Availability Events List Option

The Availability Events List option provides detailed information about all availability events that occurred on the system between the dates that you specify.

Perform the following procedure to use the Overall Availability option:

- 1. Click on the System Information tab.
- 2. Click on the Availability button in the SYSTEM INFORMATION section.
- 3. Specify the range of dates that you want to view. (Refer to Figure 6-34.)
- 4. Click on the radio button next to the Availability Events List option. (Refer to Figure 6-34.)

Chapter 6: Using the Graphical Interface to View Information about a System in Single System Manager Mode

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Availal	bility
	Help
Total Availability (%) = 99.79	
MTBI (min) = 2410	
Enter the time period for which you v	vant availability information:
From: 05/20/1999 To: 0	06/11/1999
(mm/dd/yyyy) ((mm/dd/yyyy)
Choose one of the following options:	
♦ Overall Availability	Displays all statistical availability information for the localhost, such as MTBI, Average Uptime etc. This is a detailed summary on the availability of the system.
♦ Availability Events List	Displays detailed information of all availability events. Selection of each event is also allowed if more detail is required.
Accept	

Figure 6-34 Using the Availability Events List Option (Page 1 [Graphical Interface])

5. Click on Accept.

The interface displays a list of all availability events that occurred during the range of dates that you specified. (Refer to Figure 6-35; Table 6-15 describes the information that the table contains.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Availability > Event Availability Information

System name	: hello.csd.sgi.com
Database	: ssdb
Number of records	: 12
Data start time	: Thu May 20 22:18:39 1999
Data end time	: Thu Jun 3 14:32:59 1999

					Page 1 of 2
Start Time	Incident Time	Uptime (min)	DownTime (min)	Reason	
Thu May 20 18:08:36 1999	Thu May 20 22:18:39 1999	250	4	Controlled	<u>Event</u> <u>Summary</u>
Thu May 20 22:23:04 1999	Mon May 24 16:21:31 1999	5398	4	Controlled	<u>Event</u> <u>Summary</u>
Mon May 24 16:25:34 1999	Wed May 26 09:17:46 1999	2452	4	Controlled	<u>Event</u> <u>Summary</u>
Wed May 26 09:22:08 1999	Thu May 27 11:21:34 1999	1559	4	Controlled	<u>Event</u> <u>Summary</u>
Thu May 27 11:25:59 1999	Thu May 27 15:50:38 1999	265	4	Controlled	<u>Event</u> <u>Summary</u>
Fri May 28 13:24:12 1999	Fri May 28 14:00:15 1999	681	3	Controlled	<u>Event</u> <u>Summary</u>
Fri May 28 14:03:01 1999	Fri May 28 15:21:26 1999	78	4	Controlled	<u>Event</u> <u>Summary</u>
Fri May 28 15:25:32 1999	Tue Jun 1 15:50:15 1999	5785	2	Controlled	<u>Event</u> <u>Summary</u>
Tue Jun 1 15:52:39 1999	Tue Jun 1 16:10:22 1999	18	2	Controlled	<u>Event</u> <u>Summary</u>

Figure 6-35 Using the Availability Events List Option (Page 2 [Graphical Interface])

Column	Description
Start Time	Specifies the time that the system was brought up before the incident occurred
Incident Time	Specifies the time at which the incident that caused the downtime occurred
Uptime (min)	Specifies the number of minutes that the system was up before the incident occurred
DownTime (min)	Specifies the number of minutes that the system was down because of the incident
Reason	Specifies the reason that the system was down
	Contains a link to summary information for the event (Refer to Figure 6-36)

 Table 6-15
 Availability Event Information for the Availability Events List Option

Each page contains ten availability events. Use the symbols at the bottom of the page to navigate through the pages as follows:

- Use the numbers at the bottom of the page to select the corresponding pages.
- Use the single-right-arrow icon to move to the next group of pages.
- Use the double-right-arrow icon to move to the last group of pages.
- Use the single-left-arrow icon to move to the previous group of pages.
- Use the double-left-arrow icon to move to the first group of pages.

SYSTEM INFORMAT	ION > Availability > Event Summary Information
Internet address	: hello.csd.sgi.com
Reason for shutdown	: Controlled shutdown (1)
Start time	: Wed May 26 09:22:08 1999
Incident time	: Thu May 27 11:21:34 1999
Re–start time	: Thu May 27 11:25:59 1999
Uptime	: 1559 minutes (1 day 1 hr 59 mins)
Downtime	: 4 minutes

Figure 6-36 Using the Availability Events List Option (Page 3 [Graphical Interface])

Chapter 7

System Group Manager Mode

System Group Manager mode enables Embedded Support Partner to access all systems in a system group. You can use System Group Manager mode to:

- Subscribe and unsubscribe events from any system in the group (When you subscribe an event from a system, the Single System Manager on the system forwards any occurrences of the event to the System Group Manager on the group manager.)
- Set up actions on the group manager system to respond to events from any system in the group
- Monitor services (for example DNS) on any system in the group.
- View hardware and software configuration information for any system in the group (You must subscribe configuration events for the systems.)

Figure 7-1 shows an example of Embedded Support Partner in System Group Manager mode with four systems.



 Figure 7-1
 Embedded Support Partner in System Group Manager Mode (Block Diagram)
Use the graphical interface in System Group Manager mode to perform the following activities on systems in the group:

- Set up Embedded Support Partner, including the following parameters:
 - Global parameters
 - Event parameters
 - Action parameters
 - Notification parameters
 - Availability monitoring parameters
 - Performance monitoring parameters
- View the following information for one or more of the system(s):
 - The hardware that is installed on the system(s) on a specific date and at a specific time
 - The software that is installed on the system(s) on a specific date and at a specific time
 - Any system changes that have occurred within a specified time period
 - Any system events that have occurred
 - Any system actions that have been taken
 - System availability information
- Archive a database to conserve disk space and delete database archives that you no longer need

Starting Embedded Support Partner in System Group Manager Mode

Embedded Support Partner in System Group Manager mode is available only with a graphical interface. You can start it with the Embedded_Support_Partner icon or the launchESPartner command.

System Group Manager mode uses a nodelocked license. When the free 120-day trial license expires, Embedded Support Partner does not allow you to use System Group Manager mode. When this occurs, you must purchase a permanent license to continue using System Group Manager mode. You can use Key-O-Matic on the SGI Web site (www.sgi.com) to obtain a permanent license, or you can contact your local SGI support office for more information about purchasing a permanent license.

Using the Embedded_Support_Partner Icon

1. Choose Find -> Support Tools in the Toolchest menu. (Refer to Figure 7-2.)



Figure 7-2 Toolchest Menu

The Icon Catalog application opens in the SupportTools category. (Refer to Figure 7-3.)



Figure 7-3 Icon Catalog

2. Double-click on the Embedded_Support_Partner icon.

Netscape displays the Embedded Support Partner opening page. (Refer to Figure 7-4.)



Figure 7-4Embedded Support Partner Graphical Interface Opening Page

- 3. Choose Group of Systems for the Select the type of system manager option.
- 4. Specify the system that you want to access:
 - Click on the Local System radio button to connect to the local host (the system on which you started Embedded Support Partner). (Refer to Figure 7-5)
 - Click on the Remote System radio button to connect to a remote system. Enter the name of the system or IP address of the system in the field. (Refer to Figure 7-6.)

	etscap	e: SGI E	mbe	edded Suj	oport Pari	ner – ve	r.1.0			•
File	<u>E</u> dit	View <u>(</u>	<u>20</u>	<u>C</u> ommun	icator					<u>H</u> elp
Back	k Forw	ž 🦿 vard Rel	3. oad	🖄 Home	æ Search	4 ≦ Guide	ے۔ Print	🗳 Security	Stop	sgi
I 🐨	Bookn	narks 🤳	۶ Lc	ocation: 🛛	nttp://	localh	ost:55	55/inde:	x.html	Ŧ
E	Emb	edd	ec	l Sup	port	Part	ner			sgi™
			Se	elect the typ	e of system	ı manager:	Group of	Systems —	•	
			Se	elect which s	system you	'd like to co	onnect to:		_	
			Lo Ri	ical System emote Syste	em	♦	localhost			
							Accept			

Figure 7-5 Connecting to System Group Manager Mode on the Local System



Figure 7-6 Connecting to System Group Manager Mode on a Remote System

5. Click on Accept.

The Embedded Support Partner interface appears in System Group Manager mode. (Refer to Figure 7-7.) Use this interface to:

- Set up Embedded Support Partner in System Group Manager mode (Refer to Chapter 8, "Setting Up Embedded Support Partner in System Group Manager Mode.")
- View information from the systems in the system group (Refer to Chapter 9, "Using Embedded Support Partner in System Group Manager Mode to View Information about the Systems.")

Netscape: SGI Embedded Support Partner: SGM - ver.1.0	•
File Edit View Go Communicator	<u>H</u> elp
A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A	🕷 sgi
Sockmarks & Location: http://localhost:5555/index_s	gm.html 🔻
Embedded Support Partner	sgi™
Overview System Information Setup Archive	Database
group of systems	
Overview	Å
This session is connected to the System Group Manager (SGM) that is running on <i>lobos</i> . The SGM controls the SGI Embedded Support Partner for all systems included in a system configure all parameters and view information collected from the systems. Use the SGM to perform the following functions on one or more systems in the system grou <i>lobos.csd.sgi.com</i> . • Set up the SGI Embedded Support Partner software, including the following paramet o Ginhal parameters	a group. It enables you to up that is controlled by
 Global parameters Event parameters Action parameters Notification parameters System monitoring parameters Availability monitoring parameters Performance monitoring parameters View the following information one or more of the system(s): The hardware that is installed on the system(s) at a specific date and time The software that is installed on the system(s) at a specific date and time Any system changes that have occurred within a specified time period Any system actions that have been taken System availability information Archive a database to conserve disk space and delete database archives that you r 	no longer need
Document: Done.	

 Figure 7-7
 System Group Manager Mode Interface

Using the launchESPartner Command

Perform the following procedure to start Embedded Support Partner in System Group Manager mode with the launchESPartner command:

1. Enter the launchESPartner command.

Netscape displays the Embedded Support Partner opening page. (Refer to Figure 7-8.)

Netscape: SGI Embedded Support Partner - ver.1.0	•
File Edit View Go Communicator	<u>H</u> elp
	🔹 sơi
Back Forward Reload Home Search Guide Print Security	Stop ~6`
Bookmarks & Location: http://localhost:5555/ind	ex.html
Emboddod Support Dortoon	ะณ์™
Emoedded Support Partner	၁ဗူ၊
Select the type of system manager: Single System =	<u>,</u>
Select which system you'd like to connect to:	
hand Queters (Queters)	
Local System 🕔 localhost	
Remote System 🧠	
Accept	



2. Choose Group of Systems for the Select the type of system manager option.

- 3. Specify the system that you want to access:
 - Click on the Local System radio button to connect to the local host (the system on which you started Embedded Support Partner). (Refer to Figure 7-9.)
 - Click on the Remote System radio button to connect to a remote system. Enter the name of the system or IP address of the system in the field. (Refer to Figure 7-10.)

	Nets	cape: S	GI Emb	edded Sup	port Par	tner – ve	r.1.0				•
Ęile	e <u></u> Ęd	it <u>V</u> iev	v <u>G</u> o	<u>C</u> ommunic	eator						Help
E	4)	3		e	1	3	ŝ			soi
E	Sack	Forward	Reload	Home	Search	Guide	Print	Security	Stop		~6`
	≨*Bo	okmark	is 🛷 Lo	ocation: h	tp://	localh	ost:55	55/inde	x.html		Ŧ
	Fn	nher	lder		nort	Part	ner			sø	jĭ™
	L 11	1000	auci			i ui i	nei			с С	
			s	elect the type	of system	ı manader	Group of	Systems =			
			Ŭ	0.0000000000000	010)00011	r managon.	aroup or	e) otoinio —			
			S	elect which sy	rstem you	'd like to c	onnect to:				
			L	ocal System		۲	localhost				
			R	emote Syster	n	\diamond					
							Accept	-			
							<u> </u>				

Figure 7-9 Connecting to System Group Manager Mode on the Local System



Figure 7-10 Connecting to System Group Manager Mode on a Remote System

4. Click on Accept.

The Embedded Support Partner interface appears in System Group Manager mode. (Refer to Figure 7-11.) Use this interface to:

- Set up Embedded Support Partner in System Group Manager mode (Refer to Chapter 8, "Setting Up Embedded Support Partner in System Group Manager Mode.")
- View information from the systems in the system group (Refer to Chapter 9, "Using Embedded Support Partner in System Group Manager Mode to View Information about the Systems.")

Netscape: SGI Embedded Support Partner: SGM - ver.1.0	•
File Edit View Go Communicator	<u>H</u> elp
Image: Second Home Image: Second Home Back Forward Reload Home Second Home Second Home	Stop Sgi
Bookmarks & Location: http://localhost:5555/index_s	gm.html
Embedded Support Partner	sgi™
Overview System Information Setup Archive	Database
group of systems	
Overview	A
This session is connected to the System Group Manager (SGM) that is running on <i>lobos</i> . The SGM controls the SGI Embedded Support Partner for all systems included in a system configure all parameters and view information collected from the systems. Use the SGM to perform the following functions on one or more systems in the system grou <i>lobos.csd.sgi.com</i> : • Set up the SGI Embedded Support Partner software, including the following paramet o Global parameters	a group. It enables you to up that is controlled by ters:
 Stobal parameters Event parameters Action parameters Notification parameters System monitoring parameters Availability monitoring parameters Performance monitoring parameters View the following information one or more of the system(s): The hardware that is installed on the system(s) at a specific date and time The software that is installed on the system(s) at a specific date and time Any system changes that have occurred within a specified time period Any system events that have occurred Any system actions that have been taken System availability information Archive a database to conserve disk space and delete database archives that you r 	no longer need
Document: Done.	

Figure 7-11 System Group Manager Interface

Configuring System Group Manager Mode

All components of Embedded Support Partner are installed on your system by default; however, you should perform the following procedure the first time you use Single System Manager mode to set it up:

- 1. Configure the Single System Manager on all of the systems that you want to monitor. (Refer to "Configuring Single System Manger Mode.")
- 2. Start the System Group Manager on the system that you want to be the system group manager. (Refer to "Starting Embedded Support Partner in System Group Manager Mode.")
- 3. Add/update any actions that you want on the system group manager.
- 4. Subscribe to events from the member systems and update the subscribed events, if necessary.

When you subscribe to events from the member systems, the Single System Managers on those systems forward the events to the System Group Manager. The System Group Manager stores the information about the events in the database on the system that is running the System Group Manager. This enables you to use the System Group Manager interface to access information from all of the systems in the group.

Manipulating the Database that System Group Manager Mode Uses

Embedded Support Partner logs data in a database on the group manager system as it registers events and performs actions. You can archive the current database to reduce the amount of disk space used on the system.

Archiving a Database

Use the esparchive command at a UNIX prompt to archive the current database that Embedded Support Partner is using on a system. The esparchive command shuts down Embedded Support Partner momentarily, compresses the current database to save space, opens a new database to receive data from Embedded Support Partner, and restarts Embedded Support Partner.

You must use the root account to execute the esparchive command; this command archives the current database only if it is 10 MB or larger.

Note: Click on the Archive Database tab on the interface to view a description of this process.

Deleting a Database Archive

You can delete database archives that you no longer need.

Warning: When you delete a database archive, the information in the database archive is permanently lost. You will not be able to view any system information that was stored in the database archive.

Perform the following procedure to delete a database archive:

- 1. Click on the Archive Database tab.
- 2. Choose the database archive that you want to delete. (Refer to Figure 7-12.)

Archive Database	
[Help
The database archival option saves disk space by compressing the data in the database compressed data remains accessible for reading or for displaying system information. Th archiving must be done from the command line to preserve data integrity. The archiving i will shutdown the Embedded Support Partner for a brief period of time and restart after the archiving is complete. The archiving command esparchive. The archiving will be done only if the database size is equa greater than 10 megabytes.	e. The ne program e n the I to or
The remove database option deletes a previously archived database that was stored. Th in the deleted database is no longer available for display.	ie data
Choose the database to be deleted: Database Archive Name(s)	-
Delete Database	

 Figure 7-12
 Archiving a Database (Graphical Interface)

3. Click on the Delete Database button.

Chapter 8

Setting Up Embedded Support Partner in System Group Manager Mode

Use the commands in the SETUP section of the interface to set up the following components of Embedded Support Partner in System Group Manager mode to monitor a group of systems:

- Global parameters
- Events
- Actions
- Paging parameters
- Availability monitoring
- Performance monitoring
- System monitoring

Setting Up Global Parameters

Several global parameters are available for you to customize Embedded Support Partner.

The global parameters are organized into two categories:

- Web server parameters
- Global configuration parameters

Setting Up the Web Server Parameters

The Web server parameters configure the Configurable Web Server that Embedded Support Partner uses. You can use these parameters to control permission to access Embedded Support Partner, including the user name and password combination and host privileges. (All IP addresses are allowed connections to the Web server by default.) Figure 8-1 shows the interface page that you use to access the Web server parameters. Figure 8-2 shows the interface page that you use to specify which systems are allowed or denied access to the Configurable Web Server. Figure 8-3 shows the interface page that you use to modify the user name and associated password.

SETUP > Global > Server	
	Help
Server identification : SGI Configurable Web Server Server version : 1.4 21:24:02 Jun 2 1999 Server port : 5555	
Server Access Permissions	
Username & Password Change	

Figure 8-1 Web Server Configuration Page

SETUP > Global > Server > Server Access Perr	nissions Help
Warning: All changes take effect immediately. Enable access from the systems with the following IP addresses:	Restrict access to the systems with the following IP addresses:
Delete	Delete
Add	Add

Figure 8-2 Web Server Access Permissions Page

ETUP > Global > Server > Username & Password Change				
		Help		
Varning: All changes take effe	ct immediately.			
Char	ige username			
Enter old username:				
Enter new username:				
Change U	sername			
Chan	ge password			
Enter old password:				
Enter new password:				
Re–enter new password:				
Change P	assword			

Figure 8-3 Web Server User Name and Password Page

Allowing Access to Embedded Support Partner

You can modify access privileges that specify which systems have access rights to Embedded Support Partner. If you want to restrict access to Embedded Support Partner, you must set up a "restrict access" list and an "enable access" list. (If you do not set up a "restrict access" list, all IP addresses can connect to Embedded Support Partner regardless of the "enable access" list settings because the default configuration allows connections from all IP addresses if no "restrict access" list exists.) The most secure configuration is to set the "restrict access" list to all hosts (*.*.*) and set the "enable access" list to the hosts that you want to have access to Embedded Support Partner. (For example, set the "enable access" list to 197.*.* and the "restrict access" list to *.*.* if you want only the systems with IP addresses that begin with 197 to have access to Embedded Support Partner.)

Caution: All changes that you make to the "restrict access" and "enable access" lists immediately take effect. Ensure that you do not set up access lists that prevent your administration system from connecting to Embedded Support Partner.

Perform the following procedure to add a system to the "enable access" list (refer to Figure 8-2):

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Server button in the Global category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Click on the Server Access Permissions link.
- 4. In the field on the left side of the page, enter the IP address of the system that you want to add to the list.

Note: Entering * . * . * . * indicates that all systems can access the Embedded Support Partner Web-based interface. You can wildcard any portion of the IP address with an asterisk (for example, 197 . * . * . 2 and 197 . 20 . 2 . *).

5. Click on Add.

Perform the following procedure to remove a system from the "enable access" list (refer to Figure 8-2):

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Server button in the Global category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Click on the Server Access Permissions link.
- 4. In the list of IP addresses on the left side of the page, click on the IP address of the system that you want to remove from the list.
- 5. Click on Delete.

Perform the following procedure to add a system to the "restrict access" list (refer to Figure 8-2):

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Server button in the Global category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Click on the Server Access Permissions link.
- 4. In the field on the right side of the page, enter the IP address of the system that you want to add to the restricted access list.

Note: Entering * . * . * . * indicates that all systems (except the systems in the "allow access" list) cannot access the Embedded Support Partner Web-based interface. You can wildcard any portion of the IP address with an asterisk (for example, 197.*.*.2 and 197.20.2.*).

5. Click on Add.

Perform the following procedure to remove a system from the "restrict access" list (refer to Figure 8-2):

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Server button in the Global category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Click on the Server Access Permissions link.
- 4. In the list of IP addresses on the right side of the page, click on the IP address of the system that you want to remove from the restricted access list.
- 5. Click on Delete.

Changing the User Name and Password

Embedded Support Partner requires that you enter a user name and password to access several features. This protocol ensures that Embedded Support Partner is secure from unauthorized access.

The default user name is **administrator**, and the default password is **partner**. Be sure to change one or both of these settings the first time that you use Embedded Support Partner to prevent unauthorized access to your system.

Perform the following procedure to change the user name (refer to Figure 8-3):

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Server button in the Global category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Click on the Username & Password Change link.
- 4. Enter the old user name that you want to change in the Enter old username field.
- 5. Enter the new user name that you want to use in the Enter new username field.
- 6. Click on Change Username.

Perform the following procedure to change the password (refer to Figure 8-3):

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Server button in the Global category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Click on the Username & Password Change link.
- 4. Enter the old password that you want to change in the Enter old password field.
- 5. Enter the new password that you want to use in the Enter new password field.
- 6. Re-enter the new password in the Re-enter new password field. (You need to enter the password twice to ensure that it was typed correctly.)
- 7. Click on Change Password.

Setting the Global Configuration Parameters

The global configuration parameters enable you to globally modify how Embedded Support Partner handles events and actions. You can specify whether it should log all events in the database, whether it should require events to occur several times before they are registered, and whether it should perform actions in response to events.

Figure 8-4 shows the interface page that you use to set up the global configuration parameters.

SETUP > Global > Global Configuration
Help
Log events I A Yes A No
This parameter enables or disables global event logging. Select "Yes" to log events in the SGI Embedded Support Partner database. Select "No" if you do not want to log any events in SGI Embedded Support Partner database.
Throttle events
This parameter enables or disables event throttling for all events. Select "Yes" to require that a specific number of events must occur before the event is registered in the SGI Embedded Support Partner database. Select "No" to register every event in the SGI Embedded System Partner database.
Act on events
This parameter enables or disables SGI Embedded Support Partner actions in response to events. Select "Yes" to specify that the SGI Embedded Support Partner should perform actions in response to all events that occur. Select "No" to specify that the SGI Embedded Support Partner should not respond to events that occur.
Accept

Figure 8-4 Global Configuration Parameters Page

Perform the following procedure to set up the global configuration parameters (refer to Figure 8-4):

- 1. Click on the Global Configuration button in the Global category of the SETUP section.
- 2. Specify whether Embedded Support Partner should log events.
 - Set the Log events parameter to Yes to log events in Embedded Support Partner database.
 - Set the Log events parameter to No if you do not want to log any events in Embedded Support Partner database.
- 3. Specify whether Embedded Support Partner should wait for a specific number of events to occur before it registers an event.
 - Set the Throttle events parameter to Yes to require that a specific number of events must occur before the event is registered in the Embedded Support Partner database.
 - Set the Throttle events parameter to No to register every event in the Embedded System Partner database.
- 4. Specify whether Embedded Support Partner should perform actions when it registers events.
 - Set the Act on events parameter to Yes to specify that Embedded Support Partner should perform actions in response to all events that occur.
 - Set the Act on events parameter to No to specify that Embedded Support Partner should not respond to events that occur.
- 5. Click on Accept.

Setting Up Events in System Group Manager Mode

Events are conditions that Embedded Support Partner monitors. Embedded Support Partner includes many default events, and you can also add custom events. Example events include parity errors, disk full conditions, and nonmaskable interrupts (NMI). Events are organized into event classes, which allows you to quickly view and update similar events. Example event classes include availability, system configuration, and performance.

You can perform the following activities to set up events:

- Viewing the current event setup
- Updating an existing event
- Subscribing events
- Unsubscribing events

Viewing the Current Event Setup

The current event setup defines the events and event classes that are currently configured in Embedded Support Partner on the systems in the group.

To view the current event setup, click on the View Current Setup button in the Events category of the SETUP section. Figure 8-5 shows the interface page that you should use to view the current event setup.

SETUP > Events > View Current Setup					
		Help			
Choose one of the following options:					
\diamond	View Event List	Displays all events available on the group system manager.			
\diamond	View Classes	Displays all event classes available on the group system manager.			
Aci	cept				

Figure 8-5 View Current Event Setup Options

Using the View Event List Option

The View Event List option lists all of the events that are currently configured in Embedded Support Partner on the systems in the group. Use this option to determine which events are currently available.

Perform the following procedure to view the current event list:

- 1. Click on the View Current Setup button in the Events category of the SETUP section.
- 2. Click on the radio button next to the View Event List option. (Refer to Figure 8-6.)

SETUR	SETUP > Events > View Current Setup					
		Help				
Choos	Choose one of the following options:					
۲	View Event List	Displays all events available on the group system manager.				
\diamond	View Classes	Displays all event classes available on the group system manager.				
Accept						

Figure 8-6 Using the View Event List Option (Page 1)

3. Click on Accept.

The interface displays a table that lists all available events, (Refer to Figure 8-7; Table 8-1 describes the information that the table contains.)

	Page 1 of 5		
No.	Class Description	Event Description	Member Systems
1	SCSI	SCSI ctrl init failed	overdrive.csd.sgi.com
2	SCSI	SCSI command timed out	overdrive.csd.sgi.com
3	SCSI	SCSI hard error	overdrive.csd.sgi.com
4	SCSI	SCSI bus reset	overdrive.csd.sgi.com
5	SCSI	SCSI ctrl h/w (sram parity error)	overdrive.csd.sgi.com
6	SCSI	SCSI ctrl h/w (sram parity error bank0)	overdrive.csd.sgi.com
7	SCSI	SCSI ctrl hAw (sram parity error bank1)(1)	overdrive.csd.sgi.com
8	SCSI	SCSI ctrl hAw (sram parity error bank1)(2)	overdrive.csd.sgi.com
9	SCSI	SCSI bus error	overdrive.csd.sgi.com
10	SCSI	SCSI debug	overdrive.csd.sgi.com

SETUP > Events > View Current Setup

1 <u>2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10</u> 🕨 🍽

Figure 8-7 Using the View Event List Option (Page 2)

Table 8-1Event List Elements

Column	Description
No.	Index number in the table
Class Description	Class to which the event belongs
Event Description	Description of the event
Member Systems	Systems that are subscribed to monitor the event

Each page contains ten events. Use the symbols at the bottom of the page to navigate through the pages as follows:

- Use the numbers at the bottom of the page to select the corresponding pages.
- Use the single-right-arrow icon to move to the next group of pages (pages 11 through 20 in this example).

Chapter 8: Setting Up Embedded Support Partner in System Group Manager Mode

- Use the double-right-arrow icon to move to the last group of pages.
- Use the single-left-arrow icon to move to the previous group of pages.
- Use the double-left-arrow icon to move to the first group of pages.

Using the View Classes Option

The View Classes option lists all event classes that are currently defined in Embedded Support Partner. (Event classes organize the individual events into related groups, which enables you to quickly locate events and easily assign actions to multiple events at the same time.)

Perform the following procedure to view the current list of event classes:

- 1. Click on the View Current Setup button in the Events category of the SETUP section.
- 2. Click on the radio button next to the View Classes option. (Refer to Figure 8-8.)

SETUP > Events > View Cur	rrent Setup
	Help
Choose one of the following o	pptions:
View Event List	Displays all events available on the group system manager.
😻 View Classes	Displays all event classes available on the group system manager.
Accept	

Figure 8-8 Using the View Classes Option (Page 1)

3. Click on Accept.

The interface displays a table that lists all event classes that are available, (Refer to Figure 8-9; Table 8-2 describes the information that the table contains.)

Page 1 018			
NO.	Class ID	Class Description	Member Systems
1	1	SCSI	overdrive.csd.sgi.com
2	2	1/0	overdrive.csd.sgi.com
3	3	Peripheral	overdrive.csd.sgi.com
4	4	Power Supply	overdrive.csd.sgi.com
5	5	Memory Parity	overdrive.csd.sgi.com
6	6	Memory ECC	overdrive.csd.sgi.com
7	7	System Error	overdrive.csd.sgi.com
8	8	System Board	overdrive.csd.sgi.com
9	9	NMI	overdrive.csd.sgi.com
10	10	File System	overdrive.csd.sgi.com

SETUP > Events > View Current Setup

1 <u>2 3 4 5 6 7 8</u>

Figure 8-9 Using the View Classes Option (Page 2)

Table 8-2Event Class List Elements

Column	Description	
No.	Index number in the table	
Class ID	Identification number for the class	
Class Description	Description of the class	
Member Systems	Systems that are subscribed to monitor the class of events	

Each page contains ten event classes. Use the symbols at the bottom of the page to navigate through the pages as follows:

- Use the numbers at the bottom of the page to select the corresponding pages.
- Use the single-right-arrow icon to move to the next group of pages.
- Use the double-right-arrow icon to move to the last group of pages.
- Use the single-left-arrow icon to move to the previous group of pages.
- Use the double-left-arrow icon to move to the first group of pages.

Updating an Event

Perform the following procedure to update the information about an event that Embedded Support Partner should monitor:

- 1. Click on the Update button in the Events category of the SETUP section.
- 2. Choose the system for which you want to update the event. (Refer to Figure 8-10.)

S	SETUI	P > Events > Update				
						Help
C	Choos	e a system for which you	want to upo	late event:		
		System Name	ІР Туре	System Serial Number	IP Address	
	۲	overdrive.csd.sgi.com	IP27	69058F4B	192.26.58.19	
	\diamond	deiter.csd.sgi.com	IP25	S51797	192.26.58.14	
1		L	-	1		
	Ac	cept				

Figure 8-10 Updating an Event (Page 2)

- 3. Click on Accept.
- 4. Choose the event class to which the event belongs. (Refer to Figure 8-11.)

l	SETUP > Events > Update	
		Help
	Choose a class to find an event that you want to update:	
	Availability Diagnostic ESP Event Manager ESP Internal Events File System	
	Accept	



- 5. Click on Accept.
- 6. Choose the event that you want to update. (Refer to Figure 8-12.)

SETUP > Events > Update	
	Help
Choose an event from class Availability:	
Hardware error 🔺	
Interrupt	
Live event	
NMI	
No error =	
Panic —	
Panic (H/W)	
Panic (SAV)	
Power cycle	
Power failure	
Accent	

Figure 8-12 Updating an Event (Page 3)

7. Click on Accept.

Chapter 8: Setting Up Embedded Support Partner in System Group Manager Mode

8. Update the parameters for the event. (Refer to Figure 8-13; Table 8-3 describes the parameters that are available.)

SETUP > Events > Update
Неір
System name : overdrive.csd.sgi.com
Event class : Availability
Event : Live event
Enter the number of event occurrences prior to registration with SGI Embedded Support Partner Choose action(s) that is(are) taken as a result of this event:
/RetroFoverdrive
Tip: Several actions can be selected. If you cannot find an action that you need in the list above, add it by using <u>SETUP: Actions:</u> <u>Add.</u>
Accept Clear

Figure 8-13 Updating an Event (Page 4)

Parameter	Description
Enter the number of event occurrences	Specifies the number of times an event must occur before a new record is created in the database for it
prior to registration with SGI Embedded Support Partner	A new record is created in the database the first time that an event is registered This parameter specifies how many times the existing record should be updated before a new record is created
Enter the number of events that must occur before registration begins	Specifies the number of times that an event must occur before Embedded Support Partner registers the event

Table 8-3 Parameters for Updating an Event

9. Choose one or more actions that you want to occur when Embedded Support Partner registers the event.

Note: If the action list does not contain the action you want to use, use the SETUP > Actions > Add command to add a new action.

10. Click on Accept.

Subscribing Events from Other Systems

If you want to register events that are detected on other systems in the group, you need to subscribe to the events on the other systems.

When you subscribe events, Embedded Support Partner on the remote host registers the events, logs them in its database, performs any actions assigned to the events, and then forwards the events to Embedded Support Partner on the group manager system. Then, the Embedded Support Partner on the group manager system registers the events, logs the events in its database, and performs any actions assigned to the events.

This process creates a central repository of data on the group manager system, which enables you to access information about all of the systems in the group from a single interface. You can subscribe to any events that are recognized on the remote hosts.

Embedded Support Partner uses RPC protocol to communicate with the remote hosts. The number of hosts that Embedded Support Partner can subscribe depends on the license that is purchased; Embedded Support Partner cannot subscribe more hosts than the installed license allows.

Perform the following procedure to subscribe events from a remote host in the group:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Subscribe/Unsubscribe button in the Events category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Enter the system for which you want to subscribe the event(s). (Refer to Figure 8-14.)

Warning: Do not attempt to subscribe the group manager system to a host that is already subscribed to it. This is an illegal configuration that can cause unexpected results.

SETUP > Events > Subscribe/Unsubscribe	
	Help
Enter a system name, which you want to subscribe to or unsubscribe from Support Group Management:	deiter.csd.sgi.com
Subscribe Unsubscribe Clear	

Figure 8-14 Subscribing Events (Page 1)

- 4. Click on Subscribe.
- 5. Choose the class that contains the event(s) that you want to subscribe. (Refer to Figure 8-15. The list of classes contains the classes that are available on the remote host.)

SETUP > Events > Subscribe/Unsubscribe
Help
Select a class to search for events you would like to (un)subscribe to Support Group Manager:
Performance SCSI I/O Peripheral Power Supply Memory Parity System Error System Board
Accept

Figure 8-15 Subscribing Events (Page 2)

- 6. Click on Accept.
- 7. Select the events that you want to subscribe. (Refer to Figure 8-16. The list of events contains the events that are available on the remote host; events that you have already subscribed are not shown in the list.)

Note: For certain classes of events (for example, Availability), you can subscribe only the entire class of events. The event list displays All Events as the only available option for these classes.

Chapter 8: Setting Up Embedded Support Partner in System Group Manager Mode

SETUP > Events > Subscribe/Unsubscribe	
	Help
Select as many events as you want to (un)subscribe to Support Group Manager:	
High directory name cache miss rate Possible high floating point exception rate High 1-minute load average High aggregate system call rate Busy executing in system mode High average processor utilization CrayLink checkbit errors on Origin node CrayLink checkbit errors on Origin router	



8. Click on Accept.

The interface displays a confirmation message that indicates which events were subscribed and the host for which they were subscribed. (Refer to Figure 8-17.)

SETUP > Events	> Subscribe/Unsubscribe
The following events from host deiter.csd.sgi.com have been subscribed for class Performance	
High directory name cache miss rate	
Figure 8-17	Subscribing Events (Page 4)

Unsubscribing Events from Other Systems

You can unsubscribe events that you no longer want Embedded Support Partner to register from remote hosts.

Perform the following procedure to unsubscribe events:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Subscribe/Unsubscribe button in the Events category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Enter the system from which you want to unsubscribe the event(s). (Refer to Figure 8-18.)

SETUP > Events > Subscribe/Unsubscribe	
	Help
Enter a system name, which you want to subscribe to or unsubscribe from Support Group Management:	deiter.csd.sgi.com
Subscribe Unsubscribe Clear	

Figure 8-18 Unsubscribing Events (Page 1)

- 4. Click on Unsubscribe.
- 5. Choose the class that contains the event(s) that you want to unsubscribe. (Refer to Figure 8-19. The list of classes contains the classes of the events that you have subscribed; it is generated from data that is stored in the database on the group manager system.)

Chapter 8: Setting Up Embedded Support Partner in System Group Manager Mode

SETUP > Events > Subscribe/Unsubscribe		
Help		
Select a class to search for events you would like to (un)subscribe to Support Group Manager:		
111 555 Performance		
Accept		

Figure 8-19 Unsubscribing Events (Page 2)

- 6. Click on Accept.
- 7. Select the events that you want to unsubscribe. (Refer to Figure 8-20. The list of events contains the events that you have subscribed; events that you have already unsubscribed are not shown in the list.)

Note: For certain classes of events (for example, Availability), you can unsubscribe only the entire class of events. The event list displays All Events as the only available option for these classes.
SETUP > Events > Subscribe/Unsubscribe	
	Help
Select as many events as you want to (un)subscribe to Support Group Manager:	
High directory name cache miss rate	
Accept	



8. Click on Accept.

The interface displays a confirmation message that indicates which events were unsubscribed and the host for which they were unsubscribed. (Refer to Figure 8-21.)

SETUP > Events > Subscribe/Unsubscribe
The following events from host deiter.csd.sgi.com have been unsubscribed for class
Performance
• High directory name cache miss rate

Figure 8-21 Unsubscribing Events (Page 4)

Setting Up Actions in System Group Manager Mode

Actions are commands that Embedded Support Partner performs in response to events if you set up event/action assignments. An event/action assignment specifies the action that Embedded Support Partner should perform for a specific event when it registers a specific number of events. Example actions include sending an e-mail message and sending a page.

You can perform the following operations to set up actions:

- Viewing the current action setup
- Updating an action
- Adding a new action
- Deleting an action

Viewing the Current Action Setup

The current action setup defines the actions that are currently configured in Embedded Support Partner on your system. To view the current action setup, click on the View Current Setup button of the Actions category in the SETUP section. Figure 8-22 shows the interface page that you use to view the current action setup.



Using the View Action Setup Option

The View Action Setup option displays the configuration parameters for a single action. Use this option to verify that a specific action is configured correctly.

Perform the following procedure to view the current setup of a specific action:

- 1. Click on the View Current Setup button in the Actions category of the SETUP section.
- 2. Click on the radio button next to the View Action Setup option. (Refer to Figure 8-23.)

SETU	P > Actions > View Current Setup	
		Help
Choos	e one of the following options:	
۲	View Action Setup	Displays the current action setup.
\diamond	View Available Actions List	Displays the current available actions list.
Ac	cept	

Figure 8-23 Using the View Action Setup Option (Page 1)

- 3. Click on Accept.
- 4. Choose the action. (Refer to Figure 8-24.)

SETUP > Actions > View Current Setup > View Action Setup	
	Help
Choose an action whose description you want to view:	
Notify sysadmin on console	
Accept	

Figure 8-24 Using the View Action Setup Option (Page 2)

5. Click on Accept. (The interface shows the current configuration of the action that you selected; refer to Figure 8-25.)

SETUP > Actions > View Current Setup > View Action Setup	
Action command string	: /usr/bin/espnotify –A "%D"
Action description:	: Notify sysadmin on console
Execute this action as	: root
Action timeout	: 10 seconds
Number of times the event must be registered before an action will be taken	: 1
Retry times	: 0

Figure 8-25 Using the View Action Setup Option (Page 3)

Using the View Available Actions List Option

The View Available Actions List option lists all of the actions that are currently configured in Embedded Support Partner on your system.

Perform the following procedure to determine the actions that are currently available:

- 1. Click on the View Current Setup button in the Actions category of the SETUP section.
- 2. Click on the radio button next to the View Available Actions List option. (Refer to Figure 8-26.)

SETUR	P > Actions > View Current Setup	
		Help
Choose	e one of the following options:	
\diamond	View Action Setup	Displays the current action setup.
۲	View Available Actions List	Displays the current available actions list.
Acc	ept	



3. Click on Accept. (The interface displays all actions that are currently available. Refer to Figure 8-27; Table 8-4 describes the information that the table contains.)

ETUF	P > Actions > View Current Seture	up > View Available Actions List
		Page 1 of 1
No.	Action Description	Action Command String
1	Notify sysadmin on console	/usr/bin/espnotify _A "%D"
2	/RetroFoverdrive	/usr/local/bin/RetroFire0d %D

Figure 8-27 Using the View Available Actions List Option (Page 2)

Table 8-	Fable 8-4 Action List Elements		
Column			Description
No.			Index number in the table
Action	Descript	ion	Description of the action
Action	Command	String	Command that the action executes

Updating an Action

Perform the following procedure to update the parameters for an action:

- 1. Click on the Update button in the Actions category of the SETUP section.
- 2. Choose the action that you want to update. (Refer to Figure 8-28.)

SETUP > Actions > Update	Help
Choose the action that you want to update:	
Notify sysadmin on console	
Accept	

Figure 8-28 Updating an Action (Page 1)

- 3. Click on Accept.
- 4. Update the parameters. (Refer to Figure 8-29. Table 8-5 describes the parameters.)

SETUP > Actions > Update	
	Help
Action description:	Notify sysadmin on console
Actual action command string:	/usr/bin/espnotify –A %D
Enter a username to execute the action:	root
Enter action timeout (in multiples of 5)	10 seconds
Enter the number of times that the event must be registered before an action will be taken:	1
Enter the number of retry times (up to 23; more than 4 not recommended):	0
Accept	

Figure 8-29 Updating an Action (Page 2)

Table 8-5	Parameters i	for Updating	an Action

Parameter	Description
Action description	Provides a description of the action
Actual action command string	Specifies the actual command that the action executes
Enter a username to execute the action	Specifies the user account that Embedded Support Partner uses to execute the command
Enter action timeout (in multiples of 5)	Specifies the maximum amount of time allowed for the action to execute (in seconds)
	If the action does not complete within the specified period of time, Embedded Support Partner kills the action

Table 8-5 (continued)	Parameters for Updating an Action
-----------------------	-----------------------------------

Parameter	Description
Enter the number of times that the event must be registered before an action will be taken	Specifies the number of times the event must be registered before Embedded Support Partner performs this action
Enter the number of retry times (up to 23; more than 4 not recommended)	Specifies the number of times that Embedded Support Partner attempts to execute the action before it stops

Adding an Action

You can customize Embedded Support Partner by adding new actions.

Perform the following procedure to add a custom action:

- 1. Click on the Add button in the Actions category of the SETUP section.
- 2. Update the parameters. (Refer to Figure 8-30; Table 8-6 describes the parameters.)

SETUP > Actions > Add	
	Help
Enter action command string:	tg@sgi.com –m 'An event just registered.'
Enter action description:	E-mail Darrin
Enter username to execute this action (default = root):	root
Enter action timeout (in multiples of 5 seconds):	10 seconds
Enter the number of times an event must be registered before the action will be taken:	1
Enter the number of retry times (up to 23; more then 4 not recommended):	4
Accept	

Figure 8-30	Adding an A	ction (Page 1)
-------------	-------------	----------------

 Table 8-6
 Parameters for Adding a New Action

Field	Description
Enter action command string	Specifies the actual command that the action executes
Enter action description	Provides a brief description of the action (for example, Send a page to the system administrator)
Enter username to execute this action as (default = root)	Specifies the user account that executes the command
Enter action timeout (in multiples of 5 seconds)	Specifies the maximum amount of time allowed for the action to execute (in seconds)
	If the action does not complete within the specified period of time, Embedded Support Partner kills the action

 Table 8-6 (continued)
 Parameters for Adding a New Action

Field	Description
Enter the number of times that an event must be registered before an action will be taken	Specifies the number of times the event must be registered before Embedded Support Partner performs this action
Enter the number of retry times (must be less than 24; recommended not greater than 3-4)	Specifies the number of times that Embedded Support Partner attempts to execute the action before it stops

3. Click on Accept. (The interface displays a confirmation message; refer to Figure 8-31.)

SETUP > Actions > Add	
Action description:	: E-mail Darrin
Action command string	: /usr/bin/espnotify –E dtg@sgi.com –m 'An event just registered.'
A username to execute the action	: root
Action timeout	: 10 seconds
Number of times the event must be registered before an action will be taken	: 1
Retry times	: 4

Figure 8-31Adding an Action (Page 2)

Deleting an Action

You can delete any custom actions that you add to Embedded Support Partner on your system.

Perform the following procedure to delete an action:

- 1. Click on the Delete button in the Actions category of the SETUP section.
- 2. Choose the Action that you want to delete. (Refer to Figure 8-32.)

SETUP > Actions > Delete
Help
$\label{eq:tip:figure} \ensuremath{Tip}\xspace: \ensuremath{If}\xspace \ensuremath{vol}\xspace \ensuremath{vol}\xspa$
Choose the action you would like to delete:
,
E-mail Darrin Notify sysadmin on console
Accept

Figure 8-32 Deleting an Action (Page 1)

3. Click on Accept.

Embedded Support Partner displays a list of all events to which the action is assigned (Refer to Figure 8-33.) Perform one of the following actions:

- Click on Proceed with deletion to delete the action. (The interface displays a confirmation message; refer to Figure 8-34.)
- Click on Stop deletion to abort the deletion; the action is not deleted. (The interface displays a confirmation message; refer to Figure 8-35.)

SETU	P > Actions > Delete		
		Help	
The fo	The following events will be affected as a result of E–mail Darrin action deletion		
	Page 1 of 1	Ļ	
No	Event Description		
0	Diagnostic start		
1	Diagnostic fail		
2	Diagnostic end		
3	Stress start		
4	Stress end		
5	SVP start		
6	SVP end		
Would you like to proceed with the deletion?			
Proc	Proceed with deletion Stop deletion		

Figure 8-33Deleting an Event (Page 2)

SETUP > Actions > Delete		
The following action has been delete	d from the SGI Embedded Support Partner database:	
• E-mail Darrin		
Figure 8-34 Confirmat	ion Message for Proceeding with Deletion	of an Action
SETUP > Actions > Delete		
Request for deletion cancelled.		

Figure 8-35 Confirmation Message for Canceling Deletion of an Action

Setting up the Paging Parameters

QuickPage (QPage) is a third-party client/server application that Embedded Support Partner uses to send messages to an alphanumeric pager. QPage uses a modem to send an IXO/TAP-protocol message to a telephone number that is connected to a paging service. QPage is integrated in the Embedded Support Partner software suite, and its services are accessed through the /usr/bin/espnotify application. (Refer to Figure 8-36.)





QPage is installed on your system by default and is chkconfig'ed off. Perform the following procedure to set it up and enable it:

1. Enter the following command to turn QPage on:

chkconfig quickpage on

2. Enter the following command to start the QPage server:

/etc/init.d/qpageserver start

Note: The QPage server is automatically restarted whenever you reboot the system.

- 3. Use the Paging category of the Embedded Support Partner interface to set up the following paging parameters:
 - Modem parameters: specify the modem that QPage should use to connect to the paging service provider.
 - Paging service provider parameters: provide information about the paging service provider and how to contact it.
 - Pager parameters: provide information about the pager to use.

The following sections describe how to set up these parameters.

Viewing the Current Paging Setup

The current paging setup defines the QPage settings, modems, paging services, and pagers that Embedded Support Partner is currently using.

To view the current paging setup, click on the Setup tab and then click on the View Current Setup button in the Paging category of the SETUP section. Figure 8-37 shows an example of the information that this command displays.

SETUP > Paging > View Current Setup	
QuickPage Administration Variables	
Administrator's E-mail address	: dtg@sgi.com
Number of seconds to wait for a reply before giving up on queries	: 5 secs
Modem Setup	
No modems configured.	
Services Setup	
No Services configured.	
Pager Setup	
No Pagers configured.	

Figure 8-37 Viewing the Current Paging Setup

Adding/Updating a Modem

A modem must be connected to the system that is running Embedded Support Partner so that the software can send pages when events occur. You must specify the device to which the modem is connected and the modem initialization command. (Embedded Support Partner has been tested with the U. S. Robotics Sportster fax modem with X2.)

Perform the following procedure to add or update a modem configuration:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Modem/Admin button in the Paging category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Enter a modem name (do not include blank spaces), the device to which the modem is connected, and the initialization command for the modem. (Refer to Figure 8-38.)

Be aware of the following information when you configure the initialization command:

- The initialization command is specific to the modem that you are using. Refer to your modem user manual for specific details about the initialization command.
- The initialization command can vary, based on requirements from your paging service provider. For example, many paging services require you to turn off error correction on your modem. (This can be done on the U. S. Robotics Sportster fax modem with X2 with the &AO&KO&MO initialization command.) Contact your paging service provider to determine any special requirements.

SETUP > Paging > Modem/Admin	
	Help
Modem setup:	
Enter modem name:	USRobotics-Sportster
Enter modem device (e.g. /dev/ttya):	/dev/ttyd
Enter modem initialization command (please check your modem manual):	ATE1F1V1M0
Add/Update Delete Clear	



- 4. Click on Add/Update:
 - If the name that you entered has not been entered before, Embedded Support Partner adds a new modem.
 - If the name that you entered has been entered before, Embedded Support Partner updates the existing parameters for that modem.

The interface displays a confirmation message; refer to Figure 8-39.

SETUP > Paging > Modem/Admin		
The following Modem is Added/Updated :		
Name	: USRobotics-Sportster	
Device	: /dev/ttyd	
Initialization co	mmand : ATE1F1V1M0	

Figure 8-39 Setting Up a Modem (Page 2)

Modifying the QPage Parameters

The QPage parameters specify the e-mail address that Embedded Support Partner should contact if it cannot deliver a page successfully and the number of seconds it should wait for a reply before it aborts identification queries.

Perform the following procedure to set up the QPage parameters:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Modem/Admin button in the Paging category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Specify the e-mail address that Embedded Support Partner should contact if it cannot deliver a page successfully. (Refer to Figure 8-40.)
- 4. Specify the number of seconds Embedded Support Partner should wait for a reply before it aborts identification queries. (Refer to Figure 8-40.)
- 5. Click on Accept.

Qpage Administration Setup:	
Enter the administrator's e–mail address (for notification if paging fails):	dtg@sgi.com
Enter the number of seconds to wait for a reply before giving up on queries:	5 Secs
Accept	



The interface displays a confirmation message; refer to Figure 8-41.

SETUP > Paging > Modem/Admin	
QuickPage Administration Variables	
Administrator's E-mail address	: dtg@sgi.com
Number of seconds to wait for a reply before giving up on queries	: 5 secs

Figure 8-41 Modifying the QPage Parameters (Page 2)

Adding/Updating a Paging Service

You need to provide Embedded Support Partner with information about the paging service that you use so it can properly contact your pager.

Perform the following procedure to add or update a description of a paging service:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Service button in the Paging category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Update the parameters. (Refer to Figure 8-42; Table 8-7 describes the parameters.)

SETUP > Paging > Service	
Tip: You can add as many services as you want by repeating thi service name will be treated as a new one. If an existing ser settings, the existing service is updated. To delete a service name of the service you want to delete.	Help is step. A service with a new vice name is entered with new e you need to enter only the
Service Setup:	
Service name:	PageNet
Device (for example, /dev/ttyd):	USRobotics–Sportster 🛥
Maximum number of retries (must be at least 6):	6
Maximum length of the message (consult your service provider):	150
Phone number of the paging service (no spaces):	914084289729
Tip: If you cannot find a modern that you need in the list above, a <u>Notification: Modern/admin</u> .	add it by using <u>SETUP:</u>
Add/Update Delete Clear	

Figure 8-42 Adding/Updating a Paging Service (Page 1)

Parameter	Description
Service name	Specifies the name of the service The interface displays this name on other pages to identify the paging service (Do not include blank spaces)
Device	Specifies the modem to use (Select the modem from the menu) If the modem that you want to use is not in the menu, use the SETUP > Notification > Modem/admin command to add it
Maximum number of retries (must be at least 6)	Specifies the number of times that Embedded Support Partner should attempt to contact this paging service
Maximum length of the message (consult your service provider)	Specifies the maximum number of characters that this service will accept Contact your paging service provider for this information
Phone number of the paging service (no spaces)	Specifies the phone number that Embedded Support Partner should dial to contact the paging service (Do not include blank spaces)

Table 8-7Parameters for Adding/Updating a Paging Service

4. Click on Add/Update.

- If the name that you entered has not been entered before, Embedded Support Partner adds a new paging service.
- If the name that you entered has been entered before, Embedded Support Partner updates the existing parameters for that paging service.

The interface displays a confirmation message; refer to Figure 8-43.

SETUP > Paging > Service	
The following Comiss is tolded for	dete d
I ne following Service is Added/Up	dated :
Name	: PageNet
Modem Name	: USRobotics-Sportster
Maximum number of retries	: 6
Maximum length of message	: 150
Phone Number of Paging Service	: 914084289729

Figure 8-43 Adding/Updating a Paging Service (Page 2)

Adding/Updating a Pager

Perform the following procedure to add/update a pager:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Pager button in the Paging category of the SETUP section
- 3. Enter a unique name for the pager. (Do not include blank spaces.) Embedded Support Partner uses this name on other interface pages to identify the pager. (Refer to Figure 8-44.)
- 4. Enter the pager identification number. (Refer to Figure 8-44.)

Your paging service provider assigns a unique pager identification number to each individual pager. This number could differ from the telephone number that you dial to access the pager. Contact your paging service provider to determine the pager identification number of your pager.

SETUP > Paging > Pager
Help
Tip: You can add as many pagers as you want by repeating this step. Entering a new pager name creates a new pager. Entering an existing pager name updates the configuration of the existing pager. To delete a pager you need to enter the Pager Name only.
Pager Setup
Pager Name: Darrin_Goss
Pager ID: 8151992
Service Name: PageNet 📼
Tip: If you cannot find a service that you need in the list above, add it by using <u>SETUP</u> : <u>Notification: Service</u> .
Add/Update Delete Clear

Figure 8-44 Setting Up a Pager (Page 1)

- 5. Click on Add/Update.
 - If the name that you entered has not been entered before, Embedded Support Partner adds a new pager.
 - If the name that you entered has been entered before, Embedded Support Partner updates the existing parameters for that pager.

The interface displays a confirmation message; refer to Figure 8-45.

g > Pa	ager
Pager	is Added/Updated :
:	Darrin_Goss
:	PageNet
;	8151992
	g > Pa Pager : : :

Figure 8-45 Setting Up a Pager (Page 2)

Example Configuration

Figure 8-46 shows the example configuration that the settings in the previous procedures created. (The SETUP > Paging > View Current Setup command was used to display this information.)

SETUP > Paging > View Current Setup		
QuickPage Administration Variables		
Administrator's E-mail address	;	dtg@sgi.com
Number of seconds to wait for a reply before giving up on queries	;	5 secs
Modem Setup		
Modem 1		
Name	:	USRobotics–Sportster
Device	;	/dev/ttyd
Initialization command	:	ATE1F1V1M0
Services Setup		
Service t		
Name	;	PageNet
Modem Name	;	USRobotics–Sportster
Maximum number of retries	;	6
Maximum length of message	;	150
Phone Number of Paging Service	:	914084289729
Pager Setup		
Pager 1		
Name	:	Darrin_Goss
Service	:	PageNet
Pager ID	:	8151992

Figure 8-46 Example Paging Configuration

Deleting a Pager

Perform the following procedure to delete a pager:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Pager button in the Paging category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Enter the name of the pager that you want to delete. If you cannot remember the name of the pager, use the SETUP > Paging > View Current Setup command to view it. (Refer to Figure 8-47.)

SETUP > Paging > Pager
Help
Tip: You can add as many pagers as you want by repeating this step. Entering a new pager name creates a new pager. Entering an existing pager name updates the configuration of the existing pager. To delete a pager you need to enter the Pager Name only.
Pager Setup
Pager Name: Darrin_Goss
Pager ID:
Service Name: Service Name List 🛥
Tip: If you cannot find a service that you need in the list above, add it by using <u>SETUP:</u> <u>Notification: Service</u> .
Add/Update Delete Clear

Figure 8-47 Deleting a Pager (Page 1)

4. Click on Delete. (The interface displays a confirmation message; refer to Figure 8-48.)

SETUP > Pagi	ng > Pager
The following	Pager is deleted :
Name :	Darrin_Goss
Figure 8-48	Deleting a Pager (Page 2)

Deleting a Paging Service

Perform the following procedure to delete a paging service:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Service button in the Paging category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Enter the name of the paging service that you want to delete. If you cannot remember the name of the paging service, use the SETUP > Paging > View Current Setup command to view it. (Refer to Figure 8-49.)

Warning: Deleting a paging service automatically removes all pagers that are associated with the paging service.

SETUP > Paging > Service	
Tip: You can add as many services as you want by repeating this service name will be treated as a new one. If an existing service settings, the existing service is updated. To delete a service name of the service you want to delete.	Help s step. A service with a new vice name is entered with new a you need to enter only the
Service Setup:	
Service name:	PageNet
Device (for example, /dev/ttyd):	Select Modems 😑
Maximum number of retries (must be at least 6):	
Maximum length of the message (consult your service provider):	
Phone number of the paging service (no spaces):	
Tip: If you cannot find a modem that you need in the list above, a <u>Notification: Modem/admin</u> .	dd it by using <u>SETUP:</u>
Add/Update Delete Clear	



4. Click on Delete. (The interface displays a confirmation message; refer to Figure 8-50.)

SETUP > Pa	aging >	Service		
The followi	ng Sei	vice is deleted :		
Name	:	PageNet		

Figure 8-50Deleting a Paging Service (Page 2)

Deleting a Modem

Perform the following the procedure to delete a modem:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Modem/Admin button in the Paging category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Enter the name of the modem that you want to delete. If you cannot remember the name of the modem, use the SETUP > Paging > View Current Setup command to view it. (Refer to Figure 8-51.)

Warning: Deleting a modem automatically removes all paging services (and related pagers) that are associated with it.

SETUP > Paging > Modem/Admin					
	Help				
Modem setup:					
Enter modem name:	USRobotics-Sportster				
Enter modem device (e.g. /dev/ttya):					
Enter modem initialization command (please check your modem manual):					
Add/Update Delete Clear					

Figure 8-51

Deleting a Modem (Page 1)

4. Click on Delete. (The interface displays a confirmation message; refer to Figure 8-52.)

257110 0 1			
SETUP > Paging > Modem/Admin			
The following l	Indom is delated .		
The following i	nouem is deleted .		
Name : US	Robotics–Sportster		
	·····		
Figure 8-52	Deleting a Modem (Page 2)		

Setting Up the Availability Monitor

The availability monitor portion of Embedded Support Partner (availmon) monitors and reports the availability of systems and also reports the diagnosis of system crashes. The availability monitor identifies the cause of any system interrupts by gathering information from diagnostic programs such as ICRASH, FRU Analyzer, and SYSLOG. It also gathers hardware and software configuration details from configmon.

The availability monitor is embedded in the system boot and shutdown processes. It differentiates between controlled shutdowns, system panics, and system hangs. On high-end systems (such as IP19, IP21, IP25, IP27, etc.), it differentiates between nonmaskable interrupts (NMIs), power cycles, and power failures. The availability monitor also monitors the uptime of a system at regular intervals. This uptime monitoring feature can be used to send status updates for a system. The uptime monitoring is done through eventmond.

Embedded Support Partner can send data that the availability monitor gathers in a report format to e-mail addresses that you specify. You can also use the SYSTEM INFORMATION > Availability command to view the data gathered on a system.

The following sections describe how you can set up the availability monitor.

PETUR Availability manitar Migu Current Pat

Viewing the Current Availability Monitoring Setup

The current availability monitoring setup defines all of the availability monitor parameters that are currently configured on your system.

To view the current availability monitoring setup, click on the Setup tab and then click on the View Current Setup button in the Availability Monitoring category of the SETUP section. Figure 8-53 shows an example page.

SET OF > Availability monitor > view Current Setup		
Automatic e-mail distribution	:	Disabled
Display reason for shutdown	;	Enabled
Include HINV information in the e-mail	:	Yes
Start uptime daemon	:	Yes
Number of days between status updates	:	60
Interval in seconds between uptime checks	:	300
Availmon Monitor E-mail list for availability report:		
E–mail addresses that receive availability report in text form	:	
E-mail addresses that receive availability report in compressed form	:	
E–mail addresses that receive availability report in compressed encrypted form	:	
Availmon Monitor E-mail list for diagnostic report:		
E–mail addresses that receive diagnostic report in text form	:	
E-mail addresses that receive diagnostic report in compressed form	:	
E–mail addresses that receive diagnostic report in compressed encrypted form	:	availmon@csd.sgi.con
E-mail list for chatty pager		
E–mail addresses for chatty pager	:	

Figure 8-53 Viewing the Current Availability Monitor Setup Page

Configuring the Availability Monitor

Perform the following procedure to configure the availability monitor:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Configuration button in the Availability Monitoring category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Set up the parameters. (Refer to Figure 8-54; Table 8-8 describes the parameters.)

SETUP > Availmon Monitor > Configuration				
				Help
Automatic e-mail distribution:	\diamond	Enable	۲	Disable
Display reason for shutdown:	۲	Enable	\diamond	Disable
Include HINV information in the e-mail:	۲	Yes	\diamond	No
Start uptime daemon:	۲	Yes	\diamond	No
Number of days between status updates (default = 60) (0 – 300):	60		days	
Interval in seconds between uptime checks (default = 300 seconds):	300		seconds	
Tip: If the automatic e–mail option is enabled, you must complete SETUP: Availability Monitor: Availability MailList.				
Accept				

Figure 8-54 Configuring the Availability Monitor

Parameter	Possible Values	Description
Automatic e-mail distribution	Enable or Disable	Specifies whether the availability monitor should automatically distribute reports by e-mail
		Any changes to this parameter cause a confirmation report to be sent to all configured e-mail addresses (except the e-mail addresses that are configured to receive pager reports)
Display reason for shutdown	Enable or Disable	Specifies whether the availability monitor should display the reason for a shutdown
		If this parameter is enabled when you perform a controlled shutdown, the availability monitor prompts you to explain why you are rebooting the system or why you are bringing the system down to single-user mode
Include HINV information in the e-mail	Yes or No	Specifies whether the availability monitor should include HINV information/changes in the e-mail messages that it generates
Start uptime daemon	Yes or No	Specifies whether the availability monitor should start uptime monitoring
		If you set this parameter to Yes, it enables eventmond to monitor uptime at regular intervals
		You can set the interval with the Interval in seconds between uptime checks parameter
Number of days between status updates (default = 60) (0 - 300)	0 - 300	Specifies the number of days after which the availability monitor should send a notification to the configured e-mail addresses that the system is still running
		monitoring is enabled
Interval in seconds between uptime checks (default = 300	User specified	Specifies the number of seconds that the availability monitor should wait before it performs the next uptime check on the system
seconds)		This parameter is relevant only when uptime monitoring is enabled

Table 8-8 Availability Monitor Parameters

4. Click on Accept.

Setting Up the Availability Monitor E-mail Lists

You can configure Embedded Support Partner to send e-mail messages with reports that are generated from the availability data. Embedded Support Partner can send three types of reports: availability, diagnosis, and pager reports.

- Availability reports include the system start time, an event code for the availability event that occurred, the approximate time that the event occurred, the start time, and a summary of the reason for the crash (when relevant).
- Diagnosis reports include all of the data from the availability reports. They may also contain the crash analysis report, FRU Analyzer result, important SYSLOG messages, and system hardware and software configurations (if they changed since the previous reboot).
- Pager reports contain the hostname, event code description, and summary.

You can set up the availability monitor e-mail lists for each type of report. You can also specify whether the reports need to be encrypted or compressed. Reports are sent only if you set the Automatic e-mail distribution parameter to Enable (refer to Table 8-8).

The recommended configuration is to send the diagnosis report in compressed and encrypted format to SGI at the availmon@csd.sgi.com e-mail address for entry in SGI's database. Other possibilities include sending the availability reports to the system administrator and diagnosis reports to SGI service personnel.

Perform the following procedure to set up the e-mail lists:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Availability MailList button in the Availability Monitoring category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Set up the e-mail addresses for the availability report. (Refer to Figure 8-55; Table 8-9 describes the parameters.)

Note: A confirmation message is sent to the e-mail addresses of any users that you add or remove from this list.

4. Set up the e-mail addresses for the diagnostic report. (Refer to Figure 8-55; Table 8-10 describes the parameters.)

Note: A confirmation message is sent to the e-mail addresses of any users that you add or remove from this list.

SETUP > Availability Monitoring > Availability MailList	
	Help
E-mail list for availability report:	
Enter $\operatorname{e-mail}$ addresses that receive availability report in text form:	
Enter e-mail addresses that receive availability report in compressed form:	
Enter e-mail addresses that receive availability report in compressed encrypted form:	
E-mail list for diagnostic report:	
Enter e-mail addresses that receive diagnostic report in text form:	
Enter e-mail addresses that receive diagnostic report in compressed form:	
Enter e-mail addresses that receive diagnostic report in compressed encrypted form:	availmon@csd.sgi.com
E-mail list for chatty pager	
Enter email addresses for chatty pager:	
Accept	

Figure 8-55 Setting Up the Availability Monitor E-mail Lists

 Table 8-9
 E-mail Address Parameters for Availability Reports

Description
Specifies the e-mail addresses that will receive the availability report in text format
Specifies the e-mail addresses that will receive the availability report in compressed format
Specifies the e-mail addresses that will receive the availability report in compressed (encrypted) format

Table 8-10	E-mail Address P	arameters for	Diagnostic	Reports
------------	------------------	---------------	------------	---------

Parameter	Description
Enter e-mail addresses that receive diagnostic report in text form	Specifies the e-mail addresses that will receive the diagnostic report in text format
Enter e-mail addresses that receive diagnostic report in compressed form	Specifies the e-mail addresses that will receive the diagnostic report in compressed format
Enter e-mail addresses that receive diagnostic report in compressed encrypted form	Specifies the e-mail addresses that will receive the diagnostic report in compressed (encrypted) format

- 5. Set up the e-mail addresses that will receive the pager reports through a chatty pager.
- 6. Click on Accept.

Setting Up System Monitoring

You can set up Embedded Support Partner in System Group Manager mode to monitor ICMP, DNS, X Window System server, RPCBIND, SMTP, NNTP, AUTOFSD, PMCD, and other user-specified services on systems in the group. Embedded Support Partner uses Performance Co-Pilot software tools to monitor the services and to register any events in the Embedded Support Partner database. (The events belong to the Performance class; possible events include System Group Manager service probe failure and System Group Manager slow service response.)

Viewing the Current System Monitoring Setup

The current system monitoring setup shows the services that are available for monitoring and the services that are currently being monitored on each host in the group.

To view the current system monitoring setup, click on the Setup tab and then click on the View Current Setup button in the System Monitoring category of the SETUP section. Figure 8-56 shows an example page.

SETUP > System Monitor > View Current Setup

	Services available for Monitoring			
	icmp	;	/usr/etc/ping –c 3 –f –i 4 HOST	
	dns	:	nslookup – HOST	
	x-server	;	DISPLAY=HOST:0 /usr/bin/X11/xhost	
	rpcbind	:	/usr/etc/rpcinfo –p HOST	
	smtp	;	(echo "expn root" ; echo quit) telnet HOST 25 cat	
	nntp	:	(echo "listgroup comp.sys.sgi"; echo quit) telnet HOST 119 cat	
	autofsd	;	/usr/pcp/bin/autofsd–probe –h HOST	
	pmcd	:	/usr/pcp/bin/pmcd_wait h HOST	
Services that are monitored for Hosts				
	overdrive.csd.sgi.com	;	No services configured	
	deiter.csd.sgi.com	;	No services configured	

Figure 8-56 Viewing the Current System Monitoring Setup

Adding a Service to Monitor

If you need to monitor a service that is not included in the default services (refer to Table 8-11 on page 330), perform the following procedure to add a custom service:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Service button in the System Monitoring category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Enter a unique name for the service in the Enter a new service name field. The interface displays this name on other pages to identify the service. (Refer to Figure 8-57.)
- 4. Enter the command that the System Group Manager should execute to monitor the service. (Refer to Figure 8-57.)

Note: The command must include the HOST keyword; Embedded Support Partner in System Group Manager mode replaces the HOST keyword with the actual system name when it monitors the service. (Refer to Table 8-11 on page 330 for examples of commands.)

Figure 8-57 Adding a Service to Monitor

5. Click on Add.

The interface displays a confirmation message to indicate the service that was added.

Updating/Deleting Services

Perform the following procedure to update the commands that services use and delete services that you no longer need:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Service button in the System Monitoring category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Choose the service that you want to update or delete from the Choose a service menu. (Refer to Figure 8-58.)
4. If you want to update a service, enter the updated command for the service in the Enter command to execute field. Remember to include the HOST keyword in the command. (Refer to Figure 8-58.)

·	
Update/Delete service:	
Choose a service:	Service name 🛥
Enter command to execute:	
Update Delete C	lear

Figure 8-58 Updating/Deleting a Service

- 5. Click on Update or Delete:
 - The Update button replaces the current command for the service with the command that you entered.
 - The Delete button deletes the service.

Specifying the Services to Monitor on a Host System

Perform the following procedure to specify which services are monitored on which hosts:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Host button in the System Monitoring category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Choose the host on which you want to monitor the service. The menu displays all hosts that have events subscribed. (Refer to Figure 8-59.)

If the menu does not include the host that you want to use, use the SETUP > Events > Subscribe/Unsubscribe command to subscribe events on the host.

4. Choose the service(s). (Refer to Figure 8-59. The list shows all of the default services and any services that you have added; refer to Table 8-11 for descriptions of the default services.)

If the services list does not contain the service that you want to monitor, use the SETUP > System Monitoring > Service command to add it.

ļ	SETUP > System Monitor > Hosts
	Help
	Choose a host: deiter.csd.sgi.com 👄
	Choose service(s): dns x-server rpcbind
	Tip: Several services can be selected. If you cannot find a service that you need in the list above, add it by using <u>SETUP: System Monitor: Service</u> .
	Add Update Delete



Specifying the Services to Monitor on a Host System

 Table 8-11
 Default System Monitoring Services

Name	Command	Description
icmp	/usr/etc/ping -c -f i 4 HOST	Verifies ICMP echo requests
dms	nslookup - HOST	Verifies DNS server functionality
x-server	DISPLAY=HOST:0 /usr/bin/X11/xhost	Verifies X Window System server functionality
rpcbind	/usr/etc/rpcinfo -p HOST	Verifies RPC services
smtp	(echo "expn root" ; echo quit) telnet HOST 25 cat	Verifies SMTP mail server functionality
nntp	(echo "listgroup comp.sys.sgi"; echo quit) telnet HOST 119 cat	Verifies news server functionality
autofsd	/usr/pcp/bin/autofsd-probe -h HOST	Verifies autoFS functionality
pmcd	/usr/pcp/bin/pmcd_wait -h HOST	Verifies performance metrics collector daemon functionality

- 5. Click on Add, Update, or Delete:
 - The Add button adds the selected services to the list of services that will be monitored for the selected host. All newly selected services and previously selected services are monitored.
 - The Update button replaces all existing services assigned to the host with the services that you selected. Only the newly selected services are monitored for the host. All previously configured services are no longer monitored.
 - The Delete button deletes the selected services for the host. Any other services that were assigned to the host are still monitored.

Setting Up Performance Monitoring

The performance monitor component of Embedded Support Partner monitors system performance by evaluating a set of performance rules at specified time intervals.

Viewing the Current Performance Monitoring Setup

The current performance monitoring indicates which performance rules are currently being monitored. (An Enabled status indicates that Embedded Support Partner is monitoring the rule; a Disabled status indicates that Embedded Support Partner is not monitoring the rule.)

To view the current performance monitoring setup, click on the Setup tab and then click on the View Current Setup button in the Performance Monitoring category of the SETUP section. Figure 8-60 shows an example page. SETUP > Performance Monitoring > View Performance

Automated performance monitoring: Enabled

Automated performance monitoring must be enabled for the enabled performance rules to take effect.

Current status of automated PMIE monitoring rules:

No.	PMIE Rule Description	PMIE Rule	Status
1	High aggregate context switch rate	cpu.context_switch	Disabled
2	Possible high floating point exception rate	cpu.excess_fpe	Disabled
3	High 1–minute load average	cpu.load_average	Disabled
4	Low average processor utilization	cpu.low_util	Disabled
5	High aggregate system call rate	cpu.syscall	Enabled
6	Busy executing in system mode	cpu.system	Enabled
7	High average processor utilization	cpu.util	Disabled
8	CrayLink checkbit errors on Origin node	craylink.node_cb_errs	Disabled
9	CrayLink checkbit errors on Origin router	craylink.router_cb_errs	Disabled
10	System Group Manager slow service response	espping.response	Disabled

Figure 8-60 Viewing the Current Performance Monitoring Setup

Configuring the Performance Monitor

Perform the following procedure to configure the performance monitor:

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Configuration button in the Performance Monitoring category of the SETUP section.

3. Specify the rules that you want to monitor. Click on the Enabled radio button to start monitoring a rule; click on the Disable radio button to stop monitoring a rule. (Refer to Figure 8-61; The *Performance Co-Pilot IRIX Base Software Administrator's Guide*, publication number 007-3964-001, provides more information about the rules.)

SETUP > Performance Monitoring > Cor	nfiguration	
		Help
Automated performance monitoring:	🚸 Enabled	♦ Disabled
Automated performance monitoring mus effect.	t be enabled fo	r the enabled performance rules to take
,		

Enable or disable automated PMIE monitoring for individual performance rules:

No.	PMIE Rule Description	Enabled	Disabled
1	High aggregate context switch rate	\diamond	۲
2	Possible high floating point exception rate	\$	۲
3	High 1–minute load average	\$	۲
4	Low average processor utilization	\$	۲
5	High aggregate system call rate	۲	\$
6	Busy executing in system mode	۲	\$
7	High average processor utilization	\$	۲
8	CrayLink checkbit errors on Origin node	\$	۲
9	CrayLink checkbit errors on Origin router	\$	۲
10	System Group Manager slow service response	\$	۲

Figure 8-61 Configuring the Performance Monitor

4. Click on Accept.

Chapter 9

Using Embedded Support Partner in System Group Manager Mode to View Information about the Systems

Use the commands in the SYSTEM INFORMATION section of the interface in System Group Manager mode to view the following information from the systems that are subscribed to the system group:

- Hardware configuration
- Software configuration
- System changes
- Part changes
- Events registered
- Actions taken
- Diagnostic results
- System availability

Viewing the Hardware Configuration for a Specific Date

Perform the following procedure to view the hardware configuration information for a specific date and time:

- 1. Click on the System Information tab.
- 2. Click on the Hardware button in the SYSTEM INFORMATION section.
- 3. Specify the date in the Date field. If you do not specify a date, the current hardware configuration information is displayed. (Refer to Figure 9-1.)
- Specify the time in the Time field. If you do not specify a time, the latest hardware configuration information available for the specified date is displayed. (Refer to Figure 9-1.)

- 5. Click on the radio button next to the database that you want to use. Be sure to select the database that contains the data for the date that you have selected. (Refer to Figure 9-1.)
- 6. Click on the radio button next to the system that you want to view. (Refer to Figure 9-1.)

SYSTE	EM INFORMATION	> H8	ardware				
							Help
Displa	y hardware configura	tion	informatio	n for the follow	ving date and ti	me:	
	Date		Time	1			
06/12	2/1999	23	:59:59				
(r	nm/dd/yyyyy)		(hh:mm	:ss)			
Chase	o o dotobago for the -		ified data:				
Choos	e a database for the :	spec	illed date:		,		
C	atabase Name	St	art Date	End Date			
۲	Active Database	05/	/27/1999	Current			
Choos	e a system for which	you	want hard	ware configu	* ration informatic	on:	
		· · · · · · ·	18 7			18 4 11	
	System Name		ти туре	Systems	erial Number	IP Address	
۲	overdrive.csd.sgi.c	om	IP27	69058F4E		192.26.58.19	
\diamond	deiter.csd.sgi.com		IP25	S51797		192.26.58.14	
<u>.</u>	1						

Figure 9-1 Viewing the Hardware System Information (Page 1)

7. Click on Accept.

The interface displays a table that contains the hardware configuration of the selected system on the date and at the time that you specified. (Refer to Figure 9-2; Table 9-1 describes the information that the table contains.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Hardware

I ^A type : IP27 System IP address : 192.26.58.19	System name System ID System serial number IP type System IP address	: overdrive.csd.sgi.com : 80069058F4B : 69058F4B : IP27 : 192.26.58.19
--	--	--

	Name	Location	Part Number	Serial Number	Revision
•	1	NA	NA	NA	NA

Figure 9-2 Viewing the Hardware System Information (Page 2)

Table 9-1	Hardware Configuration Table Contents
-----------	---------------------------------------

Column HeadingDescriptionNAMEName of the partLOCATIONLocation where the part is currently installedPART_NUMBERPart number for the partSERIAL_NUMBERSerial number of the partTip: Use the serial number with the SYSTEM INFORMATION > Part Changes command to identify all of the locations in which a specific part has been installedREVISIONRevision level of the part		
NAMEName of the partLOCATIONLocation where the part is currently installedPART_NUMBERPart number for the partSERIAL_NUMBERSerial number of the partTip: Use the serial number with the SYSTEM INFORMATION > Part Changes command to identify all of the locations in which a specific part has been installedREVISIONRevision level of the part	Column Heading	Description
LOCATION Location where the part is currently installed PART_NUMBER Part number for the part SERIAL_NUMBER Serial number of the part Tip: Use the serial number with the SYSTEM INFORMATION > Part Changes command to identify all of the locations in which a specific part has been installed REVISION Revision level of the part	NAME	Name of the part
PART_NUMBER Part number for the part SERIAL_NUMBER Serial number of the part Tip: Use the serial number with the SYSTEM INFORMATION > Part Changes command to identify all of the locations in which a specific part has been installed REVISION Revision level of the part	LOCATION	Location where the part is currently installed
SERIAL_NUMBER Serial number of the part Tip: Use the serial number with the SYSTEM INFORMATION > Part Changes command to identify all of the locations in which a specific part has been installed REVISION Revision level of the part	PART_NUMBER	Part number for the part
Part Changes command to identify all of the locations in which a specific part has been installed REVISION Revision level of the part	SERIAL_NUMBER	Serial number of the part Tip: Use the serial number with the SYSTEM INFORMATION >
REVISION Revision level of the part		Part Changes command to identify all of the locations in which a specific part has been installed
	REVISION	Revision level of the part

The first column provides buttons that expand rows in the table to provide more information about subcomponents of a part. The single arrow expands the rows to show the subcomponents related to the part. The double arrow expands all rows below the current row. The down arrow collapses a row.

Note: Embedded Support Partner gathers hardware configuration data from only the following types of systems: SGI Origin 200, Origin 2000, and Challenge servers; and Silicon Graphics O2, Octane, Onyx, and Onyx2 workstations.

Figure 9-3 shows a table with all of the rows expanded.

ste ste tyj ste	ern name : o ern ID : 8 em serial number : 6 pe : II ern IP address : 1	verdrive.csd.sg 0069058F4B 9058F4B 927 92.26.58.19	i.com		
	Name	Location	Part Number	Serial Number	Revision
,	1	NA	NA	NA	NA
,	PIMM_2XT5_1MB	NA	013-1896-001	DJY958	E
,	IP29	MotherBoard	030-1244-001	GFE634	Н
	MEMBANK_0	MotherBoard	NA	NA	NA
	MEMBANK_1	MotherBoard	NA	NA	NA
	MEMBANK_2	MotherBoard	NA	NA	NA
	MEMBANK_3	MotherBoard	NA	NA	NA
	R10000	MotherBoard	NA	NA	NA
	R10000	MotherBoard	NA	NA	NA
	BASEIO	NA	NA	NA	NA
,	SCSI_CTLR_0	NA	NA	NA	NA
	DRIVE_1	NA	IBM DCHS04Y	6804B36BRAMSG052	5252
	DRIVE 2	NA	IBM DCHS04Y	68143260RAMSG052	5252

Figure 9-3 Hardware System Information (Page 2 with Rows Expanded)

Viewing the Software Configuration for a Specific Date

Perform the following procedure to view the software configuration for a specific date and time:

- 1. Click on the System Information tab.
- 2. Click on the Software button in the SYSTEM INFORMATION section.

- 3. Specify the date in the Date field. If you do not specify a date, the current software configuration information is displayed. (Refer to Figure 9-4.)
- 4. Specify the time in the Time field. If you do not specify a time, the latest software configuration information that is available for the specified date is displayed. (Refer to Figure 9-4.)
- 5. Click on the radio button next to the database that you want to use. Be sure to select the database that contains the data for the date that you have selected. (Refer to Figure 9-4.)
- 6. Click on the radio button next to the system for which you want to view software configuration information. (Refer to Figure 9-4.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION	> Software				
					Help
Display software configurat	tion informatio	n for the follow	wing date and tin	ne:	
Date	Time	9			
06/13/1999	08:59:59				
(mm/dd/yyyy)	(hh:mm	css)			
Choose a database for a se	elected date:		-4		
Database Name	Start Date	End Date			
🚸 Active Database	05/27/1999	Current			
Choose a system for which	ı you want soft	ware configu	*** ration information	1:	
System Name	IP Type	System	Serial Number	IP Address	
overdrive.csd.sgi.c	om IP27	69058F4I	3	192.26.58.19	
deiter.csd.sgi.com	IP25	S51797		192.26.58.14	
Accept Clear					ē

Figure 9-4 Viewing the Software System Information (Page 1)

7. Click on Accept.

The interface displays a table that contains the software configuration from the date and time that you specified. (Refer to Figure 9-6; Table 9-2 describes the information that the table contains.)

SYSTEM INFORI	MATION > Softv	vare		
System name System ID System serial nun P type System IP addres	: overdriv : 800690/ nber : 69058F : IP27 :s : 192.26.4	re.csd.sgi.com 58F4B 4B 58.19	I	
			Page 1 of 12	2
Name	Version	Install Date	Description	
4Dwm	1275623220	06/02/1999	Desktop Window Manager, 6.5.5m	
CaseVision	1024068010	05/09/1999	CASEVision Environment, Version 2.6.5	
InPerson	1274627333	05/09/1999	InPerson Desktop Conferencing, 2.2.1	
PeoplePages	1274627333	05/09/1999	PeoplePages – The Indigo Magic Phonebook, 1.2.1	
Register	1275623220	06/02/1999	On–Line Registration, 1.6	

Figure 9-5 Viewing the Software System Information (Page 2)

Column Heading	Description	
Name	Name of the software application	
Version	Version number of the software application	
Install Date	Date on which the software application was installed	
Description	Brief description of the software	

 Table 9-2
 Software Configuration Table Contents

Each page contains ten items. Use the symbols at the bottom of the page to navigate through the pages as follows:

- Use the numbers at the bottom of the page to select the corresponding pages.
- Use the single-right-arrow icon to move to the next group of pages.
- Use the double-right-arrow icon to move to the last group of pages.
- Use the single-left-arrow icon to move to the previous group of pages.
- Use the double-left-arrow icon to move to the first group of pages.

Viewing the System Changes between a Range of Dates

You can view a log of all system changes within a range of dates.

Perform the following procedure to view the system changes information:

- 1. Click on the System Information tab.
- 2. Click on the System Changes button in the SYSTEM INFORMATION section.
- 3. Specify the starting date (in the From field) and ending date (in the To field) of the range of dates for which you want to view system change information. (Refer to Figure 9-6.)

Note: To view all system changes on a specific day, enter that date in both fields.

4. Click on the radio button next to the database that you want to use. Be sure to select the database that contains the data for the date that you have selected. (Refer to Figure 9-6.)

5. Click on the radio button next to the system that you want to view. (Refer to Figure 9-6.)

SYSTE	EM INFORMATION :	> Syster	m Chai	nges			
							Help
Displa	y information of syste	em confi	guratio	n changes:			
From: Choos	06/01/1999 (mm/dd/yyyy) e a database for selec	To:	06/13/ (mm/d es:	1999 d/yyyyy)			
C)atabase Name	Start [)ate	End Date	1		
۲	Active Database	05/27/	1999	Current			
Choos	e a system for which System Name	you war	nt systi Type	em changes System S	* information: Serial Number	IP Address	40
۲	overdrive.csd.sgi.co	om IP2	27	69058F4E	3	192.26.58.19)
	deiter.csd.sgi.com	IP2	25	S51797		192.26.58.14	F

Figure 9-6 Viewing the System Changes Information (Page 1)

6. Click on Accept.

Clear

Accept

The interface displays up to three tables that show all software changes, hardware changes, and system changes. (Refer to Figure 9-7; Table 9-3, Table 9-4, and Table 9-5 describe the information that the tables contain.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > System Changes

Archive name: ssdb All Changes since 06/01/1999

SOFTWARE CHANGES

Name	Version	Install Date	Deinstall Date	Description
4Dwm	1275616120	06/01/1999	0	Desktop Window Manager, 6.5.5m
Register	1275616120	06/01/1999	0	On–Line Registration, 1.6
ViewKit_dev	1275616120	06/01/1999	0	ViewKit Development Environmen Version 1.5.3
ViewKit_eoe	1275616120	06/01/1999	0	ViewKit Execution Environment, Version 1.5.3
ViewKit_noship	1275616120	06/01/1999	0	ViewKit NOSHIP files, Version 1.5 and 2.1.0
desktop_base	1275616120	06/01/1999	0	IRIX Interactive Desktop Base Software, 6.5.5m
desktop_eoe	1275616120	06/01/1999	0	IRIX Interactive Desktop, 6.5.5m
desktop_tools	1275616120	06/01/1999	0	Desktop Tools, 6.5.5m

Figure 9-7 Viewing the System Changes Information (Page 2)

Table 9-3Software Changes Table Contents

Column Name	Description				
	Description				
Name	Name of the software application				
Description	Brief description of the software application				
Version	Version number of the software application				

Table 9-3 (continued)	Software Changes Table Contents			
Column Name	Description			
Install Date	Date on which the software application was installed			
Deinstall Date	Date that the software application was removed from the system This column displays INSTALLED if the software application has not been deinstalled			

 Table 9-4
 Hardware Changes Table Contents

Column Name	Description
NAME	Name of the part
LOCATION	Location where the part is currently installed
PART_NUMBER	Part number for the part
SERIAL_NUMBER	Serial number of the part Tip: Use the serial number with the SYSTEM INFORMATION > Part Changes command to identify all of the locations in which a specific part has been installed
REVISION	Revision level of the part
Install Time	The date on which the component was installed
Deinstall Time	The date on which the component was deinstalled

Table 9-5 System Changes Table Contents

Column Name	Description
System Changes	A label that indicates the information is from the CURRENT SYSTEM or PREVIOUS SYSTEM
System Id	System identification number
System type	Processor that the system uses
System serial number	Serial number of the system
Hostname	Host name of the system
IP address	IP address of the system

Be aware of the following information when you view these tables:

- Embedded Support Partner gathers hardware configuration data from only the following types of systems: SGI Origin 200, Origin 2000, and Challenge servers; and Silicon Graphics O2, Octane, Onyx, and Onyx2 workstations.
- For SGI Challenge servers and Silicon Graphics Onyx workstations, detailed information about the boards that are installed is not available. This impacts the hardware changes table as follows:
 - If a board is replaced with the same type of board in the same slot, Embedded Support Partner does not detect the change.
 - If a board is moved to a new slot, Embedded Support Partner detects the change.
- When you deinstall a hardware component, Embedded Support Partner reports that all subcomponents of the part are deinstalled.
- If you replace a module with a new module that contains the boards from the previous module, Embedded Support Partner reports that the components were deinstalled and then installed again.
- The software installation time is always shown as 12:00 midnight GMT (adjusted for the local time zone) of the day that the software was installed.
- Embedded Support Partner registers two events when hardware and software components are replaced. One event is for the deinstallation of the previous component, and the other event is for the installation of the new component.

Viewing the Part Changes Information

The part changes information shows all locations in which a specific part has been installed.

Perform the following procedure to view the part changes information:

- 1. Click on the System Information tab.
- 2. Click on the Part Changes button in the SYSTEM INFORMATION section.
- 3. Enter the serial number of the part in the field. (Refer to Figure 9-8.)
- 4. Click on the radio button next to the database that you want to use. Be sure to select the database that contains the data for the date that you have selected. (Refer to Figure 9-8.)
- 5. Click on the radio button next to the system that you want to use. (Refer to Figure 9-8.)

SYSTE	EM INFORMATION	> Pa	urt Change	IS			
							Help
Enter t	he serial number of t	he pa	art for whic	h you would:	like to see chan	ges (history):	
GFE	634						
Tip: F	or part serial number	infor	mation, pl	ease refer to	the <u>SYSTEM IN</u>	IFORMATION:	<u>Hardware</u> ,
Choos	e a database:						
C	atabase Name	Sta	art Date	End Date	1		
۲	Active Database 05			27/1999 Current			
Choos	e a system for which	you	want hard	ware configu	* ration informatic	ın:	
	System Name	Í	IP Type	System S	Serial Number	IP Address	
۲	overdrive.csd.sgi.c	om	IP27	69058F4E	3	192.26.58.19	
\diamond	deiter.csd.sgi.com		IP25	S51797		192.26.58.14	
Aci	cept Clear					1	

Figure 9-8Viewing the Part Changes Information (Page 1)

6. Click on Accept.

The interface displays a table that contains all locations in which the part has been located. (Refer to Figure 9-9; Table 9-6 describes the information that the table contains.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Part Changes

System name: overdrive.csd.sgi.comSystem ID: 80069058F4BSystem serial number: 69058F4BIP type: IP27System IP address: 192,26.58.19

Name	Location	Part Number	Serial Number	Revision	install Date	Deinstall Date
IP29	MotherBoard	030–1244–001	GFE634	Н	05/27/1999	0

Figure 9-9 Viewing the Part Changes Information (Page 2)

Table 9-6Part Changes Table Conte	nts
-----------------------------------	-----

Column Heading	Description
Name	Name of the part
Location	Location at which the part was installed
Part Number	Part number for the part
Serial Number	Serial number of the part
Revision	Revision level of the part
Install Date	Date on which the part was installed in this location
Deinstall Date	Date on which the part was removed from this location

Viewing the Events that Have Been Registered

Embedded Support Partner logs all of the events that it registers. To view this information, click on the Events Registered button in the SYSTEM INFORMATION section. Figure 9-10 shows the page that you use to view the information about events registered.

SYST	EM INFORMATION > E	vents Regi	stered		
					Help
The fo need f	ollowing information pertai to see event setup inform	ins to a hist ation, refer	orical record of events that o to <u>SETUP: Events: View Cu</u>	occurred on the irrent Setup.	system. If you
Enter	date(s) for which you wou	uld like syst	em events information:		
From:	06/13/1999 To	06/13/1:	999		
0	(mm/dd/yyyy)	(mm/dd	/yyyy)		
Choos	se a system for which you	, would like	system event information:	·	6
	System Name	IP Type	System Serial Number	IP Address	
۲	overdrive.csd.sgi.com	IP27	69058F4B	192.26.58.19	
۲	deiter.csd.sgi.com	IP25	S51797	192.26.58.14	
Choos	se one of the following opt	ions:			n
4	All Group System Events	D	isplays all system events t ystem within the range of th	hat have occum e selected date:	ed on the S
4	Specific System Ev	rent D s	risplays selected events that ystem within the range of th	at have occurrec e selected date:	l on the 3.
4	 Group System Events by Class Displays events in the selected class that have occurred on the system within the range of the selected dates. 		ave occurred d dates.		
Ac	ccept Clear				

Figure 9-10 Options for Viewing Events that Have Been Registered

Using the All Group System Events Option

The All Group System Events option displays all events that have been registered within the range of dates that you specify.

Perform the following procedure to use the All System Events option:

- 1. Click on the System Information tab.
- 2. Click on the Events Registered button in the SYSTEM INFORMATION section.
- 3. Specify the range of dates that you want to view. (Refer to Figure 9-11.)
- 4. Click on the radio button next to the system that you want to use. (Refer to Figure 9-11.)
- 5. Click on the radio button next to the All Group System Events option. (Refer to Figure 9-11.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Events Registered					
					Help
The fo	blowing information pertain to see event setup inform	ns to a hist ation, refer 1	orical record of events that o to <u>SETUP: Events: View Cu</u>	occurred on the : irrent Setup.	system. If you
Enter	date(s) for which you wou	ıld like systi	em events information:		
From:	06/01/1999 To	: 06/13/1	999		
	(mm/dd/yyyy)	(mm/dd	·/yyyy)		
Choos	se a system for which you	ı would like	system event information:		
	System Name	IP Type	System Serial Number	IP Address	
۲	overdrive.csd.sgi.com	IP27	69058F4B	192.26.58.19	
۲	deiter.csd.sgi.com	IP25	S51797	192.26.58.14	
Choos	se one of the following opt	ions:			8
4	All Group System Events	D	isplays all system events t ystem within the range of th	hat have occurri e selected date:	ed on the S
	Specific System Ev	rent D sj	isplays selected events that ystem within the range of th	at have occurred e selected dates	l on the 3.
4	Group System Ever by Class	nts D o	isplays events in the selec n the system within the ranı	ted class that ha ge of the selecte	ave occurred d dates.
Ac	Clear				

Figure 9-11 Using the All System Events Option (Page 1)

6. Click on Accept.

The interface displays a table of all events that have been registered within the range of dates that you specified. (Refer to Figure 9-12; Table 9-7 describes the information that the table contains.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Events Registered > All System Events

: All events

System name System ID System serial number System IP type System IP address	: overdrive.csd.sgi.com : 80069058F4B : 69058F4B : IP27 : 192.26.58.19

Class of Event

						Page 1 of
No.	Event Class	Event Description	Event ID	First Occurrence	Last Occurrence	Event Count
1	Availability	Controlled shutdown (1)	0x20001E	06/11/1999 09:54:41	06/11/1999 09:54:41	1
2	Kernel Module	mload bootp kernal	0x127	06/11/1999 09:53:59	06/11/1999 09:53:59	1
3	Availability	Controlled shutdown (1)	0x20001E	06/10/1999 17:17:21	06/10/1999 17:17:21	1
4	Kernel Module	mload bootp kernal	0x127	06/10/1999 17:15:36	06/10/1999 17:15:36	1
5	Kernel Module	mload bootp kernal	0x127	06/10/1999 17:15:36	06/10/1999 17:15:36	1
6	Performance	High per CPU system call rate	0x200057	06/10/1999 15:06:03	06/10/1999 15:06:03	1
7	Availability	Controlled shutdown (1)	0x20001E	06/10/1999 15:04:34	06/10/1999 15:04:34	1
8	Kernel Module	mload bootp kernal	0x127	06/10/1999 15:02:30	06/10/1999 15:02:30	1

Figure 9-12 Using the All System Events Option (Page 2)

Table 9-7 Table Contents for the All System Events Option

Column Heading	Description
No.	Index number within the table
Event Class	The class in which the event belongs
Event Description	Brief description of the event
Event ID	Unique identification number for the event

Table 9-7 (continued)	Table Contents for the All System Events Option	
Column Heading	Description	
First Occurrence	Date and time at which the event was first registered	
Last Occurrence	Date and time at which the event was last registered	
Event Count	Number of times that the event occurred	

Each page contains ten registered events. Use the symbols at the bottom of the page to navigate through the pages as follows:

- Use the numbers at the bottom of the page to select the corresponding pages.
- Use the single-right-arrow icon to move to the next group of pages.
- Use the double-right-arrow icon to move to the last group of pages.
- Use the single-left-arrow icon to move to the previous group of pages.
- Use the double-left-arrow icon to move to the first group of pages.

Using the Specific System Event Option

The Specific System Event option displays all event registrations for a specific event within the range of dates that you specify.

Perform the following procedure to use the Specific System Event option:

- 1. Click on the System Information tab.
- 2. Click on the Events Registered button in the SYSTEM INFORMATION section.
- 3. Specify the range of dates that you want to view. (Refer to Figure 9-13.)
- 4. Click on the radio button next to the system that you want to use. (Refer to Figure 9-13)
- 5. Click on the radio button next to the Specific System Event option. (Refer to Figure 9-13.)

SYSTE	EM INFORMATION > E_1	rents Regis	tered		
				Γ	Help
					TTOIP
The fol	lowing information pertain	ns to a histo	orical record of events that o	ccurred on the sys	tem. If
you ne	ea to see event setup init	unnauun, re	RIER TO <u>SET OF: EVENUS: VIEV</u>	<u>v Gurrent Setup</u> .	
Enter o	late(s) for which you wou	ld like syste	em events information:		
From:	06/01/1999 To:	06/13/19	999		
	(mm/dd/yyyy)	(mm/dd/	YYYY)		
Choos	o a evetom for which you	would like a	vetom overt information:		
Choos	e a system for which you	would like :	system event monnation.		
	System Name	IP Type	System Serial Number	IP Address	
۲	overdrive.csd.sgi.com	IP27	69058F4B	192.26.58.19	
\diamond	deiter.csd.sgi.com	IP25	S51797	192.26.58.14	
Choos	e one of the following onti	ons:			
~		ono. Di	ionlovo oll ovotom ovoto th	at have accurred.	n tha
\diamond	Events	s)	splays all system events tr stem within the range of the	selected dates	n ne
۲	Specific System Eve	ent Di sv	isplays selected events tha /stem within the range of the	t have occurred on selected dates.	the
~	Crown Stratom Etron	to Di	ionlava avanta in the calact	ad alago that have	
\diamond	by Class	us Di OC da	curred on the system within tes.	n the range of the s	elected
Acc	cept Clear				

Figure 9-13Using the Specific System Event Option (Page 1)

6. Choose the class to which the event you want to view belongs. (Refer to Figure 9-14.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Events Registered > Specific System Event	
	Help
Choose an event class:	
Saudit SCSI System Board System Configuration System Error	
Accept	

Figure 9-14 Using the Specific System Event Option (Page 2)

- 7. Click on Accept.
- 8. Choose the event that you want to view. (Refer to Figure 9-15.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Events Registered > Specific System Event	
	Help
Choose an event from class System Configuration:	
Configmon init Hardware installed Harwdare de–installed Software installed Software installed Sysinfo changed System change	
Accept	

Figure 9-15 Using the Specific System Event Option (Page 3)

9. Click on Accept.

The interface displays a table that shows all registrations of the event within the dates that you specified. (Refer to Figure 9-16; Table 9-8 describes the information that the table contains.)

SYSTEM INFORMAT	ION > Events Registered > Specific System Event
System name	: overdrive.csd.sgi.com
System ID	: 80069058F4B
System serial number	: 69058F4B
System IP type	: IP27
System IP address	: 192.26.58.19
Class of Event	: System Configuration
Event Description	: Hardware installed
Event ID	: 0x200102

There are no records for the specified time period.

Figure 9-16 Using the Specific System Event Option (Page 4)

Table 9-8Table Contents for the S	Specific System Event Option
-----------------------------------	------------------------------

Column Heading	Description
No.	Index number within the table
First Event Occurrence	Date and time that the event was first registered
Last Event Occurrence	Date and time that the event was last registered
Event Count	Number of times that event occurred for that registration

Each page contains ten registered events. Use the symbols at the bottom of the page to navigate through the pages as follows:

- Use the numbers at the bottom of the page to select the corresponding pages.
- Use the single-right-arrow icon to move to the next group of pages.
- Use the double-right-arrow icon to move to the last group of pages.
- Use the single-left-arrow icon to move to the previous group of pages.
- Use the double-left-arrow icon to move to the first group of pages.

System Events by Class Option

The System Events by Class option displays all registrations of events in a specific class.

Perform the following procedure to use the System Events by Class option:

- 1. Click on the System Information tab.
- 2. Click on the Events Registered button in the SYSTEM INFORMATION section.
- 3. Specify the range of dates that you want to view. (Refer to Figure 9-17.)
- 4. Click on the radio button next to the system that you want to use. (Refer to Figure 9-17.)
- 5. Click on the radio button next to the System Events by Class option. (Refer to Figure 9-17.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > EV	rents Regis	tered		
				Help
The following information pertain need to see event setup information	ns to a histo ation, refer ti	rical record of events that o o <u>SETUP: Events: View Cu</u>	ccurred on the s rrent Setup.	ystem. If you
Enter date(s) for which you wou	ld like syste	m events information:		
From: 06/01/1999 To:	06/13/19	99		
(mm/dd/yyyyy)	(mm/dd/	yyyy)		
Choose a system for which you	would like s	system event information:		
		· · · · · · · · · ·	()	l
System Name	IP Type	System Serial Number	IP Address	
overdrive.csd.sgi.com	IP27	69058F4B	192.26.58.19	
deiter.csd.sgi.com	IP25	S51797	192.26.58.14	
Choose one of the following opti	ons:			¢
 All Group System Events 	Di sy	isplays all system events th rstem within the range of the	nat have occurre e selected dates	d on the
Specific System Even	Specific System Event Displays selected events that have occurred on the system within the range of the selected dates.			
 Group System Events by Class Displays events in the selected class that have occurred on the system within the range of the selected dates. 				
Accept Clear				
Figure 9-17 Using t	he Syste	em Events by Class	Option (Pa	ige 1)

6. Choose the event class. (Refer to Figure 9-18.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Events Registered > System Events by Class	
	Help
Choose an event class:	
Availability Diagnostic ESP Event Manager ESP Internal Events File System	
Accept	

Figure 9-18 Using the System Events by Class Option (Page 2)

7. Click on Accept.

The interface displays information about all events from the selected class that were registered between the dates that you specified. (Refer to Figure 9-19; Table 9-9 describes the information that the table contains.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Events Registered > System Events by Class

System name System ID	: overdrive.csd.sgi.com : 80069058F4B
System serial number	: 69058F4B
System IP type	: IP27
System IP address	: 192.26.58.19

: Availability

Class of Event

					Page 1 of 1
No.	Event Description	Event ID	First Event Occurrence	Last Event Occurrence	Event Count
1	NMI	0x200004	06/01/1999 16:29:38	06/01/1999 16:29:38	1
2	Controlled shutdown (1)	0x20001E	06/02/1999 11:25:03	06/02/1999 11:25:03	1
3	Controlled shutdown (1)	0x20001E	06/03/1999 14:55:16	06/03/1999 14:55:16	1
4	Status report	0x200006	06/06/1999 17:57:59	06/06/1999 17:57:59	1
5	Controlled shutdown (1)	0x20001E	06/10/1999 15:04:34	06/10/1999 15:04:34	1
6	Controlled shutdown (1)	0x20001E	06/10/1999 17:17:21	06/10/1999 17:17:21	1
7	Controlled shutdown (1)	0x20001E	06/11/1999 09:54:41	06/11/1999 09:54:41	1

Figure 9-19 Using the System Events by Class Option (Page 3)

Table 9-9Table Contents for the System Events by Class Option

Column Heading	Description
No.	Index number in the table
Event Description	Brief description of the event
Event ID	Unique identification number for the event
First Occurrence	Date and time that the event was first registered
Last Occurrence	Date and time that the event was last registered
Event Count	Number of times that the event occurred

Each page contains ten registered events. Use the symbols at the bottom of the page to navigate through the pages as follows:

- Use the numbers at the bottom of the page to select the corresponding pages.
- Use the single-right-arrow icon to move to the next group of pages.
- Use the double-right-arrow icon to move to the last group of pages.
- Use the single-left-arrow icon to move to the previous group of pages.
- Use the double-left-arrow icon to move to the first group of pages.

Viewing Information about the Actions Taken

Embedded Support Partner logs all of the actions that it performs. To view this information, click on the Actions Taken button in the SYSTEM INFORMATION section. Figure 9-20 shows the page that you use to view the information about actions taken.

SYSTE	EM INFORMATION > Ad	ctions Taker	1		
					Help
Enter	date(s) for which you wou	ld like actior	ns taken information:		
From: Choos	06/13/1999 To (mm/dd/yyyy) e a system for which you	(mm/dd/) would like a	99 /YYYY) ctions taken information:		
(System Name	IP Type	System Serial Number	IP Address	
\diamond	overdrive.csd.sgi.com	IP27	69058F4B	192.26.58.19	
\diamond	deiter.csd.sgi.com	IP25	S51797	192.26.58.14	
Choos	e one of the following opti	ons:			I
۲	All Actions Taken	Di Sy ac	splays all actions that were stem Group Manager and e tions.	taken for the sy wents that trigge	stem by ered these
	 Actions Taken for a Displays actions taken for a specific event only. Specific Event 				у.
Ac	Clear				

Figure 9-20 Options for Viewing the Actions that Have Been Taken

Using the All Actions Taken Option

The All Actions Taken option displays all actions that have been taken within the range of dates that you specify and the events that caused the actions to occur.

Perform the following procedure to use the All Actions Taken option:

- 1. Click on the System Information tab.
- 2. Click on the Actions Taken button in the SYSTEM INFORMATION section.
- 3. Specify the range of dates that you want to view. (Refer to Figure 9-21.)
- 4. Click on the radio button next to the system that you want to use. (Refer to Figure 9-21.)

5. Click on the radio button next to the All Actions Taken option. (Refer to Figure 9-21)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Actions Taken				
				Help
Enter date(s) for which	you would like actio	ns taken information:		
From: 06/01/1999	To: 06/13/1:	999		
Choose a system for w	hich you would like	actions taken information:		
System Name	e IP Type	System Serial Number	IP Address	
w overdrive.csd.	sgi.com IP27	69058F4B	192.26.58.19	
🔶 deiter.csd.sgi.c	com IP25	S51797	192.26.58.14	
Choose one of the follo	wing options:			
All Actions Ta	ken Di Sy ac	splays all actions that were 'stem Group Manager and e tions.	taken for the syst vents that trigger	tem by ed these
 Actions Taker Specific Event 	n for a Di t	splays actions taken for a sp	pecific event only	r.
Accept	ar			

Figure 9-21Using the All Actions Taken Option (Page 1)

6. Click on Accept.

The interface displays a table that contains information about all of the actions that were taken between the dates that you specified. (Refer to Figure 9-22; Table 9-10 describes the information that the table contains.)

SYSTE	EM INFORMATI	ON > Actions T	aken > All A	ctions Taken	
System name : overdrive.csd.sgi.com System ID : 80069058F4B System serial number : 69058F4B System IP type : IP27 System IP address : 192.26.58.19 Class of Reports : All Actions					
No.	Event Class	Event Description	Event ID	Action Description	Action Taken
1	System Configuration	Software installed	0x200104	Notify sysadmin on console	/usr/bin/espnotify – A "ConfigMo SOFTWARE INSTALLED"
2	System Configuration	Software de–installed	0x200105	Notify sysadmin on console	/usr/bin/espnotify – A "ConfigMon SOFTWARE DEINSTALLED"
3	System Configuration	Software installed	0x200104	Notify sysadmin on console	/usr/bin/espnotify – A "ConfigMoi SOFTWARE INSTALLED"
4	System Configuration	Software de–installed	0x200105	Notify sysadmin on console	/usr/bin/espnotify –A "ConfigMor SOFTWARE DEINSTALLED"
5	Performance	High per CPU system call rate	0x200057	Notify sysadmin on console	/usr/bin/espnotify _A "High per C system call rate 11664scall/s[cpu:1.1.a]@overdri

Figure 9-22 Using the All Actions Taken Option (Page 2)

Table 9-10Table Contents for the All Actions Taken Option

Column	Description	
No.	Index number in the table	
Event Class	Class of the event to which the action is assigned	
Event Description	Description of the event to which the action is assigned	
Event ID	Identification number of the event to which the action is assigned	
Action Description	Description of the action that was taken	
Table 9-10 (continued)	Table Contents for the All Actions Taken Option	
------------------------	--	--
Column	Description	
Action Taken	Description of the command that the action performed	
Time of Action	Time and date at that the action was taken	

Each page contains ten actions. Use the symbols at the bottom of the page to navigate through the pages as follows:

- Use the numbers at the bottom of the page to select the corresponding pages.
- Use the single-right-arrow icon to move to the next group of pages.
- Use the double-right-arrow icon to move to the last group of pages.
- Use the single-left-arrow icon to move to the previous group of pages.
- Use the double-left-arrow icon to move to the first group of pages.

Using the Actions Taken for a Specific Event Option

The Actions Taken for a Specific Event option displays all actions that were taken for a specific event within the range of dates that you specify.

Perform the following procedure to use the Actions Taken for a Specific Event option:

- 1. Click on the System Information tab.
- 2. Click on the Actions Taken button in the SYSTEM INFORMATION section.
- 3. Specify the range of dates that you want to view. (Refer to Figure 9-23.)
- 4. Click on the radio button next to the system that you want to use. (Refer to Figure 9-23.)
- 5. Click on the radio button next to the Actions Taken for a Specific Event option. (Refer to Figure 9-23.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Actions Taken				
				Help
Enter date(s) for which you wou	ld like actior	ns taken information:		
From: 06/01/1999 To: (mm/dd/yyyy) Choose a system for which you	06/13/19 (mm/dd/) would like a	99 уууу) ctions taken information:		
System Name	IP Type	System Serial Number	IP Address	
overdrive.csd.sgi.com	IP27	69058F4B	192.26.58.19	
deiter.csd.sgi.com	IP25	S51797	192.26.58.14	
Choose one of the following options:				
All Actions Taken	Dis Sys acti	plays all actions that were stem Group Manager and e [.] ions.	taken for the sys vents that trigge	tem by red these
Actions Taken for a Specific Event	Dis	plays actions taken for a sp	pecific event only	Ι.
Accept				

Figure 9-23 Using the Actions Taken for a Specific Event Option (Page 1)

6. Choose the class that contains the event that you want to see. (Refer to Figure 9-24.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Actions Taken > Actions Taken for Specific Event	
	Help
Choose an event class:	
SCSI System Board System Configuration System Error User	
Accept	



- 7. Click on Accept.
- 8. Choose the event for which you want to see the actions taken. (Refer to Figure 9-25.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Actions Taken > Actions Taken for Specific Event	
	Help
Choose an event from class System Configuration:	
Configmon init Hardware installed Harwdare de-installed Software installed Sysinfo changed System change	
Accept	



9. Click on Accept.

The interface displays a table that lists all of the actions that occurred for the event between the dates that you specified. (Refer to Figure 9-26; Table 9-11 describes the information that the table contains.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Actions Taken > Actions Taken for Specific Event

System serial number : 69058F4 System IP type : IP27 System IP address : 192.26.5	e.csd.sgi.com 38F4B 4B 38.19
---	---------------------------------------

Class of Reports : All Actions Taken for Specific Event

						Page 1 of
No.	Event Class	Event Description	Event ID	Action Description	Action Taken	Time of Action
1	System Configuration	Software installed	0x200104	Notify sysadmin on console	/usr/bin/espnotify –A "ConfigMon SOFTWARE INSTALLED"	06/01/1999 16:29:35
2	System Configuration	Software installed	0x200104	Notify sysadmin on console	/usr/bin/espnotify –A "ConfigMon SOFTWARE INSTALLED"	06/02/1999 11:25:00

Figure 9-26 Using the Actions Taken for a Specific Event Option (Page 4)

 Table 9-11
 Table Contents for the Actions Taken for a Specific Event Option

Column	Description
No.	Index number in the table
Event Class	Class of the event to which the action is assigned
Event Description	Description of the event to which the actions is assigned
Event ID	Identification number of the event to which the action is assigned
Action Description	Description of the action that was taken
Action Taken	Description of the command that the action performed
Time of Action	Time and date at which the action was taken

Each page contains ten actions. Use the symbols at the bottom of the page to navigate through the pages as follows:

- Use the numbers at the bottom of the page to select the corresponding pages.
- Use the single-right-arrow icon to move to the next group of pages.
- Use the double-right-arrow icon to move to the last group of pages.
- Use the single-left-arrow icon to move to the previous group of pages.
- Use the double-left-arrow icon to move to the first group of pages.

Viewing the Diagnostic Results

If you use the diagnostics that are included in the *Internal Support Tools* 2.0 or later releases, Embedded Support Partner monitors the diagnostics that you run on a system.

Perform the following procedure to view a report of the diagnostic results:

- 1. Click on the System Information tab.
- 2. Click on the Diagnostics Results button in the SYSTEM INFORMATION section.
- 3. Specify the starting date (in the From field) and ending date (in the To field) of the range of dates for which you want to view diagnostic results. (Refer to Figure 9-27.)

Note: To view diagnostic results from a specific day, enter that date in both fields.

4. Click on the radio button next to the system that you want to use. (Refer to Figure 9-27.)

STOLEM INFORMATION >D	iagnostics F	Results		
				Help
Display diagnostics results for	diagnostics	ran		
From: 08/07/1999 To: 09/07/1999 (mm/dd/yyyy) (mm/dd/yyyy) Choose a system for which you would like actions taken information:				
Choose a system for which you	ı would like a	actions taken information:		
Choose a system for which you System Name	i would like a	actions taken information: System Serial Number	IP Address	ĺ
Choose a system for which you System Name annushka.csd.sgi.com	i would like a IP Type IP32	actions taken information: System Serial Number 08006902FB7E	IP Address 150.166.1.59	

Figure 9-27 Viewing the Diagnostic Results (Graphical Interface)

5. Click on Accept.

The interface displays a table that contains information about all diagnostics that ran during the range of time that you specified. (Refer to Figure 9-28; Table 9-12 describes the information that the table contains.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Diagnostics Results System name : annushka.csd.sgi.com System ID : 6902FB7E System IP type : IP32 System IP type : 150.166.1.59 Time period : 08/07/1999 – 09/07/1999 Page 1 of 1

No.	Diagnostic Name	Diagnostic Result	Diagnostic Result Time
1	SVP (9)	PASS	08/17/1999 09:58:09

Figure 9-28	Viewing the Diagnostic Results (Page 2 [Graphical Inter-	facel)
1 igure 3-20	viewing the Diagnostic Results (Lage 2 [Graphica Inter	lacej)

Table 9-12	Diagnostic Results	Table Contents

Column Headin	g	Description
No.		Index number within the table
Diagnostic	Name	Name of the diagnostic
-		When one or more tests run as a group under one program (for example, SVP), the total number of tests run is shown in parentheses next to the diagnostic name; for example:
		SVP (86) indicates that 86 tests ran under SVP
Diagnostic	Result	Result of the diagnostic: PASS, FAIL, or COMPLETE
		PASS indicates that the diagnostic completed successfully
		FAIL indicates that the diagnostic failed
		COMPLETE indicates that multiple tests ran and one or more of them failed and the others passed
Diagnostic	Result	Time at which the diagnostic completed testing
Time		When multiple tests run under one diagnostic (for example, SVP), this column indicates the time at which all tests completed

Each page contains ten items. Use the symbols at the bottom of the page to navigate through the pages as follows:

- Use the numbers at the bottom of the page to select the corresponding pages.
- Use the single-right-arrow icon to move to the next group of pages.
- Use the double-right-arrow icon to move to the last group of pages.
- Use the single-left-arrow icon to move to the previous group of pages.
- Use the double-left-arrow icon to move to the first group of pages.

Viewing the Availability Information

The availmon component of Embedded Support Partner tracks system availability. To view this information, click on the Availability button in the SYSTEM INFORMATION section.

Figure 9-29 shows the page that you use to view the information about system availability. This page displays the total availability (in percent) for all systems on the site and the mean time between interrupts (MTBI) in minutes for all systems on the site. It also enables you to select which type of availability information to view.

SYSTE	EM INFORMATION > Av	vailability				
					Help	
Tota	al Availability for all syste	ms on site (%) = 98.23			
MTE	31 for all systems on site ((min) = 2841	3			
Enter	the time period for which y	/ou want av	ailability information:			
From:	То	06/13/19	199			
	(mm/dd/yyyy)	(mm/dd/	yyyy)			
Displa	y availability information	for the follov	ving systems:			
	System Name	IP Type	System Serial Number	IP Address		
	All systems on a site					
	overdrive.csd.sgi.com	IP27	69058F4B	192.26.58.19		
	deiter.csd.sgi.com	IP25	S51797	192.26.58.14		
Choos	o one of the following ont	ione:			, ,	
</td <td>Site Level Overall Avail Summary</td> <td>ability</td> <td>Displays all statistical av selected system or group provides information rega Uptime, etc.</td> <td>vailability informa o of systems. Th arding MTBI, Av</td> <th>ation for the is report erage</th>	Site Level Overall Avail Summary	ability	Displays all statistical av selected system or group provides information rega Uptime, etc.	vailability informa o of systems. Th arding MTBI, Av	ation for the is report erage	
4	Availability Summary List for Displays detailed information of all availability events Individual Hosts for the selected system or group of systems. Selection of each event is also allowed if more detail is required.					
Ac	cept					
1						

Figure 9-29 Options for Viewing System Availability Information

Using the Site Level Overall Availability Summary Option

The Overall Availability option provides general availability information for the systems that you select.

Perform the following procedure to use the Overall Availability option:

- 1. Click on the System Information tab.
- 2. Click on the Availability button in the SYSTEM INFORMATION section.
- 3. Specify the range of dates that you want to view. (Refer to Figure 9-30.)
- 4. Select the systems that you want to use to generate the summary. (Refer to Figure 9-30.)
- 5. Click on the radio button next to the Site Level Overall Availability Summary option. (Refer to Figure 9-30.)
- 6. Click on Accept.
- 7. The interface displays a table that contains the overall availability information for the system(s). (Refer to Figure 9-31; Table 9-13 describes the information that the table contains.)

SYSTE	EM INFORMATION > AV	vailability								
	Help									
Tota	Total Availability for all systems on site (%) = 98.23									
MTE	31 for all systems on site ((min) = 2846	3							
Enter	the time period for which y	you want av	ailability information:							
From:	06/01/1999 To (mm/dd/yyyy)	: 06/13/19 (mm/dd/	99 YYYY)							
Displa	y availability information	for the follov	ving systems:							
	System Name	IP Type	System Serial Number	IP Address						
1	All systems on a site									
	overdrive.csd.sgi.com	IP27	69058F4B	192.26.58.19						
	deiter.csd.sgi.com	IP25	S51797	192.26.58.14						
Choos	e one of the following opti	ions:			8					
4	Site Level Overall Availability Summary Displays all statistical availability information for the selected system or group of systems. This report provides information regarding MTBI, Average Uptime, etc.									
4	Availability Summary List for Individual Hosts of each event is also allowed if more detail is required.									
Ac	cept									

Figure 9-30Using the Site Level Overall Availability Summary Option (Page 1)

OVOTEM INFORMATION .	Arrollability Crown Orrorall Arrollability
	AYAIIAJIIILY > GIUUJ UYEIAII AYAIIAJIIILY

System name Database	: overdrive.csd.sgi.com
Number of records	: 7 : 7
Data start time Data end time	: Fri Jun 11 09:50:59 1999

	Count	Downtime (min)	MTBI (min)	Availability %			
Unscheduled	1	4	22791	99.98			
reset action	1	4	22791				
Service action	5	341	4558	98.50			
administrative: reboot	5	341	4558				
Total	6	345	3798	98.48			
Average uptime	2962 minute	2962 minutes (2 days 1 hr 22 mins)					
Least uptime	128 minutes	128 minutes (2 hrs 8 mins)					
Recorded at:	overdrive.cs	overdrive.csd.sgi.com					
Most uptime	9760 minute	9760 minutes (6 days 18 hrs 40 mins)					
Recorded at:	overdrive.cs	d.sgi.com					
Average downtime	835 minutes	835 minutes (13 hrs 55 mins)					
Least downtime	2 minutes	2 minutes					
Recorded at:	overdrive.csd.sgi.com						
Most downtime	328 minutes	328 minutes (5 hrs 28 mins)					
Recorded at:	overdrive.cs	overdrive.csd.sgi.com					

Availability Summary For All Hosts

Figure 9-31 Using the Site Level Overall Availability Summary Option (Page 2)

Row	Description			
Unscheduled	Information about any unscheduled downtime			
	The following information is displayed for each event: count, downtime due to the event (in minutes), mean time between interrupts (in minutes), and availability percentage			
Service Action	Information about each service action performed on the system The following information is displayed for each service action: count, downtime caused by the service action (in minutes), mean time between interrupts (in minutes), and availability percentage			
Total	Information about the total downtime for unscheduled downtime and service actions on the system			
	A total is displayed for the following categories: count, downtime (in minutes) caused by the action, mean time between interrupts (in minutes), and availability percentage			
Average uptime	Average uptime between availability events			
	The system listed in the Recorded at row indicates the system from which this information came			
Least uptime	Shortest uptime between availability events			
	The system listed in the Recorded at row indicates the system from which this information came			
Most uptime	Longest uptime between availability events			
	The system listed in the Recorded at row indicates the system from which this information came			
Average downtime	Average downtime			
Least downtime	Shortest downtime			
	The system listed in the Recorded at row indicates the system from which this information came			
Most downtime	Longest downtime			
	The system listed in the Recorded at row indicates the system from which this information came			

 Table 9-13
 Site Level Overall Availability Summary Information

Click on the Availability Summary For All Hosts link at the bottom of the page to display a summary of downtime information for the selected systems. (Refer to Figure 9-32; Table 9-14 describes the information that the table contains.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Availability > Availability Summary For All Hosts

System name :	overdrive.csd.sgi.com
Database :	ssdb
Number of records :	7
Data start time :	Tue Jun 1 16:24:43 1999
Data end time :	Fri Jun 11 09:50:59 1999

Serial Number	Serial Number Hostname		Unscheduled		Service		Total	
80069058F4B	overdrive.csd.sgi.com	1	99.98%	5	98.50%	6	98.48%	<u>Host</u> <u>Overall</u> <u>Availability</u>

Figure 9-32 Using the Site Level Overall Availability Summary Option (Page 3)

Column	Description	
Serial Number	Serial number of the system	
Hostname	Name of the system	
Unscheduled	Number of unscheduled events and the percent availability percentage for them	
Service	Number of service action and the availability percentage for them	
Total	Total number of availability events and the total availability percentage	
	Contains a link to availability information for each system (Refer to Figure 9-35; Table 9-15 describes the information that the table contains)	

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Availability > Overall Availability

System name	: overdrive.csd.sgi.com
Database	: ssdb
Number of records	: 7
Data start time	: Tue Jun 1 16:24:43 1999
Data end time	: Fri Jun 11 09:50:59 1999

	Count	Downtime (min)	MTBI (min)	Availability %		
Unscheduled	1	5	22805	99.98		
reset action	1	5	22805			
Service action	5	341	4561	98.50		
administrative: reboot	5	341	4561			
Total	6	346	3801	98.48		
Average uptime	2964 minutes (2 days 1 hr 24 mins)					
Least uptime	128 minutes	(2 hrs 8 mins)				
Most uptime	9760 minutes	s (6 days 18 hrs	: 40 mins)			
Average downtime	835 minutes	835 minutes (13 hrs 55 mins)				
Least downtime	2 minutes					
Most downtime	329 minutes	(5 hrs 29 mins)				
Logging started at	Fri May 28 18	Fri May 28 18:10:18 1999				
Last boot at	Fri Jun 11 09:54:33 1999					
System has been up for	3141 minutes (2 days 4 hrs 21 mins)					

Event Availability Information

Figure 9-33Using the Site Level Overall Availability Summary Option (Page 4)

Row	Description
Unscheduled	Information about any unscheduled downtime
	The following information is displayed for each event: count, downtime caused by the event (in minutes), mean time between interrupts (in minutes), and availability percentage
Service Action	Information about each service action performed on the system
	The following information is displayed for each service action: count, downtime caused by the service action (in minutes), mean time between interrupts (in minutes), and availability percentage
Total	Information about the total downtime for service actions on the system
	A total is displayed for the following categories: count, downtime (in minutes) caused by the action, mean time between interrupts (in minutes), and availability percentage
Average uptime	Average uptime between availability events
Least uptime	Shortest uptime between availability events
Most uptime	Longest uptime between availability events
Average downtime	Average downtime
Most downtime	Longest downtime
Least downtime	Shortest downtime
Logging started at	Date and time when availability monitoring started
Last boot at	Date and time of the last system boot
System has been up for	Amount of time that the system has been up since the last boot (in minutes)

 Table 9-15
 Overall Availability Information

Click on the Event Availability Information link at the bottom of the page to display a list of all availability events that occurred between the dates that you specified. (Refer to Figure 9-32; Table 9-16 describes the information that the table contains.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Availability > Event Availability Information

System name	: overdrive.csd.sgi.com
Database	: ssdb
Number of records	: 7
Data start time	: Tue Jun 1 16:24:43 1999
Data end time	: Fri Jun 11 09:50:59 1999

Γαι	je i ul i
Start Time Incident Time Uptime (min) DownTime (min) Reason	
Fri May 28 Tue Jun 1 5654 5 NMI Even	<u>t</u>
Summa 18:10:18 1999 16:24:43 1999 5654 5 NMI Summa	ary
Tue Jun 1 Wed Jun 2 1133 2 Controlled Even	<u>t</u>
Summa 16:29:24 1999 11:22:24 1999 1133 2 Controlled Even	ury
Wed Jun 2 Thu Jun 3 1648 2 Controlled Even	<u>t</u>
Summa	ury
Thu Jun 3 Sun Jun 6 0 0 Status report Even	<u>t</u>
Summa 14:55:08 1999 17:57:59 1999 0 0 Status report Even	ury
Thu Jun 3 Thu Jun 10 9760 329 Controlled Even	<u>t</u>
Summa	ury
Thu Jun 10 Thu Jun 10 128 4 Controlled Even	<u>t</u>
Summa	ury
Thu Jun 10 Fri Jun 11 394 4 Controlled Even	<u>t</u>
Summa 17:17:09 09:50:59 1999 394 4 Controlled Summa	ury

Figure 9-34Using the Site Level Overall Availability Summary Option (Page 5)

Column	Description			
Start Time	Specifies the time that the system was brought up before the incident occurred			
Incident Time	Specifies the time at which the incident that caused the downtime occurred			
Uptime (min)	Specifies the number of minutes that the system was up before the incident occurred			
DownTime (min)	Specifies the number of minutes that the system was down because of the incident			
Reason	Specifies the reason that the system was down			
	Contains a link to summary information for the event (Refer to Figure 9-35)			

 Table 9-16
 Event Summary Information

Each page contains ten availability events. Use the symbols at the bottom of the page to navigate through the pages as follows:

- Use the numbers at the bottom of the page to select the corresponding pages.
- Use the single-right-arrow icon to move to the next group of pages.
- Use the double-right-arrow icon to move to the last group of pages.
- Use the single-left-arrow icon to move to the previous group of pages.
- Use the double-left-arrow icon to move to the first group of pages.

SYSTEM INFORMAT	ION > Availability > Event Summary Information
Internet address Reason for shutdown Start time Incident time Re–start time Uptime Downtime	: overdrive.csd.sgi.com : NMI : Fri May 28 18:10:18 1999 : Tue Jun 1 16:24:43 1999 : Tue Jun 1 16:29:24 1999 : Tue Jun 1 16:29:24 1999 : 5654 minutes (3 days 22 hrs 14 mins) : 5 minutes

Figure 9-35 Using the Site Level Overall Availability Summary Option (Page 6)

Using the Availability Summary List for Individual Hosts Option

The Availability Summary List for Individual Hosts option provides detailed information about all availability events that occurred on a specific system between the dates that you specify.

Perform the following procedure to use the Overall Availability option:

- 1. Click on the System Information tab.
- 2. Click on the Availability button in the SYSTEM INFORMATION section.
- 3. Specify the range of dates that you want to view. (Refer to Figure 9-36.)
- 4. Select the system that you want to use. (Refer to Figure 9-36.)
- 5. Click on the radio button next to the Availability Summary List for Individual Hosts option. (Refer to Figure 9-36.)

SYSTE	EM INFORMATION > Av	ailability			
					Help
Tota	Availability for all syster	ns on site (?	%) = 98.23		
MTE	I for all systems on site (i	min) = 2849)		
nter t	he time period for which y	'ou want ava	ailability information:		
rom:	06/01/1999 To:	06/13/19	99		
	(mm/dd/yyyyy)	(mm/dd/)	(1)(1)		
ispla	y availability information f	or the follow	ring systems:		
	System Name	IP Type	System Serial Number	IP Address	
	All systems on a site				
	overdrive.csd.sgi.com	IP27	69058F4B	192.26.58.19	
	deiter.csd.sgi.com	IP25	S51797	192.26.58.14	
		1	1		
100S	e one of the following opti	ons:			
۵	Site Level Overall Avail Summary	ability	Displays all statistical av selected system or group provides information rega Uptime, etc.	ailability informa of systems. Th rding MTBI, Ave	ation for the is report erage
۲	Availability Summary List for Individual Hosts		Displays detailed informa for the selected system o of each event is also allow	tion of all availa r group of systei ved if more deta	bility events ms. Selection il is required.
Ac	cept				

Figure 9-36 Using the Availability Summary List for Individual Hosts Option (Page 1)

6. Click on Accept.

The interface displays downtime information for the selected systems. (Refer to Figure 9-37; Table 9-17 describes the information that the table contains.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Availability > Availability Summary For All Hosts

System name : overdriv Database : ssdb Number of records : 7 Data start time : Tue Jun Data end time : Fri Jun 1	e.csd.sgi.com 1 16:24:43 1999 1 09:50:59 1999
--	---

Serial Number	Hostname	Un	scheduled	s	ervice		Total	
80069058F4B	overdrive.csd.sgi.com	1	99.98%	5	98.50%	6	98.48%	<u>Host</u> <u>Overall</u> <u>Availability</u>

Figure 9-37 Using the Availability Summary List for Individual Hosts Option (Page 2)

Table 9-17Availability Summary Information for All Hosts

Column	Description
Serial Number	Serial number of the system
Hostname	Name of the system
Unscheduled	Number of unscheduled events and the percent availability percentage for them
Service	Number of service action and the availability percentage for them
Total	Total number of availability events and the total availability percentage
	Contains a link to availability information for each system (Refer to Figure 9-38; Table 9-18 describes the information that the table contains)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Availabil	lity > Overall Availability

System name Database	: overdrive.csd.sgi.com : ssdb
Number of records	: 7 • Tue lun 1 16:24:42 1999
Data end time	: Fri Jun 11 09:50:59 1999

	Count	Downtime (min)	MTBI (min)	Availability %		
Unscheduled	1	5	22805	99.98		
reset action	1	5	22805			
Service action	5	341	4561	98.50		
administrative: reboot	5	341	4561			
Total	6	346	3801	98.48		
Average uptime	2964 minute	2964 minutes (2 days 1 hr 24 mins)				
Least uptime	128 minutes	128 minutes (2 hrs 8 mins)				
Most uptime	9760 minute	9760 minutes (6 days 18 hrs 40 mins)				
Average downtime	835 minutes	835 minutes (13 hrs 55 mins)				
Least downtime	2 minutes	2 minutes				
Most downtime	329 minutes	329 minutes (5 hrs 29 mins)				
Logging started at	Fri May 28 ·	Fri May 28 18:10:18 1999				
Last boot at	Fri Jun 11 0	Fri Jun 11 09:54:33 1999				
System has been up for	3141 minute	3141 minutes (2 days 4 hrs 21 mins)				

Event Availability Information

Figure 9-38 Using the Availability Summary List for Individual Hosts Option (Page 3)

Row	Description
Service Action	Information about each service action performed on the system
	The following information is displayed for each service action: count, downtime caused by the service action (in minutes), mean time between interrupts (in minutes), and availability percentage
Total	Information about the total downtime for service actions on the system
	A total is displayed for the following categories: count, downtime (in minutes) caused by the action, mean time between interrupts (in minutes), and availability percentage
Average uptime	Average uptime between availability events
Least uptime	Shortest uptime between availability events
Most uptime	Longest uptime between availability events
Average downtime	Average downtime
Most downtime	Longest downtime
Least downtime	Shortest downtime
Logging started at	Date and time when availability monitoring started
Last boot at	Date and time of the last system boot
System has been up for	Amount of time that the system has been up since the last boot (in minutes)

 Table 9-18
 Overall Availability Information

Click on the Event Availability Information link at the bottom of the page to display a list of all availability events that occurred between the dates that you specified. (Refer to Figure 9-39; Table 9-19 describes the information that the table contains.)

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Availability > Event Availability Information

System name Database Number of records Data start time	: overdrive.csd.sgi.com : ssdb : 7 : Tue Jun 1 16:24:43 1999 : Fri Jun 11 09:50:59 1999
D ata end time	: Fri Jun 11 09:50:59 1999

					Page 1 of 1
Start Time	Incident Time	Uptime (min)	DownTime (min)	Reason	
Fri May 28 18:10:18 1999	Tue Jun 1 16:24:43 1999	5654	5	NMI	<u>Event</u> <u>Summary</u>
Tue Jun 1 16:29:24 1999	Wed Jun 2 11:22:24 1999	1133	2	Controlled	<u>Event</u> <u>Summary</u>
Wed Jun 2 11:24:45 1999	Thu Jun 3 14:53:05 1999	1648	2	Controlled	<u>Event</u> <u>Summary</u>
Thu Jun 3 14:55:08 1999	Sun Jun 6 17:57:59 1999	0	0	Status report	<u>Event</u> <u>Summary</u>
Thu Jun 3 14:55:08 1999	Thu Jun 10 09:35:33 1999	9760	329	Controlled	<u>Event</u> <u>Summary</u>
Thu Jun 10 15:04:21 1999	Thu Jun 10 17:12:50 1999	128	4	Controlled	<u>Event</u> <u>Summary</u>
 Thu Jun 10 17:17:09 1999	Fri Jun 11 09:50:59 1999	994	4	Controlled	<u>Event</u> <u>Summary</u>

Figure 9-39 Using the Availability Summary List for Individual Hosts Option (Page 4)

Column	Description	
Start Time	Specifies the time that the system was brought up before the incident occurred	
Incident Time	Specifies the time at which the incident that caused the downtime occurred	
Uptime (min)	Specifies the number of minutes that the system was up before the incident occurred	
DownTime (min)	Specifies the number of minutes that the system was down because of the incident	
Reason	Specifies the reason that the system was down	
	Contains a link to summary information for the event (Refer to Figure 9-35)	

Table 9-19 Availability Event Information for the a Specific System

Each page contains ten availability events. Use the symbols at the bottom of the page to navigate through the pages as follows:

- Use the numbers at the bottom of the page to select the corresponding pages.
- Use the single-right-arrow icon to move to the next group of pages.
- Use the double-right-arrow icon to move to the last group of pages.
- Use the single-left-arrow icon to move to the previous group of pages.
- Use the double-left-arrow icon to move to the first group of pages.

SYSTEM INFORMATION > Availability > Event Summary Information		
Internet address Reason for shutdown Start time Incident time Re–start time Uptime Downtime	: overdrive.csd.sgi.com : NMI : Fri May 28 18:10:18 1999 : Tue Jun 1 16:24:43 1999 : Tue Jun 1 16:29:24 1999 : 5654 minutes (3 days 22 hrs 14 mins) : 5 minutes	

Figure 9-40 Using the Availability Summary List for Individual Hosts Option (Page 5)

Chapter 10

Sending Notifications

About the espnotify Tool

The Embedded Support Partner software suite includes the espnotify tool that you can use to perform the following types of notification:

- Displaying a message on the system console
- Displaying a message on a local or remote X Window System display
- Sending an e-mail message
- Sending a page to an alphanumeric or chatty pager

Command Line Options for Displaying a Message on the Console

Use the following format of the espnotify command to display a message on the system console:

/usr/bin/espnotify -A <message> [-n <number>]

This format of the espnotify command has the following command line options:

-A	Specifies that the message should be displayed in the console window
<message></message>	Specifies the message that the window should display
	Enclose < <i>message</i> > in single quotes (' ') if the message contains more than one word.
-n < <i>number</i> >	Specifies an optional priority message, which is determined by the value that you specify for <i><number></number></i>
	The <number> parameter can be a value from 1 to 7. espnotify attaches a label to the message based on the value of <number>: 1 or 2 (Critical System Error), 3 (System Error), 4 (System Warning), or 5 to 7 (System Information)</number></number>

For example, the following command displays the message This is the message to display. on the console (refer to Figure 10-1):

/usr/bin/espnotify -A 'This is the message to display.'



Figure 10-1 Displaying a Message in the Console Window

Displaying a Message on an X Window System Display

Use the following format of the espnotify command to display a message on a local or remote X Window System display:

```
/usr/bin/espnotify -c <message> [-a] [-D <display>] [-g <geometry>]
[-i <icon>] -n <number>] [-t <title>]
```

This format of the espnotify command has the following command line options:

-c <message> Specifies the message that the window should display

Enclose *<message>* in double quotes ("") if the message contains more than one word.

-a Specifies that an audio file should be played

The /usr/bin/ssplay application plays the audio file. Audio notification cannot be performed without graphical notification. Audio notification can be performed only on the local host.

-D <*display*> Specifies the display to use. (If you do not specify a display, the window is displayed on the host specified by the \$DISPLAY environment variable.)

-g <geometry> Specifies an optional X Window System geometry string for the window (in the standard WIDTHxHEIGHTxXOFFxYOFF format)

For example, -g 120x80x50x100 specifies a window that is 120 pixels wide by 80 pixels high and is located 50 pixels from the left edge of the screen and 100 pixels from the top edge of the screen. (Refer to the x(1) man page for more information.)

- -i <icon> Specifies an optional image to display as an icon for the window
- -n <number> Specifies an optional priority message, which is determined by the value that you specify for <number>

The <number> parameter can be a value from 1 to 7. espnotify attaches a label to the message based on the value of <number>: 1 or 2 (Critical System Error), 3 (System Error), 4 (System Warning), or 5 to 7 (System Information)

-t <title> Specifies an optional title of the window.

Enclose *<title>* in double quotes ("") if the title contains more than one word.

For example, the following command displays a window on the local host (refer to Figure 10-2):

/usr/bin/espnotify -c "This is the message to display." -D localhost:0 -t "This is the title."



Figure 10-2 Displaying a Message on an X Window System Display

Sending an E-mail Message

Use the following format of the espnotify command to send an e-mail message:

```
/usr/bin/espnotify -E <address> { -f <filename> | -m <message> } [-n <number>]
[-o <options>] [-s <subject>]
```

This format of the espnotify command has the following command line options:

-E <address> Specifies the e-mail addresses that should receive the message Enclose <address> in single quotes (' ') if the list contains more than one address. -f <filename> Specifies a text file to use as content for the message You cannot use the *-f* and *-m* options at the same time. Specifies text to use as content for the message -m <message> Enclose *<message>* in single quotes ('') if the message contains more than one word. You cannot use the -f and -m options at the same time. Specifies an optional priority message, which is determined by the value -n <number> that you specify for <number> The <number> parameter can be a value from 1 to 7. espnotify attaches a label to the message based on the value of <number>: 1 or 2 (Critical System Error), 3 (System Error), 4 (System Warning), or 5 to 7 (System Information) -o *<options>* Specifies processing options for the message Two options are available: -o COMP (compress and uuencode the message) and -o ENCO (uuencode the message). These options are valid only if you also use the -f option. -s <subject> Specifies the subject of the message The format of the default subject is [HOSTNAME]: text, where HOSTNAME is replaced with the name of the host and *text* is replaced with a priority message (for example, Critical System Error).

If you use the -n and -s options, the -s option overrides the -n option.

For example, the following command sends a message to dtg@sgi.com (refer to Figure 10-3):

```
/usr/bin/espnotify -E dtg@sgi.com -m 'This is the text of the message.' -n 1 \,
```



Figure 10-3 Sending an E-mail Message

Sending a Page

Use the following format of the espnotify command to send a page to an alphanumeric or chatty pager:

```
/usr/bin/espnotify -C <message> -p <pagers> [-n <number>] [-Q <server>]
[-S <service>]
```

This format of the espnotify command has the following command line options:

 Enclose <message> in double quotes (" ") if the message contains more than one word.</message> -p <pagers> Specifies a comma-separated list of pager names (or pager identification numbers) that should receive the message</pagers> Pager information is stored in the /etc/qpage.cf file on the server that is sending the page. You can set up pager names on the Embedded Support Partner interface. -n <number> Specifies an optional priority message, which is determined by the value that you specify for <number></number></number> The <number> parameter can be a value from 1 to 7. espnotify attaches a label to the message based on the value of <number>: 1 or 2 (Critical System Error), 3 (System Error), 4 (System Warning), or 5 to 7 (System Information)</number></number> 	-C	<message></message>	Specifies the message that the window should display.
 -p <pagers> Specifies a comma-separated list of pager names (or pager identification numbers) that should receive the message</pagers> Pager information is stored in the /etc/qpage.cf file on the server that is sending the page. You can set up pager names on the Embedded Support Partner interface. -n <number> Specifies an optional priority message, which is determined by the value that you specify for <number> The <number> parameter can be a value from 1 to 7. espnotify attaches a label to the message based on the value of <number>: 1 or 2 (Critical System Error), 3 (System Error), 4 (System Warning), or 5 to 7 (System Information)</number></number></number></number> 			Enclose <i><message></message></i> in double quotes (" ") if the message contains more than one word.
Pager information is stored in the /etc/qpage.cf file on the server that is sending the page. You can set up pager names on the Embedded Support Partner interface. -n <number> Specifies an optional priority message, which is determined by the value that you specify for <number> The <number> parameter can be a value from 1 to 7. espnotify attaches a label to the message based on the value of <number>: 1 or 2 (Critical System Error), 3 (System Error), 4 (System Warning), or 5 to 7 (System Information)</number></number></number></number>	-p	<pagers></pagers>	Specifies a comma-separated list of pager names (or pager identification numbers) that should receive the message
<pre>-n <number> Specifies an optional priority message, which is determined by the value that you specify for <number> The <number> parameter can be a value from 1 to 7. espnotify attaches a label to the message based on the value of <number>: 1 or 2 (Critical System Error), 3 (System Error), 4 (System Warning), or 5 to 7 (System Information)</number></number></number></number></pre>			Pager information is stored in the /etc/gpage.cf file on the server that is sending the page. You can set up pager names on the Embedded Support Partner interface.
The <number> parameter can be a value from 1 to 7. espnotify attaches a label to the message based on the value of <number>: 1 or 2 (Critical System Error), 3 (System Error), 4 (System Warning), or 5 to 7 (System Information)</number></number>	-n	<number></number>	Specifies an optional priority message, which is determined by the value that you specify for <number></number>
			The <number> parameter can be a value from 1 to 7. espnotify attaches a label to the message based on the value of <number>: 1 or 2 (Critical System Error), 3 (System Error), 4 (System Warning), or 5 to 7 (System Information)</number></number>

-Q	<server></server>	Specifies an alternate paging server to use
		If you do not specify this option, <code>espnotify</code> uses the <code>QPage</code> software on the local host.
-S	<service></service>	Specifies an alternate paging service to use
		Paging service information is stored in the /etc/qpage.cf file on the server that is sending the page. You can set up paging service information on the Embedded Support Partner interface.
		If you do not specify this option, esphotify uses the default paging service specified in the /etc/qpage.cf file.

For example, the following command sends the message This is the message to the pager named mypager:

/usr/bin/espnotify -C "This is the message" -p mypager

Invoking espnotify from Embedded Support Partner

Because esphotify is a command line utility, you can configure it as an Embedded Support Partner action. To do this, create a new action or update an existing action with a command string that uses the /usr/bin/esphotify command. This section shows two examples of how to create Embedded Support Partner actions that use esphotify.

Example 1: Creating an Action to Send an E-mail

The first example shows how to set up an Embedded Support Partner action to send notification by E-mail.

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Add button in the Actions category of the SETUP section.

3. Update the parameters. (Table 10-1 lists the parameters for this example.)

 Table 10-1
 Example Action Parameters for Sending an E-mail Notification

Field	Setting
Enter action command string	/usr/bin/espnotify -Edtg@sgi.com-m %D -s `An event was just registered.'
Enter action description	Send notification via E-mail to dtg@sgi.com
Enter username to execute this action as (default = root)	root
Enter action timeout (in multiples of 5 seconds)	10
Enter the number of times that an event must be registered before an action will be taken	1
Enter the number of retry times (up to 23; more than 4 not recommended)	4

Figure 10-4 shows an interface page with the proper settings for this example.

Help
Enter action command string:
Enter action description:
Enter username to execute this action (default = root):
Enter action timeout (in multiples of 5 seconds):
10 seconds
the action will be taken:
Enter the number of retry times (up to 23; more then 4 not recommended):
Accept Clear

Figure 10-4 Example Action Parameters for Sending an E-mail Message

4. Click on Accept. (Figure 10-5 shows the confirmation message for this example.)

SETUP > Actions > Add	
Action description:	: Send notification via E–mail to dtg@sgi.com
Action command string	: /usr/bin/espnotify –E dtg@sgi.com –m %D –s 'An event was just registered.'
A username to execute the action	: root
Action timeout	: 10 seconds
Number of times the event must be registered before an action will be taken	: 1
Retry times	: 4

Figure 10-5 Example Confirmation Message for Sending an E-mail Message Action

Example 2: Creating an Action to Send a Page

The second example shows how to set up an Embedded Support Partner action to send notification to a pager. To send messages to a pager, you need to set up the modem, paging service, and pager that <code>espnotify</code> should use. Figure 10-6 shows the setup used in this example.

SETUP > Paging > View Current Setup	
QuickPage Administration Variables	
Administrator's E-mail address	: dtg@sgi.com
Number of seconds to wait for a reply before giving up on queries	: 5 secs
Modem Setup	
Modem 1	
Name	: USRobotics–Sportster
Device	: /dev/ttyd
Initialization command	: ATE1F1V1M0
Services Setup	
Service t	
Name	: PageNet
Modem Name	: USRobotics–Sportster
Maximum number of retries	: 6
Maximum length of message	: 150
Phone Number of Paging Service	: 914084289729
Pager Setup	
Pager 1	
Name	: Darrin_Goss
Service	: PageNet
Pager ID	: 8151992

Figure 10-6 Paging Configuration for Sending a Message to a Pager Example

- 1. Click on the Setup tab.
- 2. Click on the Add button in the Actions category of the SETUP section.
- 3. Update the parameters. (Table 10-2 lists the parameters for this example.)

 Table 10-2
 Example Action Parameters for Sending a Message to a Pager

Field	Setting
Enter action command string	/usr/bin/espnotify -C 'There is a system problem.' -p Darrin_Goss
Enter action description	Page Darrin
Enter username to execute this action as (default = root)	root
Enter action timeout (in multiples of 5 seconds)	10
Enter the number of times that an event must be registered before an action will be taken	1
Enter the number of retry times (up to 23; more than 4 not recommended)	4

Figure 10-7 shows an example interface page with the proper settings for this example.
SETUP > Actions > Add	
	Help
Enter action command string:	here is a system problem.' –p Darrin_Goss
Enter action description:	Paga Darrin
	Faye Danin
Enter username to execute this action (default = root):	root
Enter action timeout (in multiples of 5 seconds):	
, , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , , ,	10 seconds
Enter the number of times an event must be registered before the action will be taken:	1
Enter the number of retry times (up to 22) more	
then 4 not recommended):	4

Figure 10-7 Example Action Parameters for Sending a Message to a Pager

4. Click on Accept. (Figure 10-5 shows the confirmation message for this example.)

SETUP > Actions > Add	
Action description:	: Page Darrin
Action command string	: /usr/bin/espnotify –C 'There is a system problem.' –p Darrin_Goss
A username to execute the action	: root
Action timeout	: 10 seconds
Number of times the event must be registered before an action will be taken	: 1
Retry times	: 4

Figure 10-8 Example Confirmation Message for Sending a Message to a Pager Action

Chapter 11

Logging Events from Applications and Scripts

The Embedded Support Partner framework provides two ways for you to send events from your local applications and scripts to Embedded Support Partner:

- By using the eventmon Application Programming Interface (API)
- By using the esplogger tool

Note: You can also use the openlog, syslog, and closelog SYSLOG functions to send event information through SYSLOG. Refer to the syslog(3c) man page for more information.

Event Classification and Sequence Numbers

The Embedded Support Partner framework uses a standardized event classification scheme for the events that it registers. This classification scheme was implemented to:

- Provide a meaningful representation of the events that have occurred so that users can easily interpret them
- Provide an easy way to locate the source of an error by providing a general category and more specific information

In this scheme, events are categorized by class and type. An event class describes a general area that Embedded Support Partner monitors (for example, SCSI). An event type provides greater detail about individual events (for example, a SCSI controller initialization failure).

Embedded Support Partner automatically generates event class and type numbers when you create custom events and classes. You can use these numbers with your local applications and scripts to send event information to the Embedded Support Partner framework through the eventmon API and esplogger tool.

The Embedded Support Partner framework also uses unique sequence numbers for system messages. These sequence numbers provide a mechanism that enables Embedded Support Partner to isolate problems at the source code level.

Using the eventmon API

The eventmon API contains a set of functions that you can call from your local C or C++ programs to send event information to the event monitoring component of Embedded Support Partner (eventmond). The eventmon API includes the following functions:

int EVMONAPI emapiIsDaemonInstalled();

This function determines whether the eventmond software is installed on the system.

Parameters:

None

Return value:

An integer: A nonzero value indicates that the /usr/etc/eventmond executable file exists on the system. A zero indicates that the file does not exist on the system.

int EVMONAPI emapiIsDaemonStarted();

This function determines whether eventmond is running on the system. You should use this function to verify that eventmond is running before you use any other eventmon API functions.

Parameters:

None

Return value:

An integer: A nonzero value indicates that eventmond is running on the system. A zero indicates that eventmond is not running on the system.

int EVMONAPI emapiDeclareDaemonUnload();

This function unloads eventmond from memory. (Note that the eventmond daemon can remain in the memory for up to 2 seconds after this function is called while the unload process completes.)

Parameters:

None

Return value:

An integer: A nonzero value indicates that eventmond successfully unloaded from memory. A zero indicates that an error prevented eventmond from successfully unloading from memory.

An application must have root permissions/privileges to call this function.

int EVMONAPI emapiDeclareDaemonReloadConfig();

This function causes eventmond to reload the configuration information. This process includes three steps:

- 1. Drop all filtering information from the internal eventmond memory tables.
- 2. Connect to system tables that contain the filtering information.
- Reconfigure the internal eventmond memory tables with the information from the system tables.

This function has the same functionality as the following shell command:

kill -HUP eventmon_pid

Parameters:

None

Return value:

An integer: A nonzero value indicates that eventmond successfully reloaded the configuration information. A zero indicates that an error prevented eventmond from successfully reloading the configuration information.

An application must have root permissions/privileges to call this function.

 int EVMONAPI emapiSendEvent(char *hostname_from,unsigned long timehost,int etype, int epri, char *eventbuffer);

This function sends information about an event (event class sequence number and priority/facility code) to eventmond.

Parameters:

char *hostname_from

The name of the host where the event occurred (Use NULL to indicate the local host.)

unsigned long timehost

- The name of the host that is sending the event information (Use NULL to indicate the local host.)

int etype

- A number that specifies the event type (must be a nonzero value)

int epri

The priority/facility code

char *eventbuffer

 A valid ASCIZ buffer that contains the event message string (It must be a valid string pointer and have a nonzero size.)

The buffer cannot be larger than the number of bytes specified by EVMONAPI_MAXEVENTSIZE (16 KB, as defined in the eventmonapi.h file).

Return value:

An integer: A nonzero value indicates that the information was successfully passed to eventmond for processing. A zero indicates that an error prevented the information from successfully reaching eventmond.

The following sample code fragment demonstrates how to use the eventmon API:

```
#include <stdio.h>
#include <stdio.h>
#include <sys/syslog.h>
#include <eventmonapi.h>
main()
{ if(!emapiIsDaemonStarted())
    { printf("EventMon daemon not started!0);
    exit(0);
    }
    return emapiSendEvent("legalov.sgi.com",0,0x20101C,
        LOG_MAKEPRI(LOG_USER,LOG_INFO), "Hello world!");
}
```

Using the esplogger Tool

Use the esplogger tool to pass event information from your local scripts to the event monitoring component of Embedded Support Partner (eventmond). You can run esplogger from a UNIX prompt or from a UNIX shell script. esplogger uses the following command syntax:

esplogger -s sequence_number {-f filename | -m "message"} [-p priority] [-t time] esplogger -h esplogger -V

where:

- The -s sequence_number option specifies the sequence number (in decimal or hexadecimal). You must use this option with the -t option and the -f or -m options.
- The -f filename option specifies the file that contains data to log in the Embedded Support Partner framework. You must include the -s option with this option. You cannot use this option with the -m option.
- The -m "message" option specifies a message to log in the Embedded Support Partner framework. You must include the -s option with this option. You cannot use this option with the -f option.

- The -p *priority* option specifies the priority (for example, local0.notice). Refer to the syslog(3C) man page for descriptions of the priority values. If you do not specify a priority value, esplogger sets the priority to local0.info. You must use this option with the -s option and the -f or -m option.
- The -t time option specifies the time that the event occurred. You must specify the time in seconds since 00: 00:00 UTC on January 1, 1970 (in decimal notation). If you do not specify the time, esplogger defaults the time to the time that it received the event. You must use this option with the -s option and the -f or -m option.
- The -h option prints the usage information.
- The -v option prints the esplogger version number.

Note: You can also use logger to send event information through SYSLOG. Refer to the logger(1) man page for more information.

Example 1

esplogger -s 200356 -f availmon.dat

This example sets the sequence number to 200356, the priority to local0.info (1030), and the time to the time that esplogger received the event. Then, it passes this information and the data in the availmon.dat file to eventmond.

Example 2

esplogger -s 0x00200000 -p syslog.warning -m "Start SVP"

This example sets the sequence number to 0x00200000, the priority to syslog.warning (324), and the time to the time that esplogger received the event. Then, it passes this information and the message to eventmond.

Tell Us About This Manual

As a user of Silicon Graphics products, you can help us to better understand your needs and to improve the quality of our documentation.

Any information that you provide will be useful. Here is a list of suggested topics:

- General impression of the document
- Omission of material that you expected to find
- Technical errors
- Relevance of the material to the job you had to do
- Quality of the printing and binding

Please send the title and part number of the document with your comments. The part number for this document is 007-4065-002.

Thank you!

Three Ways to Reach Us

- To send your comments by electronic mail, use either of these addresses:
 - On the Internet: techpubs@sgi.com
 - For UUCP mail (through any backbone site): [your_site]!sgi!techpubs
- To **fax** your comments (or annotated copies of manual pages), use this fax number: 650-932-0801
- To send your comments by **traditional mail**, use this address:

Technical Publications Silicon Graphics, Inc. 1600 Amphitheatre Parkway, M/S 535 Mountain View, California 94043-1351